ELKINS COMMON COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEARING
AGENDA

401 Davis Avenue

Council Chamber, 2nd Floor
July 28, 2022

7:00 p.m.

1. Call to order and roll call

2. TItems open for public comment

a. Proposed Zoning Ordinance

3. Adjournment

ELKINS COMMON COUNCIL
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA

401 Davis Avenue
Council Chamber, 2nd Floor
July 28, 2022
Immediately following public hearing
1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
2. Call to order and roll call
3. Public comment
4. Minutes
a. Minutes proposed for the regular council meeting of July 7, 2022

5. Correspondence and Notifications

a. Treasurer’s report
b. Events

Elkins City Clerk ~1 of 3—
Date created: 7/22/2022 9:01:00 AM Last saved: 7/22/22 904 AM




Public Hearing and Special Council Meeting July 28, 2022

6. Committee Reports
7. Staff reports
8. Approval of vendor invoice payments
Vendor invoices presented for approval:
e A/P History Check Report for the period July 5, 2022 - July 22, 2022

(Available for public review in the city clerk’s office two business days before this meeting, as
required by W. Va. Ethics Commission Open Meetings Advisory Opinion 2012-04.)

9, Unfinished business

a. Resolution 1541: Appointment of Building Inspector and Code Enforcement Officer
as City Zoning Officer

10. New husiness

a. Ordinance 299: An Ordinance of the Common Council of the City of Elkins, West
Virginia, Amending Chapter 150.035, Regarding the Version of the International
Building Code Adopted as the State Building Code (2™ and final reading)

b. Ordinance 300: An Ordinance of the Common Council of the City of Elkins, West
Virginia, Revising Chapter 93: Streets, Sidewalks, and Public Places of the City Code
to Establish Rules and Regulations for Qutdoor Dining in Public Spaces (2 and final
reading)

¢. Ordinance 301: An Ordinance of the Common Council of the City of Elkins, West
Virginia Repealing The Current Chapter 152: Zoning, Elkins City Code and Other
Conflicting Sections of the City Code and Enacting a New Zoning Ordinance to be
Designated as Chapter 152: Zoning, Elkins City Code (1* of two readings)

d. Resolution 1550: Appointing Interim Operations Manager and Establishing
Compensation Level

e. Resolution 1551: Adopting City Council Rule on Executive Session and Amending
City of Elkins Rules of Council

f.  Resolution 1552: Approval of Changes to the City of Elkins Classification and
Compensation Plan

2. Resolution 1553 Approving “Full-time Regular Employee” Status and Confirming a
Compensation Level for J. Haden

h. Resolution 1554: General Fund Budget Revision 2023-001-01 for FY23

i. Resolution 1555: Appointing a Treasurer and Confirming the Amount of
Compensation

j. Resolution 1556: Authorizing Conditions of Lease & Addendum and Maintenance
Agreement between Hart Office Solutions and the City of Elkins (Sanitation
Department)

Elkins City Clerk =2 of 3=

Date created: 7/22/2022 9:01:00 AM Last saved: 7/22/22 9:04 AM



Public Heoring and Special Council Meeting July 28, 2022

k. Resolution 1557: Authorizing Conditions of Lease & Addendum and Maintenance
Agreement between Hart Office Solutions and the City of Elkins (Street Department)

. Presentation of Draft Comprehensive Plan by Planning Commission

m. Establish a date for the comprehensive plan public hearing

n. Discussion of Ad-hoc ARPA Advisory Committee Recommendations

11. Mayer’s comments

12. Adjournment

Elkins City Clerk —3of 3—

Date created: 7/22/2022 9:01:00 AM Last saved: 7/22/22 9:04 AM




Proposed Minutes

ELKINS COMMON COUNCIL
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES

401 Davis Avenue

Council Chamber, 2nd Floor
July 7, 2022

7:00 p.m.

Elkins Common Council met in regular session in the council chamber of city hall. Present were
Mayor Jerry A. Marco; Councilpersons N.E., Bross-Fregonara, R.C. Chenoweth, M. D. Cuonzo,
J.A. Guye, C.J. Higgins, G.M. Hinchman, C.C. Lowther, D.C. Parker, and L.H. Vest; City
Treasurer T. Judy; Fire Chief S.D. Himes; Police Chief T. Bennett; Interim Operations Manager
M. Himes; City Attorney G. S. Roberts; and City Clerk J.R. Sutton (acting as recording
secretary).

MINUTES

Cm. Lowther, MOVED APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL JUNE 14, 2022 MEETING.
The motion carried.

CORRESPONDENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS

Council received the following correspondence and notifications:

* Events
¢ Minutes of committee, board and commission meetings

The following building permits have been issued since the previous regular council mecting.
PRESENTATION

Fire Chief S. Himes presented information to council on the recent Insurance Services Office
(ISO) evaluation and rating completed on the Elkins Protection System. The evaluation was
completed on October 25, 2021 and the score was receive din early May 2022, There are four
main criteria on which the scoring is based. They include emergency communications, fire
department, water supply and community risk reduction. Chief Himes supplied the scores for
each area as well as a historical reference. The ISO uses a rating system of 1 (best) to 5 (worst).
In 1986 EFD was class 5. In 1991 and 2017, they were a class 3. EFD will remain a class 3, but
the Chief sees potential areas of improvement which may move the city to a class 2 rating in the
future.

COMMITTEE REPORTS were provided by all committee chairs present.

Page I of 4



Regular Council Meeting July 7, 2022
Proposed Minutes

STAFF REPORTS were provided by all present administrative officers. The chief wastewater
operator was not able to attend.

APPROVAL OF VENDOR INVOICE PAYMENTS

Cm. Hinchman, MOVED APPROVAL OF THE INVOICES PRESENTED. The motion carried.

The invoices in question were as specified on the following list, which is attached and made part
of this record:

e Accounts Payable check transactions for the period June 13 — July 1, 2022

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1359: AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO WEST
YIRGINIA COVID-19 PANDEMIC DR-4517-WV GRANT FUNDING BY THE ELKINS SANITARY
BOARD. The motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

Cw. Guye, MOVED APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 299: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 150.035, REGARDING THE
VERSION OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE ADOPTED AS THE STATE BUILDING CODE
(15T OF TWO READINGS). The motion carried.

Cm. Higgins, MOVED APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 300: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA, REVISING CHAPTER 93: STREETS,
SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PLACES OF THE CITY CODE TO ESTABLISH RULES AND REGULATIONS
FOR OUTDOOR DINING IN PUBLIC SPACES (15T OF TWO READINGS). The motion carried.

Cw. Bross-Fregonara, MOVED APPROVAL T0 POSTPONE RESOLUTION 1541: APPOINTMENT OF
BUILDING INSPECTOR AND CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER AS CITY ZONING OFFICER. The
motion carried,

Cm. Lowther, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1542: APPOINTMENT OF J. SUTTON AS MON
FOREST TOWNS PARTNERSHIP BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELKINS REPRESENTATIVE. The motion
carried.

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1543: APPOINTMENT OF A. BURKHART TO
ELKINS TREE BOARD. The motion carried.

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED APPROVAL OF ENTERING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF
DISCUSSING PROSPECTIVE PERSONNEL. The motion carried. Council entered executive session at
7:55 p.m. and returned at 8:02. The chair announced no action was taken.

Page 2 of 4




Regular Council Meeting July 7, 2022
Proposed Minutes

Cw. Guye, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1544: APPOINTMENT OF SECOND WARD
COUNCILOR TO UNEXPIRED TERM. The motion carried.

Cm. Chenoweth, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1545: APPROVING “FULL-TIME REGULAR
EMPLOYEE” STATUS AND CONFIRMING COMPENSATION LEVEL FOR T. BAREUTHER. The motion
carried.

Cm. Hinchman, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1546: APPROVAL OF COAL SEVERANCE
BUDGET REVISION 2023-002-01 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023. In accordance with the requirements of
the state auditor’s office for interdepartmental budget revisions, the chair ordered a roll-call vote.
The recording sccretary called roll in random order. The motion carried. Council votes were as
follows:

N. Bross-Fregonara | Yes 1. Guye Yes D. Parker Yes
R. Chenoweth Yes C. Higgins Yes L. Vest Yes
M. Cuonzo . Yes M. Hinchman . Yes Mayor J. Marco (in case of tie) n/a
{vacant) n/a C. Lowther Yes

Cm. Hinchman, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1547: APPROVING TRANSFER OF FUNDS
FROM THE FINANCIAL STABILIZATION ACCOUNT. The motion carried.

Cm. Hinchman, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1548: AUTHORIZING CLOSURE OF CITY
HALL PARKING LOT PROJECT BANK ACCOUNT. The motion carried.

Cm. Hinchman, MOVED APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 1549: APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE
CITY OF ELKINS GRANTS PROTOCOL. The motion carried.

Cm. Chenoweth, MOVED APPROVAL OF TEMPLATE LEASE FOR DARDEN HOUSE TENANTS. The
motion carried.

Cm. Lowther, MOVED APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY SMOKER FRIENDLY FOR ABCA SPECIAL
LICENSURE ENDORSEMENT . The motion carried.

MAYOR’S COMMENTS were provided.

Cm. Higgins, MOVED ADJOURNMENT. The motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

Page 3 of 4



Regular Council Meeting July 7, 2022
Proposed Minutes

Approved by council at the meeting
of MONTH DAY, YEAR

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

Page 4 of 4




Month of June

County Tax

B & O Tax
Hotel/Motel Tax
Gas & Qil Severance Tax
2% City Utility Tax
Utility Excise Tax
Liquor Tax

Police

Municipal Court
Code Enforcement
Fire Fees

Business License
intergovernmental
Franchise/iRP Fees

Phil Gainer Community Center

Misc. Revenue
Municipal Sales Tax

Monthly Report for FY2022

Fund Revenues Expenditures
Revenues
Annual Revenue | Collected as per
General $228,659.01 $453,331.28 Totals Budget
$26,511.08
$2,904.40 $1,452,717.75 114.66%
$17,466.64 $187,146.83 132.73%
$0.00 $12,793.05 116.30%
$5,678.96 $74,096.57 114.32%
$17,021.78 $322,127.36 111.08%
$0.00
$2,044.72 $28,738.19 149.68%
$4,314.28 $65,098.25 135.11%
$1,539.63 $30,321.33 108.77%
$61,852.99
$12,640.00 $29,540.00 111.47%
$34,181.09 $688,516.38 144.37%
$10,340.48
$3,720.00 $91,079.00 291.91%
$28,442.96 $103,848.56 323.06%
$0.00 $1,471,556.01 122.63%
$228,659.01 $6,672,081.71 115.63%
Sanitation $133,842.43 $104,320.81 $1,698,299.65 103.72%
Water $265,276.13 $298,259.94 —
Sewer $241,214.84 $263,499.82 $2,473,830.69 104.79%
Landfill $8,088.21 $11.16 $13,761.74 250.21%

Percent of Yr.
Completed
100.00

1,042,254.00
1,267,000.00
141,000.00
11,000.00
65,000.00
250,000.00
102,000.00
19,200.00
48,726.00
27,200.00
913,000.00
26,500.00
338,381.00
155,000.00
30,000.00
94,060.00
1,200,000.00
5,770,321.00

1,637,383.00

3,586,785.00

2,360,650.00

5,500.00



{General Fund

Schedule of Monthly Indebtedness
Lender Loan Number Account Charged Deseription Note Bate | Maturity Date Loén Term| Payment | Type
|Elkins Building Comemnission 13114638 001-750-219-0000 |Baxter St. 7/10/2006 7/10{'2_0.25 240| 1,776.73] Enter
. 001-754-219-0000 661.92
Enterprise 22TNFK 001-566-458-0000 {2019 jeep Cherokee /172019 17172024 60 455081 invoice
Enterprise 231Z4M 001-700-459-0000 | 2020 Ford Police interceptor 10/1/2020 107172025 769.00] invoice |
Enterprise 23J25H 001-700-459-0000 | 2020 Ford Police Interceptor 16/1/2020 10/1/2025 768.00| tnvoice
£nterprise 23J75L 001-700-459-G000 [ 2020 Ford Police Interceptor 10/1/2020 10/1/2025 &0 769.08| Invoice
Enterprise 23HKEW 001-750-459-0000 | 2020 Ford F250 3/1/2020 37172025 &0 6503.55] Invoice
Enterprise 23HNT2 001-750-459-0000 {2020 Ford F550 12/1/2020 12/1/2025 &0 753.02{ invaice
Enterprise 2357040 001-433-459-0000 [2021 Ford F150 9/1/2021 9/1/2026 60 551.19} invoice
Enterprise 235B5G 001-700-455-0000 {2021 Ford Police interceptor 10/1/2021 10/17/20286 60 817.49] Invoice
Enterprise 235B5R {01-700-459-0000 {2021 Ford Police Interceptor 10/1/2071 10/1/2026 60 817.49; Invoice
Enterprise 233BR3 001-700-459-0000 {2021 Ford Police Interceptor 12/1/2021 12/1/2026 &0 814.11} invoice
Enterprise 23583) 001-700-455-0000 {2021 Ford Potice Interceptor 12/1/2021 12/1/2026 50f  814.11] Invoice
Entarprise 235851 G01-700-459-0000 {2021 Ford Police Interceptor 12/1/2621 12/1/2G26 60f 814.11 Invoice
Enterprise 235850 001-700-459-0000 {2021 Ford Police Interceptor 12/1/2021 12/1/2026 60] 81411 invoice
Enterprise 235B5S 001-700-453-0000 {2021 Ford Police Interceptor 11/1/2021 11/1/2026 &0 81199 Invoice
Enterprise 235B5N 001-700-459-0000 {2021 Ford Police Interceptor 117172021 11/1/2026 60 811_.99 Invoice
Enterprise 235803 001-700-459-0000 {2021 Chevy Tahoe 1/1/2023] 1/1/2026 60f  852.44{ Invoice
Enterprise 2358Q8 001-700-459-0000 {2021 Chevy Tahose 1/1/2022 1/1/2026 60f  B52.44} Invoice
Enterprise 235BPT _ 001-700-452-0000 {2021 Chevy Tahoe 17172022 1/1/2027 al 852.44| involce
Lﬁi}terprise 235887 L01-700-459-0000 12021 Cheyy Tahoe 17172022 1/1/2027 60 552.44) invoice
|Mountain Valley Bank 1214756-11 (001-910-459-0000 {PGEC Renpvation 9/15/2021 9/15/2036 180| 4,833.20|Coupon

ﬂ}'ﬂ% of scheduted monthly payment {based on sg. footage)




Fire Fund ]
Schedule of Monthly Indebtedness
Lender Loan Number Account Charged Description Note Date | Maturity Date | Loan Term | Payment Type
Davis Trust Company 3113776-12755 | 036-706-459-0000 2017 Sutphen 12/22/2017] 1/22/2024 84 4,256.84] Coupon




Parks Fund

[

Schedule of Monthly Indebtedness

Lender

Loan Number

None

Account Charged

Deseription

Note Date

Maturity Date

Loan Term

Payment

2




Sanitation Fund |
Schedule of Monthly Indebtedness
Lender Loan Number Account Charged Description Note Date | Maturity.Date | Loan Term [, Monthlv Payment

404-800-670-0000

Truist 9348000234-00005 |404-800-459-0000 _[Rolt-Off Truck 2/11/2020 2/11/2026 72 2596.05|  Invoice
404-800-670-0000

[ Truist 9948000234-00006 |404-800-459-0000 | 2022 Int! Garbage Truck 8/17/2021 8/17/2028 72 2643.26 Invoice

iountain Valley Bank 1202553-22 404-800-460-0000  [Sanitation Garage Line of Credit 10/11/2019 10/11/2022 12|Int. Only Invoice

Grover Jacksen MONTHLY RENT __ {404-800-219-0000 |917 S. Raiiroad Ave. 9/1/2005 None None 1,800.00] Manual Entry




Sewer Fund I 1
Schedule of Monthly Indebtedness
Lender Loan Number Account Charged Description Note Date Maturig Date Loan Term Pa:rnent Type
|BB&T (00047} 9978000234-00004 |401-512-459-0003  |Sewer Aeration Equipment 9/27/2016 9/27/2023 34 2256.75 Invoice
401-512-670-0000
Mountain Valley Bank 1202553-00021 401-511-455-0000 2018 Van & Sewer Camera 9/28/2018 9/28/2025 84 2368.181 Coupon
401-511-670-0000
Enterprise 23GFGM 401-512-4538-0002 2020 Ford F-350 9/1/2020 9/1/2025 60 553.21 Invoice
401-512-670-0000
Enterprise 235TRS 401-511-459-0001  |2021 Ford F-150 8/1/2021 8/1/2026 60 563.16]  Invoice
401-511-670-0000
Has Not Arrived 401-512-455-0004 S0C-ECO Sewer Cleaner 2?7 72? 120 4600.00] Estimate
{Municipal Bond Commission ELK-5-1-86-B-RN-12  1401-512-455-0001  |Plant upgrade 1986 4/1/1985 10/1/2025 474 1,080.1 EFT
{ !
IMunicipal Bond Commission | [ELK-5-1-06-A-RN-12  [401-512-459-0000 _|Plant upgrade 2006 9/1/2008 9/1/2028] 240 46,933.02f  EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-S-1-09-A-RN-12  }401-511-458-0000  |Davis Ave. Stormwater Separation 9/1/2010/ 9/1/2040 360 2,830.41 EFT
|Municipal Bond Commission ELK-5-1-15-A-RN-12 }401-511-458-0001  |Phase | Revenue 9/1/2016 9/1/2056 480 7,269, EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-S5-1-20-A RN-12  |401-511-458-0003  |Phase Il Revenue 6/1/2022 6/1/2040 216 26,784.32 EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-5-2-20-A RN-12  |401-511-458-0004  |Phase Il Reserve 6/1/2022} 6/1/2032{ 120 2,620.15 EFT

TOTAL ANNUAL PAYMENTS ARE $1,050,281.40

Tracy handles these




Water Fund
Schedule of Monthly indebtedness
Lender Loan Number Account Charged Description Note Date | Maturity Date | Loan Term Pa_yr_n_ent Type
[Eikins Building Commission 3114638 400-522-219-0000 |Baxter St. 7/10/2006 7/10/2026 240{ 1,045.14| Enter
Mountain Valley Bank 1202553-00019 400-522-459-0000 {2017 Ford F550 1/4/2018 12/4/2022 60| 655.53| Coupon
T 400-522-670-0000
—Eﬁerprise 25MQGP 400-524-455-000C |2020 Ram 1500 3/1/2022 3/1/2027 60 570.40}invoice
{Municipal Bond Commission ELK-W-1-15-C-RN-12 400-521-457-0000 |{Elkins 15-C Water Revenue 3/ 1!2018l 12/1/2055 1181 41,055.37] EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-W-2-15-C-RN-12 400-521-457-0001 {Elkins 15-C Water Reserve 12/1/2017 12/1/2027 120: 405735 | EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-W-2-15-A-RN-12 400-521-457-0002 {Elkins 15-A1 Water Reserve 1/1/2018 1/1/2028 120} 2,776.00| EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-W-2-15 2-RN-12 400-521-457-0003 [Elkins 15-A2 Water Reserve 1!1!2018% 1/1/2028, 120f 2,602.50| EFT
Municipal Bond Commission ELK-W-2-15-B-RN-12 400-521-457-0004 |Elkins 15-B Water Reserve 1/1/2018] 1/1/202 : 1201 2,107.40§ EFT
USDA 91-01 400-521-457-0005 {Construction Loan 1/9/2018{ 12/9/2055 27,760.00] EFT
USDA 91-02 400-521-457-0006 |{Construction Loan 1!9!2018} 12/9/2055 26,025.00! EFT
USDA 91-03 400-521-457-0007 |Construction Loan 1/9[2018_]1 12/9/2055| 21,074.00f EFT
'I'O‘l'll«LANNUAL PAYMENTS ARE $1,529,971.44
IBO% of scheduled monthly payment {based on sq. fo{o'.age!
Tracy handles these 1}




Balance as of

Bank Account Name 6/30/2022 Notes
ARPA $526,028.54  |Federal funds for use based on guidelines by the US Dept. of Treasury.

City Hall Parking Project $855.00 Closing account July 2022 due to completion of project.

Elkins Building Comm. Sinking Fund $0.00 Bond for Baxter St. Garage. Last monthly payment of $3,483.79 will be July 2026.
Elkins Municipal Building Comm. $0.00 Will see if needed any longer. Used for PGCC line of credit.

Financial Stabilization

$1,188,243.85

30% of budgeted General Fund revenues allowed. For FY2023, $1,614,217.00 is the maximum allowed.

Fire Pension Fund

$2,219,808.05

Old pension fund. Currently has 3 active employees and 1 beneficiary (spouse).

Firemen's Pension & Relief Fund $0.00 State allocations deposited in this account then transferred to Fire Pension Fund.

Landfill Access Escrow $1,755,853.00 |[The state will take these funds upon completion of landfill closure.

Landfill Post Closure $48,638.89 The state will take these funds upon completion of landfill closure.

Payroll $143,453.18 |Includes payroll cover, FICA, state and federal withholding. This is a clearing account.

Police Forfeitures $10,497.85 Funds from the seizure account may be transferred due to a criminal conviction into this account.
Police Pension Fund $3,997,261.54 |0ld pension fund. Currently has 3 active employees, 11 retirees and 2 beneficiaries (spouses).
Police Seizures $31,019.53 Funds seized until final resolution of possible charges against a defendant.

Policemen's Pension & Relief Fund $0.00 State allocations deposited in this account then transferred to Police Pension Fund.

Pooled Cash-Coal Severance Fund $152,056.44 |Currently budgeted for City Hall to be used if needed.

Pooled Cash-Fire Fund $0.00 Begins July 1, 2022.

Pooled Cash-General Fund

$2,937,181.44

Transferring $1,544,921.53 to ARPA account and $556,036.00 to Fire Fund.

Pooled Cash-Landfill Fund

$127,402.99

The city is responsible for liability insurance and utilities (electric).

Pooled Cash-Parks Fund

$1,049,995.83

$930,950.40 revenues from an estate.

Pooled Cash-Sanitation Fund

$1,259,545.92

Any related sanitation service for residential and commercial customers.

Pooled Cash-Sewer Fund

$763,134.28

Monthly payments for the Phase Il sewer project began in June in the amount of $29,404.47.

Pooled Cash-Water Fund $35,881.71 Last rate increased was approved by the PSC on Nov. 6, 2015 and was effective after substantial completion, around June 2017.
Sewer Depreciation $139,209.09 |2.5% of gross revenues each month must be deposited in this account, no cap amount.

Sewer O&M $201,849.83 Per SB234, reserve account for no less than one eighth of annual operation & maintenance expense. Currently $151,572.50.
Sewer Project-Phase Il $1,939.30 Will close out account this fiscal year after completion of project.

Water Depreciation $63,123.71 2.5% of gross revenues each month must be deposited in this account, no cap amount.

Water O&M $184,310.04 |Per SB234, reserve account for no less than one eighth of annual operation & maintenance expense. Currently, $228,836.00.




General Fand
Parks Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund

Sanitation Fund .

Landfill Fund

MASTERCARD P-CARD QUARTERLY REBATES

April May June June Fuel
36,673.77 26,210.69 43,639.20 -
11,491.39 4,128.46 2,786.63 -
6,001.37 5,659.69 11,029.30 -
31,002.18 33,385.25 14,600.79 -
7,110.54 2.562.63 2,688.12 2,337.84
- - 44.05 -
92,279.25 71,946.72 74,788.09 2337.84

General Fund - Rebates
Parks - Rebates
Water - Rebates
Sewer - Rebates

Sanitation - Rebates
Landfill Rebates

Apr-Jun 2022 MASTERCARD P-CARD REBATE

$

106,523.66
18,406.18
22,690.36
78,988.22
14,699.13

44.05

241,351.90

0.013705051

1,459.914
252.26
310.97

1,082.54
201.43

4.60

3,307.74

3,307.74




N 57 o,

frog ATED ™

CITY OF ELKINS

Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
301 Eagle Mountain Road, Suite 251
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Under penalty for false swearing (West Virginia Code §61-5-3), | hereby certify the foregoing information
in this annual report of the Policemen’s Pension and Protection Fund for fiscal year 2022 to be true and
accurate in all respects. | further certify (per§8-22-19(d)(1) and §8-22-19(d){1)(B)) the Board of Trustees
of the pension and relief fund has made a report to the governing body of the municipality and to the
oversight board on the condition of its fund with respect to the fiscal year. This Annual Report has been
presented to the Elkins city council on July 28, 2022.

Date: July 15, 2022

Name: Tracy R. Judy

Signed: ix.u—q,\je " XL&X\/

Title: Municipal Treasurer and Custodian of the Policemen’s Pension and Relief Fund

Municipality: City of Elkins

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 « www cityofelkinswv.com

FOE Disability/Vets



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a)

Pension Fund 5 et 5 Policemen's Pension & Relief Fund
Treasurer L e TR ¥ ]‘ra_w_ﬂ_dl e
Municipality e v D e
Fiscal Year (July 1 - June 30) R B e R ju;l]hlﬂll'-‘-lﬂ' SO0
Actuarial Funding Method -] Standard Funding Method

Optional Funding Method

Alternative Funding Method {107%)
_] % Necessary to Maintain Plan Solvency for 15 Years

PART | - Asset Reconclliation from Beginning of Fiscal Year to knd of Fiscal Year

Item Amount
Beginning Fair Value of Pension Plan July 1 (cash value) ,654,723.00
a. Prior year net receivable/payable
Beginning Fair Value of Pension Plan July 1 (accrued value)
3 s e PR R e N S R %
I. Revenue During Fiscal Year
1. Employee Contributions
a. For Employees hired prior to Jan. 1, 2010 Percent of Gross Salary o 1.00%
b. For Employees hired on or after Jan. 1, 2010 Percent of Gross Salary 4.50%
c. Total Employee Contributions
2. Government Contributions
a. From Parent Local Government Prquired empioyer contnbiutions from your municpabty

b. Overpayment Authorized by City Council Pursuant to §WV Code 822-27A(d)

. Additional Employer Contributions From Your Municipality
d. From State Government Murucipal Pandond Overight Board (premiim torcharges on Ree yeud cxselty B o)

e. Total Government Contributions

170,414 27

3. Receivable Contributions

$

2. Employee Contributions 5

b. Local Government Contributions $ -
¢. State Government Contributions & Tk
d. Other Contributions 5 Giss

e. Total Receivabie Contributions

4. Earnings on Investments

2. Net Appreciation/(Depreciation) of Fair Value of investments

b. Net Realized Gain/(Loss) on Sale/Exchange

c. Interest and Dividends

d. Other Income

e Investment Expenses {enter as negative) $  (10,874.85)

f. Receivabte Investment Income St

#. Payable investment Expenses (enter as negative)

h._Total Earnings on Investments S (523,349.56)
5. All Other Revenues
Fiease Specity ‘ 3 b
Total Revenues e sum of e 11 through | 7, $  (338,094.30)




Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds

as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1){B) and §8-22-22a(a)

to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board

; Item | Amount
Il_Expenditures During Fiscal Year Dues nat include Invistnent Expenses, see 14 e and 1 4 g on fist page
1. Benefits Paid
Retirernent, dsability, sundvar and any other benefits, 359 35?-16
. et
2. Withdrawals

Amount paid 1o employess or former employees o their survivors, representing retuen of cantributions made by empioyees during the oti'od of their employmant

3, Administration Expenses

2. Municipal Administration
b. Other Administration

¢. Total Administration Expenses

Adminesirative expendes snd other costs of payments not represents

ny of withdisws s

nnistration fee

0 3ecretaty eagpenses, Rent, et

4. Payables
Monies payabie sfrer the end of tha fiseal yoar
a. Benefit Payments
b. Withdrawals

€. Administration Expenses

d. Total Payables

5

Total Expenditures

The sum of Rema (L1 throwgh 114

$ 359,367.16

$  (697,461.46)

Net Incomel[togs)

YL

Ending Fair Value of Pension Plan

June 30 (cash value)

$  3,997,261.54

a. Net recelvable/payable

v

Ending Fair Value of Pension Plan

June 30 (accrued value)

$  3,597,261.54




Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds

as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)( 1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a)

PART Il - Asset Altocation at €nd of Fiscal Year

to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Short Term

[Percent of Total Assets 1

1.71%

—

Financial Institution or Money Manager

Type of Account

Checking 5 >

Fair Value

Cltizens Bank of West Viginia

Treasury Bills ) § e

SEL

Savings or Money Market“.f&.-émqru

fo ‘§2,9§2;54

~JShort Term Investment Funds >

Re-Purchase Agreements

Commercial Paper

C0s and Bankers' Acu_ei:!ances

iy

Fair Value

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Tha sum of dems } 4 tuough L g

$ 68,520.87

2. Fixed Income - Long Term

ll'orcenl of Total Assets |

41.91%

Financial Institution or Money Manager

Type of Account

Cifzens Bak of West Virginia

US Govt Agencies & Instruments

Fair Value

Foreign Gawt, Subdivisions,Agencies o Enterprise

G

International agencies or supranational entities

Mortgage-related or others asset back securities

Corporate Debt Securities

hodet i 7idd 700 BT

Corporate inflation-index bonds

|Bank CD's, fixed time deposits, Bankers Acceptance

State & Local Govt Debt Securities

Mutual Funds (Bonds)

International Mutual Funds - Bonds

_|Exchange Traded Funds (ETF) - Bonds

.. International Exchange Traded Funds {ETF) - Bonds

Fair Value

Total Fixed Income (at fair value)

The vor of e 2.4 through 21

5  1,675,437.95

3. Equity Investments

Percent of Total Assets |

56.37%

Type of Account

Fair Value

Financial Institution or Money Manager

individual Stocks Held 2

|Mutual Fund Shares (Equities)

“JExchange Traded Funds (ETF)

Q7T

:
International Stocks Held 5 e
International Mutual Funds - Equities 4 -
international Exchange Traded Funds (ETF) $ -
Fair Value
Total Equity Investments (at fair value) he sum of S 2,253,302.72
4. Alternative Investments ]Percenl af Total Assets l 0.00%
Financial Institution or Money Manager Type of Account Fair Value
a. . f i : Real Estate investment Trust S -
b, Private Equity Fund -
€5 Hedge Funds fe:
d Other Alternative Investments v
an L n N Fair Value
Total Alternative lnvestments (at fair value) Ti i L B A A .-.;I-_‘_ 4 S
5. Receivables and Payables I#’er(em of Total Assets [ 0.00%
7] Type Fair Value
a Receivable Contributions i E
b "'"ﬁEE}?;'SSIE'iECeslmem Income > 2
. » Payabte Investment Expense i .., L L ;
d - Payable Benefits, Withdrawals, and Admin Expenses |8 -
""" "X Fair Value
Net Recelvable/(Payable) ™ $

Total Assets

Sum of 1. through 5.

$  3,997,261.54

6. Total return on investments for the period of July 1 thru June 30

ttuton e maney manager)

-11.15%




Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a)

PART Ill - Membership and Beneficlarles

ard drade by 12

Avg, Monthly #

i y f-\pp rahons Approwcd durmg Fiscal Yea

( 2.) Disability Applications Denied during Fiscal Year

4. Survivors {of Deceased Members) Drawing Benefits

PART IV - Legal Thresholds for Investments

Equity Investr

3. Percentage of Disability Benefit Recipients to the Total of Active Members in the tund

ents

International Securities

Alternativ

Fixed Incar

Short Term

Investment

ne (Low 25%.

1 Investment

3.00
S 5

ales '.""','\ with detai : - - : e
e =

2,00

ligh 75%

{90 days of expenses)

2)

Maximum

2

21,3202 |




b »
e %7 vt

Pyt

CITY OF ELKINS

Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
301 Eagle Mountain Road, Suite 251
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Under penalty for false swearing (West Virginia Code §61-5-3), | hereby certify the foregoing information
in this annual report of the Firemen’s Pension and Protection Fund for fiscal year 2022 to be true and
accurate in all respects. | further certify (per§8-22-19(d)(1) and §8-22-19(d)(1)(B)) the Board of Trustees
of the pension and relief fund has made a report to the governing body of the municipality and to the
oversight board on the condition of its fund with respect to the fiscal year. This Annual Report has been
presented to the Elkins city council on July 28, 2022,

Date: July 15, 2022

Name: Tracy R. Judy

Signed: im\\%- . L""\Ly

Title: Municipal Treasurer and Custodian of the Firemen'’s Pension and Relief Fund

Municipality: City of Elkins

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 » www_cityofelkinswv.com

EOQE Disability/Vets



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d}{1){B) and §8-22-22a(a)

Pension Fund : ; . Firemen's Pension & Rellef Fund
Treasurer L A _Tracyludy
Municipality N ; . GityofElkns

Fiscal Year {luly 1 - June 30) A . July1,2021 -June 30,2022
Actuarial Funding Method o |standard Funding Method

__X__ | Optional Funding Method
_| Alternative Funding Method (107%)
| % Necessary to Maintain Plan Solvency for 15 Years

PART | - Asset Reconciliation from Beginning of Fiscal Year to End of Fiscal Year

Item
Beginning Fair Value of Pension Plan July 1 (cash value)
a. Prior year net receivable/payable
Beginning Fair Value of Pension Plan July 1 ({accrued value)
I ﬁevenue During Fiscal Year ' ' &
1. Employee Contributions
a. For Employees hired prior to Jan. 1, 2010 Percent of Gross Salary L T1.00%
b. For Employees hired on or after Jan. 1, 2010 Percent of Gross Salary 9.50%,
c. Total Employee Contributions 5 13,754.11
2. Government Contributions
a. From Parent Local Government Required employer eaatribut ons from your muniapsfity

b. Overpayment Authorized by City Council Pursuant to §WV Code 8-22-27A(d)

¢. Additional Employer Contributions From Your Municipality

d. From State Government Municipal Peasions Oversight Baard [praryum surcharges en fire and casuslty insurance)

e. Total Government Contributians S 57,000.00
3. Receivable Contributions s

a. Employee Contributions

b. Local Government Contributions

¢. State Government Contributions

d. Other Contributions

e. Total Receivable Contributions

4. Earnings on Investments

a. Net Appreciationf(Depreciation) of Fair Value of Investments

b. Net Realized Gain/{Loss) on Sale/Exchange

¢ Interest and Dividends

d. Qther Income

e. lavestment Expenses (enter as negative)

f. Receivable Investment Income

g Payable Investment Expenses (enter as negative)

h. Total Earnings on Investments ) (253,779.08)
5. All Other Revenues
Please Specity T : S Py

Total Revenues The sum of Kems )1 through 1.7 $ (183,024.97)




Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a)

Item

Il_Expenditures During Fiscal Year Does nol include investment Eapenses. sed 14 & and Lag. on first page

1. Benefits Paid
Retirement, disabidity, surdivor and any other benefrs

2. Withdrawals

Amount paid to employees or former emphoyees or their survivors, fepresenting retwn of Lontritutions made by empiaysss during the padod of thelr employment

3. Administration Expenses

Adminlstralive expenses and other costs o payments not repeasenting benefit payme nts or withdrawals.
a. Municipal Administration Munielpal administration fees $
b. Other Administration Example: Penion Secretary expenes; Rent; etc 8§
¢. Total Administration Expenses
4. Payables
Monies payable sfter the end of the fiscd year
a. Benefit Payments 5
b. Withdrawals $
¢. Administration Expenses 85
d TotalPayables =~ et -
Total Expenditures The sum of ftems 111, through 114 22,208.36

Net Income/(Loss)

(205,233.33)

Ending Fair Value of Pension Plan June 30 (cash value) 2,219,808.05
a. Net receivable/payable =
Ending Fair Value of Pension Plan June 30 (accrued value) 2,219,808.05




Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a)

PART i - Asset Allocation at End of Fiscal Year

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Short Term

[Percent of Total Assets

1

1.65%

Type of Account

Financial Institution or Money Manager

Checking

Fair Value

~ |Treasury Bills

|Savings or Money Market Account

Short Term Investment Funds

Re-Purchase Agreements

Commercial Paper

CDs and Bankers' Acceptances

Fair Value

The sum of items ) & thioagh 1§

$

%

36,716.88

ed Income - Long Term

[Percent of Total Assets

"~ 49.73%

Institution or Money Manager

Type of Account

Financial

{US Govt Agencies & Instrurnents

Fair Value

Foreign Govt, Subdivisions ,Agencies or Enterprise

international agencies or supranational eatities

_ [Mortgage-related or others asset back securities

_|Corporate Debt Securities

_|Corporate Inflation-index bonds

Bank CD's, fixed time deposits, Bankers Acceptance

State & Local Govt Debt Securities

Mutual Funds {Bonds)

“|International Mutual Funds - Bonds

“|€xchange Traded Funds (ETF) - Bonds

~International Exchange Traded Funds {ETF) - Bonds

Fair Value

The v af e

s 2 a through 21

Total Fixed Income {at fair value)

2

1,103,801.25

3. Equity Investment

IPer(em of Tatal Assets

Type of Account

Financial Institution or Money Manager

Individual Stocks Held

Mutual Fund Shares (Equities)

|Exchange Traded Funds (ETF)

International Stocks Held

International Mutual Funds - Equities

“ International Exchange Traded Funds (ETF)

Fair Value

The sum of te

e 38 through 11

$

Tatal Equity Investments (at fair value)

1,079,289.92

4. Alternative Investments

[Percent of Total Assets

0.00%

Type of Account

Fair Value

Financial Institution or Money Manager

Real Estate investment Trust

Private Equity Fund

~ [Hedge Funds

““JOther Alternative Investments

Fair Value

Total Alternative tnvestments (at fair value)

The weon of itemy 4 3 wyughdd

L5 Recéivahles and Payables

[Percent of Total Assets

0.00%

Type

Fair Value

2

Recﬂyablé Contributions

Receivable Investment Income

>

Al

Payabie Investment Expense

£

d.

Payable Benefits, Withdrawals, and Admin Expenses

Wi

.

Fair Value

Net Receivable/(Payable)

The sum of fesis S thiough § 4

Total Assets

Sum of 1.

through 5.

$

2,219,808.05

6. Total return on investments for the period of July 1 thru Jun

e 30

{Obtan from fnancial inatitut

oc money manager)

B 10.47%)




Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds

to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a)

PART 1il - Membership and Beneficiaries

two decimal places, An employes must have been paid for 100 hours in any month o be induded

** Please repont the total number of doability applications received duting the Rscal vear, the status of each

* Pleace repurt the Fgures requested below, for the fcal year reported on page 1. To figure the Average Monthly Number of Pertons, add Figures for each month and divide by 12 Pleass round to

lication at the end of the fiscal year, the total spplications granted and demed. and the
percentage of dissbikty beashit recipants to the 1otal number of active members of the fund  This requicement watisties $2-21-23a(a) of the WY Cade o the report is submutied to the Municpa) Pensions
reersight Baard prior tu August 1 ah year
ftem B i N Avg. Monthly §
I._Members of your Pension Fund Exclude Beneficiaries o
1. Active Members Gurrent nurmbet of employeet caofutiog tn the pemion ke _ 3.00
2. Inactive Members Non active vested members and employees on extended feave without o Z
ii. Beneficiaries Receiving Periodic Benefit Payments During Fiscal Year
1. Retirees 3 _
| 2. Disability Retirees Irhudes the new 3pplcations approved daring reporting period e
a. Number of Disability Applications received during the fiscal year
b. Status of each Disabifity Application at end of fiscal year - please attach separate sheet with detals
(1.) Disability Applications Approved during Fiscal Year Y -
(2.) Disability Applications Denied during Fiscal Year L
3. Percentage of Disability Benefit Recipients to the Total of Active Members in the fund 0.00%
4. Survivors (of Deceased Members) Drawing Benefits 1.00
PART IV - Legal Thresholds for Investments ]
B T3 {1) (2) 3)
Maximum (Over)
% %and $ Under
Equity lnvestments 49% 75% 26%
International Securities 0% 30% 30%
Alternative Investments 0% 25% 25%
Cash/Cash Equivalents and 25% -26%
Fixed Income {Low 25%; High 75%) 51% 75% 24%
Short Term Investment - (90 days of expenses) $ 5,552.09 $ (31,164.79)




ARPA Funds Approved. -

Council Approval:

Dollars
ARPA Funds 43,089,843
Interest $1,157
Total $3,091,000
Water Distribution 389,775 8/19/2021
{City Hall) water and Sewage Facility 450,000 8/19/2021
Water Plant 261,000 8/18/2021
Clerk Dept, Web redesign, Management Soft 31,350 10/7/2021
Addiction and Homeless Resources Task Force 5,000 10/7/2021
Water Line and Sewage Replacement Eng. Estimate 154,246 10/7/2021
Community Projects 154,246 - 16/7/2021
Wastewater and Wheel Loader 102,000 i 11/18/2021
Wastewater SCADA 55,000 - 11/18/2021
EPRC 31,000 ) 3/17/2022
Davis Medical Center 9,079 ' 371712022
Wastewater SCADA (additional funds) 45,000 3/17/2022
Street Dept. backhoe 110,271 ) 4/7/2022
Water Plant SCADA 147,801 41712022
Riverfront Dev. Design 5,000 44712022
Wastewater Collection service truck & bed 165,000 - 5/25/2022
N. Randolph sewer study 15,100 R 6/2/2022
Street Department equipment & vehicles 543,000 6/2/2022
Fire Department equipment 60,000 6/2/2022
Wastewater Collection backhoe 135,000 6/2/2022
Wastewater dump site 80,000 6/272022
Wasterwater SCADA upgrades 76,705
Water Plant compressors 21,784
Total Appropriated 3,047,357 98,59%
Remaining Available 43,643 1.41%




SUMMARY

Ogden erpnse

Expenditure

$19,600.00

Balance Available

Fund/Dept. Usage

9/30/2021 Leslie Equipment “light plant $9,750.00 $1,513,116.71 Water Dist
9/30/2021 Mountain Valley Bank Interest nfa $152.13 $1,513,268.84 N/A
10/5/2021 CR Enviromental replacement bearing, jabor $1,400.00 $1,511,868.84 Water Trt
10/7/2021 Steve's Electrical floc bearing replacement $900.00 $1,510,968.84 Water Trt
10/8/2021 Elkins Fordland 2015 Ford 150 $20,875.00 $1,490,093.84 Water Dist
10/18/2021 CivicPlus website agenda management $8,708.00 $1,481,385.84 General/Clerk
10/18/2021 Power Equipment 2 trash pumps $3,527.98 $1,477,857.86 Water Trt
10/20/2021 C-Com gate pedistal $1,779.96 $1,476,077.30 Water Trt
10/21/2021 Hack Company panel, channel, software $24,750.87 $1,451,327.03. Water Trt
10/21/2021 Steve's Electrical labor for trash pumps $900.00 $1,450,427.03 Water Trt
10/21/2021 Zoro 4-bearings $1,944.00 $1,448,483.03 Water Trt
10/21/2021 Camlock Direct 4" camlock hoses $2,739.68 $1,445,743.35 Water Trt
10/21/2021 C-Com computer, scada, drives, labor $11,000.00 $1,434,743.35 Water Trt
10/26/2021 Steve's Electrical sludge removal equipment $1,433,943.35 Water Trt
10/31/2021| Mountain Valley Bank Interest n/a $143.58 $1,436,541.75 N/A
11/18/2021 Power Equipment water pumps, couplings $479.94 $1,436,061.81 Water Trt
11/30/2021 Mountain Valley Bank Interest n/a $151.27 $1,436,213.08 N/A
12/1/2021 Southern States stihl chain saw §1,629.99 $1,434,583.09 Water Dist
12/3/2022 USA Blue Book pump, wrenches, tapping kit $7,371.51 $1,427,211.58 Water Dist
12/15/2021 Snap-On wrench,ratchet & socket set $1,495.00 $1,425,716.58 Water Dist
12/15/2021 Snap-On pick set, sharpener, service set 5788.50 $1,424,928.08 Water Dist
12/15/2022 C-Com Scada computer, printer, labor $1,841.99 $1,423,086.09 Water Trt
12/20/2021 liderton Dodg_e_ 2021 Ram 5500 $77,312.00 $1,345,774.09 Water Dist
12/28/2021 Leslie Equipment light plant $10,000.00 $1,335,774.09 Water Dist
12/28/2021 Cybertech SCADA upgrade servers $20,000.00 $1,315,774.09 Water Trt
12/28/2021 Cybertech SCADA upg_g;de Unit A $20,000.00 $1,295,774.09 Water Trt
12/31/2021 | Mountain Valley Bank interest nfa $143.49 $1,295,917.58 N/A
1/4/2022 State Electric pvc conduit, fittings, wire $1,815.58 $1,294,102.00 Water Trt
1/5/2022 Cleveland Brothers CAT 420 XE $121,913.00 $1,172,183.00 ‘Water Dist
1/12/2022 Hach Company modify raw water analyzers $18,538.55 $1,153,650.45 Water Trt
1/12/2022 Hach Company clearwell analyzers $17,547.23 $1,136,103.22 Water Trt
1/31/2022 Mountain Valley Bank Interest n/a $133.43 $1,136,236.65 N/A
2/1/2022 Hach Company SCADA implementation $24,900.00 $1,111,336.65 Water Trt
2/5/2022 Cybertech firewall upgrade $4,562.96 $1,106,773.69 Water Trt
2/9/2022 Weimer Ford 2012 Nissan Titan $23,472.46 $1,083,301.23 Water Dist
2/9/2022 Water Pump Direct trash pump, couplings $2,144.17 $1,081,157.06 Water Dist
2/9/2022 Adkins Home Center generator, cover $901.99 $1,080,255.07 Water Dist
3/2/2022 LMC & Associates website design & development $3,400.83 $1,076,854.24 General/Clerk
2/24/2022 Airgas USA LLC welder, spool, cylinder $5,920.10 $1,070,934.14 Woater Dist
2/28/2022 | Mountain Valley Bank Interest nfa $103.43 $1,071,037.57 N/A
3/31/2022 Mountain Valley Bank Interest n/a $109.66 $1,071,147.23 N/A
4/11/2022 Cybertech ignition migration $48,277.60 $1,022,869.63 Sewer Trt
4/11/2022 Cybertech SCADA migration $87,948.42 $934,921.21 Water Trt
4/11/2022 Newlons International 2021 Luigong 835H loader $98,728.00 $836,193.21 Sewer Trt

$474,711.29 4/30/22 Annual Treasury Report



4/11/2022 State Equipment Case SB0 SN backhoe $110,771.00 $725,422.21 Streets
4/11/2022 | COE Parks & Recreation sewer pump for Riverbend $8,994.00 $716,428.21 Parks
4/11/2022 Davis Health System respirators, filters $9,705.00 $706,719.21 Community Requests
4/29/2022 Builders Group hammerdrill, grinder, discs $881.60 $705,837.61 Water Dist
4/29/2022 Core & Main 2-Hymax socket sets $560.00 $705,277.61 Water Dist
4/29/2022 CITCO Water chlorine test kits $2,805.53 $702,472.08 Water Dist
4/29/2022 USA Blue Book carrying cases, vaive keys, wrenches $870.57 $701,501.51 Water Dist
4/29/2022 Vannostrand Arch. emergency generator bid docs $9,600.00 5$691,901.51 City Hali
4/30/2022 | Mountain Valley Bank | Interest n/a $91.87 $691,993.38 N/A
5/11/2022 Baker Equipment 2021 Ram 5500 Utility Bed $55,344.00 $636,649.38 Water Dist
| S/16/2022 Elkins Chrysler Dodge 2021 Ram 5500 $80,275.00 $556,374.38 Sewer Collection
; S/17/2022 Our Town 2022 Concert series $3,000.00 $553,374.38 Community Requests

5/17/2022 Burgess & Niple water needs assessment $4,980.00 $548,394 38 Water/Sewer Infrastucture
5/25/2022 Burgess & Nipie sewer needs assessment $4,233.00 $544,161.38 Water/Sewer Infrastucture
5/31/2022 Mountain Valley Bank Interest n/a $71.36 $544,232.74 N/A

6/2/2022 Amtower Auto trash pump, press washer, drill $7,580.53 $536,652.21 Water Dist
6/2/2022 Old Brick Playhouse OB sound, lights $8,000.00 $528,652.21 Community Requests
6/2/2022 USA Blue Book wrenches, shutoff tool, hammer $1,248 83 $527,403.38 Water Dist
6/2/2022 Pollardwater wrench, cutters, tubing, sockets $1,431.28 $525.872.10 Water Dist
6/2/2022 Burgess & Niple water needs assessment $2,739.00 $523,233.10 Water/Sewer Infrastucture
6/2/2022 Burgess & Niple sewer needs assessment $2,739.00 $520,494.10 Water/Sewer Infrastucture
6/25/2022 Amtower Auto assorted tools $7,580.53 $512,913.57 Water Dist
6/29/2022 Rand Co Comm Arts paint, piano, restroom upgrade $5,000.00 $507,913.57 Community Requests
6/30/2022 Interest : n/a - $56.44 $507,970.01 N/A

7/7/2022 State Equipment Case SC208DSM Roller $97,000.00 $410,970.01 Streets

71712022 Crane & Machinery 2022 Manitek Aerial Tk $174,900.00 5236,070.01 Streets
7/11/2022 Elkins Babe Ruth bleacher project $50,000.00 $1,730,991.54 Community Reguests
7/18/2022 Meals on Wheels Feeding the Seniors $7,000.00 $1,723,991.54 Community Requests

Interest



American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Davis Medical Center Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available
$9,709.00 $9,709.00
4/11/2022 | Davis Medical | respirators, filters, supplies |5$9,709.00 S0.00

$9,709.00




American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Elkins Parks & Recreation Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available
~$31,000.00 $31,000.00
4/11/2022 COE Parks sewer pump for Riverbend | $8,994.00 $22,006.00

$8,994.00




American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Water Distribution ] Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Avallable
RO 7754 R $389.775.00
9/30/2021 | Ogden Enterprise tandem trailer $19,600.00 5370,175.00
| 9/30/2021 |  Leslie Equipment light plant 5575000 | S360.425.00 |
12/15/2021| Snap-On wrench, ratchet & socket set $1,495.00 $329,053.50
12/16/2022 Cleveland Bros CAT 420 XE 1,913. ‘W
12/28/2021} leslie Equipment light plant $10,000.00| 5$119,040.00
2/9/2022 ‘Weimer Ford 2012 Nissan Titan f $95,567.54
2/9/2022 | Water Pump Direct trash pump, coupiings $2,144.17 $93,42337
2/9/2022 | Adkins Home Center generator, cover $901.99 ,521.38
4/29/2022 Builders Group hammerdrill, grinder, discs $881.60 $85,719.68
4/29/2022 Core & Main 2-Hymax socket sets $560.00 $85,159.68
4/25/2022 CITCO Water chiorine test kits 52,805.53 $82,354.15
4/25/2022 USA Biue Book carrying cases, vaive keys, wrenches 5970.57 581,383.58
i 5/11/202 Baker Equipment 2021 Ram 5500 Utility Bed $55,344 .00 $26,039.58
{ 6/2/2022 Amtower Aute | trash pump, press washer, drill $7,580.53 $18,459.05
6/2/2022 USA Blue Book wrenches, shutcff tool, hammer $1,248.83 §17,210.22
6/2/2022 Poliardwater wrench, cutters, tubing, sockets 51,431.28 $15,778.54
6/29/2022 Amtower Auto assorted tools $7,580.53 $8,198.41
$381,576.59}
Water Treatment
i  $408,801.00 Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Avaliable |
$408,801.00 - |
10/5/2021| CREnviromental replacement bearing, labor $1,400.00 |  5407,401.00
10/7/2021 | Steve's Electrical floc bearing replacement $900.00 5$406,501.00
10/20/2021] C-Com gate pedistal | $1,779.96 | $401,193.06
10/21/2021] Steve's Electrical labor for trash pumps $900.00 $375,542.19
10/21/2021]  Camiock Direct 4" camlock hoses. $2,739.68 | $370,858.51
10/21/2021] C-Com computer, scada, drives, labor $11,000.00 |  $359,858.51
12/28/2021 Cybertech | $20,000.00 |  5336,736.58
1/12/2022{ HackCompany | $17547.23| 527883522
471172022 Cybertech SCADA ignition, migration $B7,948.42 $161,423.84
$247,377.16

Sumitted 4/30/22



American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Sewer Collection Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount Balance Available
SLES30000000T T $300,000.00
5/26/2022 | Elkins Chrysler Dodge 2021 Ram 5500 $80,275.00 $219,725.00

$80,275.00

Sewer Treatment Date Paid [ Vendor Expenditure 1 Amount Balance Available
$282,000.00 $282,000.00
4/11/2022 Cybertech SCADA ignition, migration $48,277.60 $233,722.40
4/11/2022 Newlon's Intl 2021 Luigong loader $98,728.00 $134,994.40

$147,005.60




American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Clerk’s Office Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available
8393500055 1 $31,350.00
10/18/2021 CivicPlus website agenda management $8,708.00 $22,642.00
3/2/2022 | LMC & Associates | website design & development | $3,400.83 $19,241.17
$12,108.83
City Hall Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available
$450,000.00 $450,000.00
4/28/2022 | Vannostrand Arch emergency generator bid docs $9,600.00 $440,400.00
-
$9,600.00
Addiction & Homelessness Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available
$5,000.00 $5,000.00
50.00
Community Request Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available
$154,246.00 $154,246.00
5/17/2022 Qur Town 2022 Concert Series $3,000.00 $151,246.00
6/2/2022 | Old Brick Playhouse OB sound, lights $8,000.00 $143,246.00
6/29/2022 | Rand Co Comm Arts| Paint, piano, restroom upgrade | $5,000.00 $138,246.00
7/11/2022 | Elkins Babe Ruth Bleacher project $50,000.00 $88,246.00
7/18/2022 | Meals on Wheels Feeding the Seniors §7,000.00 $81,246.00
$73,000.00

Sumitted 4/30/22



American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Sewer/Water Infrastructure Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available

S see e $154,246.00

5/17/2022 Burgess & Niple Water negds assessment | $4,580.00 $149,266.00

5/25/2022 Burgess & Niple Sewer needs assessment | $4,233.00 $145,033.00

6/29/2022 Burgess & Niple Water needs assessment | $2,739.00 $142,294.00

6/29/2022 Burgess & Niple Sewer needs assessment | $2,735.00 $139,555.00

$14,691.00




American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Elkins Fire Dept. Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available

~ 560,000.00 : $60,000.00

$0.00




American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

N. Randolph Sewer Study Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available

Ge e 008 e $15,100.00

50.00




American Rescue Plan Act Reporting

Riverfront Development Design Date Paid Vendor Expenditure Amount | Balance Available

s OO0 e $5,000.00

$0.00




AD-HOC ORGANIZATION AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES

401 Davis Avenue

City Hall, Council Chambers
June 22, 2022

1:00 p.m.

Present were Committee Members: M. Hinchman, acting chair; D. Parker; and J, Marco

Also present were: Operations Manager J. Sanson; City Clerk J. Sutton; Police Chief T. Bennett;
Fire Chief S. Himes; and Treasurer T. Judy

L. Vest was absent

MINUTES

Cm. Parker, MOVED APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 24, 2022, MERTING. The motion
carried.

NEW BUSINESS

Administrative Officers presented written reports, per the commitiee’s request, regarding their
department’s structure, staffing, communication, efficiencies, and areas for improvement. Each
officer summarized their report and answered questions from the committee, No action was
taken by the committee.

Cm. Parker, MOVED ADJOURNMENT. The motion carried.

The meeting adjoumed at 2:33 p.m.

The foregoing minutes were approved at the meeting of 7’[ G 2022
Livds HlVest chain
Name & Title

Page 1 of 1



RULES AND ORDINANCE COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING
MINUTES

401 Davis Avenue

City Hall, Council Chambers
June 23, 2022

8:30 a.m.

Present were Committee Members: N. Bross-Fregonara, chair, C. Higgins, and M. Cuonzo

Also present were: Mayor J. Marco; Opetations Manager J. Sanson; City Clerk J. Sutton; Fire
Chief S. Himes; Police Chief T. Bennett; Treasurer T. Judy; City Attorney G. Robetts; and
External Affairs Specialist S. Stokes.

MINUTES

Cm. Higgins, MOVED APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 8, 2022, MEETING. The motion
carried.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

The committee considered the amended draft ordinance and rules and regulations regarding
outdoor dining in public spaces with input from administration. If approved, the ordinance will
be included in Chapter 93: Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places of the City Code.

Cm. Higgins, MOVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL ADOPT THE PROPOSED
ORDINANCE REGARDING CUTDOOR DINING IN PUBLEC SPACES, The motion carried.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

“The next regular council meeting is July 13, 2022. The agenda will include Home Rule
authorities, deer population control and executive session rules,

Attorney G. Roberts also advised the committee that due to time constraints; an ordinance will be
taken directly to council for the adoption of the updated WV Building Code.

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED ADJOURNMENT. The motion catried.

The meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.

The foregoing minutes were approved at the meeting of l n; i% 13,2022

o o108, (Ve

ame .& Title

Page I of 1




AD-HOC ARPA ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES

401 Davis Avenue

City Hall, Councii Chambers

May 24, 2022 '
12:00 p.m.

Present were Committee Members: M. Hinchman, chair; D. Parker; R. Chenoweth; M. Cuonzo;
and N. Bross-Fregonara

Also present were: Mayor J. Marco, Operations Manager J. Sanson; City Clerk J. Sutton, Fire
Chief S. Himes, Treasurer T. Judy, City Attorney G. Roberts, Chief Wastewater Operator W.
Hymes; and External Affairs Specialist S. Stokes,

MINUTES

Cm. Chenoweth, MOVED APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 13, 2022, MEETING. The
motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

Cw. Cuonzo, MGVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL FOR THE USE OF
$15,100 iIxn ARPA FUNDS FOR A STUDY TO BE CONDUCTED BY BURGESS & NIPLE TO
DETERMINE THE VIABILITY AND COSTS OF THE EXTENSION OF SEWER SERVICE ALONG NORTH
RANDOLPH AVENUE TO THE CORRIDOR H INTERCHANGE. The motion carried.

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL FOR THE USE OF
APPROXIMATELY $165,000 IN ARPA FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A SERVICE TRUCK AND BED
FOR THE WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT. The motion carried.

Cw. Bross-Fregonara, MOVED APPROVAL FOR ANY RETURNED OR UNSPENT FUNDS FROM THE
APPROVED COMMUNITY REQUESTS TO BE RETURNED TO THAT SAME DESIGNATION FOR FUTURE
CONSIDERATION. The motion carried.

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL FOR THE USE OF
$543,000 IN ARPA. FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A BUCKET TRUCK, A DRUM ROLLER, AN
ALLEY ROLLER AND A MOTOR GRADER FOR THE STREET DEPARTMENT. The motion carried.

Cw. Cuonzo, MOVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL FOR THE USE OF
$60,000 iINn ARPA FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF HOSES, NOZZLES, APPLIANCES, PPE AND A
THERMAL IMAGER FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT. The motion carried.

Cm. Chenoweth, MOVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TG COUNCIL FOR THE USE OF
$135,000 FOR THE PURCHASE OF A BACKHOE FOR THE WASTEWATER COLLECTION
DEPARTMENT. The motion carried.

Page  of 2




Ad-hoc ARPA Advisory Commirtee Meeting May 24, 2022

Cm. Chenoweth, MOVED APPROVAL OF A RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL FOR THE USE OF
$80,300 FOR THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION OF A PERMITTED DUMP SITE
FOR THE WASTEWATER PLANT. The motion carried.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Based on information provided by Cm. Hinchman APRA funds remaining prior to these
recommendations is $1,826,650. Should council approve all the committee’s recommendations,

the amount remaining would be $828,550.

Cw. Bross-Fregonara, MOVED ADJOURNMENT. The motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m.

The foregoing minutes were approved at the meeting o ]3_ 2022
% % £ / Wy / hv % M

‘Name & Title o 4}4! - Slgna el

Page2 of 2




WATER BOARD
SPECIAL MEETING
MINUTES

401 Davis Avenue

City Hall, Council Chambers
May 31, 2022

3:30 p.m.

Present were Board Members: Mayor J. Marco; C. Preusch; C. Cain Bush; and S. Bennett

Also present were: Chief Water Operator W, Lambert; Operations Assistant (recording secretary)
M. Himes; External Affairs Specialist S. Stokes; City Attorney G. Roberts; Mike Davis, Burgess
& Niple

Board member M. Marstiller was absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

MINUTES

S. BENNETT, MOVED APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 12,2022, MEETING. The
motion carried.

PRESENTATIONS

Mike Davis of Burgess & Niple presented the Water & Wastewater Needs Assessment.

There was discussion on the Water & Wastewater Needs Assessment. Mr. Lambert reported half
of the vehicles need replaced in water departments and stated an O&M budget should be

established for vehicles and meters. Mayor Marco mentioned developing an asset management
plan and asked M. Davis to separate the presented projects by ward.

C. Cain Bush, MOVED ADJOURNMENT. The motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 4:28 p.m.

The foregoing minutes were approved at the meeting of )M / If K 2022
j:gﬂ/u( A ﬂ/lf%ou ~ /VM or__ ﬂ{[/(/w/\ W‘v

Narme & Title Slgl( e

Page I of 1




ELKINS TREE BOARD
MEETING MINUTES

Darden Housé, Davis Ave.
June 7, 2022  5:30 p.m.

Present: Marilynn Cuonzo, Chair; Nanci Bross-Fregonara, Secretary; Linda Silva, Treasurer; Linda
Burke, Vice Chair. Members Ryan LaBrozzi, Angela Daniels and Sam Golston were not present.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No public comment.

MINUTES
SILVA MOVED APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 3, 2022, MEETING. MOTION
CARRIED.

BUDGET REPORT
Silva reported the current ETB budget balance is: $72.67. CUONZO MOVED APPROVAL OF THE
BUDGET REPORT. MOTION CARRIED.

OLD BUSINESS

DARDEN GARDENS OVERVIEW: Mountain School volunteers were a godsend; could not have
done it without them. Long day, but both COE and Darden gardens were cleared, mulched and new
flowers planted in planters near picnic table.

CLOSING OUT BUDGET: Not much left in budget, but we will need a few additional materials for
fixing fence at tree nursery. That will close it out.

CITY PARK UNDERSTORY TREE PLANTING UPDATE: Still not sure if we will get refund on
the hawthorns that died in the park. We will order more in next fiscal year.

SUMMER MAINTENANCE: Will have to play it by ear. So far, the rain has come when needed. Will
have to evaluate later in summer.

NEW BUSINESS

ADOPT A TREE: Will push this year to help clear out some of the nice, larger trees in the tree nursery
with an event Saturday, Oct. 1 with promotion starting Sept. 1. Thinking of having folks come out on the
Saturday and pick out the tree and make it an event. This is the first weekend of Forest Festival.

TREE NURSERY WORKDAY: Set for Friday, June 17 starting at 9 a.m. Burke to contact the
Mountain School boys. McClane will send out email to her list, Bross-Fregonara to post on FB and ask
Haley to push with AmeriCorps. Pizza will be purchased.

AUGUST GATHERING: In lieu of a formal meeting, we will meet informally at Bross-Fregonara
house, Tuesday August 2 at 5:30 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Tree Board has been asked to assist with the United Way Day of Action, June
21. The assignment would be the community garden at the Gainer Center. Also, there may be a possible




candidate o fill our one remaining vacant board position. Bross-Fregonara to follow-up with Jessica
Sutton, City Clerk.

The next regular meeting of the Tree Board is set for Tuesday, July 5 at 5:30 p.m. The meeting was
adjourned at 7:00 p.m.

The foregoing minutes were approved at the meeting of __ d_@(/é/// 5" 2022,

Mag dunn (lyon 20 77 g 20 [ L
Nmﬁe&T@} : Ve




Application te Use or Close City

Streets and/or Sidewalks
Date(s) of Event i, ! 5 / AL Times From: (.00 _ Te_ & SU
Date of Street Closing & !/ 5/ 2p Ao Time of Street Closing 4200 { ANao /U
Date of Street Reopening & /5 / Al G Time of Street Reopening G 30 £t

Organization Name “RivarS ob }\MW-? WALty Wi Address (3301 M&L
City/State/Zip___ Bevar], (v [.J 263583

Contact_ylh (1A By t0.¢9 Telephone (304} 9550 ~Frrdf E—maﬁ &6504 ?S f% ! @ﬁévwﬁ Cﬂ“v
27 Contact_[M (AN ’5(\,38 I Telephone@ 4] G4p -05p9  E-mail 0 b 55 & s
Does applicant have liability insurance that names the City as an additional insured? * X Yes No (*4 Certificate
of Insurance may be required of the applicant for this event and must be submiited to the Mayor’s Office upan request.)
Explain event or reason for request: “B,l7 ScAs Biack le? Pui it g i e Yhe phdldrih oy

oo 0 i _ {
Streets you arc requesting®o use or close — identify specific block. Barrvicade Sidewalk

Street Usage

ARG Ao rite . from Ui, Sk 1o (0. Mysn St X
2, from_ ! to
3 from to
4. from to

Specific assistance needed from City (Parking, Police, Fire, etc.):

| ; ¢ A / 75 / 2 Police Chief Approval SR~ / /1 @’/ £ &ire Chief Approval
nitials Inmals aie
M f ‘7/@/ 72— Operations Mgr. Appreval / Tﬁ fa' 2~ City Clerk Approval

Initials In@m’s / Date
/ Parks Dir, Approval
Inif:?z Date (if mecessary
/m w,&%m it (W Wgpae 222

“Signature of Applnc " Date m(i?i"s Snglﬁture - Date

Contingencies/Restrictions:

File this application at the Mayor’s Office at least two months in advance of the requested event date to assure full consideration.
Approval is subject to any restrictions or changes required by the City Administration, or if necessary for public safety reasomns,

ze: Chief Travis Bennett, Police Depariment
Chief Steve Himes, Fire Department
Operaftions Manager Joshua Sanson
City Clerk Jessica Sutton
911 Center




5
|
1

T

S UNCGOWN AVE

Seed

3

Zoom Yokom

on

STREST
T

Aoty

P

e S

" SB(TH STREET. <

CERST

o




Application to Use or Close City
Streets and/or Sidewalks

Date(s) of Event 7 - Bﬁ - 022 Times From: /¢ . To: [ 3+ Ao Lo M

Date of Street Closing 7 ” 37 -2 Time of Street Closing B 2 #2 o 30

Date of Street Reopex:égg 7 % [ = A€} Time of Street Reopening 3 1¢2& P ym,
7

Organization Name Address_{{ 3 ‘K{rg 4X9 /4' ve

2 YUl .
Telephone oYy ~Leflf~ g 2{ Ho E—mail M&_@_&g&w af /
MQ? Telephone Zf ~fp 2 ~ 2 ZZ [ E-mail

Does applicant have liability insurance that names the City as an additional insured? * Yes No (4 Ceriificate
of Insurance may be required of the applicant for this event and musi be submitied to the Mayor's Qffice upon request.)

Explain event or reason for request:

Streets you are requesting to use or close — identify specific block. Barricade Sidewalk
St eet Usage

1./Cerens Are ﬁomﬂéﬁﬁm _mﬁ__‘/a

2. m

3.

4, from to

Specific assistance needed from City (Parking, Police, Fire, etc.): M

F7(é / 7/ 25/2 Police Chief Approval ﬁ)tg‘ / 7/2‘/ 22 Fire Chief Approval

In tics Date /
/I/[Afﬁk‘ / ‘7/ 2@/ 2Z0perations Mgr. Approval ij 7/ 2(0];37 City Clerk Approval

Initials d Da!e - Inilick) / Daze
Initials

Parks Dir, Approval
M&M 7’24 Lze

Date {if mecessary)
WA Mw 7-25p
ignature 'Date

Signature of’Appli¢ant Date

Contingencies/Restrictions:

File this application at the Mayor’s Office at least two months in advance of the requested event date to assure full consideration.
Approval is subject to any restrictions or changes required by the City Administration, or if necessary for publie safety reasons.

ce: Chief Travis Bennett, Police Department
Chief Steve Hines, Fire Department
Operations Manager Joshua Sanson
City Clerk Jessica Sutton
911 Center




—— SIXTH STREET. .

_ FOURTH . °

"THIRD -

Everny pae ©

Date.

-

|m€; .

T



Application to Use or Close City

Streets and/or Sidewalks
Date(s) of Event 2, '7/ jol/ 2022 Times From; 579\*1 To: 6 Ip/"!
Date of Street Closing._ & 9{/ 50/ A 0; .2 Time of Street Closing £ W) |

Date of Street Reapening_/) 17/‘ S0 / 2827 Time of Street Reopening é ’P Gl

Organization Name y a EJR; a/ ¢ot Address /5’0 Lamdul Gyl

City/State/Zip_ (-] K/nf W/ ég 24 % : " Fax

Contact s‘Hﬂ ﬁmb Telephone_42{- 72719 { E-mail _\punas § &/ twy. eV
2 Contact’_fo Y Aler Telephone_ 4( '/~ §¥2 ~ 4104 B-mail m.fe/ v/

Does applicant have liability insurance that names the City as an additional insured? * k@ Yes____ No (*4 Certificate
af Insurance may be required of the applicant far this event and must be submitted to the Mayor’s Office upon request,)

Explain event ot reason for request: -

Stre'ets you are requesting to use or close ~ identify specific blnck Barricade Sidewalk

Stre Usage
1. CLWCL LﬁAL from 54Camufc L 1o ﬂnrk. 61[‘ v i
2. from to ) .
3. from to
4, from fo

Specific assistance needed from City (Parking, Poiice, Fire, etc.):

; < é / 7/ & / 22 Police Chief Approval - so# / Y2/, ZZFire Chief Approval
tials Date Inﬂp Dare
/ ’7 / ?0/ 7Z Operations Mgr. Approval ! 7/2(42-;0%3; Clexrk Approval
Initfal.s' { Ini!ia.LU ! Due

/ ), QJ Parks Dir. Approval

ML ) D

Signature oga('pphc t ate

Contingencies/Restrictions:

File this application at the Mayor’s Office at least two months in advance of the requested event date to assure full consideration.
Approval is subject to any restrictions or changes required by the City Adminisiration, or if necessary for public safety reasons.

oc; Chief Travis Benaet, Palice Department
Chief Stsve Himes, Fire Department
Operations Manager Joshua Sanson
City Clerk Jessica Sutton
911 Center




1/21/2022 4:08 PM
VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins
BANK: * ALL BANKS
DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022
VENDOR I.D. NAME

06140 City of Elkins
C-CHECK City of Elkins
00246 Elkins Tree Board
C—-CHECK Elkins Tree Board
* % TOTALS * * NO
REGULAR CHECKS: 0
HAND CHECKS: 0
DRAFTS: 0
EFT: 0
NON CHECKS: 0
VOID CHECKS: 2

TOTAL ERRCRS: 0

NO
VENDOR SET: 01 BANK: TOTALS: 2
BANK: TOTALS: 2

A/P EISTORY CHECK REPORT

INVOICE
AMOUNT

INVOICE AMOUNT

CHECK

STATUS DATE

VOIDED V 7/08/2022
VOIDED 7/07/2022
VGOID DEBITS 0.00

VCID CREDITS 1,542,472.73CR

0.

o QO O O

1,542,472,

oo

.08
.00
.00
.00

13CR

INVQICE AMOUNT

1,542,472,

1,542,472,

T3CR

73CR

PAGE; 1
CHECK  CHECK CHECK
DISCOUNT NO  STATUS  AMOUNT
011864 1,542, 466.71CR
011871 6.02CR
DISCOUNTS CHECK AMOUNT
0,00 0.00
0.00 2.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0,00
DISCOUNTS CHECK AMOUNT
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00




7/21/2022

VENDOR SET:

BANK:

DATE RANGE:

VENDCR I.D.

06566

4:08 PM
01 Elkins

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPQRT

ARPA  Amercia Rescue Plan Act

7/05/2022 THRU

I-B517431

02318

I-M03001

00234

I-ARPA Request

02321

I-ARPA Request?/22

** TOTALGS * *
REGULAR CHECKS:
HAND CHECKS:

DRAFTS:

EFT:

WNON CHECKS:

VOID CHECEKS:

TOTAL ERRORS: 0

7/22/2022

NAME STATUS

State Equipment Inc
Case S5v208D5M Roller R

Crane & Machinery
2022 Manitex Aerial Platform T R

Elkins Babe Ruth League
bleacher project R

Meals on Wheels if Randolph Co
Feeding the Seniors R

NO

oo o O

0 WOID DEBITS
VQID CREDITS

NO
VENDOR SET: (1 BANK: ARPA TOTALS: 4
BANK: ARPA TOTALS : 4

CHECK
DATE

/0772022

7/07/2022

T/11/2022

7/19/2022

0.00
0.00

INVOICE
AMOUNT

97,000.00
174,300.00
50,000.00

7,000.00

INVOICE AMOUNT
328,900.00
0.00

0.00
0,00
0.00

INVOICE AMOUNT
328,900.00

328,900.00

CRECK

DISCOUNT NO

000055

000056

000057

000058

DISCOUNTS

0.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

o o O O

DISCOUNTS
0.00

0.00

PAGE:

CHECK
STATUS

CHECK
AMOUNT

97,000.00
174,900.00
50,000.00

7,000.00

CHECK AMOUNT
328, 900.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

CHECK AMOUNT
328,500.00

328,900.00



7/21/2022 4:08 PM
VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins
BANK: FINST Financial Stabilizaticn
DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022

VEKDOR L.D. NAME

06140 City of Elkins
I-FinStabTransfer

** TOTALS * * NO
REGULAR CHECKS:
HAND CHECES:
DRAFTS:

EFT:

NON CHECKS:

o o o O B

VOID CHECKS: 0

TOTAL ERRORS: o

NQ
VENDOR SET: 01 BANK: FINSTTIOTALS: 1
BANK: FINST TOTALS: 1

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

transfer to City Hall Parking

VOID DEBITS
VOID CREDITS

CHECK

DATE

770872022

0.00
0.00

INVOICE
AMOUNT

1,182.25

INVOICE AMOUNT
1,182.25

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

INVOICE AMOUNT
1,182.25

1,182.25

CHECK
DISCOUNT NO

400011

DISCOUNTS

0.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

DISCOUNTS
0.00

0.00

PAGE:

CHECK CHECK
STATUS  AMOUNT

1,182,25

CHECK AMOUNT
1,182.25
.00

.00

0.00

0.00

CHECX AMOUNT
1,182.25

1,182.25




7/21/2022 4:08 PM

VENDOR SET: 01

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

BANK; PKPRQ Parking Project
DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022
CHECK
VENDOR I.D. NAME STATUS DATE
00547 Polino Contracting, Inc.
I-Appl #7 contracted services R T/08/2022
02319 Bomax Equipment Company Inc.
I-~1552 powder coat rail, gates R 7/08/2022
** TOTALS NO
REGULAR CHECKS: 2
HAND CHECKS: 0
DRAFTS: 0
EFT: 0
NON CHECKS: 0
VOID CHECKS: 0 VOID DEBITS 0.00
VOID CREDITS 0.G0
TOTAL ERRCORS: 2
NQ
VENDOR SET: 01 BANK: PKPROTOTALS: 2
BANK: PKPRQ TOTALS: 2

INVOICE
AMOUNT

1,769,175

267.50

INVCICE AMOUNT
2,037.25

0.00

0.00
0.90
0.00

INVOICE AMOUNT
2,037.25

2,037.25

CHECK
DISCOUNT NO

0ooo24

000025

DISCOUNTS

0.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

o oo o o

DISCOUNTS
G.00

0.00

PAGE;

CHECK CHECK
STATUS AMOUNT

1,76%.75

267.50

CHECK AMOUNT

2,037.25

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

CHECK AMOUNT
2,037.25

2,037.25




7/21/2022
VENDOR SET: 01

BANK:

DATE RANGE:

4:08 PM
Elkins

Pool Pocled Cash

VENBOR I.D.

00741

00140

03140

006140

coizl

00122

00148

00156

06235

00246

(6246

00381

00471

00479

I-VF 202207131328
I-VF2202207131328

I-ARPA Transfer

M-~CHECK

I-ARPA Trans 7/6/22

I-Fire Pen 07/2022

I-Police Pen 07/2022

I-07/2022 Support

I-SWR Depr 063022

1-07/22 Payment

1-202207062617

M-CHECK

I-07/2022 RENT

I-Barron 062022

C-CR117549
C-CR145753
C-CR149105
I-170483
T-171194 171319

7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022

NAME

Great-West Trust Company LLC

Voya
Voya AT

City of Elkins

transfer ARPAR funds

City of Elkins
City of Elkins

City of Elkins
ARPA Transfer

Citizens Bank of WVEFP

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

STATUS

VOIDED V

Fire Pension Contribution 7/22 R

Citizens Bank of WVPp
Police Pension Contr 07/2022

COE Parks and Recreation
Monthly Support 07/2022

COE Sewer Depreciation Account

SWRDepr Deposit 063022

Elkins Building Comm.
Monthly Payment 07/2022

Elkins Tree Beoard

77 BW Copies/14 Color Copies

Elkins Trea Board
Elkins Tree Board

Grover { Jackson Jr
Monthly Rent 07/2022

Mon Power

041422-061422 Barron

Amtower Autc Supply,
CR on invoice 116688 02/21/22
CR returned items 144407-08

CR-core deposit

items for rust repalrs 14 F150

Grinder/Hanger/Red RAeros

VOIDED v

CHECK
DATE

7/13/2022
7/13/2022

7/06/2022

7/06/2022

7/06/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/01/2022

7/07/2022

/0172022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
1/07/2022
7/071/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

405,00
50.00

1,542,466.71

1,544,921.53

6,250.00

3,375.00

25,483.00

4,824,18

3,483.78

1,800.00

11,277.24

0.09CR

55.68CR

144.00CR
154,18
193,65

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

003823
003823

011864

0l1l8e4

011865

011866

011867

011868

011865

011870

011871

011871

011872

011873

011874
011874
011874
011874
011874

PAGE:

CHECK
STATUS

1,542, 466.

1,542,464,

1,544,921,

6,250,

3,375,

25,483,

4,824,

3,483,

1,800,

11,277,

148

CHECK
AMOUNT

.00

.02

.02CR

.06

71

TICR

53

00

0o

o0

18

79

00

24




7/21/2022
VENDOR SET: (1

BANK:

DATE RANGE:

4:08 BM
Elkins

Peol Pocled Cash

7/05/2022 THRU

VENDOR I.D,

00483

04582

00644

00688

00701

o808

00812

00884

01011

01185

01416

01445

01607

I-1202553-19 070422
I-1202553-22 070722

I-22.% DUES FY2023

1-104227

T-5480

I-474903747

T-475359238
I-475359543
I-475614418

I-WVML 22-23 Dues

I-6122e286

I-42255

I-53845

I-10003992654

I-reimb deed RCHA

I-P23-173102 Darden

I-47529

7/22/2022

NAME

Mountain Valley Bank

1202553-19 070422 55/60
Int due 1202553-22 070722

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

STATUS

Region VII Plan. & Development

Assessment Dues FY 2023

Smith Backhoe & Dozer Service,

Contract Werk - Bethany In

Terra Flora Landscaping

parking let maint

Toshiba Financial Services

LexM5255/TE45154C

LEXC4150/ TOSH E3005AC
E4515AC contract 0615-71522
Lex SM3250 contract 071322

WY Municipal Leaque

Mayor - WVML FY 2022-20223

oomom

WV Regional Jail and Correctic

12 Days inmate housing TVRJ

Colonial Court Service Statiocn

Towing Bb3-42%

In-Synch Systems, LLC

yearly licenses on computers

InfoUSA Marketing Inc
Polk City Directory

Gerry Roberts

Reimb for recording deed RCHA R

Dodsen Pest Control

Pest Control Darden House 6/22 R

Graham-Simon Plumbing

Sloan valve/Labor

CHECK
DATE

7/07/2022
7/01/2022

/0772022

7/07/2022

/0772022

T/07/2022
7/0742022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

/0772022

1/07/2022

7/071/2022

T/01/2022

7/07/2022

7/01/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

655,
95.

7,974,

1,367,

450.

591.
221.
125.

69.

1,872,

57%.

85.

7,040.

44,

2,856,

53
78

a0

37

00

0z
37
59
00

18

0¢

00

00

.00

0o

.00

88

DISCOUNT

CHECK
RO

011875
011875

011876

011877

011878

011873
011873
011878
011878

011880

011881

011882

011883

011884

011885

0118846

011887

FAGE:

CHECK
3TATUS

751,

7,874,

1,367,

450.

1,006,

1,872.

85.

7,040,

740,

44,

150.

2,856,

CHECK
AMOUNT

31

ao

37

0o

98

18

.00

00

00

00

00

00

88




7/21/2022 4:08 PM
VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins
Pool Pooled Cash

BANK:

DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU

VENDOR I.D.

01790

01942

02027

02035

02065

02163

02315

02317

00711

I-284
I-285 MC April 2022

I-01214756-11 071522

1-223021-2

I-0001-HWWTE
I-0016-WWC

I-7351

I-216838

I-062622 PGCC
I-062622-1 PGCC

I-5074061

I-00003982
I-00003985
I-00003990
I-00003993
I-00003954
I-00004004
I-00004008
I-00004010
I-00004032
I-00004044
I-00004049
T-00004050
I~00004080
I-00004082
I-00004086
I-00004099
I-00004101
I-G0004105
I-00004L10
I-00004125

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

7/22/2022

NAME

Crim Law Office PLIC
Attny Services 04/2022
Muni Ct Attny Serv April 2022

Elkins Municipal Building Comm
01214756-11 071522

WV Paving Inc
Paving BearHunter Rd

C & 8 Enterprise
JD Exc rental/SCADA/Waterline
Rental JD Mini ExedD Excavator

AlignHR LLC
HR Managed Services 7/1/22

ArchiveSceial Inc

Social Media Archiving Subscpt

Corley Construction & Plumbing
Restroom Reno

Vanity & Urinal Repairs

Barr Public Safety Eguipment
Siren for M ATV

Tygart, Valley Transfer, Inc,
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Residential
Commercial - final
Residential
Commarcial
Residential
Commercial

Commercial

STATUS

Homom o o®mom owem NN R 8 "R HM "W "D onR o

CHECK
DATE

/0772022
7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022
T/01/2022

H0T/2022

7/07/2022

770772022
7/07/2022

7/07/2022

7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
1/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
T7/07/2022
7/07/2022
T/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0772022
T/07/2022
T/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0772022
/0772022
T/07/2022

INVCICE
AMOUNT

6,410.
3,070.

4,833,

35,213,

1,100,
2,425,

2,500,

4,990,

4,215.
566.

307.

234

00
0o

20

12

00
0o

00

oo

00
00

60

.58
T1.
66.

572.
20.

938.

373,

788,

365.

446

482,

546,

129,
27.

244,

512.

275.

662.

609.

.58

24
90
54
00
30
58
09
76
56
13
49
45
80
13
59
41
89
90

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

011888
011888

011889

011390

011891
011891

011892

011893

011894
011854

011895

011896
01189¢
011896
011896
011896
0118%s6
011836
011896
011896
011896
011896
011856
011896
0118986
011896
011896
011896
011836
011896
011896

|

\
PAGE: 7

i

I

CHECK
STATUS

CHECK ]
ANMOUNT ¢

%,480.00
1,833,20

35,213.72

3,525.00
2,500.00

4,990.00

4,781.00



1/21/2022 4:08 PM A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT PAGE: 8

VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins

BANK : Fool Pooled Cash ;

DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022 !

CHECK INVQICE CHECK CHECK CHECK

VENDQR I.D. NAME STATUS DATE BMOUNT DISCQUNT NO STATUS AMOUNT
I-00004133 Commercial R 7/01/2022 130.32 011896
I-00004153 Residential R 7/07/2022 69,50 011896
I-00004154 Commercial R 770772022 705.47 011896
I-00004155 Residential R 7/07/2022 854.03 011896
I-00004156 Residential R 7/07/2022 708,94 011896
I-00004162 Residential R 7/07/2022 55,60 011896
I-00004192 Commercial R 7/07/2022 211.99 T G11896
I-00004196 Residential R T/01/2022 539.52 ‘ 011896
I-00004197 Residential R T/01/2022 501,30 011896
I-0000415% Commercial R 7/07/2022 438,74 011886
I-00004214 Residential R /0772022 74.72 011884
I-0000421% Residential R 7/07/2022 52.13 0118%¢
I-00004220 Commercial R 7/07/2022 238.05 0118%6
I-00004223 Commercial R 7/07/2022 185.48 011896
I-00004225 Commercial R 7/07/2022 131.19 01189%¢
I-00004236 Residential R 7/07/2022 541.26 01189¢
I-00004237 Residential R 7/07/2022 489.13 011896
I-000G4238 Commercial R 7/07/2022 183.74 011896
I-00004240 Commercial R 7/07/2022 552.56 011896
I-00004255 Commercial R 7/07/2022 583.83 011896
I-00004260 Commercial R 7/07/2022 124.24 011896
I-00004267 Commercial R 7/07/2022 205.04 011896
I-00004271 Residential R 7/07/2022 582,10 011896
I-00004273 Residential R 7/07/2022 553.43 011896
I-00004277 Commercial R /0772022 509.12 011896
I-0000428% Commercial R 7/07/2022 278.88 011836
I-00004294 Commercial R 7/07/2022 123.37 011896
I-00004312 Residential R 7/07/2022 576.01 011896
I-00004314 Residential R 7/07/2022 512.59% 011896
I-00004315 Commercial R T/07/2022 632.49 011896
I-00004341 Commercial R 7/07/2022 106.86 011856
I-00004352 Commercial R 7/07/2022 172,02 0118%6
I-00004364 Residential R 7/07/2022 768.02 011896
I-00004368 Residential R 7/07/2022 827.97 011896
I-00004369 Commercial R q/07/2022 815.80 011896
I-00004370 Commercial R 7/07/2022 185,82 011896
I-00004363 Residential R 7/07/2022 20.00 011896
1-00004404 Residential R 7/07/2022 553.43 011896
I-00004406 Commercial R T/07/2022 , 503.04 011896
I-00004408 Residential R 1/07/2022 53.87 011836
I-00004409 Commercial R 7/07/2022 397.04 0118%%
I-00004410 Residential R 7/07/2022 451,78 011886
I-00004428 Commercial R 7/07/2022 211.07 011894
I-00004431 Commercial R 7/07/2022 113.81 011856
I-00004437 Residential R 7/07/2022 271,93 0118%6
I-00004447 Residential R 7/07/2022 589,92 0118%6
I-00004445% Commercial R 7/07/2022 537.79 011896
I-00004466 Commercial R 7/07/2022 208.51 011896



1/21/2022 4:08 PM

VENDOR SET: 01
BANK : Pool

DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU

VENDOR 1.D.

I-80004474
I-00004481
I-00004484
I-00004485
I-00004491
I-00004501
T-G0004531
I-00004532
I-00004534
I-00004560
I-00004573
1-00004580
I-00004591
I-00004592
I-00004595
I-00004604
I-00004630
I-00004637
I-00004648
I-00004647
I-00004651
I-00004669
I-00004676
I-00004681
I-00004682
I-00004689
I-000046%0
I-000046586
I-00004697
I-00004698
I-00004653
I-00004700
I-04004722
I-0Q004730
I-00004735
I-00004743
I-(0004745
I-00004744
I-00004747
I-00004729
I-00004800
I-00004803
I-00004825
I-30004828
I-30004829
I-00004834
I-00004844
I-0G004847

Pooled Cash

/2272022

NAME

Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
residential
Commercial
Residential
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial

Residential

final 6-21-22

STATUS

R R - IR I I I I -~ - I - - A -~ -~ B - B - B = B e B R S I - I - - T B - - R - B - - B A - - - -

A/P HISTORY CHECK REFORT

CHECK
DATE

/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
1/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
1/07/72022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
1/07/2022
/012022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
1/07/2022
/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

235.
208,
661,
762.
225.
119.
579.
544,
094,
113.
286.
BOS.
617,
-1

84.
250.

56.
229,
420,
691,
762,
217.
308.
569.
483.
116.
207.
133,

8.
543.
110.
489.
125,
230.
192.
173.
760.
855.
008,
.58
440.
378.
.88

58.
191.
138.
241,
253,

744

618

14
51
16
81
89
89
19
14
69
81
70
38
69

27
21
47
36
30
56
81
20
a2
[#2]
92
42
64
80
15
090
34
13
11
23
87
76
20
k)
55

48
80

21
14
14
53
a9

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

011896
0118396
011896
{11896
011896
011886
011886
0118846
0118%46
011856
0118846
011886
011854
0118%%
011896
011896
0118%6
0118%4
0116%4
011896
011896
01189¢
0118858
011896
011896
011896
011896
011896
011896
011896
0118396
011896
011896
011896
011896
0118986
011896
011896
011896
011896
0113986
0113986
0118986
011896
011896
011896
011836
{11836

PRGE:

CHECK
STATUS

CHECK
AMOUNT




7/21/2022 4:08 BPM

VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins

BANK:

DATE RANGE:

Pool Pocled Cash

VENDOR I.D.

00116

00121

00122

00147

{0150

0151

I-0t004848
I-(0004850
I-00004853
I-00004872
I-00004873
I-00004878
I-00004889
I-00004852
I-00004893
I-00004800
I-0004887
I-112258
I-112261
I-112263
I-1122717
I-112281
I-112286
I-112309
I-112310
T-112312
I-112333
I-112341

I-CD5202207131328

I-Fp 202207131328

I-PP 202207131328
I-FPN202207131328

I-MISZ202207131328

I-T1 202207131328

I-T3 202207131328
I-T4 202207131328

7/05/2022 THRU

7/22/2022

NAME

Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commarcial
Commercial
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial

Res - Humane Soc
Residential
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial Greenfields
Commercial-Stonemile
Commercial DMH
Residential
Residential
Commercial
Commercial Power Co

Commercial DM Compactor

Child Support Enforcement

Child Support

Citizens Bank of WVFP

Fire Pension

Citizens Bank of WVPp
Police Pension

Police Pension-2010 Forward

COE Misc
Misc Reimbursements

COE Payroll
Federal Withholding

COE Payroll
FICA

Madicare

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

STATUS

R R R - T - I -~ -~ - B B - - S~ = B~ « <> B~ = <

CHECK
DATE

TI07/2022
T/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022

770772022

/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0772022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
/0172022
7/07/2022
012022
T01/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022
7/07/2022

7/13/2022

771372022

7/13/2022
7/13/2022

1/13/2022

7/13/2022

7/13/2022
7/13/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

555,
471,
603.
252.
502.
581,

96,
505.
160.

20.
632.
624,
610.
617,
275,
273.
156,
596.
595.
873.
184,
133.

528.

528,

150,
460,

134,

13,112,

14,004,
4,795,

16
76
82
82
17
23
44
64
73
G0
49
67
77
72
41
67
38
87
13
14
19
80

eli]

16

19
96

00

07

58
60

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

01189¢
011896
01189%¢
0118886
011858
011856
011888
011884
011886
011856
011856
0118%4
0118%4
011894
0118%4
011856
011896
011886
011894
0118%4
011896
011896

011897

011838

011839
011899

011500

011901

011902
011502

PAGE:

CHECK
3TATUS

CHECK
AMOUNT

54,020,

528,

13,112,

18,800.

00

.16

.15

.op

07

18

10




7/21/2022 4:08 PM A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT PAGE: 11
VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins
BANK: Pool Pooled Cash
DATE RANGE: 1/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022
CHECK INVOICE CHECK CHECK CHECX

VENDCR I.D, NAME STATUS DATE AMOUNT DISCOUNT NO STATUS AMOUNT
04152 COE Payrcll

I-T2 202207131328 State Withholding R 7/13/2022 6,647.00 011903 6,647.00
00243 Davis Trust Company

I-CC 202207131328 Employee Christmas Club R 7/13/2022 1,680.00 011904 1,680.00
00747 Washington National Insurance

I-WN 202207131328 Washington National Insurance R T/13/2022 781.08 011905 781.08
00837 COE Payroll Reimbursement

I-001202207131328 Payroll Reimbursement R 7/13/2022 54,177.84 011906

I-006202207131328 Payroll Reimbursement R 7/13/2022 9,967.80 011906

T-036202207131328 Payroll Reimbursement R 1/13/2022 17,559.86 011906

I-400202207131328 Payroll Reimbursement R 7/13/2022 15,692,346 011906

I-401202207131328 Payroll Relmbursement R 7/13/2022 14,161.48 011906

I-404202207131328 Payroll Reimbursement R 7/13/2022 10,247.47 011906 121,806.81
01885 Colonial Life

I-CL 202207131328 Colionial Life-AT R 7/13/2022 85.92 011907

I-CLP202207131328 Colonial Life-PT 7/13/2022 52.52 011907 138.44
00150 COE Payroll

I-T1 202207131329 Federal Withholding R 7/13/2022 77.69 011908 77.69
00151 COE Payroll

I-T3 202207131329 FICA R 7/13/2022 193.14 011509

I-T4 202207131329 Medicare R 7/13/2022 45.18 011909 238,32
00152 COE Payroll

I-T2 202207131329 State Withholding R 7/13/2022 48.00 011910 48,00
40837 COE Payroll Reimbursement

I-001202207131328 Payroll Reimbursement R 7/13/2022 1,242.66 011311 1,242.66
00140 City of Elkins

T-202207062617 Tree Board - Copies R 7/14/2022 6.02 011912 6.02
00202 Davis Trust Company

I-12755 072222 03113776-12755 (72222 R 7/14/2022 4,256.84 011913 4,256.84
00211 Elkins Depot Welcome Center

I-May22 H/M H/M Collection May 2022 R 7/14/2022 8,733.32 011914 8,733.32




7/21/2022 4:08 PM

A/F HISTORY CHECK REPORT

VENDCR SET: 01 Flkins
BANK: Pool Pooled Cash
DATE RBNGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022
VENDCR I1.D. NAME STATUS
04471 Mon Power
I-90008633775 consumption/lighting R

00484
I-062822SummaryBill

00514
I-7729

00779
1-4334941

00787
I-SUTA 2nd QTR 2022

01220
I-119341894

01427
I-5825

01681
I-06302022

01727
I-FBN4515190

01749
I-Sponscrship 22-23

01833
I-13830

02320
I-LIfetime licenses

00006
I-AF 202206281326
I-AF 202207131328
I-AFL20220628132¢
I-AFL202207131328

00032
I-51938A

Mountaineer Gas Company
Natural Gas 062422 R

Office Products
clips/highlighters/clipboard R

Woodford Qil Company
425 Gal #2 Diesel Clear R

WV Bureau of Employment Progra
Volunteer Fire SUTA 2nd Qtr 22 R

The Delmonte Market
City Flowers R

K&K Collision & Towing
20FD Interceptor Repairs R

DataMax Corporation
Collections June 2022 R

Enterprise FM Trust
Fleet Leases July 2022 R

High Rocks Educational Corp
Americorps Sponsorship 22-23 R

P3 Cost Analysts

Telecom Savings June 2022 R

WV Division of Natural Resourc
% Youth Lifetime H/F licenses R

AFLAC
Aflac-After Tax Ins
Aflac-After Tax Ins

Aflac Insurance

A m o m=m

Aflac Insurance

Absclute Assurance Drug Test L

Drub/Alcohol Testing R

CHECK
DATE

7/14/2022

7/14/2022

7/14/2022

7/14/2022

T/1472022

7/14/2022

7/14/2022

7/14/2022

7/14/2022

1/14/2022

7/14/2022

T/1472022

7/19/2022
771972022
/1972022
/1972022

7/18/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

37,177.93

58.28

2,248.25

48.57

4,5859.16

5,852.43

16,281.78

6,000.00

81.75

3,904.25

B85.21
85.21
131.72
131.72

108.00

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

011815

011816

411817

011918

011918

011920

011921

011922

011923

011924

011925

011926

011927
011927
011927
011927

011328

PA

CHECK
STATUS

GE:

CHECK

AMOUNT

37,177.93

5¢.28

2,248.25

48.57

4,558.14

5,852.43

524.47

16,281.78

6,000.00

81,75

3,904.25

433,86

108.00



NAME

7/21/2022 4:08 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins

BANR: Pool Fooled Cash

DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022
VENDOR I.D.

00034

I-10598049 I05879%6

00047
I-000006 072722
I-00004 072722
I-00005 072422

00075
I-36339493

00143
I-07/22 Indirects

00169
I-19485
1-19489
I-19483

06239
I-CKREQ 063022

06242
I-EPF20220628132¢
I-EPF202207131328

06267
I-WYELK167252

00280
I-Exp Reimb 71322

00459

00465

I-202104

I-202106

00483
I-1202553-21 072822

00514
I-7651

ATCO International
Paper Twls/Plates/Tissues

Truist Governmental Finance
9948000234-06 072722
9948000234-04 072722
9948000234-05 072422

Encova Insurance

WCNeDO7129 070122-070123

COE General Fund 2
Monthly Indirects 7/2022

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

STATUS

Assured Partners of West Virgi

1st Qtr Pkg Installment
1st Qtr Prof Down Pmt

1st Qtr Excess Down Pmt

Elkins Historic Landmark Commi

Reimbursement for utilities

Elkins Professional Firefighte

Elkins Professional FF
Elkins Professional FF

Fastenal Company

Caution Blue Marking Paint

Tracy R Judy
Travel WVDEP-RADPP Meeting

Metheny Contracting
Demo 943 S Davis/Fuel Chg

Steve's Electrical Service LLC

labor/maint 052622-060622
Maintenance-060622-061322

Mountain valley Bank
1202553-19 072822 46/84

Cffice Products
desk plate

=]

CHECEK
DATE

7/19/2022

1/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022

1/18/2022

7/19/2022
7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022
7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

2,643,
2,256,
2,596,

10,555,

24,270,

57,750,
5,777.
4,503,

90.
90.

72.

178,

13,225,

1,450,
1,750,

2,369,

20,

.12

26
15
05

00

24

27
93
69

.78

00
00

68

13

oo

00
00

18

00

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

011923

011930
011930
011930

011931

011932

011933
011933
0113933

011934

011935
011935

01193¢

011337

011938

011839
011539

011540

011941

PAGE:

CHECK
STATUS

7’

10,

24,

€8,

13,

3,

2,

CHECK
AMOUNT

115,

496.

555,

270.

032,

12,

1738,

225.

200.

369,

20,

12

06

00

24

24

.78

.00

68

13

00

00

18

00




772172022
VENDOR SET: 01

BANK:

DATE RANGE:

4:08 PM

Elkins

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

Pool Pooled Cash

VENDOR I.D.

08560

006591

00701

00707

00787

00803

00810

I-12443

I-July 2022 RHBT
I-RHB202207131328

I-476431556

I-4343
I-5109
I-5611

I-50v202207131328

I-062322

I-BL 202207131328
I-DL 202206281326
I-DL 202207131328
I-HEA202206281326
I-HPA202207131328
I-ICAZ02206281326
I-ICh202207131328
I-ICB202206281326
I-ICB202207131328
I-IFA202206281328
I-IFA202207131328
I-IFB202206281326
I-IFB202207131328
I-IFD20220628132¢
I-TIFD202207131328
I-I8A202206281326
I-I5A202207131328
I-1SB202206281326
I-ISB202207131328
I-0L 202206281326
I-0L 202207131328
I-TOF202206281326
I-TOF202207131328
I-TCS202206281326
I-T05202207131328

7/05/2022 THRU

7/22/2022

NAME

Public Service Commission WV

Intrastate Revenue Assessment

Retiree Health Benefit Trust F
Retirees July 2022
Ratirae Health Benefit Trust

Toshiba Financial Services
E4515AC 062722-072722

Trickett Hardware, Inc.
Heaters/Mop/Grass Seed/Wire
heoes/staple gun/pant/clamps
2 Keys

WV Bureau of Employment Progra
State Unemployment-Vol Fire

WV Division of Moter Vehicles

ID's Poe/Sanson

WV Public Employee Insurance A
Basic Life Benefit
Dependent Life
Dependent Life
Ins-Health Plan &
Ins-Health Plan A

Ing - Emp/Child-Plan A
Ins ~ Emp/Child-Plan A
Ins~ Emp/child - Plan B
Ins- Emp/child - Plan B
Ins - Family - Plan A
Ins - Family - Plan A
Ins - Family - Plan B
Ins - Family - Plan B

Ins-Fam-Flan - Post Tax

B
Ins-Fam~Plan B - Post Tax
Ins - Single - Plan &

Ins - Single - Plan A
Ins-Single - Plan B
Ins-5ingle - Plan B
Opticnal Life

Optional Life

Teobacco Surcharge Family
Tobacco Surcharge Family
Tobaceo Surcharge Single

Tobacco Surcharge Single

STATUS

WA

Womom o oW ™o\ oW W R o mm ® M ™% X ™Mom®™ ™A R

CHECK
DATE

1/19/2022

771972022
771972022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022
1/19/2022
7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/18/2022

7/19/2022
7/18/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
771972022
7/18/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
771972022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
1/18/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/18/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

8,186,

2,171,
4,878,

38.

50.

167.
73.
78,

718,

718.

917.

917.

1,192.
1,192.
12,117.
12,137,
6,535.
6,535.
466.
466.
3,768,
3,768.
2,496.
2,496,

305,

305.

437.

437.

175.

175.

70
]

.37

.00

44
61

[y
oo
oo
0o
50
50
75
76
50
50
00
00
00
00
00
00
a5
55
50
50
0o
oo

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

011942

011943
011943

011944

011545
011945
011945

011946

011947

011948
011948
011948
011948
011948
011948
011348
011948
0113948
0115948
011948
011548§
011948
011948
11948
011948
011948
011948
011948
011948
011948
011943
011948
011948
011948

BAGCE:

CHECK
STATUS

8,186,

7,049,

38.

50,

58,579

CHECK
AMOUNT

46

70

.59

.99

20

00

.23

14




7/21/2022 4:08 PM
VENDOR SET: 01 Elkins
Pool Pooled Cash

BANK:

DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU

VENDOR I.D.

06813

00848

005060

00968

01390

015394

01697

01751

02180¢

02220

02240

02256

I-App-001
T-Registrations 2022

I-07062277487

I-32714%9
I-333373
1-333374-375-37¢6
I-333489
I-333561
I-333595

I-22 CERT OPF

I-4081 4117
I-4133

I-04/22 (5/22 Multi

I-654141
I-654143

I-202206022443

I-070522

I-1B169

I-GAR202110191274

I-5027161285

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

7/22/2022

NAME

West Virginia Rural Water Asso
Apprenticeship Hiner/Walters
WVRW Annual Conf 2022

Snap-on

1/2 in Hammer Drill/Butane

National Road Utility Supply,
Magnetic Mount Base

Meter Gaskets
inventory/meter supplies
magnetic mount base/antenna
Couplings/Pipe-ChildrensHm

Parts

WV DEP
Certificate to Operate 2022

Phoenix Solutions, LLC
Chemicals
Chemicals

Pace Analytical Services LLC
Invoices 04/22 and 05/22

C-Com LLC
Maint repairs 05/09%-05/17/22
Maint 05302022-06032022

COE WWTP
Backwash 050122-053122

Progressive Preventive Health

At-Risk Assessment

Long Branch Equipment LIC
Labor/Parts Excavator

WVl Medical Corp dba Universit
Garnishment 15-C-105

Zoro.com
Saddle Clamps

STATUS

2 B+ B B I

CHECK
DATE

7/18/2022
7/19/2022

7/18/2022

7/19/2022
7/19/2022
7/19/2022
771972022
7/19/2022
7/18/2022

7/19/2022

7/18/2022
7/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/18/2022
7/18/2022

/1872022

771972022

T/19/2022

7/19/2022

7/19/2022

INVOICE
AMOUNT

4,200.
2,100,

295.
167.
8,031.
.64
1,434,
929,

400.

16,017.
2,024,

1,495,

3,262,
1,837,

125.

400.

185,

241.

00
00

.68

09

00

26

6

61

00

62
37

00

50
50

.46

oo

25

o

26

DISCOUNT

CHECK
NO

011949
011949

{11950

011951
0113851
011951
011951
011951
011951

(11952

011853
011953

011954

011935
011955

011956

011957

011958

011858

011960

BAGE:

CHECK CHECK
STATUS AMOUNT

6,300,

2886,

11, 445.

400,

18,041.

1,495.

5,100.

125.

400.

185.

oo

68

36

00

99

00

eli]

.46

00

25

0o

.26

13




A/P HISTORY CHECK REPORT

7/21/2022 4:08 PM
VENDOR SET: 01 Flking
BANK: Pool Pooled Cash
DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU 7/22/2022
VENDOR I.D. NAME STATUS
02305 Don's Heating & A/C Repair
I-393466 Rechg AC/Easy Seal/Freon R
01753 Fifth Third Bank
C-QUILL-062722 CR-Toner-QUILL R
C-WIX-CR taxes CR-WIX return of taxes R
I-MCard Pmt 063022 MasterCard Stmt Pmt 063022 R
01753 Fifth Third Bank
I-MCard Fleet 063022 MasterCard Fleet Pmt 063022 R
1 SMITH, ABIGAIL G
I-000202207201330 US REFUND R

** TOTALS *~*
REGULAR CHECKS:
HAND CHECKS:
DRAFTS:
EFT:
NON CHECKS:

VOID CHECKS:

TOTAL ERRORS: 0

D O B O W

2 VOID DEBITS
VOID CREDITS

NG
VENDOR SET: 01 BANK: Pcol TQTALS: 102
BANK: Pool TCOTRLS: i02
REPORT TOTALS: 109

CHECK
DATE

/1872022

7/19/2022
7/19/2022
771972022

7/19/2022

172072022

0.00

1,542,472.73CR

INVOICE CHECK
AMOUNT DISCQUNT HO
640.00 011861
230.31CR 011962

11.48CR 011962
79,547.05 011962
21,437,135 011963

600.00 011964
INVOICE AMOUNT DISCOUNTS
3,898,636.52 0.00
0.00 0.00
455.00 0.00
t.00 0.60
0.00 0.00
1,542,472.73CR 0,00
INVOICE AMOUNT DISCOUNTS
2,356,618.79 0.00
2,356,618.79 0.00
2,688,738.28 0.00

PAGE :

CHECK
STATUS

79,

21,

CHECK

2,356,

CHECK

2,356,

2,356,

2,688,

CHECK
AMOUNT

640.00

305.26

437.15

600.00

AMOUNT
163.79
0.00
455.00
0.00
Q.00

AMOUNT
618.79

618.79

738.29

14




7/21/2022 4:08 PM

VENDOR SET: 0i-mlkins

VENDOR: ALL

BLNE CODES: Exclude; FCARD

FUNDS: All

A/P HISTORY CHECK REPQORT

SELECTION CRITERIA

PAGE : i7

CHECK SELECTION

CHECK RANGE: 000000 THRU 999399
DATE RANGE: 7/05/2022 THRU
CHECK AMOUNT RANGE:

INCLUDE ALL VQIDS:

YES

0.00 THRU 999,999,599.99

PRINT OQPTIQNS
SEQUENCE:

PRINT TRANSARCTIONS:

PRINT G/L:
UNPOSTED CONLY:
EXCLUDE UNPOSTED:
MANUAL ONLY;

STUE COMMENTS:
REPCRT FQOTER:
CHECK STATUS:
PRINT STATUS:

CHECK NUMBER

YES

NGO
NG
NC
NO
HQ
NO
NC




CITY OF ELKINS
ORDINANCE 299

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMOMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA, AMENDING AND
SUPPLEMENTING THAT PORTION OF CITY ORDINANCE NO.
271, WHICH 1S CODIFIED AS SECTION 150.035 OF THE CITY
CODE TO PROVIDE FOR A CERTAIN REVISION TO THE STATE
BUILDING CODE PROMULGATED BY THE WEST VIRGINIA
STATE FIRE COMMISSION AND ESTABLISHED BY
LEGISLATIVE RULE, TITLE 87, SERIES 4, TO BE EFFECTIVE
AUGUST 1, 2022

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of West Virginia Code §8-12-13, the City of
Elkins by Ordinance No. 271 has duly adopted the lawfully enacted the State Building Code
which consists of the standards and requirements as set out and published by the International
Code Council and American Standards Institute and adopted by the State of West Virginia
Legislature and codified as Title 87 Series 4 of the Code of State Regulations.

WHEREAS, the State Fire Marshal’s Office has notified the City of Elkins of a certain
change to said Title 87 Series 4 which will take effect on August 1, 2022, and has directed the
City of Elkins to adopt said change as part of its Building and Housing Code

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by the Common Council of the City of
Elkins that Ordinance No. 271 and Section 150.035 of the City Code be and the same is hereby
amended and supplemented only as follows:

Section 150.035 of the City Code be and is hereby amended as follows:

The State Building Code be and is hereby reenacted and adopted as promulgated

by the West Virginia State Fire Commission, Title No. 87, Series 4 “State
Building Code” as approved by the West Virginia Legislature, by Legislative
Rule filed January 7, 2022 and effective August 1, 2022 as amended, and which
establishes the standards and requirements as set out and as published in 2018 by
the International Code Council and American Standards Institute, and the
following codes, as promulgated, be and the same are incorporated by reference
as if fully set out verbatim herein:

2018 International Building Code, as modified or amended, to include
Section 4.1.g. The ANSI/ASHRAE/IESNA Standard 90.1 2013 Edition
for commercial buildings, as excepted, modified or amended;

2018 International Residential Code, as excepted, modified or amended;
2018 International Existing Building Code, as excepted, modified or
amended;

2018 International Plumbing Code, as excepted, modified or amended;
2018 International Mechanical Code, as excepted, modified or amended;
2018 International Fuel Gas Code, as excepted, modified or amended;

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS
2018 International Property Maintenance Code, as excepted, modified or
amended,;
NFPA Life Safety Code 2021 Edition;
2020 Edition of the National Electric Code NFPA 70, as excepted,
modified or amended;
2017 ICC/ANSI A117.1 Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities
Code, as excepted, modified or amended;
2018 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, as excepted, modified
or amended;
2015 International Energy Conservation Code — for Residential Dwellings,
as excepted, modified or amended, all of which will have an effective date
of August 1, 2022.

Section 3. SAVINGS: Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to affect any
suit or proceeding pending in any court, or rights acquired or liability incurred, or any
cause or causes under any act or ordinance repealed; nor shall any just or legal right or
remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this Ordinance; and to that end
the provisions of any prior enactment are hereby saved; provided however, that all
building codes previously adopted by the City of Elkins and inconsistent with the State
Building Code then in effect are null and void. ‘

Section 4. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES: A. Any existing municipal
ordinance that is more stringent or imposes a higher standard than is required by the
above referenced codes shall govern, provided such ordinance is consistent with the laws
of the State of West Virginia and are not contrary to recognized standards and good
engineering practices.

- B. Any existing municipal ordinance that is less stringent or imposes a
lesser standard than is required by the above-referenced codes is hereby amended to
comply therewith.

Section 5. SEVERABILITY: If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this
ordinance shall be declared invalid for any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not
affect the remaining portions of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and
effect, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared severable.

Section 6: ENFORCEMENT: A. In addition to any other City personnel, officer,
or official authorized to investigate and enforce the provisions of this article, the City’s
Building Inspector, and Code Enforcement Officer shall have authority to enforce the
provisions of this ordinance.

Section 7. A certified copy of this Ordinance shall be filed with the West Virginia
State Fire Commission Office of the State Fire Marshal.

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after final adoption.

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304} 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




—~ CITY OF ELKINS

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING: ! day of I{;ng , 2022,

PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAIL READING THE day of
, 2022,

CITY OF ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

ORDINANCE 300

An Ordinance of the Common Council of the City of Elkins, West Virginia,
Revising Chapter 93: Streets, Sidewalks, and Public Places of the City Code
to Establish Rules and Regulations for Outdoor Dining in Public Spaces

WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Elkins, West Virginia, recognizes the
positive nature of extending dining options to create an active streetscape and to encourage
pedestrian and retail friendly traffic to the downtown area of the City; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to establish regulations for the facilitation
of outdoor dining as a safe use of the public right of way; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the citizens of the City to provide an additional
safe and appealing option for dining outdoors.

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by the Common Council of the City
of Elkins, West Virginia that Chapter 93: Street, Sidewalks, and Public Places be amended and
supplemented by adding the following sections: OUTDOOR DINING IN PUBLIC PLACES

See. 93.115 - Outdoor dining rules and regulations

The City of Elkins Zoning Officer is hereby authorized to promulgate reasonable rules and
regulations regarding the administration of the requirements of this article, to review all
Outdoor Dining Area permit applications and to either grant or deny such permits under this
article. Copies of such regulations, as amended from time to time, shall be maintained by the
Zoning Officer, posted on the City’s website and filed in the City Clerk’s office, and shall be
available to interested parties at all reasonable times.

Sec. 93.116 - Compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations

{a) The operation of an Outdoor Dining Area pursuant to a permit granted under this article
shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, all provisions of state and local
building and fire codes, as well as all state and local health laws and regulations regarding the
service and preparation of food. The operations of an Outdoor Dining Area shall also be
conducted in accordance with the code provisions and regulations of the West Virginia
Alcoholic Beverage Control Administration (WVABCA). Nothing in this article shall be
intended to alter or abridge any applicable federal, state, and local laws or the Operator’s
responsibility to comply with all code provisions and regulations of the WVABCA.

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

{b) Nothing in this article shall be intended to alter or abridge the prohibition of service of
alcoholic beverages or possession thereof on public property in the City, except that any
permitted Outdoor Dining Area Operator and patrons of permitted Operator’s Qutdoor Dining
Area shall be deemed to be exempt from said prohibition during the hours of operation of the
Outdoor Dining Area and only within the confines of said area.

Sec. 93.117 - Definitions

{a) Operator shall mean a person, organization, proprietorship, corporation, or other similar
entity lawfully operating a business located in the City of Elkins’, that possesses a valid State
of West Virginia food vendor’s permit and has been issued an Outdoor Dining Area permit.

(b) Qutdoor Dining Area shall mean a confined area of the public sidewalk designated by a
site plan approved by the City through its Zoning Officer, and which area is adjacent to
Operator’s building/permanent structure, where patrons may sit at tables while consuming
food and beverages, which may include any beverage regulated by the WVABCA contingent
on proper licensure by the WVABCA.

Sec. 93.118 - Permit Process

{a) An applicant for an Outdoor Dining Area permit shall file an application with the

City of Elkins Zoning Officer. An application for an Outdoor Dining Area permit shall be
accompanied by a $25 annual permit fee , valid through June 30, for an outdoor dining area,
and shall include: a site plan, drawn to scale showing the layout for the Outdoor Dining Area
which accurately depicts the existing sidewalk conditions, including sidewalk width from
building face to curb; location and dimensions of tree wells; locations of lamp posts, traffic
and parking signs, signal poles, trash receptacles, benches, and other sidewalk features or
obstructions; as well as design, location, size and space of the dining area, chairs, tables, aisles
between tables; and if applicable, enclosures; routes of ingress and egress; clearances between
the seating area and the curb; and any such additional requirements of the Zoning Officer with
respect to type, style, or-specifications of the QOutdoor Dining Area, including those
requirements subject to the approval of the WVABCA,

(b) After reviewing the application and site plan, the Zoning Officer shall determine if the
proposed Outdoor Dining Area, consistent with the requirements of this article, is reasonable,
promotes safe pedestrian and retail friendly vitality, and that there is adequate space remaining
within the public right-of- way to facilitate safe circulation of pedestrian traffic, while
promoting the overall public health, safety and welfare. Thereafter, the Zoning Officer may
approve, approve with conditions, or deny an application. The approved plan and permit shall
be posted at the Operator’s premises, visible to customers and the public. No material change

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone; (304} 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

to the approved plan shall be made without prior written approval by the Zoning Officer.

{c}) The Outdoor Dining Area permit term shall be for one year to coincide with the city’s
fiscal year (July 1 — June 30), unless revoked prior to expiration, and may be renewed on an
annual basis. An annual permit fee of $25 shall be assessed for renewal of an existing Outdoor
Dining Area permit.

(d) Any Operator holding a valid existing permit for a particular Outdoor Dining Area that
continues to utilize that Outdoor Dining Area, shall be deemed to have re-applied for
permission to use the same space for a succeeding permit term. Such Operator shall pay the
applicable annual renewal permit fee, complete all renewal paperwork and comply with any
other renewal requirements of the Zoning Officer, on or before June 30. If the Operator fails to
meet all renewal requirements, then the Operator's permit shall be deemed to have expired.

(e) The issuance of an Outdoor Dining Area permit does not grant or imply vested rights to
use of the area by the Operator, but instead is a privilege granted to the Operator. The City
retains the right to deny the issuance of a permit or the renewal of a permit for any lawtul
reason. The City shall have broad discretion to grant or revoke permits issued pursuant to this
article in the interests of promoting pedestrian and retail friendly vitality, and improving the
overall public health, safety, and welfare.

Sec. 93.119 - Standards for outdoor dining areas

{a} The Outdoor Dining Area shall be located adjacent to the property of an existing and
lawful establishment of a permitted Operator and shall be under the responsible direction and
control of that Operator. ’

(b} The Outdoor Dining Area may be open to patrons between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and
11:00 p.m. daily. In the event a permitted Operator intends to serve any beverage regulated by
the WVABCA in an Outdoor Dining Area, all code provisions and regulations of the
WVABCA regarding permitted days and hours of service shall be followed.

{c) All furniture or other personal property located on the public sidewalk/right-of-way by
Operator must be readily removable without damage to the surface of public
sidewalk/right-of-way. Penetrations into or permanent fixtures placed upon the public
sidewalk/right-of-way by Operator are strictly prohibited.

(d) The Zoning Officer shall have the authority to determine when furniture, personal property
and associated enclosures must be removed from the public sidewalk/right-of-way.

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

{e) At least 42 inches of unobstructed corridor space must be maintained between the outer
dimension of the Qutside Dining Area and the curb or nearest obstruction, in order to ensure a
clear pedestrian passageway along the sidewalk. In order to achieve a continuous pedestrian
walkway, the pedestrian passageway shall be a straight line, parallel to the building face or
curb line, for the entire length of the Qutdoor Dining Area.

{f) An unobstructed clearance of 42 inches, must be maintained between a fire hydrant.
and any furniture or enclosures of an Outdoor Dining Area.

{g) The Outdoor Dining Area must be kept sanitary, neat, and clean at all times and shall be
free from the accumulation of food and litter.

(h) In order to control litter, the use of disposable plates and utensils is discouraged.

(i) Noise from an Outdoor Dining Area which unreasonably disturbs neighboring commercial
or residential occupants is prohibited.

(j) In order to serve any beverage regulated by the WVABCA in an Outdoor Dining Area, the
designated area must be included in the floor plan for the licensed premises as approved by the
WVABCA. Any beverage regulated by the WVABCA shall be served and consumed only on
the enclosed or bounded portion of the public sidewalk designated and permitted by the City
as an Outdoor Dining Area. Patrons are not permitted to carry any beverage regulated by the
WVABCA out of the Qutdoor Dining Area.

Sec. 93.120 - Additional Requirements

{a) Prior to the issunance of a permit, the applicant must agree, in writing, that it shall
indemnify, defend, and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees, from and
against all liability, claims, suits, damages, losses, costs, attorneys’ fees and expenses of any
or all types arising out of, or'related in any way to, the permitted Outdoor Dining Area.

(b)The applicant shall maintain such general liability insurance with at least $1,000,000
coverage per each occurrence and shall the name as additional insured the City of Elkins, its
agents, officers, directors and employees. A copy of said insurance policy shall be furnished to
the City of Elkins.

{c)The authorization and privilege granted by a permit approved under this section shall be
terminated due to the Operator’s failure to comply with any federal, state or local laws, any
unabated nuisances or whenever the City desires to use the affected public right-of-way for

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

any public purpose. In the event the City shall have a public need for use of the right-of-way,
or the property affected by the right-of-way, the City may terminate the use of such
right-of-way by writien notification to the applicant for the removal of any encroachments,
and the Operator shall cease use of the right-of-way unless and until such time the City has no
public need for use of the right-of-way. Said removal shall be completed by the date specified
in the notice and shall be accomplished by the applicant without cost to the City. If the
applicant fails or neglects to remove the encroachment within the time specified, the City shall ,
have the right to remove the encroachment, at the expense of the Operator, and shall not be
liable to the Operator for any loss, financial or otherwise, or damage to the encroachment or
personal property within the encroachment area.

Sec.93.121— Denial or Revocation of Permit

(a) An Outdoor Dining Area permit is a privilege granted to the Operator that may be revoked
by the City upon finding by the Zoning Officer that the Operator has violated any federal, state
or City law applicable to the Qutdoor Dining Area or the operation thereol, including but not
limited to, compliance with all code provisions and regulations of the WVABCA, that the
continued operation of the Outdoor Dining Area poses a threat to the health, safety or welfare
of the public, or that the Outdoor Dining Area constitutes a public nuisance.

(b)An applicant who has been denied a permit, or an Operator whose permit has been revoked
‘may appeal the denial or revocation to the City of ElkinsCharleston Board of Zoning Appeals
(BZA). The provisions of Chapter 152 of the City of ElkinsGharleston Zoning Ordinance shall
apply. Such appeal may be made in writing within thitty (30) days following the decision
appealed from, on forms available at the Zoning Officer , and shall set forth the basis on which
the person contests the decision. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the appeal by the BZA, the
BZA shall set a date and time for a public hearing. The public hearing shall be held within
forty-five (45) days of receipt of the appeal to the BZA. The BZA shall conduct a public
hearing on the appeal and may: deny the appeal and uphold the original order, requirement,
decision or determination; grant the appeal and overturn the original order, requirement,
decision or determination; or, issue an order which denies part of the appeal and grants part of
the appeal. The BZA shall make written findings of fact and conclusions of law on which the
BZA based its decision. The decision of the BZA may be appealed by either party, within
thirty (30) days, to the Kanawha County Circuit Court, as set forth in WV Code §8A-9-1, et
seq.

Sec. 93.122 — Penalty

Any Operator who violates any provision of this article shall, upon conviction, be fined up to
$100 per day. Each day any violation of this article shall continue shall constitute a separate
offense.

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage.

If any portion of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be declared invalid by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof and
Common Council determinations that it would have adopted this Ordinance without the.
invalid provision.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING _ S ! ,Uﬁ,ua‘ru 7 , 2022,
PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS DAY
OF , 2022

CITY OF ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




ORDINANCE 301

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA REPEALING THE CURRENT
CHAPTER 152; ZONING, ELKINS CITY CODE AND OTHER
CONFLICTING SECTIONS OF THE CITY CODE AND ENACTING
A NEW ZONING ORDINANCE TO BE DESIGNATED AS CHAPTER
152: ZONING, ELKINS CITY CODE

WHEREAS, the City of Elkins, through the Common Council, first approved a zoning
ordinance on March 3, 1959, with minor changes over the ensuing sixty-three years; and

WHEREAS, since 2015, the Elkins Planning Commission, as part of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan, has been working on updating the City’s zoning laws, to ensure that the
updated zoning laws incorporate proven, effective practices and comply with all applicable state
and federal laws; and

WHEREAS, during the entire process of the review and updating the zoning laws, the
Elkins Planning Commission has relied on the pro bono advice and expertise of the planning and
legal professionals from the WVU College of Law Land Use and Sustainable Development Law
Clinic; and

WHEREAS, in June, 2022, the Elkins Planning Commission completed its work and
presented to Council its Study and Report on Zoning which contained a proposed zoning
ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council, pursuant to West Virginia Code §8A-7-1(3), has the
authority to regulate land use within its jurisdiction by enacting a zoning ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council believes that it is in the best interests of the City and
its citizens to repeal the current zoning ordinance and certain related conflicting City Code
sections and to enact a new Zoning Ordinance, as set forth herein:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ORDAINED and ENACTED by the Common Council of
the City of Elkins that the following sections of the Elkins City Code be and are hereby
REPEALED :

1. Chapter 152: Zoning, Elkins City Code.

2. Table V : Zoning ,Elkins City Code.

3. Signs and Familiar Structures, §150.085 through §150.099, Elkins City Code ..
4. The second sentence of §110.041, Yard Sales, Elkins City Code .

And be it further ORDAINED and ENACTED that Chapter 152, Zoning, Elkins City
Code be REVISED and AMENDED as follows:




Z.oning Ordinance
Section 21-0A Article I. General Pravisions.

Section 21-1 Title.
This ordinance shall be known as the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Elkins, West Virginia,
hereinafter referred to as "this code" or “this ordinance.”

Section 21-2 Authority.

Whereas, by act of the West Virginia State Legislature, as recorded in West Virginia Code, the
governing body of any county or municipality may, by ordinance, classify the territory under its
Jjurisdiction into districts of such number, shape, and size as it may deem best suited to carry out
the purpose of zoning.

Section 21-3 Purpose.
This code is consistent with the City of Elkins Comprehensive Plan and was developed to
promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the public. Other purposes of this code
include:

(a) To plan so that adequate light, air, convenience of access, and safety from fire, flood, and

other danger is secured;

(b) To ensure attractiveness and convenience is promoted,;

(c) To lessen congestion;

(d) To preserve historic landmarks, sites, districts, and buildings;

(e) To promote the orderly development of land; and

(f) To preserve agriculture.

Section 21-4 Scope and Jurisdiction.

The provisions of this code shall apply to the construction, addition, alieration, moving, repair,
and use of any building, structure, parcel of land, or sign within the City of Elkins, except work
located primarily on a public way or road, or on public utility towers and poles, and public
utilities, unless specifically mentioned in this code.

In fulfilling these purposes, this code is intended to benefit the public as a whole and not any
specific person or class of persons. Although, through the implementation, administration, and
enforcement of this code, benefits and detriments will be enjoyed or suffered by specific
individnals, such is merely a byproduct of the overall benefit to the whole community.
Therefore, unintentional breaches of the obligations of administration and enforcement imposed
on the City of Elkins hereby shall not be enforceable in tort.

Section 21-5 Interpretation, Conflict, and Severability.
In their interpretation and application, these regulations shall be held to be the minimum
requirements for the promotion of the public health, safety, and general welfare.

These regulations are not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or annul any other ordinance, rule
or regulation, statute or other provisions of law. Where the conditions imposed by, or pursuant
to, these regulations are different from those imposed by any other provision of these regulations
or any other ordinance rule or regulation, statute, or other provision of law, the provisions which
are more restrictive and which impose the higher or greater standards shall control. If any portion
of this code is held invalid for any reason, the remaining herein shall not be affected.




Section 21-6 Non-exclusionary Intent.

It is not the intent of this code to exclude any persons or groups with differing economic, race,
color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, or familial status from enjoyment of a residence,
land ownership, or tenancy within the City of Elkins; nor is it the intent of this code to use public
powers in any way to promote the separation within Elkins of economic, racial, religious, or
ethnic groups, except as may be an incidental result of meeting the purposes outlined in this
article. :

Section 21.7 Official Zoning Map.

The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Elkins shall include this code and the accompanying
Official Zoning Map, which shall be considered part of this code. The Official Zoning Map shall
be the map certified by the City Council of Elkins. All subsequent amendments (i.e., rezoning) of
the Official Zoning Map shall be certified by the City Council of Elkins and then filed with both
the office of the Clerk of Randolph County and the Clerk for the City of Elkins.

Section 21-8 Enactment.

Therefore, the Council of the City of Elkins hereby ordains for the purpose of accomplishing the
objectives set out in the West Virginia Code, and Section 152.003 of this code, that the following
be enacted as the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Elkins, West Virginia.

Section 21-9  Effective Date.
This act shall take effect upon final adoption.

Section 21-9A Article II. Administration; Enforcement; Penalty; Amendments.

Section 21-10 Purpese.

The purpose of this article is to ensure that the processes by which the zoning ordinance is
effectuated have been clearly identified and delineated. This article shall outline the duties and
powers of the Board of Zoning Appeals, the zoning permit process, the appeals process, and
other enforcement related provisions.

Section 21-11 Powers and Duties of Zoning Officer.
Council shall appoint a Zoning Officer, who shall have the authority to administer and enforce
this code. Duties of the Zoning Officer include but are not limited to the following:

(a) Keep a record of plans and applications for permits and all permits issued with notations
as to special conditions. All records shall be open for public inspection.

(b) Review permit applications and notifications as necessary to determine compliance with
the provisions of this code. No permit shall be issued unless it conforms to all applicable
ordinances, statutes, and regulations.

(c) All questions of interpretation and enforcement shall be initially presented and
determined by the Zoning Officer. Subsequent recourse shall be, in order, to the Board of
Zoning Appeals and the courts.

(d) Upon finding that provisions of this code have been violated, notify the person or party in
writing responsible for the violation(s), order the action necessary to correct the violation,
and if correction is not completed within the time specified in the notice of violation,
begin legal actions necessary to compel correction of the violation.

(e) Maintain official zoning maps.



(f) Provide information on planning and zoning upon request by citizens and public
agencies.

(g) Submit at least annually, a written report on all permits issued and notice and orders
issued.

(h) Perform additional tasks and duties as may be prescribed by the City of Elkins City

Council. '

Section 21-12 Zoning Permit.

(a) No building or structure shall be constructed, erected, expanded, enlarged, or otherwise
structurally altered until a zoning permit has been issued by the Zoning Officer.

(b) Applications for a zoning permit shall be made available at city hall.

(c) All applications for zoning permits shall be made in writing by the owner or authorized
agent and shall be filed with the Zoning Officer. The application shall:

(1) Include a statement as to the proposed use of the structure or land.

(2) Be accompanied by a plan, drawn to scale, showing the dimensions of the lot to
be built upon, the exact size and location of the building to be constructed upon
the lot, and accessory buildings to be erected, and such other information as may
be deemed necessary by the Zoning Officer in determining and provided for the
enforcement of this Ordinance.

(d) If the zoning permit application is approved by the Zoning Officer, then an appropriate
placard issued by the City and containing the approval of the Zoning Officer, shall be
returned together with the zoning permit to the applicant, following payment of the
appropriate fee as determined by City Council. The placard shall be posted by the
applicant in a conspicuous place upon the building or construction site prior to the
commencement of any construction and shall remain upon the building or construction
site during all construction operations.

(¢) A zoning permit does not alleviate the necessity to obtain a building permit as required
by the City of Elkins.

Section 21-13 Fees.
Fees to be charged for the issuance of a zoning permit shail be determined by a schedule
maintained at city hall.

Section 21-14 Vielations and Penalties.

(a) Any person who violates any provision of this code is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon
conviction, shall be punished for each offense by a fine not less than $50.00 nor more
than $500.00. Each day the violation continues shall be considered a separate offense.
Work carried on in violation of the cancellation of any permit issued under this code shall
also be deemed a violation punishable in the same manner.

(b) Any buildings erected, raised or converted, or land or premises used in violation of any
provision of this code is declared a common nuisance and the owner of the building, land,
or premises shall be liable for maintaining a common nuisance.

Section 21-15 Injunction.
(a) The Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals, or any designated enforcement
official may seek an injunction in the Circuit Court of Randolph County, West Virginia,
to restrain the owner, tenant, occupant, other persons or persons responsible, or unit of




government from violating the provision of this code or any rule, regulation, or
requirement adopted or established hereunder.

(b) The Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals, or any designated enforcement
official may also seck a mandatory injunction in the Circuit Court of Randolph County,
West Virginia, directing the owner, tenant, occupant, other persons or persons
responsible, or unit of government to remove a structure erected in violation of the
provisions of this code or rule, regulation, or requirement adopted or established
hereunder.

(c) If the Planning Commission, Elkins Board of Zoning Appeals, or any designated
enforcement official is successful in any suit brought under this Section, the respondent
shall bear the costs of the action.

Section 21-16 Amendments to Zoning Ordinance. The City of Elkins Council may amend this
Zoning Ordinance. Before amending this Zoning Ordinance, the City Council with the advice of
the planning commission, must find that the amendment is consistent with the adopted
comprehensive plan, If the amendment is inconsistent, then the governing body with the advice
of the planning commission, must find that there have been major changes of an economic,
physical, or social nature within the area involved which were not anticipated when the
comprehensive plan was adopted and those changes have substantially altered the basic
characteristics of the area.

Section 21-17 Powers and Duties of the Board of Zoning Appeals.

(a) A Board of Zoning Appeals is hereby established with membership and appointment
provided in accordance with the West Virginia Code.

(b) The board shall consist of five (5) members appointed by City Council. The members of
the board shall be residents of the City of Elkins for at least three years preceding his or
her appointment. Members cannot be a member of the planning commission and cannot
hold any other elective or appointive office in municipal government. Upon creation of
the Board of Zoning Appeals, the members shall be appointed for the following terms:
one for a term of one year; two (2) for a term of two (2) years; and two (2) for a term of
three (3) years. The terms shall expire on the first day of January of the first, second, and
third year, respectively, foliowing their appointment. Thereafter, members shall serve
three-year terms. If a vacancy occurs, council shall appoint a member for the unexpired
term. A Board member may be removed only for official misconduct or neglect of duty
by action of Council upon presentation of written charges. The governing body may
appoint up to three (3) additional members to serve as alternate members of the City of
Elkins Board of Zoning Appeals. The alternate members must meet the same eligibility
requirements as set out in subsection (a). The term for an alternate member is three (3)
years. The governing body may appoint alternate members on a staggered term schedule.

(c) An alternate member shall serve on the Board when one (1) of the regular members is
unable to serve. The alternate member shall serve until a final determination is made in
the matter to which the alternate member was initially called on to serve during the
alternate member’s term.

(d) The City of Elkins Board of Zoning Appeals shall establish written rules and
procedures for designating an alternate member. An alternate member shall have the
same powers and duties of a regular board member.

(e) The members and alternate members of the City of Elkins Board of Zoning Appeals
shall serve without compensation but shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable
and necessary expenses actually incurred in the performance of their official duties.




() At the first regular meeting each year, the Board of Zoning Appeals shall elect a
chairperson and vice chairperson from its members. The vice chairperson shall have the
power and authority to act as chairperson during the absence or disability of the
chairperson.

(g)  The Board of Zoning Appeals shall meet quarterly and may meet more frequently at
the written request of the chairperson or by two or more members. Notice for a special
meeting must be in writing; include the date, time, and place of the special meeting; and
be sent to all members at least two days before the special meeting. Written notice of a
special meeting is not required if the date, time, and place of the special meeting were set
in a regular meeting. The Board of Zoning Appeals must have a quorum to conduct a
meeting. A majority of the members of the Board of Zoning Appeals is a quorum. No
action of a board is official unless authorized by a majority of the members present at a
regular or properly called special meeting.

(h)  The Board of Zoning Appeals has the following duties:

(1) Hear, review, and determine appeals from an order, requirement, decision, or
determination made by an administrative official or board charged with the
enforcement of this code or rule and regulation adopted pursuant thereto;

(2) Authorize exceptions to the district rules and regulations only in the classes of
cases or in particular sitnations, as specified in this code;

(3) Hear and decide conditional uses of this code upon which the board is required to
act;

(4) Authorize, upon appeal in specific cases, a variance to this code;

(5) Reverse, affirm, or modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination
appealed from and have all the powers and authority of the official or board from
which the appeal was taken;

(6) Adopt rules and regulations concerning;:

i. The filing of appeals, including the process and forms for the appeal;

ii. Applications for variances and conditional uses;

iii. The giving of notice; and

iv. The conduct of hearings necessary to carry out the board's duties under
the terms of this article;

(7) Keep minutes of its proceedings;

(8) Keep an accurate and complete audio record of all of the board's proceedings and
official actions and keep the audio record in a safe manner, which audio record is
accessible within twenty-four hours of demand, for three years;

(9) Record the vote on all actions taken;

(10) Take responsibility for the custody and preservation of all papers and
documents of the board. All minutes and records shall be filed in the office of the
board and shall be public records;

(11) With consent from the governing body, hire employees necessary to carry
out the duties and responsibilities of the board; provided, that the governing body
sets the salaries; and

(12) Supervise the fiscal affairs and responsibilities of the board.

Section 21-18 Appeal to the Board of Zoning Appeals.

An appeal from any order, requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative
official or board charged with the enforcement of this code, or rule and regulation adopted
pursuant to this code, shall be filed by an aggrieved person with the City of Elkins Board of
Zoning Appeals. The appeal shall:




(a) Specify the grounds of the appeal;

(b) Be filed within thirty (30) days of the original order, requirement, decision, or
determination made by an administrative official or board charged with the enforcement
of this code; and

(c) Be on a form prescribed by the board.

(d) Upon request of the Board of Zoning Appeals, the administrative official or board shall
transmit all documents, plans, and papers constituting the record of the action from which
the appeal was taken.

Section 21-19 Notice and Hearing of Appeal.

(a) Within ten (10) days of receipt of the appeal by the Board of Zoning Appeals, the board
shall set a time for the hearing of the appeal and give notice. The hearing on the appeal
must be held within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the appeal by the board.

(b) At least fifteen (15) days prior to the date set for the hearing on the appeal, the Board of
Zoning Appeals shall publish a notice of the date, time, and place of the hearing on the
appeal as a Class I legal advertisement in compliance with the provisions of the West
Virginia Code, and written notice shall be given to the interested parties. The publication
area shall be the area covered in the appeal.

(c) The Board of Zoning Appeals may require the party taking the appeal to pay for the cost
of public notice and written notice to interested parties.

(d) At the hearing, any party may appear in person, by agent, or by an attorney licensed to
practice in this state.

(e} Every decision by the board must be in writing and state findings of fact and conclusions
of law on which the board based its decision. If the board fails to provide findings of fact
and conclusions of law adequate for decision by the circuit court and as a result of the
failure, the circuit court returns an appealed matter to the board and dismisses jurisdiction
over an applicant's appeal without deciding the matter, whether the court returns the
matter with or without restrictions, the board shall pay any additional costs for court
filing fees, service of process, and reasonable attorneys' fees required to permit the person
appealing the board's decision to return the matter to the circuit court for completion of
the appeal.

(f) The written decision by the board shall be rendered within thirty (30) days after the
hearing.

(g) If the board fails to render a written decision within thirty (30} days after the hearing,
then any party may pursue additional legal remedies to obtain a decision, including, but

~ not limited to, seeking a writ of mandamus.

(h) When an appeal has been filed with the Board of Zoning Appeals, all proceedings and
work on the premises in question shall be stayed, except as provided below:

(1) If the official or board from where the appeal was taken certifies in writing to the
Board of Zoning Appeals that a stay would cause imminent peril to life or
property;

(2) Upon further administrative proceedings, including, but not limited to,
submissions to and reviews by the staff or any administrative body; or

(3) Upon engineering or architectural work that does not disturb the real estate
beyond what is necessary to complete engineering, survey work, or other tests.

(i) Petition for writ of certiorari. The final decision of the City of Elkins Board of Zoning
Appeals shall be subject to review by the Circuit Court of Randolph County, West
Virginia, by certiorari, as provided by West Virginia Code Section 8A-9-1 et seq.

(j) Nothing in this section prevents a party from obtaining an injunction.




Section 21-20 Variances.

(a) A variance is a deviation from the minimum standards of this code and shall not involve
permitting land uses that are otherwise prohibited in the zoning district nor shall it
involve changing the zoning classifications of a parcel of land.

(b) The Board of Zoning Appeals shall grant a variance to this code if it finds that the
variance:

(1) Will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or welfare, or the rights of
adjacent property owners or residents;

(2) Arises from special conditions or attributes which pertain to the property for
which a variance is sought and which were not created by the person seeking the
variance; '

(3) Would climinate an unnecessary hardship and permit a reasonable use of the land;
and

(4) Will allow the intent of this code to be observed and substantial justice done.

(c) The Board of Zoning Appeals shall not grant a variance to allow the establishment of a
use in a zoning district when such use is prohibited by the provisions of this code.

Section 21-21 Conditional Use Standards.

(a) The conditional use permit procedure is intended to provide the Board of Zoning Appeals
with review of requests to establish uses that may be appropriate in a zoning district, but
that may have the potential for negative impacts on the health, safety, and welfare of the
public. The conditional use standards provided in this article are intended to avoid,
minimize, or mitigate adverse impacts conditional uses may have on the health, safety,
and welfare of the public.

(b) All applications for a conditional use permit shall demonstrate that:

(1) The use is consistent with the policies and intent of the corresponding purpose for
the zoning district in which it lies and the City’s comprehensive plan.

(2) The use is physically and operationally compatible with the surrounding
neighborhood and surrounding existing uses.

(3) The use will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so that it does not
cause substantial injury to adjoining property.

(4) The use will be adequately served by public facilities and services which include
but are not limited to water, sewer, electric, schools, streets, fire and police
protection, storm drainage, public transit, and public parks and trails.

(5) Adequate off-street parking will be provided on the same property as the proposed
conditional use as well as adequate ingress and egress to the property in
compliance with the standards set forth in this code.

(6) Any storage of hazardous material will comply with zll state, federal, and local
regulations, and all such material will be listed and made known to the Chief of
the City of Elkins Fire Department.

(7) The use will not endanger public health or safety or constitute a public nuisance.

(8) The use will not conduct operations in connection with the use which are
offensive, dangerous, or destructive of the environment,

(c) Conditions may be imposed on a proposed conditional use to ensure that potential
significant adverse impacts on surrounding uses will be reduced to the maximum extent
feasible, including but not limited to conditions or measures addressing:

(1) Location on a site of activities that generate potential adverse impacts such as
noise and glare;




(2) Hours of operation and deliveries;

(3) Location of loading space and delivery zones;
(4) Light intensity and hours of full illumination;
(5) Placement of outdoor vending machines;

(6) Loitering;

(7) Litter control;

(8) Placement of trash receptacles;

(9) On-site parking configuration and facilities;
(10) On-site circulation; and

(1 Privacy concerns of adjacent uses.

(d) Conditional use permit decisions are made by the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA). In
considering the proposed conditional use, the BZA must determine whether the
applicable General Standards under this section have been met. The BZA may impose
additional conditions and safeguards deemed necessary.

(e) The breach of any condition, safeguard, or requirement shall be considered a violation of

the conditional use permit approval. If the applicant fails to comply with any of the
applicable requirements of this Zoning Ordinance, the BZA shall have the authority to
revoke any conditional use permit after providing notice to the property owner and after
public hearing is held in the same manner as the original approval.

(f} Validity of approval. Any conditional use approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals
under which the premises are not used, work is not started within six (6) months, or the
use or work has been abandoned for a period of one (1) year, shall lapse and cease to be

in effect. The BZA may permit one (1) six (6) month extension if the extension is applied

for in writing by the applicant prior to the expiration of the approval, provided that the

BZA finds that the extension is warranted due to circumstances beyond the control of the

applicant. ,

(g) No application which has been denied wholly or in part by the Board of Zoning Appeals
shail be resubmitted for a period of one (1) year from the date of the last denial, unless
permitted by the BZA after demonstration by the applicant of a change of circumstances
from the previous application.

Section 21-22A Article III. Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots.
Section 21-23 Purpose.

(a) This purpose of this article is to set forth standards and regulations regarding the
continued existence of uses, structures, and lots established prior to the effective date of

this Zoning Ordinance (or any amendment subsequent thereto) that do not conform to this
Zoning Ordinance. These standards shall apply to all nonconforming uses, structures, and

lots, as defined by this code.

Section 21-24 General Provisions.
(a) Nonconforming lots, structures, or uses may continue to exist, be bought or sold, altered,
restored, or extended only in accordance with the provisions of this code.
(b) Nothing in this code shall prevent the strengthening or restoring to a safe condition any
portion of a nonconforming structure declared unsafe by a proper authority.




(c) Nothing in this zoning ordinance shall be interpreted as authorization for or approval of

the continuance of the illegal use of a structure or premises in violation of zoning controls
in existence at the time of the effective date of legal enactment of this code.

(d) Whenever the boundaries of a district shall be changed so as to transfer an area from one

district to another district of a different classification, the foregoing provisions shall apply
to any nonconformities existing therein.

(¢) Nothing in this section prohibits alterations or additions to or replacement of buildings or

structures owned by any farm, industry, or manufacturer, or the use of land presently
owned by any farm, industry, or manufacturer but not used for agricultural, industrial, or
manufacturing purposes, or the use or acquisition of additional land which may be
required for the protection, continuing development, or expansion of any agricultural,
industrial, or manufacturing operation of any present or future satellite agricultural,
industrial, or manufacturing use.

Section 21-25 Nenconforming Uses.

(2)

(b)

(©

GV

(©
0

(g)

These regulations shall apply to any use of a structure or lot in any zoning district that is a
nonconforming use as defined by this code.

Where, at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this code, a lawful use of a lot
or structure exists that is made no longer permissible under the terms of this code as
enacted or amended, such use may be sold or otherwise transferred to other owners and
may be continued as long as it remains otherwise lawful in accordance with the
provisions of this code.

Normal structural repair and maintenance may be performed to allow the continuation of
a nonconforming use.

No nonconforming use of a lot or nonconforming use of a structure shall be enlarged or
increased or extended to occupy a greater area of the lot or structure than was occupied at
the effective date of adoption or amendment of this code.

Once a nonconforming use has been changed or converted to a conforming use, it shall
not thereafter be used for any nonconforming use.

When a nonconforming use is discontinued for twelve (12) months, abandonment is
presumed and the nonconforming use shall not be allowed to be re-established. If the
property has been abandoned, then any future use of the land, buildings, or structures
shall conform and be in accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, and
requirements of the particular zoning district wherein the property is located.
Abandonment of a nonconforming use shall be presumed if one (1) or more of the
following conditions exists, indicating intent on the part of the property owner to abandon
the nonconforming use:

¢)) Utilities, such as water, gas, and electricity to the property have been
disconnected;

2) The property, buildings, and grounds, have fallen into disrepair as evidenced
by proper code violation documentation;

(3) When it has been replaced by a conforming use;

4 When it has been changed to a use permitted by conditional use by the Board
of Zoning Appeals; or

(5) The business license issued by the City of Elkins has expired.

Section 21-26 Nonconforming Structures.

(2)

A nonconforming structure containing a use permitted in the zoning district in which it is
located may continue only in accordance with the provisions of this code.




(b) Normal repair and maintenance may be performed to allow the continuation of
nonconforming structures.

(¢) A nonconforming structure may not, under any circumstances, be enlarged or altered in a
way which increases its nonconformity except as permitted under Section 21-29.

(d) Nonconforming structures and uses may enlarge principal structures by adding decks or i
porches provided that nonconformities are not increased. 1
(e) Any legal, pre-existing nonconforming structure damaged by fire, flood, explosion, or i
other disaster event may be reconstructed and used as before, so long as the structure is |
damaged no more than fifty (50%) percent of its appraised value exclusive of
foundations, if such reconstruction is undertaken within twelve (12) months of such
disaster, and if the restored structure has no greater coverage and contains no greater
content (measured in cubic feet) than before such disaster. An application to the Board of :
Zoning Appeals for permission to undertake to re-construct the structure must be filed 1
prior to undertaking the repairs after the use has been destroyed or damaged, otherwise |
any structure shall conform to and be in accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, |
and requirements of the particular district as provided in this zoning ordinance.
(f) If any building occupied by a nonconforming use is damaged more than fifty (50%)
percent of its reconstruction cost exclusive of foundations, such building may not be
restored for any nonconforming use.
(g) The extension of a lawful use to any portion of a nonconforming structure shall not be
deemed the extension of a nonconforming use.

Section 21-29 Enlargement or Extension of a Nonconforming Use.

(a) Nonconforming uses existing at the time this code was passed, or at the time a subsequent
amendment creates the nonconforming use, may enlarge the building which housed the
nonconforming use at the time this code was passed, or at the time a subsequent
amendment creates the nonconforming use, and extend within such enlargement,

provided that:

(1) The enlargement becomes an attached part of the main structure and does not
utilize additional or adjoining land area other than the original parcel.

(2) The enlargement meets all requirements of this code, including but not limited
to setback and yard requirements.

(3) The enlargement is for the purpose of expanding the area housing the use
which existed at the time this code was passed, or at the time a subsequent
amendment creates the nonconforming use.

(4) The enlargement and extension does not:

1.

il

iii.
iv.

V.

vi.

vii.

Adversely affect the health, safety, and welfare of persons residing or
working in the district;

Cause a depreciation of the value of other property and uses permitted
in the district;

Significantly increase traffic congestion;

Adversely affect the privacy of persons residing in the immediate
vicinity;

Increase the hazard in the area of fire, offensive noise, smoke, dust,
debris, or other objectionable influences;

Adversely affect any recreational, institutional, or other authorized
use;

Inhibit the desirability, feasibility, or likelihood of future residential or
commercial development or expansion in the immediate vicinity; or



viii.  Occur in a residential zoned district.

(5) The enlargement or expansion brings all off-street parking requirements into
conformity.

(6) The Board of Zoning Appeals may impose such other reasonable restrictions
upon the proposed expansion as deemed necessary to protect the health,
safety, and welfare of persons residing within the vicinity of the
nonconforming use.

(b) Enlargement or extension approval shall be void if construction work does not begin
within one (1) year from the date of approval, or if work is suspended or abandoned for a
period of ninety (90) days at any time after the work is commenced.

(¢) All enlargement or extension of a nonconforming use must comply with the applicable
floodplain management requirements.

Section 21-30A Article IV, Definitions.

Section 21-31 Interpretation.
For the purpose of this Zoning Ordinance certain terms and words used herein shall be
interpreted as follows:
(a) Words used in the present tense include the future tense.
(b) Words used in the singular number shall include the plural, and words used in the plural
number shall include the singular.
(c) The word “person” shall include a firm, association, organization, limited liability

company, limited partnership, corporation, trust, company, as well as a natural individual.

(d) The word “City” shall mean the City of Elkins.

(e} The word “shall” and “must” are used to indicate mandatory directives.

(f) The word “structure” shall include the word “building.”

(2) The word “Map” or “Zoning Map” or “Zoning Map, City of Elkins, West Virginia” or
“Official Zoning Map” shall mean the map that geographically illustrates all zoning
district boundaries within the City of Elkins, West Virginia, pursuant to the requirements
of Chapter 8A of the West Virginia Code.

(h) The term “governing body” and “city council” shall both mean the City Council for the
City of Elkins, West Virginia pursuant to the Charter of the City of Elkins.

(i) The term “Planning Commission” shall mean the Planning Commission for the City of
Elkins, West Virginia, pursuant to Chapter 8A of the West Virginia Code.

() “Districts” or “Zoning Districts” shall mean administrative tracts designating the uses to
which land can legally be utilized. Boundaries of the districts are shown on the Official
Zoning Map, which is a part of this code.

Section 21-32 Definitions.

“Abandonment” means the relinquishment of property or a cessation of the use of the property
by the owner or lessee without any intention of transferring rights to the property to another
owner or resuming the nonconforming use of the property for a period of one (1) year. In the
case of natural resources, the absence of natural resources extraction or harvesting is not
abandonment.

“Accessory Structure” or “Accessory Building” means a structure or building on the same lot
with or on an adjacent lot to, and of a nature customarily incidental and subordinate to, the
principal use or structure, including but not limited to swimming pools, piers and other water



related structures, parking, fences, gazebos, satellite dishes, doghouses and dog-related
structures, noncommercial greenhouses, sheds, and private garages.

“Accessory Use” means a use on the same lot with, and of a nature customarily incidental and
subordinate to, the principal use, including private garages, noncommercial greenhouses, urban
agriculture, and drive-through facilities.

“Accessway” means a private vehicular facility for townhomes, multi-family dwellings, and
condominiums, serving more than four (4) dwelling units, and commercial developments that
extends from the curb-line extended of a public or private road to the parking lot.

Accessway

Hight of Way

4;"'""""""""’"""'".' Parking

Avcessway

“Adult Bookstore™ means any commercial establishment in which is offered for sale as a
substantial or significant portion of its stock-in-trade videocassettes, movies, books, magazines
or other periodicals, or other media which are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis
on nudity or sexual conduct or on activities which, if presented in live presentation, would
constitute adult entertainment.

“Adult Business” means an adult bookstore, movie theater, or movie house or other adult
entertainment, as defined herein.

“Adult Entertainment” means an establishment providing, either as a sole use or in conjunction
with or in addition to other uses, entertainment consisting of the use of nudity or of live dancing,
posing, displaying, acting or other live presentation or use of persons whose actions are
distinguished or characterized by emphasis on use of the human body in a manner intended to or
resulting in arousal of sexual excitation or sexual titillation or a prurient inerest or intended to or
resulting in producing lustful emotions.

“Adult Movie Theater or Movie House (including Adult Mini-Theaters)” means any movie
theater which on a regular, continuing basis shows films rated X by the Motion Picture Coding
Association of America or any movie theater which presents for public viewing on a regular,
continuing basis so-called adult films depicting sexual conduct.




“Advertising” means any words, symbol, color, or design used to call attention to a commercial
product, service, or activity.

“Agent” means a person who is authorized to act for or in place of an applicant, or someone who
is a representative of the applicant.

“Aggrieved or aggrieved person” means a person who:

(a) Is denied by the planning commission, board of subdivision and land development
appeals, or the Board of Zoning Appeals, in whole or in part, the relief sought in any
application or appeal; or

{(b) Has demonstrated that he or she will suffer a peculiar injury, prejudice, or inconvenience
beyond that which other residents of the county or municipality may suffer.

“Agricultural building” means a structure designed to house farm implements, hay, grain,
poultry, livestock or other agricultural products. For the purpose of this definition, this structure
shall not contain habitable space or a place of employment where agricultural products are
processed or treated or packaged; nor shall it be a place used by the public.

“Agriculture” means the keeping of livestock, pouliry, bees, and similar endeavors, and the
cultivation of the soil.

“Airport” means any area of land or water designated, set aside, used, or intended for use, for the
landing and take-off of aircraft, and any appurtenant areas designated, set aside, used, or
intended for use, for airport buildings.

“Alley” means a street or highway intended to provide access to the rear or side of lots or
buildings in urban districts and not intended for the purpose of through vehicular traffic.

Alley

Hight of Way

T .. - { RightelWay

Alley

Right of Wiy

“Alteration” means any change, addition, or modification in construction or occupancy of an
y
existing structure.

"Alternative support structure” means man-made trees, clock towers, steeples, light poles, flag
poles, power transmission towers, buildings, signs, and similar alternative design mounting
structures that partially or fully camouflage or conceal the presence of antennas or towers.




“Amphitheater” means an outdoor gathering space typically for entertainment which is often
constructed with tiers of seats or sloping surfaces that gradually rise outward from a central open
space or stage. An amphitheater may include a bandshell-type building or structure to provide
weather protection to a stage.

“Animal Hospital/Veterinary Office” means an establishment for temporary occupation by sick
or injured animals for the purpose of medical diagnosis and treatment, and shall exclude the
treatment or other care of humans. An animal hospital/veterinary office is not considered a
“kennel” for the purpose of this code, but may be combined with the kennel land use in districts
where both uses are permitted.

“Antenna” means communications equipment that transmits or receives electromagnetic radio
frequency signals used in the provision of wireless services.

“Antenna Support Structure” means any building or structure other than a tower which can be
used for location of telecommunications facilities.

“Automobile” means a motorized road vehicle, typically with four (4) wheels, able to carry a
small number of people.

“Automobile Car Wash” means any building, site, or premise or portions thereof, used for
washing the interior or exterior of automobiles, An automobile car wash shall include self-
operated facilities, but shall not include incidental one-bay washing facility in an automobile
repair or service station where such facilities are incidental to the operation of said automobile
repair or service station.

“Automobile Repair/Service” means any building, structure, improvements, or land used for the
repair or maintenance of automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, trailers, or similar vehicles including
but not limited to body, fender, muffler or upholstery work, oil change and lubrication, painting,
tire service and sales, or installation of CB radios, car alarms, stereo equipment or cellular
telephones.

“Bakery” means an establishment used for the preparation of baked goods primarily for retail
sales but may include incidental wholesale for general distribution or consumption off-site.

“Bank/Financiai Institution” means an establishment that provides services such as retail
banking, collection services, loan services, and tax and investment services to individuals and
businesses.

“Base station” means the structure or equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless
telecommunications licensed or authorized by the FCC, between user equipment and a
communications network.

(a) Includes, but is not limited to, equipment associated with wireless telecommunications
services, such as private, broadcast, and public safety services, as well as unlicensed
wireless telecommunication services and fixed wireless telecommunication services, such
as microwave backhaul.

(b) Includes, but is not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas affixed to the base station,
coaxial or fiber-optic cable, regular and backup power supplies, and comparable




equipment, regardless of technological configuration (including Distributed Antenna
Systems and small-cell networks).

(¢) Includes any structure other than a tower that, at the time an eligible facilities
modification application is filed with the City of Elkins, supports or houses equipment
described in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, and that has been reviewed and approved
under the applicable zoning or siting process, or under another state or local regulatory
review process, even if the structure was not built for the sole or primary purpose of
providing such support.

(d) Does not include any structure that, at the time a completed cligible facilities
modification application is filed with the City of Elkins under this Article, does not
support or house equipment described in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above.

(e) The term does not encompass a “tower” as defined in this Section, or any equipment
associated with a tower.

“Basement” means a space having one-half or more of its floor-to-ceiling height below the
average level of the adjoining ground.

“Bed and Breakfast Inn I” means a private residence in which overnight accommodations are
provided for not more than eight (8) transient paying guests in up to four (4) bedrooms at any
particular time for not more than thirty-one (31) consecutive days and not more than ninety (90)
days in one calendar year. The residence is owner-occupied.

“Bed and Breakfast Inn II” means a private residence in which overnight accommodations are
provided for not more than ten (10} transient paying guests in up to ten (10) bedrooms at any
particular time. The residence is occupied by the owner or a designee during the guests’
overnight stay and is otherwise occupied by the owner or a designee.

“Bed and Breakfast Inn III” means a private residence in which overnight accommodations are
provided for not more than eight (8) transient paying guests in up to four (4) bedrooms at any
particular time, for not more than one hundred and eighty (180} consecutive days.

“Board of Zoning Appeals” means the officially constituted body appointed to carry out duties
and responsibilities in accordance with the West Virginia Code, Chapter 8A, Article 8, et seq., as
amended.

“Boat and Marine Sales/Service” means any building or lot used for the sale of, maintenance,
servicing, repair, or painting of boats and other related watercraft.

“Boat Storage” means an enclosed, partially enclosed, or open facility utilized for the wet or dry
storage of boats. :

“Bollard” means a short, vertical, and permanent post, usually ornamental in nature, used to
inhibit trespass by persons or vehicles, or to prevent encroachment onto private property or other
defined space.

“Brewery” means a state licensed establishment where intoxicating or nonintoxicating beer is
manufactured or in any way prepared and may include a tasting facility as defined in this
ordinance. Facilities are subject to federal, state, and local regulations and guidelines.



“Brewery Pub” means a place of manufacture of nonintoxicating beer or nonintoxicating craft
beer owned by a resident brewer, subject to federal and state regulations and guidelines, a
portion of which premises are designated for retail sales of nonintoxicating beer or
nonintoxicating craft beer by the resident brewer owning the brewpub. -

“Broadcasting Studio (radio/television)” means any premises or station authorized by the
appropriate regulating agency used for the purpose of providing broadcasting services for general
reception.

“Building” means any structure having enclosing walls and roofs and requiring a permanent
location on the land.

(a) “Principal Building” means a building in which is conducted the principal use of the site
or lot on which it is situated. In all residential districts, a dwelling is the principal
building on the lot on which it is located.

(b) “Building Frontage” means the length of the main wall of a building which physically
encloses usable interior space and which is the architecturally designed wall that contains
the main entrance for use by the general public. Said frontage is measured at a height of
ten (10) feet above grade.

“Building Height” means the vertical distance measured from the average clevation of the
proposed finished grades immediately adjacent to the front lot line to the highest point of the roof
for flat roofs, to the deck line for mansard roofs, to the mean height between caves and ridge for
gable, hip, and gambrel roofs. If there are two or more separate roofs on a single building, the
height of such building shall be calculated from the highest roof. See Figure 1 in the Appendices.

“Building Material Facility” means an establishment that sells home, lawn, and garden supplies
and tools and construction materials, such as brick, lumber, hardware, and other similar
materials. Construction goods may be located in outdoor storage.

*“Building Setback Line” means a line establishing the minimum allowable distance between the
nearest part of any principle building, including decks, patios, covered porches, steps, and
landings exceeding twenty-four (24) square feet, but excluding eaves, overhangs, bay windows,
sills, belt courses, cornices, and ornamental features not exceeding two (2) feet in width, to the
nearest edge of a street right-of-way, property line, or easement line, when measured
perpendicular thereto.




Building Setback Line

Right of Way

I Froni Setback

b
i Side Setback

Building Setback Line

Side Eetbacﬁ

Rear Setimck"F

3

“Bus/Transit Facilities” means a facility, including terminals, depots, and passenger waiting,
loading, and unloading stations of bus and other transit companies and districts. Also, includes
facilities providing any and all types of general or specialized maintenance services or storage
areas for buses and other transit vehicles of a transit company or district, public or private,
providing transportation services primarily for people.

“Bus/Transit Shelter” means a covered structure at a bus or other transit stop providing
protection against the weather.

“Butcher Shop” means an indoor business where the slaughter of animals, dressing animal flesh,
or selling animal meat, or any combination thereof, occurs for the purposes of retail sale or sale
to wholesalers.

“Camouflage” or “conceal” or “concealment” or “stealth” means having similar design and
coloration features as the surrounding environment, utility pole, or building.

“Campground” means a publicly or privately owned site designed, designated, maintained,
intended, or used for the purpose of supplying a location for seasonal, recreational, and
temporary living purposes in cabins, tents, or recreational equipment or vehicles open to the
public for free or for a fee. This definition excludes “tourist” or “trailer camps.”

“Canopy” means a roof-like structure either projecting from a building fagade and open on three
sides, or standing alone and open on four sides, and used for the purpose of protecting
pedestrians and motorists from weather-related elements.

“Catering Business” means an establishment used for the preparation and delivery of food and
beverages for off-site consumption. This establishment may provide for an on-site pickup, but
may not provide for on-site consumption.

“Centerline” means an imaginary line running parallel to street or easement right-of-way lines
and equidistant from the lines on each side of the street or easement, or a line following the
center of a physical feature such as a stream.




“Child Day Care Facility” is divided into four classes as defined in the West Virginia Code.

(a) “Child Day Care Facility, Class 1” means a facility maintained by the state or any county
or municipality thereof, or any agency or facility maintained by an individual, firm,
corporation, association or organization, public or private for the care of thirteen or more
children for child care services in any setting, if the facility is open for more than thirty
(30) days per year per child.

(b) “Child Day Care Facility, Class 2” means a facility which is used to provide
nonresidential childcare services for compensation for seven to twelve children, including
children who are living in the household, who are under six years of age. No more than
four of the total number of children may be under twenty-four months of age. A facility
may be in a provider's residence or a separate building,

(c) “Child Day Care Facility, Class 3" means a facility which is used to provide
nonresidential childcare services for compensation in a provider's residence. The provider
may care for four (4) to six (6) children, at one time including children who are living in
the household, who are under six years of age. No more than two of the total number of
children may be under twenty-four months of age.

(d) “Child Day Care Facility, Class 4” means residential childcare services for compensation
for three (3) or fewer children, including children who are living in the household, who
are under six years of age. Care is given in the provider's own home to at least one (1)
child who is not related to the caregiver.

“Cidery” means a state licensed establishment where intoxicating or nonintoxicating cider is
manufactured or in any way prepared for commercial (not solely personal) use. These
establishments are licensed under the winery provisions by the WVABC.,

“City of Elkins utility pole” means a utility pole owned or operated by the City of Elkins in a
public right-of-way.

“Clear Sight Triangle” means the triangular area formed by intersecting street, alley, or other
public right-of-way centerlines and a line interconnecting points established on each centerline,
seventy-five (75) feet from the point of intersection and the plane established two and one-half
(2.5) feet in elevation to a height of eight (8) feet from grade level at the intersection of the
street, alley, or other public right of way centerline.

“Clinic” means an establishment providing medical, chiropractic, psychiatric, or surgical
services exclusively on an outpatient basis, including emergency treatment, and diagnostic
services.

"Collapse Zone" means an area where a tower may collapse based on the site and design
specifications and which is certified and stamped by an engineer licensed in the Statc of West
Virginia.

“Collocate™ or “collocation” means to iristall, mount, maintain, modify, operate, or replace

wireless facilities on or adjacent to a wireless support structure or utility pole.

“Communications facilities” means the set of equipment and network components, including
wires, cables, antennas, and assoctated facilities, used by a communications service provider to
provide communications service.




“Communications service” means cable service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 522(6), as amended;
information service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 153(24), as amended; telecommunications service,

as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 153(53), as amended; mobile service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. §
153(33), as amended; or wireless service other than mobile service.

“Communications service provider” means any entity that provides communications service.

“Community Facility” means a nonprofit facility, whether publicly or privately owned, with the
primary goal to provide a community service. Services may include information socializing,
recreation and counseling, but shall exclude the provision of sleeping quarters, except for one
caretaker dwelling unit to be used for security and maintenance purposes

“Comprehensive Plan” means the comprehensive plan for the City of Elkins, West Virginia.

“Conceal” or “Concealment” means when an antenna, small wireless facility, decorative pole,
utility pole, or related equipment are designed to look like a feature other than a small wireless
facility and which has similar design and coloration features as the surrounding environment.

“Conditional Use” means a use which because of special requirements or characteristics may be
permitted in a particular zoning district only after review by the Board of Zoning Appeals and
upon issuance of a conditional use permit, and subject to the limitations and conditions specified
in this code.

“Continuing Care Facility” means one or more of the following facilities:

(a) “Adult Assisted Living” means any facility, residence, or place of accommodation
available for four (4) or more residents for the purpose of having personal assistance or
supervision, or both, provided to any residents therein who are dependent upon the
services of others by reason of physical or mental impairment and who may also require
nursing care at a level that is not greater than limited and intermittent nursing care. Such
facility shall comply with the provisions of the West Virginia Code.

(b) “Nursing Home” means any institution, residence, or place, or any part or unit thereof,
however named, which is advertised, offered, maintained, or operated by the ownership
or management, whether for consideration or not, for the express or implied purpose of
providing accommeodations and care, for a period of more than twenty-four (24) hours,
for four (4) or more persons who are ill or otherwise incapacitated and in need of
extensive, ongoing nursing care due to physical or mental impairment or which provides
services for the rehabilitation of persons who are convalescing from illness or
incapacitation.

(c) “Skilled Nursing Facility” means an institution, or a distinct part of an institution, that
primarily provides inpatient skilled nursing care and related services, or rehabilitation
services, to injured, disabled, or sick persons.

“Contractor” means a person who coniracts to do work for an applicant, including any person
sub-contracted to a person contracted to do work for an applicant.

“Convenience Store” means an establishment engaged in the retail sale, from the premises, of
food, beverages, and other frequently or recurrently needed items for household use, but not
including the display of merchandise or products outdoors, except where such display is required




to sell the merchandise. This land use does not include a gas station, but a convenience store may
be combined with a gas station or large gas station provided that the combined uses are each
permitted within the district.

“Conversion” means the remodeling or alteration of a structure so as to accommodate more
leasable or saleable units or a different use than what had originally been intended for the
structure, provided the existing zoning permits the intended use. This includes the alteration of a
non-residential structure into a dwelling unit(s) for at least one family, the alteration of existing
dwellings into a commercial use, and the alteration of an existing dwelling into a mixed
comrercial and residential use.

“Conversion of School/Church” means the conversion (as defined by this code) of a former
school or church for multi-family dwelling or commercial purposes.

“Correctional Facility” means a publicly or privately operated facility housing persons awaiting
irial, serving a sentence after being found guilty of a criminal offense, being within the
jurisdiction of a federal, state, or local probation, parole, or corrections agency or receiving
treatment other than at a hospital while under the jurisdiction of such authority or agency,
including but not limited to jails, prisons, juvenile detention centers, work release centers, pre-
release centers, and treatment centers.

“Council” means City Council of the City of Elkins, West Virginia.
“County” means Randolph County, West Virginia.

“Cultural Service” means the use of a site engaging in the collection, display, or preservation of
objects of community or cultural interest.

“Day” means a calendar day. When computing any period of time prescribed by any applicable
provision of this Ordinance, the day of the act, event, default, or omission from which the
applicable period begins to run is not included. The last day of the period so computed is
included, unless it is a Saturday, a Sunday, a legal holiday, or a designated day off, in which
event the prescribed period of time runs until the end of the next day that is not a Saturday,
Sunday, legal holiday, or designated day off.

“Decorative pole” means a City of Elkins utility pole that is specially designed and placed for
acsthetic purposes and on which no appurtenances or attachments, other than a small wireless
facility, specially designed informational or directional signage, or temporary holiday or special
event attachments have been placed, or are permitted to be placed, according to
nondiscriminatory municipal rules or codes.

"Designated Scenic Resources" means a specific location, view or corridor identified as a scenic
resource in the comprehensive plan or by a local, state, or federal agency or government and
consists of:

(a) A three dimensional area extending out from a particular viewpoint on a public right of
way, within a public recreational area, or within a component of a state or national park
system, focusing on a single object, such as a mountain, resulting in a narrow corridor, or
a group of objects, such as a downtown skyline or mountain range, resulting in a
panoramic view corridor; or




(b) Lateral terrain features such as valley sides or woodland as observed to either side of the
observer, constraining the view into a narrow or particular field, as seen from a viewpoint
on a public right of way, within a public recreational area or within a component of a
state or national park system.

“Distillery” means an establishment where alcoholic liquor other than wine or beer is
manufactured or in any way prepared.

“Distillery, Mini” means a state licensed Mini Distillery establishment where in any year (as
defined by WVABC) no more than twenty thousand gallons of alcoholic liquor is manufactured
with no less than twenty-five (25%) percent of raw agricultural products being produced by the
owner of the mini-distillery on the premises of that establishment, and no more than twenty-five
(25%) percent of raw agricultural products originating from any source outside this state.

“Distribution Facility” means any premises or part thereof, which provide logistical support for
business, such as freight management, inventory control, storage, packaging, and consolidation
of goods for distribution.

“Dock™ means a structure built over or floating upon the water and used as a mooring place for
boats and other marine transport, fishing, swimming, and other recreational uses.

“Dog Day Care” means an organized, controlled, and monitored environment for a group of dogs
to interact and play throughout the day. The purpose is to provide stimulation, exercise, and
socialization for dogs, and ancillary services. Overnight stays are not permitted in dog day care
facilities unless the use is combined with a kennel.

“Drive-through Facility” means any portion of a building or structure from which business is
transacted, or is capable of being transacted, directly with customers located in an automobile
during such business transactions.

“Driveway” means an impervious surface for vehicular access to a building, garage, parking
facility, or other vehicular facility, lot, or parcel of land.




Driveway

Right of Way

Driveway

" Dwelling

“Dry Cleaner” means an establishment providing dry cleaning and laundering services where dry
cleaning and laundering are done on the premises. A dry cleaner may also provide ancillary
services such as tailoring.

“Dwelling” means a house, apartment building, or other building designed or used primarily for
human habitation. The word "dwelling" shall not include boarding houses or rooming houses,
tourist homes, motels, hotels, or other structures designed for transient residence.

“Dwelling, Accessory” and “Conversion Dwelling” means a portion of a single-family dwelling
converted into two (2) separate dwelling units within the principal structure or new or existing
accessory structures.

“Dwelling, Conversion Apartment” means a dwelling unit created by the conversion of an
existing single-family dwelling into a three (3) or four (4) family dwelling.

“Dwelling, Mixed Use” means a building containing residential uses with a subordinate amount
of commercial or office uses on the ground floor facing the primary street frontage, with
residential units located primarily above the first floor or located on the first floor only when
behind commercial uses.

“Dwelling, Multi-family” means a freestanding building containing three (3) or more dwelling
units, whether they have direct access to the outside, or access to a common building entrance.
Multi-family dwellings may consist of rental apartment buildings, rental or owner-occupied
townhome buildings, and rental or owner-occupied condominium buildings, provided that all
such freestanding buildings contain three (3) or more dwelling units.
(a) “Dwelling, Apartment” means a building containing several and separate dwelling units,
having common corridors and stairways and having shared exit and entrance facilities.
(b) “Dwelling, Condominium” means real estate, portions of which are designated for
separate ownership and the remainder of which is designated for common ownership




solely by the owners of those portions. Real estate is not a condominium unless the
undivided interests in the common elements are vested in the unit owners. Yard
requirements apply to structures only and not individual ownership units.

(c) “Dwelling, Townhome” means a one-family dwelling unit, with private entrance, which
is part of a structure whose dwelling units are attached horizontally in a linear
arrangement, and having a totally exposed front and rear wall to be used for access, light,
and ventilation. For purposes of determining the required yard for townhome
developments, setbacks only apply from the perimeter of the main building to the
perimeter of the parent parcel upon which the building is situated. Also known as a
“Rowhouse.”

“Dwelling, Single-family” means a detached building containing not more than one dwelling
unit and not occupied by more than one family.

“Dweiling, Two-family” means a residential building which is the only principal structure on the
lot, designed exclusively for occupancy by two (2) families living independently of each other,
and containing two (2) dwelling units, each with a separate entrance directly to the outside.

“Dwelling Unit” means any dwelling or portion thereof used or intended to be used by one
family and providing complete housekeeping facilities therefor, .

“Educational Institution” means a college or university giving general academic instruction.
Included within this term are areas or structures used for administration, housing of students and
faculty, dining halls, and social or athletic activities, when located on land contiguous with land
on which classroom facilitics are maintained.

“Emergency Services” means an area utilized for the maintenance, fueling, storage, dispatching,
or parking of vehicles or equipment providing rescue or ambulatory services.

“Emergency Shelter” means a structure or part thereof, operated on a non-profit basis to
temporarily house families or individuals who are victims of disaster, who are affected through
action on the part of or on behalf of the municipality other than routine redevelopment related
relocation activities, or who have bona fide state or federal emergency housing needs.

“Eligible facilities request” means a request for modification of an existing tower or base station
that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station
involving: collocation of new transmission equipment, removal of transmission equipment, or
replacement of transmission equipment.

“Eligible support structure” means any tower or base station, as defined in this Section, provided
that such tower or base station is in existence at the time the eligible facilities request application
is filed with the City of Elkins.

“Equipment cabinet” means an enclosure, room, shelter, structure, or building used to
encapsulate, enclose, contain or otherwise support equipment associated with a wireless
telecommunication facility. :




“Equipment Rental/Repair” means an establishment involved in renting or repairing tools and
equipment, janitorial equipment, and so forth.

“Essential Utilities and Equipment” means underground or overhead ¢lectrical, gas,
communications not regulated by the federal communications commission, water and sewage
systems, including pole structures, towers, wires, lines, mains, drains, sewers, conduits, cables,
fire alarm boxes, public telephone structures, police call boxes, traffic signals, hydrants,
regulating and measuring devices and the structures in which they are housed, and other similar
equipment accessories in connection therewith. Essential utility equipment is recognized in three
categories: (1) local serving; (2) nonlocal or transmission through the county or municipality;
and (3) water and sewer systems, the activities of which are regulated, in whole or in part, by the
Public Service Commission; Department of Environmental Protection; or The Department of
Health and Human Resources.

“Event” means a planned public or social occasion, including but not limited to activities such as
community fairs, carnivals, parades, horse shows, horse trials, dog shows, sporting events, music
or art festivals, and holiday celebrations. Excluded from the definition of events and from the
regulations of this code, are the following: any event sponsored by the Armed Forces of the
United States or the State of West Virginia, any event sponsored by the forces of state or local
police or fire departments; any event sponsored by an agency of the state, county, or local
government; and activities that are part of the regular operations of a principal use, such as
weddings at a church, annual fund raising or social events, and typical accessory events at
educational, scientific, or institutional sites.

“Event, Mass Gathering” means an event, as defined herein, resulting in the assemblage of more
than three hundred (300} persons on any one parcel or any special event, as defined herein,
where camping or overnight lodging are offered.

“Event, Special” means an event, as defined herein, resulting in the assemblage of one hundred
(100) to three hundred (300) persons; the arrival of twenty-five (25) or more vehicles at the
location of the event, whether held on private property, public property, or public roads; and any
events with a significant emphasis on the sale, marketing, or promotion of products or services to
be consumed, utilized, or provided off the premises, except for temporary uses permitted under
this code.

“Existing tower or base station” means a lawfully constructed tower or base station approved
under the applicable zoning and siting process of the City of Elkins, approved under another state
or local regulatory review process, or permitted to continue to operate as a nonconforming use.

“Existing Use” means use of land, buildings, or activity permitted or in existence prior to the
adoption of a zoning map or ordinances by the county or municipality. If the use is
nonconforming to local ordinance and lawfully existed prior to the adoption of the ordinance, the
use may continue to exist as a nonconforming use until abandoned for a period of one (1) year,




provided that in the case of natural resources, the absence of natural resources extraction or
harvesting is not abandonment of the use.

“Extractive Industry” means heavy industry use that involves the extraction of minerals,
including solids, such as coal and ores; liquids, such as crude petroleum; and gasses, such as
natural gasses. The term also includes quarrying; well operation; milling, such as crushing,
screening, washing, and flotation; and other preparation customarily done at the extraction site or
as a part of the extractive activity.

"FAA" means the Federal Aviation Administration, or its lawful successor.

“Factory-built Home” includes mobile home and manufactured homes.

(a) “Manufactured Home” meets the National Manufactured Housing Construction and
Safety Standards Act of 1974 (42 U. S. C. §5401, et seq.), effective on the fifteenth day
of June, one thousand nine hundred seventy-six, and the federal manufactured home
construction and safety standards and regulations promulgated by the secretary of the
United States department of housing and urban development.

(b) “Mobile Home”- a transportable structure that is wholly, or in substantial part, made,
fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation or assembly
and installation on a building site and designed for long-term residential use and built
prior to enactment of the Federal Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety
Standards Act of 1974 (42 U. S. C. §5401, ef seq.), effective on the fifteenth day of June,
on¢ thousand nine hundred seventy-six, and usually built to the voluntary industry
standard of the American national standards institute (ANSI)-- A119.1 standards for
mobile homes.

“Factory-built Home Rental Community” means a parcel of land under single or common
ownership upon which two or more factory-built homes are located on a continual,
nonrecreational basis together with any structure, equipment, road or facility intended for use
incidental to the occupancy of the factory-built homes, but does not include premises used solely
for storage or display of uninhabited factory-built homes or premises occupied solely by a
landowner and members of his or her family.

“Family” means an individual, or two (2) or more persons related by blood, marriage, or
adoption, or under approved foster care; or a group of not more than four (4) unrelated persons
and persons related by blood, marriage, adoption, or foster relationship to any of those four
unrelated persons, living together on a permanent basis as a single housekeeping unit on a
nonprofit basis and sharing common living, dining, and kitchen areas, subject to the requirements
of the building code.

“Fairground” means an area of land used for fairs in accordance with local and state
requirements, exhibitions, and shows, including but not limited to animal shows and judging,
carnivals, circuses, concerts, food booths and stands, games, rides, rodeos, sales and auctions,
storage, racetracks, agricultural refated office buildings, and community meeting or recreational
buildings and uses.




“Farm/Construction Equipment and Supply Sales” means an establishment engaged in the
on-premises lease, rental, or retail sale of new or used construction or farm equipment, with or
without incidental service for minor repairs and maintenance.

“Farmer’s Market” means offering for sale of fresh agricultural products directly to the consumer
at an open-air market or temporarily at an indoor location, designated as a community activity.

“FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission of the United States.

“Fee” means a one-time, nonrecurring charge.

“Fence” means an artificially constructed barrier of wood, masonry, stone, wire, metal, or other
manufactured material or combination of materials erected to enclose, screen, or separate an
area.

“Flea Market” means a place where any person or group of vendors, whether professional or
non-professional, offer for sale, trade, or barter any goods regardless of whether they are new,
used, antique, or homemade; and regardless of whether they are offered for sale in open air,
buildings, or temporary structures. The term “flea market” also shall not include any business or
occupation that has a valid business license or special use permit pertaining to the sale, trade, or
barter of goods.

“Floor Area, Gross” means the total area of a building measured by taking the outside
dimensions of the building at each floor level intended for occupancy or storage.

Grass Floor Areg

Floor Area by Exterior Measurements
at Each Floor Level

tixrerior
Measurement

»
-

o
-
€xterlor Measurement

“Frontage™ means that side of a lot abutting on the street right-of-way or side of a building
regarded as the front.




“Front Building Line” means a line parallel to the front lot line to the nearest part of any
principle building, including decks, patios, covered porches, steps, and landings exceeding
twenty-four (24) square feet, but excluding eaves, overhangs, bay windows, sills, belt courses,
cornices, and ornamental features not exceeding two (2) feet in width.

“Freight Terminal” means any premises used by a freight company which is the origin or
destination point of goods being transported for the purpose of storing, transferring, loading, and
unloading such goods.

“Funeral Home/Mortuary” means a building or part thereon used exclusively for human burial
services. Such building may contain space and facilities for (1) embalming and the performance
of other services used in the preparation of the deal for burial, (2) the performances of autopsies
and other surgical procedures, (3) the storage of caskets, funeral urns, and other related funeral
supplies, and (4) cremation services.

“Garage, Public” means a building or portion thereof designed or used for the commercial
parking of vehicles.

“Garage Sale” means the sale of personal property owned or maintained by occupants of the
premises in, at, or upon any residentially zoned or residentially occupied property. Garage sale
includes, but is not limited

to, any yard sale, multi-family sale, home sale, patio sale, or any other sale similarly conducted
on any residentially zoned or residentially occupied property.

“Garden Center” means land and buildings where the wholesale or retail sale of nursery stock
and garden supplies take place. Such nursery stock and supplies may include any of the
following: ornamental plants, flowers, shrubs and trees cultivated in a nursery; seed, fertilizer,
garden pesticides and herbicides in retail quantities and packaging; garden hand tools; plant
containers; garden statuary and furniture; landscape lighting; bird feeders and supplies; and
seasonal ornaments and novelties such as Christmas wreaths and decorations. Such use may
include the provision of landscape design and or installation services, provided that such services
are ancillary to the principal use and offered to clients whose residence or place of business
exists elsewhere.

“Gas Station” means buildings and premises for the supply and retail dispensing of motor fuels,
and may include incidental sales of prepackaged food and drink. Accessory uses may include
minor servicing and repair of automobiles, sale of lubricants, batteries, tires, motor vehicle
accessories, and hand or machine washing in a single bay auto wash.

“Gas Station, Large” means a gas station as defined in this code exceeding any of the following
criteria: four fuel pump islands, a total of eight fuel pumps, or a gas station combined with a
convenience store.

“Governing Body” means the Council of the City of Elkins,

“Governmental Operations” includes emergency services; municipal, county, state, and federal
buildings; and post offices.



“Greenhouse, Commercial” means a building used for the growing of plants, alt or part of which
are sold at retail or wholesale.

“Greenhouse, Noncommercial” means a structure consisting primarily of glass, clear plastic, or
other light transmitting material in which temperature and humidity can be controlled for the
cultivation or protection of plants or seedling, and located in the side or rear yard or on rooftops.

“Group Residential Facility” means a facility which is owned, leased, or operated by a
behavioral health service provider and which: (1) provides residential services and supervision
for individuals who are developmentally disabled or behaviorally disabled; (2) is occupied as a
residence by not more than eight individuals who are developmentally disabled and not more
than three supervisors or is occupied as a residence by not more than twelve individuals who are
behaviorally disabled and not more than three supervisors; (3) is licensed by the Department of
Health and Human Resources; and (4) complies with the State Fire Commission for residential
facilities.

“Group Residential Home™ means a building owned or leased by developmentally disabled or
behaviorally disabled persons for purposes of establishing a personal residence, and complying
with all applicable requirements of the state of West Virginia.

“Habitable structure” means any structure intended to be used for living, sleeping, cating, or
assembly purposes, including but not limited to dwellings, churches, schools, food facilities, and
commercial and industrial buildings.

“Health Club” means any establishment including, but not limited to, an athletic club, exercise
center, health spa, figure salon, gymnasium, physical fitness center, or any other establishment
by any other name that provides exercise equipment and one or more of the following: steam
cabinet, steam room, sauna, vapor room, vapor cabinet, toilet facilities, lavatories, showers,
lockers, and dressing rooms intended for patron use, excluding facilities used by or under direct
supervision and contro! of licensed medical personnel located in a medical facility, facilities
located in athletic departments of schools, and facilities of professional athletic teams. Accessory
uses within the facility may include massage therapy, aerobics and physical fitness services
{Aerobic and strength training activities, group exercise classes, fitness assessment and
counseling, and education seminars).

"Height" for the purposes of wireless telecommunications facilities means the vertical distance
measured from the base of the alternative support structure at grade to the highest point of the
structure, including any antennas. Measurement of tower height includes antenna, base pad, and
other appurtenances and is measured from the finished grade of the facility site. If the tower is
located on a sloped grade, then the average between the highest and lowest grades immediately
surrounding the perimeter of the tower base is used in calculating the antenna height. The highest
point excludes farm building components, flagpoles, chimneys, ventilators, skylights, domes,
water towers, bell towers, church spires, processing towers, tanks, bulkheads, or other building
accessory features usually erected at a height greater than the main roofs of buildings.

“Historic District” means a geographically definable area, designated as historic on a national,
state, or local register, possessing a significant concentration, linkage, or continuity of sites,
buildings, structures, or objects united historically or aesthetically by plan or physicat
development.



“Historic Landmark™ means a site, building, structure or object designated as historic on a
national, state or local register.

“Historic Site” means the location of a significant event, a prehistoric or historic occupation or
activity, or a building or structure whether standing, ruined or vanished, where the location itself
possesses historical, cultural or archaeological value regardless of the value of any existing
structure and designated as historic on a national, state or local register.

“Home-based Business, Low-impact” means an accessory use intended to allow businesses that
generate limited quantities of customer visitation or merchandise deliveries to operate such
business from a residence.

“Home-based Business, No-impact” means an accessory use intended to allow businesses that
rely solely on electronic or off-premise transactions to perform such operations from a residence.
The use involves no customer client or patient traffic, whether vehicular or pedestrian, pickup,
delivery, or removal functions, to or from the premises, in excess of those normally associated
with residential use.

“Hospital” means an establishment for temporary occupation by the sick or injured for the
purpose of medical diagnosis and treatment, including sanitaria, and shall be limited to the
treatment or other care of humans.

“Hotel/Motel” means a building or group of buildings in which lodging is provided and offered
for compensation. The building may also include dining rooms, kitchens, serving rooms,
ballrooms, and other facilities and services intended primarily for the accommodation of its
patrons.

“Incinerator” means an enclosed device using controlled combustion for the primary purpose of
thermally breaking down solid waste, and that is equipped with a flue for the sole purpose of
providing incineration service to the public.

“Industrial Park™ means an area of land arranged or constructed in accordance with a plan for a
group of industrial purposes, having separate building sites designed and arranged on sireets and
having utility services, setbacks, side yards, and covenants or other such regulations controlling
or restricting uses.

“Junk” means any worn, cast off, or discarded article or material which is ready for destruction
or which has been collected or stored for sale, resale, salvage, or conversion to some other use.

“Kennel” means any establishment wherein cats and dogs are kept or boarded. Business may be
conducted in conjunction with a dog day care. Such kennel must follow the registration process
set forth in the West Virginia Code.

“Laboratory” means a place where scientific studies are conducted, including testing, research,
or analysis of medical, chemical, physical, biological, mechanical, or electronic nature.

“Landowner” means the legal or beneficial owner or owners of land including the holder of an
option or contract to purchase (whether or not such option or contract is subject to any




condition), a lessee if authorized under the lease to exercise the right of the landowner, or other
person having a proprietary interest in land.

“Landscaping” means the bringing of the soil surface to a smooth finished grade, installing
sufficient trees, shrubs, ground cover, and grass to soften building lines, provide shade, and
generally produce a pleasing visual effect of the premises.

“Laundromat™ means a commercial establishment where self-service washing machines and
clothes dryers are available for public use on the premises to wash or dry clothing, apparel, or
other fabric.

“Library” means any premises, building, or part of a building where books, films, maps and
other educational materials are kept for reading, reference, and lending by the public.

“Liquor Store” means an establishment operated under the authority of the West Virginia Code,

Chapter 60, Article 3A primarily engaged in the retail sale of packaged alcoholic beverages, such

as ale, beer, wine, and whiskey, for off-premises consumption.

“Loading Space” means a space or berth available for the loading and unloading of goods from
commercial vehicles.

“Lot” means a designated parcel, tract, or area of land established by a plat or otherwise as
permitted by law and to be used, developed, or buiit upon as a unit.

Corner Lot, Flag Lot, Interior Let, Irregular Lot, Through Lot

Right of Way

Inserior Lot

Corner Lat

Through Lot Right of Way

{nterlor Lot Flag Lot

Corner Lot

frregular Lot

Right of Way

“Lot Area” means the total area within the lot lines of a lot, excluding any public rights-of-way.

“Lot, Corner” means a lot at the junction of and abutting two or more intersecting streets, where
the interior angle of intersection is less than one hundred and thirty-five (135) degrees, A lot




abutting a curved street or streets shall be considered a corner lot if the tangents to the curve at
the points of intersection of the lot lines with the street intersect at an interior angle of less than
one hundred and thirty-five (135) degrees.

“Lot Coverage” means the total area covered, measured from the outside of the exterior walls, by
all principal and accessory buildings on a lot, but not including open porches, decks, balconies,
and similar features not covered by a roof.

“Lot, Flag” means a polygonal-shaped lot with the appearance of a frying pan or flag and staff in
which the handle is most often used as the point of access. The handle, when less than the
minimum width for a building lot in the zoning district in which it is located, is not to be used in
computing the minimum required lot area.

“Lot, Interior” means a lot where the side property lines do not abut a street.

“Lot, Irregular™ means a lot of such shape or configuration that technically meets the area,
frontage, and width-to-depth requirements of this code but has unusual elongations, angles, and
curvilinear lines.

“Lot Line” means property boundary line of any lot that divides one lot from another or from a
street or any other public or private space.

(a) “Front Lot Line” means, in the case of an interior lot, a line separating the lot from the
street or public right of way; and in the case of a corner lot, a line separating the
narrowest street frontage of the lot from the street.

(b) “Rear Lot Line” means a lot line which is opposite and more distant from the front lot
line, except corner lots have no rear lot line. In the case of an irregular lot, a line ten feet
in length within the lot and parailel to and at the maximum distance from the front lot
line.

(c) “Side Lot Line” means any lot line other than a front or rear lot line.




“Lot, Through™ means an interior lot in which the front lot line and rear lot line abut upon streets.
Where a single lot under individual ownership extends from a street to a street, the widest street
shall be deemed the street upon which the property fronts.

“Lumberyard” means the principal use of land and structures involving the loading and
unloading, storage, and sales of lumber and millwork materials.

“Manufacturing (Heavy)” means manufacturing or compounding process of raw materials. These
activities or processes would necessitate the storage of large volumes of highly flammable, toxic
matter or explosive materials needed for the manufacturing process. These activities may involve
outdoor operations as part of their manufacturing process.

“Manufacturing (Light)” means the manufacturing, compounding, processing, assembling,
packaging or testing of goods or equipment, including research activities, conducted entirely
within an enclosed structure and imposing a negligible impact on the surrounding environment
by noise, vibration, smoke, dust, or pollutants.

“Medical Adult Day Care Center” means an ambulatory healthcare facility which provides an
organized day program of therapeutic, social, and health maintenance and restorative services
and whose general goal is to provide an alternative to twenty-four hour, long-term institutional
care to elderly or disabled adults who are in need of such services by virtue of physical and
mental impairment.

“Medical Cannabis Dispensary” means a place where processed medical cannabis products are
permitted to be sold to qualifying consumers, as provided for in the Code of the State of West
Virginia, Chapter 16A, as amended. This term does not include a health care medical cannabis
organization as defined in the Code of the State of West Virginia, Chapter 16A, as amended.

“Medical Cannabis Growing Facility” means a place where medical cannabis is permitted to be
grown, as provided for in the Code of the State of West Virginia, Chapter 16A, as amended. This
term does not include a health care medical cannabis organization as defined in the Code of the
State of West Virginia, Chapter 16A, as amended.

“Medical Cannabis Organization, Health Care” means a vertically integrated health system
approved by the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health to dispense medical cannabis or grow
and process medical cannabis, or both, in accordance with a research study under the Code of the
State of West Virginia, Chapter 16A, as amended.

“Medical Cannabis Processing Facility” means a place where medical cannabis is permitted to be

processed, refined, or otherwise converted into a legally permitted state, as provided for in the
Code of the State of West Virginia, Chapter 16A, as amended. This term does not include a
health care medical cannabis organization as defined in the Code of the State of West Virginia,
Chapter 16A, as amended.



Front Lot Line, Rear Lot Line, and Side Lot Line

Right of Way

Fro=mt Lot Line

Side Lot Line Side Lot Line

Side Lot Line

Rear Lot Line

“Lot Measurements” means the following:

(a) “Lot Depth” means the mean distance from the right-of-way line of the lot to its opposite
rear line measured in a direction parallel to the side lot lines. Lot depth for triangular lots
shall be the mean distance from the street line to the point of intersection of the side
yards.

(b) “Lot, Minimum Width” means the minimum lot width at the building setback line.

(c) “Lot Width” means the distance measured between side lot lines, at the required building
setback line. In a case where there is only one side lot line, lot width shall be measured
between such side lot line and the opposite rear lot lines or street line.

Lot Width

Right of Way.

Front Seiback

O i O

Building Setback Line







“Nudity” means the showing of the human male or female genitals, pubic area, vulva, anus, anal
cleft, cleavage with less than a fully opaque covering of any part of the nipple, or the showing of
the covered male genitals in a discernible turgid state.

“Off-premises, Freestanding Sign,” also known as a billboard, means a large outdoor sign not
accessory to or associated with the principal use on a lot, or signs which are the principal use of a
lot.

“Office Supply Establishment” means a place of business where stationery and other supplies
typically used in offices are the main items offered for sale.

“Open Space” means any parcel or area of land or water essentially unimproved and set aside,
dedicated, designated or reserved for public or private use or enjoyment, or for the use and
enjoyment of owners and occupants of land adjoining or neighboring such open space.

“Owner-occupied” means a person who maintains his or her principal residence by being
physically present and spending the night on the property for more than two hundred and eighty
(280) nights of each calendar year and who is:-
(a) The sole owner of record of the property, as reflected in a deed recorded in the
County Clerk's Office;
{(b) A tenant in common, tenant by the entirety or joint tenant with right of survivorship,
as reflected in a deed recorded in the County Clerk's Office; or
(c) An owner of at least twenty-five (25%) percent of a business entity shown as the
owner of record, as reflected in a deed recorded in the County Clerk’s office. The
ownership interest shall be shown by a duly executed resolution of the business
entity, or such other method as determined by the Zoning Officer.

“Parcel Delivery Facility” means an establishment engaged in the delivery, receipt, and
transmittal of documents, packages, and parcels.

“Park” means a parcel of ground along with its buildings and fixfures intended primarily for
beautification and aesthetic improvement and designated as recreational land.

“Parking Lot” means an area utilized to meet the parking requirements of this code, including the
parking aisles that provide access to the parking spaces, but not including any streets or
driveways that provide access to the parking lot.

“Parking Structure” means a building with multiple stories of off-street parking spaces where
vehicles are temporarily stored with or without a nominal fee, in association with occupational,
retail, entertainment, recreational, municipal, educational or residential use(s).

“Patio” means an area consisting of natural or man-made material constructed at or near grade
level, intended for use as an outdoor living area, and not enclosed by a permanent roof or
awning,




“Permit” means a document issued by the governing body authorizing an applicant to undertake
certain activities.

“Permitted Use” means any use allowed within a zoning district, subject to the restrictions
applicable to that zoning district; not a conditional use.

“Personal Service” means a business providing services to a person, their apparel, or personal
effects commonly carried on or about their person, including, but not limited to, shoe repair,
tailoring, watch repair, beauty shops, barber shops, tanning and nail salons, and the like.

“Personal wireless telecommunication services” means commercial mobile services, unlicensed
wireless telecommunication services, and common carrier wireless telecommunication exchange
access services.

“Pet Shop™” means an establishment where animals are bought, sold, exchanged, or offered for
sale or exchange to the general public.

“Pharmacy” means a retail store which primarily sells prescription drugs, patient medicines, and
surgical and sickroom supplies.

“Photographic Studio” means a retail establishment for the purpose of photographing subjects
and processing photographs for commercial purposes, but not including photography requiring
professional models.

“Place of Worship/Religious Institution” means a building wherein persons regularly assemble
for acts of religious devotion and which is maintained and controlled by a religious body
organized to sustain public worship, together with all accessory buildings and uses customarily
associated with such primary purpose. Includes a church, synagogue, temple, mosque, or other
such place for worship and religious activities. Customary accessory uses include a wide range
of religious activities, including a caretaker’s residence; fellowship halls, parish halls and similar
buildings; rooms used for meetings, religious education, and similar functions; a gymnasium; a
playground; the sale of items associated with the practice of religion; and faith-based social
services such as homeless shelters, group homes, and soup kitchens.

“Planning Commission” means the planning commission of the City of Elkins.

“Porch” means a covered but unenclosed projection from the main wall of a building that may or
may not use columns or other ground supports for structural purposes. If a porch is uncovered, it
is considered to be a deck.

“Post Office” means a building or structure used and maintained by the Postal Service of the
United States of America for the purpose of collecting or distributing mail to the public.




“Principal Building or Structure” means a building or structure in which the principal use is
conducted. In all residential districts, any dwelling is the principat building on the lot on which it
is located.

“Principal Use” means the primary use of land, buildings, or structures, whether permitted by
tight or
conditional, which exists independently of any other use on the property.

“Private Club” means any establishment, other than an outdoor recreation facility, operated by a
private organization for recreational, educational, fraternal, or social purposes, but only open to
members and their guests and not to the general public.

“Professional Services” means any office of recognized professions, other than medical, such as
lawyers, architects, engineers, real estate brokers, insurance agents, and others who are qualified
to perform services of a professional nature and other offices used primarily for accounting,
corresponding, research, editing or other administrative functions, but not including banks or
other financial institutions and personal services.

"Public recreational area” means a regionally or locally significant area, as designated by state or
federal regulation, or by the City of Elkins, and which is meant to serve a recreational purpose.

“Reception Facility” means a facility within an existing structure or outdoor area for hosting
receptions or similar activities, limited only to weddings, wedding receptions, birthday events,
anniversary events, reunion events, and family gatherings, and not involving charging admission
or gatherings primarily to view a performance.

“Recreation, Commercial Indoor” means indoor facilities for leisure-time activities, including
facilities open to the public and those requiring membership; including, but not limited to, such
establishments as bowling alleys, ice rinks, sportsman’s clubs, billiard and pool halls, video and
other coin-operated electronic games, trampolines, ball pits, indoor skating facilities, and similar
recreational diversions.

“Recreation, Commercial Outdoor” means outdoor facilities for leisure-time activities, including
outdoor facilities open to the public and those requiring membership; including, but not limited
to, swimming pools, miniature golf, golf practice facilities, tennis courts, riding stables, rifle
range, archery range, playing fields, golf courses, docks, and similar recreational diversions.

“Recreation, Municipal” means developed or undeveloped open spaces or structures and
facilities which are provided by a governmental body for public use for the purposes of play,
amusement, or relaxation. Such uses may include, but not limited to, sports facilities, parks,
swimming pools, assembly buildings, passive areas, gardens, docks, and related amenities.

“Recreational Vehicle” means any travel trailer or other vehicular portable structure designed to
be used as a temporary occupancy for travel or recreational use. For example, any motor home,
truck slide-in camper, fifth wheel frailer, tent trailer, animal trailer, trailer used for transporting




recreational vehicles, any type of 3- or 4-wheeled sport racing vehicle, boat, boat trailer, raft,
aircraft, dune buggie, snowmobile, jet ski, all-terrain vehicle, and vehicle dolly are included.

*Recycling Facility” means a facility that accepts recyclable material from the public by
donation, redemption, or purchase and separates or recovers reusable materials that can be sold
to or reused by a manufacturer as a substitute for or a supplement to, virgin raw materials. The
term does not include transfer facilities, municipal waste landfills, composting facilities or
resource recovery facilities.

“Research and Development” means a structure or complex of structures designed or used
primarily for research and development functions related to industry and similar fields.

“Restaurant” means an establishment whose principal business is the sale of food, desserts, or
beverages to the customer in a ready-to-consume state, primarily consumed off the premises; to
customers who order and are served food at a counter or in an automobile in packages prepared
to leave the premises, or able to be taken to a table or counter to be consumed, and may include a
drive-through facility; or where food and beverages are prepared, served, and consumed
primarily within the principal building. Food sales constitute more than sixty (60) percent of the
gross sales receipts.

“Retail Store” means is a business having as its primary function the supply of merchandise or
wares to the end consumer. Three classes of retail stores:

(a) Retail Store/Shop <7,000 square feet of gross floor area

(b) Retail Store/Shop 7,000 to 25,000 square feet gross floor area

(¢) Retail Store/Shop >25,000 square feet of gross floor area

“Right-of-Way” means a strip of land acquired by reservation, dedication, prescription, or
condemnation and intended to be occupied by a street, trail, waterline, sanitary sewer, or other
public utilities or facilities.

“Roadside Vendor Stand” means stands, trailers, truck beds or similar facilities offering
agricultural products for sale which are not produced on the immediate premises.

“Salvage Yard” means any place which is maintained, operated or used for the storing, keeping,
buying, selling or processing of salvage, or for the operation and maintenance of a motor vehicle
graveyard.

“Satellite Signal Receiving Station” means devices commonly parabolic in shape, mounted at a
fixed point on a structure, or on rooftops, for the purpose of capturing electronic television or
internet signals transmitted via satellite communication facilities and serving the same or similar
function as the common television antenna. Such devices are accessory structures.

“School, Commercial” means a school establishment to provide for the teaching of industrial,
clerical, managerial, or artistic skills. This definition applies to schools that are owned and
operated privately for profit.




“School, PreK-12" means a public or private school offering educational instruction in grades
pre-kindergarten through twelve (12), licensed by the West Virginia Department of Education.

“Screening” means the use of plant materials, fencing, or earthen berms to aid in the
concealment of such features as parking areas and vehicles within them, and to provide privacy
between two (2) or more different land uses that abut.

“Self-storage Facility” means a building or group of buildings containing separate, individual,
and private storage spaces of varying sizes available for lease or rent for varying periods of time.

“Senior Independent Housing” means a single family or multi-family development intended,
operated, and designed to accommodate residents fifty-five (55) years of age or older. Senior
independent housing communities are designed for seniors who are able to live independently or
need assistance with daily care. Senior independent housing can also include continuing care
facilities.

“Setback™ means the minimum distance by which any building or structure must be separated
from a street right-of-way or lot line.
() “Front Yard Setback™ is measured as the shortest distance between the street front lot line
and the building setback line.
{b) “Rear Yard Setback” is measured as the shortest distance between the rear lot line and the
building setback line.
(c) “Side Yard Setback” is measured as the shortest distance between the side lot line and the
building setback line.

Front Setback, Rear Setback, and Side Setback

Right of Way

Front Setbzck

]
i Side Sethack

Building Setback Line

N E—
Side Setback

Rear Setback

“Sewage Treatment Facility” means a place or premises, including buildings, where sewage or
other solid or liquid wastes are treated or screened before discharge.




“Shopping Center” means a commercial facility of a single lot with common parking facilities
that uses or leases separate areas of space to retail or service-oriented businesses.

“Sign” means any device (writing, letter work or numeral, pictorial presentation, illustration or
decoration, emblem, device, symbol or trademark, flag, banner or pennant, inflatable figures for
attracting viewers, or any other device, figure or character, or delineation) with the essential
purpose to communicate, designed to comumunicate, or where the context results in
communication, and such communication is aimed at persons in a public right-of-way. Signs
directed at persons within a facility and not viewable or only incidentally viewable to persons in
a public right-of-way are not subject to this code.

(a) “A-Frame Sign” means a two-faced sign with supports that are connected at the top and
separated at the base with an internal angle between the two faces of no more than a
forty-five (45) degree angle, forming an “A” shape not more than six (6) square feet on
each side. These are also referred to as “sandwich board” signs.

(b) “Animated Sign” means a sign or part of a sign that is designed to rotate, move, or appear
to rotate or move. Such a sign is sometimes referred to as a “moving sign.” Animated
signs include signs with moving graphic features such as scrolling text or images that
appear to move; moving sign change features such as fly-in, wipe-off, fading, dissolving,
traveling, or expanding displays or any other full message sign change taking longer than
0.3 seconds; and static electronic message displays displayed less than seven (7) seconds.
Animated signs also include signs propelied by vehicle, watercraft, or aircraft where the
primary purpose of the vehicle, watercraft, or aircraft at the time of sign display is to
propel the sign.

(c) “Awning Sign” means a sign placed directly on the surface of an awning.

(d) “Banner” means a sign made of any cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, or similar non-rigid
material attached to any structure, staff, pole, rope, wire, or framing of flexible material
affixed to a framework or flat surface. Banners are not flags for purposes of this
ordinance.

(e) “Beacon” means any light with one or more beams directed into the atmosphere or
directed at one or more points not on the same zone lot as the light source; also, any light
with one or more beams that rotate or move.

(0 “Canopy Sign” means a sign attached to a canopy, which is a roof-like structure either
projecting from a building fagade and open on three sides, or standing alone and open on
four sides, and used for the purpose of protecting pedestrians and motorists from weather
related elements,

(g) “Chalkboard Sign” means a single-faced, framed slate, or chalkboard that can be written
on with chalk or similar markers.

(h) “Changeable Copy Sign” means a sign or part of a sign that is designed so that
characters, letters, or illustrations can be manually or physically changed or rearranged
without altering the face or surface of the sign.

(i) “Electronic message display” means a sign that is either light emitting or light reflective
and that is capable of changing the displayed message through electronic programming.
Electronic message displays are divided into four categories:

(1) “Static electronic message display” means an electronic message display that
remains static, with no animated features or animated transition features with each
static display lasting longer than seven (7) seconds.

(2) “Static electronic message display with transition features” means an electronic
message display that remains static except for no more than a two (2) second
transition feature such as fading, dissolving or a single instance of fly-in, wipe-



off, expansion, or traveling that occurs no more often than every seven (7)
seconds.

(3) “Electronic message display, partially animated” means an electronic message
display with animated or moving text or graphics.

(4) “Electronic message display, fully animated” means an elecironic message
display with full animation features.

() “Feather Sign/Feather Flag/Teardrop Flag/Wind Flag” means a lightweight, portable flag
made of cloth, plastic, or similar material mounted along one edge on a single, vertical,
flexible pole, the physical structure of which may resemble a sail, bow, or teardrop.

{(ky “Flag” means a piece of cloth or similar material, typically oblong or square, attachable
by one edge to a pole or rope and used as a symbol or decoration.

() “Flashing Sign” means a sign that includes lights that flash, blink, turn on and off
intermittently, or otherwise vary light intensity during the display of a message.

(m) “Freestanding Sign” or “Ground-mounted Sign” or “Pole Sign” means any non-portable
sign supported by a fence, retaining wall, or by pole, upright structural members, or
braces on or in the ground and not attached to a building.

(n) “Geological Sign” means signs made of or that appear to be made of geological
formations, including but not limited to standalone rocks or mountainsides, and convey a
message that is etched, carved, painted, or similarly incorporated into the sign’s material.

(o) “Illegal sign” means any sign erected without obtaining a required permit or which
otherwise does not comply with any provision of this code.

(p) “Inflatable sign” means a sign that are filled with air to convey a commercial message or
draw attention to a location,

(@) “Marquee Sign” means a sign attached to and made a part of a canopy or any similar
projections from a building, with changeable, fixed, or both types of lettering in use.

(r) “Minor Sign” means a sign not exceeding two (2) square foot in arca, not exceeding four
(4) feet in height, and not illuminated.

(s) “Monument Sign” means a sign affixed to a structure built on grade in which the sign and
the structure are an integral part of one another; not a pole sign.

{ “Neon Sign” means a sign containing exposed tubes filled with light-emitting gas.

(uy “Off-premises sign” are commercial signs not accessory to or associated with the
principal use on a lot, or signs which are the principal use of a lot.

(v} “On-premises sign” means commercial or noncommercial signs accessory to or
associated with the principal use of a lot.

(w) “Pennant” means a geometric shaped flag made of flexible materials, suspended from one
or two corners fastened to a string, which is secured or tethered so as to allow movement
and used as an attention-getting form of media.

(x) “Person-assisted Sign” means a sign that includes an individual paid to hold, move, wear,
or otherwise direct attention to a sign.

(v) “Projecting Sign” means a sign attached o and projecting more than twelve (12) inches
from the face of a wall or building, but does not project above the parapet or cave line of
the building and is a minimum of eight (8) feet above any walking surface or twenty (20)
feet above any driving surface. Projecting signs may not be more than twenty (20) square
feet in arca.

(z) “Roof'sign” means a sign erected or constructed, in whole or in part, upon or above the
highest point of a building with a flat roof, or the lowest portion of a roof for any building
with a pitched roof.

(aa) “Temporary Sign” means any sign intended to be displayed for a limited period of time
not to exceed thirty (30) days.




(bb)“Vehicle or Trailer Sign, Illegal or Inoperable” means any sign attached to or displayed
on a vehicle or trailer, if the vehicle or trailer is used for the primary purpose of
displaying the sign or signs and the vehicle or trailer fails to display current license
plates, inspection sticker, or municipal decal; if the vehicle or trailer is inoperable; if
evidence of paid-to-date local taxes cannot be made available; or if the sign alters the
standard design of such vehicle or trailer.

(cc) “Wall Sign” means any sign, inscription, artwork, figure, marking, or design that is
attached, painted, drawn, marked, etched, or scratched onto a wall or against a flat
vertical exterior surface of a structure. Wall signs include murals.

(dd)“Wicket Sign” means a sign with an H- or U-shaped frame that is put into the ground or
placed above the ground. _

(ec) “Window Sign” means any sign visible outside the window and attached to or within
eighteen (18) inches in front of or behind the surface of 2 window or door.

“Sign Face” means the portion of a sign structure bearing the message.

“Sign Height” means the maximum vertical distance from the base of the sign at normal grade to
the top of the highest attached component of the sign. Normal grade shall be construed to be the
lower of: (1) existing grade prior to construction; or (2) the newly established grade after
construction, exclusive of any filling, berming, mounding or excavating primarily for the
purpose of mounting or elevating the sign.

“Sign Structure” means any structure bearing a sign face.

“Site” means the current boundaries of the leased or owned property surrounding the tower and
base station and any access or utility easements currently related to the site; and, for other
eligible support structures, means that area in proximity to the structure and to other transmission
equipment already deployed on the ground. This term does not apply to towers or base stations in
public rights-of-way.

“Small cell network” means a collection of interrelated small wireless telecommunication
facilities designed to deliver personal wireless telecommunication services.

“Small wireless facility” or “Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells” means a
wireless facility that meets both of the following qualifications: each antenna does not exceed six
(6) cubic feet; and all other wireless equipment associated with the facility is cumulatively no
more than twenty-eight (28) cubic feet in volume. The following types of associated ancillary
equipment are not included in the calculation of equipment volume: electric meter, concealment
clements, telecommunications demarcation box, ground-based enclosures, grounding equipment,
power transfer switch, cut-off switch, and vertical cable runs for the connection of power and
communications services.

“Solar Energy Facilities” means an energy conversion facility, including appurtenances, which
converts radiant energy from the sun to a usable form of energy to meet all or part of the energy
or heating requirements of the on-site user, or which is to be sold to a utility company to be used
by others, or sold directly to other users. A Solar Energy Facility may be ground-mounted (i.c.,




“Street” means streets, avenues, boulevards, highways, roads, lanes, alleys, and all public ways.

“Structure” means anything constructed, erected, or situated by man that requires location on the
ground or being attached to something having location on the ground; but not including vehicles,
recreational vehicles, campers, tents less than thirty-six (36) square feet in gross floor area,
retaining walls, fences not over eight (8) feet in height, yard and play equipment, utility lines and
underground facilities.

(a) “Principal Structure” means the structure or portion thereof housing the main use of the
land.

(b) “Temporary Structure” means any structure which is erected to be in place for not more
than twelve (12) months, including but not limited to tents, air-supported structures,
portable bandstands, reviewing stands, bleachers, mobile office units, construction sheds,
sales offices for lots or dwellings or other structures of a similar character.

“Studio, Dancing, Music, or Art” means a facility used for the rehearsal or performance of
performing arts, such as music, dance or theatre; teaching classes in creative arts, such as
painting, drawing, sculpting, potting, or beading or otherwise creating art; or for the display or
sale of art in general or during special events. Food and alcoholic beverages may be served and
fees charged as accessory uses during special events.

“Substantial change criteria” means the criteria set forth in Section 21-139.

“Surety” means a financial guaranty that the activities proposed in the application are made as
planned. If activities are not made by the applicant, the local government can use surety funds to
complete the work as planned or return the land to its original state. Includes but is not limited to
performance bonds, cash in escrow, a letter of credit, and similar collateral.

“Swimming Pool” means any body of water (excluding natural bodies of water fed by rivers,
streams, or brooks) or receptacle for water intended to be used for swimming and constructed,
installed, or maintained in or on the ground outside any building,

“Targeted market coverage area” means the area which is targeted to be served by the wireless
telecommunications facility proposed in an application.

“Tasting Facility” means an area of a winery, brewery, or distillery where complimentary
samples of a beverage are served on the premises of manufacture, in moderate quantities for
tasting.

“Tattoo Parlor/Body Piercing Studio” means an establishment whose principal business activity
is the practice of placing designs, letters, figures, symbols, or other marks upon or under the skin
of any person, using ink or other substances that result in the permanent coloration of the skin by
means of the use of needles or other instruments designed to contact or puncture the skin. The
establishment also includes the creation of an opening in the body of a person for the purpose of
inserting jewelry or other decoration,




placed on top of the ground surface) or roof-mounted (i.e., placed on or as an integral part of a
building).
(a) “Smali solar energy™ is a solar energy facility installed for personal use in residences,
commercial properties, and institutions,
(b) “Large solar energy facility” is a solar energy facility installed on large parcels of land
for the purpose of generating revenue, or utility-scale facility installed to benefit the
community or an entire institution.

“Solid Waste Disposal Areas/Facility, Private” means any facility, land, contiguous land,
improvements on the land, structures, or other appurtenances or methods used for processing,
recycling, or disposing of solid waste, including landfills, transfer stations, materials recovery
facilities, mixed waste processing facilities, sewage sludge processing facilities, commercial
composting facilities, recycling facilities, and other such facilities not herein specified, but not
including land upon which sewage sludge is applied in accordance with the West Virginia Code.
Such facility is situated in the city or county where the majority of the spatial area of such
facility is located.

“Solid Waste Disposal Areas/Facility, Public” means any municipally owned facility, land,
contiguous land, improvements on the land, structures, or other appurtenances or methods used
for processing, recycling, or disposing of solid waste, including landfills, transfer stations,
materials recovery facilities, mixed waste processing facilities, sewage sludge processing
facilities, composting facilities, recycling facilities, and other such facilities not herein specified,
but not including land upon which sewage studge is applied in accordance with the West
Virginia Code. Such facility is situated in the city or county where the majority of the spatial arca
of such facility is located.

“Special Flood Hazard Area” means the area that will be inundated by the flood event having a
1-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. The 1-percent annual chance
flood is also referred to as the base flood or 100-year flood.

“Spectrum Act” means the “Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012” (Public Law
112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. § 1455(a)).

“Sports Arepa” means a central stage, ring, area, or similar structure, used for sports and
surrounded by seats for spectators.

®% &5

“Stealth” means the same as “camouflage,” “conceal,” or “concealment.”

“Story” means the portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the surface
of the next floor above it, or if there is no floor above it, then the space between such floor and
the ceiling above it.

“Story, Half” means a story under a gabled, hipped, or gambrel roof, the wall plates of which on
at least two (2) opposite exterior walls are not more than two (2) feet above the finished floor of
such story.




“Tavern/Drinking Establishment” means an establishment engaged in the preparation and retail
sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises and which may offer food for
consumption on premises as an accessory use. '

“Telecommunications Tower” means any structure that is designated and constructed primarily
for the purpose of supporting one or more telecommunication antennas. This includes guyed
towers, lattice towers, monopoles, and towers taller than fifteen (15) feet constructed on the top
of another building, along with any separate building on the lot used to house any supporting
electronic equipment.

“Temporary Shelter” means any structure which is erected to be in place for not more than
twelve (12) months, including but not limited to tents, air-supported structures, portable
bandstands, reviewing stands, bleachers, mobile office units, construction sheds, sales offices for
lots, or dwellings or other structures of a similar character.

“Theater” means a building or part of a building devoted to the showing of movies, musical
performances, dance, or theatrical productions, usually on a paid admission basis.

“Theater, Drive-in” means an open lot or part thereof, with its appurtenant facilities devoted
primarily to the showing of movies or to theatrical productions, usually on a paid admission
basis, to patrons seated in motor vehicles or on outdoor seats.

“Tourist or Trailer Camp” means an area containing travel trailers, pick-up coaches, and
motorized homes designed or intended to be used as temporary living facilities for one or more
families.

“Tower” means any structure capable of supporting any antennas affixed to the tower and their
associated facilities, licensed or authorized by the FCC, and constructed for the sole or primary
purpose of supporting wireless telecommunications facilities.

“Trailer, Camping and Recreational Equipment” means tents, travel trailers, pickup coaches,
motorized homes and recreational vehicles and equipment as follows:

(a) “Travel Trailer” means a portable structure built on a chassis, designed to be towed and
used as a temporary dwelling for travel, recreational, and vacation purposes, and
permanently identified as a travel trailer by the manufacturer of the trailer.

(b) “Pickup Coach” means a structure designed primarily to be mounted on a pickup or other
truck chassis with sufficient equipment to render it suitable for use as a temporary
dwelling for travel, recreational, and vacation purposes.

(¢) “Motorized Home” means portable dwelling designed and constructed as an integral part
of a self-propelled vehicle.

(d) “Boat” means a vessel designed to travel on water.

(e) “Boat Trailer” means a trailer designed to haul a boat as defined above.

“Transmission equipment” means equipment that facilitates transmission for any wireless
telecommunication service licensed or authorized by the FCC, including, but not limited to, radio
transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, and regular and backup power supply.




“Truck Terminal” means a facility where freight is unloaded from interstate trucks or intermodal
trailers and containers carried on the railroad and loaded onto local delivery trucks.

“Unit of Government” means any federal, state, regional, county, or municipal government or
governmental agency.

“Urban Agriculture” means land used for beekeeping, community gardens, keeping up to six (6)
hens, and other small-scale agricultural activities.

“Use” means any purpose for which a building or other structure or a tract of land may be
designed, arranged, intended, maintained, or occupied, or any activity, occupation, business, or
operation carried on in a building or other structure on a tract of land.

“Utility” means a public or private distribution service to the public that is regulated by the
public service commission.

“Utility pole” means a pole or similar structure that is or may be used, in whole or in part, by a
communication services provider or for electric distribution, lighting, traffic control, signage (if
the pole is fifteen (15) feet or taller), or a similar function, or for the collocation of small wireless
facilities. However, “utility pole” does not include wireless support structures or electric
transmission structures.

“Variance” means a deviation from the minimum standards of this code that does not involve
permitting land uses otherwise prohibited in the zoning district or changing the zoning
classifications of a parcel of land.

“Vehicle” means any device in, upon or by which any person or property is or may be
transported or drawn upon a street, excepting tractors, agricultural machinery, devices moved by
human power or used upon stationary rails or tracks.

“Vehicle Sales, Rental and Service” means a facility for the repair, rental, sales, or service of
automobiles, trucks, buses, boats, and marine equipment, motorcycles, campers, motor homes,
and recreational vehicles. This definition does not include the rental, sale, or service of heavy
equipment.

“Video Gaming or Lottery Establishment” means “video lottery” machines licensed by the West
Virginia Lottery Commission pursuant to the West Virginia Code, but excluding establishments
that only sell lottery tickets.

“Viewpoint” means a location identified cither in the City of Elkins comprehensive plan or by a
federal or state agency and which serves as the basis for the location and determination of a

designated scenic resource.

“Warehouse” means a structure primarily used for the storage of goods and materials.



“Water Treatment Plant” means municipally owned facilities that treat water and produce
potable water for public consumption.

“Wholesale Establishment” means an establishment primarily engaged in selling merchandise to
retailers; to industrial, commercial, institutional, or professional business users; or to other
wholesalers, or acting as agents or brokers and buying merchandise for, or selling to, such
individuals or companies.

“Wind Energy Facility, Small” means any electric generation facility, whose main purpose is to
convert kinetic energy from the wind into electrical power and store the power as usable forms of
energy, and includes the wind turbine(s), structural supports, elecirical infrastructure, and other
appurtenant structures and facilities. Consists of a maximum of one (1) wind turbine, installed

for personal use in residences, commercial properties, and institutions.

“Winery” means an establishment where wine is manufactured or in any way prepared.

“Wireless Telecommunications Facility” means equipment at a fixed location that enables
wireless communications between user equipment and a communications network, including:
equipment associated with wireless communications; and radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or
fiber-optic cable, regular and backup power supplies, and comparable equipment, regardless of
technological configuration; any structure, antenna, tower, base station, or other device that
provides or is suitable to provide radio/television transmission, commercial mobile wireless
telecommunication services, cellular phone services, specialized mobile radio communications
(SMR), broadband telecommunications services, common carrier wircless telecommunication
exchange phone services, and persenal communications service (PCS) or pager service. Wireless
facility includes small wireless facilities. “Wireless facility” does not include the structure or |
improvements on, under, or within which the equipment is collocated; wireline backhaul
facilities; coaxial or fiber-optic cable that is between wireless support structures or utility poles; i
or coaxial or fiber-optic cable that is otherwise not immediately adjacent to, or directly ‘
associated with, an antenna. The following are not wireless telecommunication facilities for
purposes of this ordinance:
(a) “Emergency wireless telecommunications facility” means wireless telecommunication
facilities exclusively for emergency communications.
(b) “Amateur (ham) Radio Stations” means any antenna of less than one hundred (100) feet
in height owned and operated exclusively by an amateur radio operator licensed by the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC).
(c) “Temporary wireless telecommunications facility” means a temporary wireless
telecommunications facility, either operational or in operation for a maximum period of
one hundred twenty (120) calendar days per calendar year within the jurisdiction.
(d) “Antennas as accessory uses” means an antenna that is an accessory use to a residential
dwelling unit.

“Wireless infrastructure provider” means any person, including a person authorized to provide
telecommunications service in the state, that builds or installs wireless communication
transmission equipment, wireless facilities, wireless support structures, or utility poles, but that is
not a wireless provider.



“Wireless provider” means a wireless infrastructure provider or a wireless service provider.

“Wireless services” means any services, using licensed or unlicensed spectrum, including the use
of Wi-Fi, whether at a fixed location or mobile location, provided to the public using wireless
facilities.

“Wireless service provider” means a person who provides wireless services.

“Wireless support structure” means a structure, such as a monopole; tower, either guyed or self-
supporting; billboard; or other existing or proposed structure designed to support or capable of
supporting wireless facilities. “Wireless support structure” does not include a utility pole.

“Wireline backhaul facility” is a facility used for the transport of communications service or any
other electronic communications by coaxial, fiber-optic cable, or any other wire.

“Yard” means an open space at grade between the adjoining lot lines, unoccupied and
uncbstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground upward, except as otherwise provided
herein. ,
(a) “Yard, Front” means a space extending the full width of the lot between the architectural
front of the principle building or structure and the front lot line,
(b) “Yard, Rear” means a space extending the full width of the lot between the architectural
rear of the principal building or structure and the rear lot line.
(¢) “Yard, Side” means a space extending from the front yard to the rear yard between the
principal building fagade and the side lot line.

Front, Rear, and Side Yard

Hightof Way

| #ronlYard

Side Yard

ReorYard :

*Zoning” means the division of a municipality or county into districts or zones which specify
permitted and conditional uses and development standards for real property within the districts or
Zones.

“Zoning Officer” means that person appointed by the governing body and who has any other
authority this code may confer upon him or her to administer this code and to issuc zoning
permits.



Section 21-33A Article V. Zoning Districts and Regulations.

Section 21-34 Official Zoning Map and Use Table.

The official zoning map of the City of Elkins is attached to this ordinance as Appendix A. The
Use Table 1s attached to this ordinance as Appendix B. Where a discrepancy exists between the
Use Table and the text of the ordinance, the Use Table controls.

Section 21-35 Establishment of Districts.
In order to apply the provisions of this code, the City is hereby divided into the
following classes of districts for the purpose of zoning;
(a) Single Family Residential (R-1)
(b) City Residential (R-2)
(c) Recreational (Rec)
(d) Central Business District (CBD)
(e) Commercial (B-1)
(f) Educational (E)
(g) Industrial (I-1)
(h) Telecommunications Overlay (TO)




Section 21-36 Map and Boundaries.

(a)

The boundaries of all zoning districts are shown on the Official Zoning Map, which is the
official zoning map for the City of Elkins. The map is part of this code and is included in
Appendix A.

(b) The district boundaries on the City of Elkins Zoning Map are intended to follow property

lines; centerlines of roads, water courses, or railroads; other identifiable physical features;
or measured distances from property lines, centerlines, or identifiable physical features.
When the zoning officer cannot determine the location of a zoning district boundary by
reference to the zoning district map, the zoning officer shall refuse action; and the Board
of Zoning Appeals shall interpret the location of the district boundary with reference to
the scale of the map, the comprehensive plan, and the purposes set forth in all relevant
provisions of this code, provided that no boundary shall be changed by the Board of
Zoning Appeals. When a district boundary line divides a lot held in single or separate
ownership at the effective date of this code, the permitted use on the lot is limited to those
uses permitted in the zoning district in which the largest part of the lot is located, and the
smaller part of the lot located in a another zoning district will be subject to the provisions
where the largest portion of the lot is located.

(¢) Unless a use is allowed as a "permitted use by right," "use permitted with supplemental

regulations,” “conditional use,” “conditional use with supplemental regulations,” -
“nonconforming vse,” “temporary use” then such use is prohibited.

Section 21-37 Procedures Relating to Annexed or Vacated Areas.

(2)

(b)

Zoning of Annexed Lands. Zoning classification for any land annexed into the
City shall be established by ordinance, pursuant to Chapter 8A, Article 7, simultaneously
with the adoption of the annexation resolution required by West Virginia Code, Chapter
8, Article 6, as amended. City Council shall hear zoning recommendations from the
Planning Commission for the subject area during the required hearing for annexation.
Prior to any hearings, the Elkins Planning Commission shall submit its written
recommendations, to be consistent with the comprehensive plan, to City Council at least
thirty (30) days prior to the hearing for annexation.

(1) Prior to the annexation hearing and formal zoning designation of any parcel(s) of
land being annexed, the City shall, at least thirty (30) days prior to the enactment
of the zoning map amendment:

(i)  Give written notice, by certified mail, to the landowner(s) whose property is
directly involved in the proposed amendment; and

(i)  Publish a notice of the proposed amendment to the zoning ordinance map as a
Class I1-0 legal advertisement, pursuant to West Virginia Code Chapter 59.

(2) After the required thirty (30) day notice period ends and the property owners
have been notified by certified mail, the City Council shall hold a public hearing
regarding the zoning designation of the newly annexed land. After the hearing,
City Council can, by ordinance, designate the zoning districts for the annexed
land.

Whenever any street, place, alley, public right-of-way, railroad right-of-way,
waterway, or other similar area is vacated by proper authority, the districts adjoining each
side of such street, place, alley, public way, railroad right-of-way, waterway, or similar
area shall be extended automatically to the center of such vacation and al} area included
in the vacation shall then and thenceforth be subject to all appropriate provisions of the




extended districts. In the event of a partial vacation, the adjoining district, or district nearest
the portion vacated, shall be extended automatically to include all of the vacated area.

Section 21-38 Uses Not Expressly Permitted or Conditional.

It is recognized that new types or forms of land use will develop within the City of Elkins that
are not anticipated by this zoning ordinance. In order to provite for such changes and
contingencies, the classification of any new or unlisted land use shall be made by the Zoning
Officer to determine if the use can reasonably be interpreted to fit into a similar use category
described in this code.

Section 21-39 Single Family Residential (R-1) District.

The purpose of the Single Family Residential District is to preserve availability of single-family
neighborhoods by discouraging multi-family dwellings and business, commercial, and industrial
uses within the district.

Section 21-40 Permitted Uses in the Single Family Residential (R-1) District.
(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the Single Family Residential District:
(D Bus/Transit Shelter
(2) Child Day Care Facility, Class 4

3) Dock

4 Dwelling, Single-family

(5) Essential Utilities and Equipment
{6) Ewvent, Special

{7) Greenhouse, Noncommercial

® Group Residential Facility

)] Group Residential Home

(10) Home-based Business (No Impact)

(11) Park

(12) Solar Energy Facility, Small

(13) Solid Waste Disposal Area/Facility, Public

(14 Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells

Section 21-41  Conditional Uses in the Single Family Residential (R-1) District.
(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the Single Family Residential District:
(1) Bed and Breakfast Inn |
(2) Bed and Breakfast Inn IT
(3) Conversion of School/Church
(4) Dwelling, Accessory
(5) Home-based Business (Low Impact)
(6) Reception Facility
(7) Recreation, Municipal




Section 21-42 Single Family Residential (R-1) District Lot Requirements.

Max. uilding eig o feet 777

Min. Lot Size (Sq. Ft.) No minimum
Min. Lot Width No minimum
Mazx. Lot Coverage (as a %) Interior lot: 40

Corner lot: 50
Triangular lot: 60
Min. Front Setback Average of the two adjoining properties which
have pre-existing structures*
15 feet for vacant lots**
Min. Side Setback 5 feet

Min. Rear Setback Not less than 15 percent of the depth of the lot
'| *Only the setbacks on the lots that abut each side of the site and are on the same street
may be used. Setbacks across the street or along a different strect may not be used.
**When one adjacent lot is vacant, the average is of the setback of the adjacent non-
vacant lot and the required setback for the vacant lot. When the subject lot is a corner
lot, the average is of the setback of the adjacent non-vacant lot and the required setback
of the subject lot.

Section 21-43 City Residential (R-2) District.

The purpose of the City Residential District is to encourage a wider variety of housing and allow
that housing at a higher density than in R-1. The R-2 district also allows limited low-impact
comumercial, community, and recreational facilities, provided that these are suitable for operation
‘in close proximity to housing.

Section 21-44 Permitted Uses in the City Residential (R-2) District.
(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the City Residential District;
0))] Bed and Breakfast Inn I
(2) Bed and Breakfast Inn II
3) Bus/Transit Shelter
(4) Child Day Care Facility, Class 3
5) Child Day Care Facility, Class 4
6) Dock
(N Dwelling, Accessory
® Dwelling, Single-family
6)] Dwelling, Two-family
(10) Essential Utilitics and Equipment
(11) Event, Special
(12) Factory-built Home
(13) Factory-built Home Rental Community
(14) Greenhouse, Noncommercial
(15) Group Residential Facility
(16) Group Residential Home
(17) Home-based Business (No Impact)
(18) Park
(19) Solar Energy Facility, Small
(20) Solid Waste Disposal Area/Facility, Public
2n Water Treatment Plant



(22) Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells

Section 21-45  Conditional Uses in the City Residential (R-2) District.
(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the City Residential District:
(1) Bakery
(2) Brewery Pub
(3) Community Facility
(4) Conversion of School/Church
(5) Dwelling, Conversion Apartment
(6) Dwelling, Multi-family
(7) Emergency Shelter
(8) Event, Mass Gathering
(9) Governmental Operation

(19) Home-based Business (Low Impact)
(11) Parking Lot

(12) Places of Worship/Religious Institution
(13 Reception Facility

(14) Recreation, Municipal

(15} School, PreK-12

(16} Senior Independent Housing

(17)

Section 21-46 City Residential (R-2) District Lot Requirements.

'Max. Building Height 80 feet

Min. Lot Size (Sq. Ft.) No minimum
Min. Lot Width No minimum
Max. Lot Coverage (as a %) Interior lot: 40

Comer lot: 50

Triangular lot: 60

Min. Front Setback Average of the two adjoining properties which
have pre-existing structures*

15 feet for vacant lots**

Min. Side Setback If structure height is 40 feet or less = 5 feet
If structure height is more than 40 feet = 15 feet
Min. Rear Setback Not less than 15 percent of the depth of the lot

*Only the setbacks on the lots that abut each side of the site and are on the same street
may be used. Setbacks across the street or along a different street may not be used.
**When one adjacent lot is vacant, the average is of the setback of the adjacent non-
vacant lot and the required setback for the vacant lot. When the subject lot is a corner
lot, the average is of the setback of the adjacent non-vacant lot and the required setback
of the subject lot.

Section 21-47 Recreational (Rec) District.
The purpose of the Recreational District is to provide for recreation opportunities and facilities
and to protect open space to preserve the natural beauty of the City.

Section 21-48 Permitted Uses in the Recreational (Rec) District.




(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the Recreational (Rec) District:
¢)) Amphitheater
2) Bus/Transit Shelter
3) Dock
4) Essential Utilities and Equipment
(5 Event, Mass Gathering
(6) Event, Special
@) Farmer’s Market
) Greenhouse, Noncommercial
)] Group Residential Facility
(10) Group Residential Home
(11) Park
(12) Reception Facility
(13) Recreation, Municipal
(14) Solar Energy Facility, Smali
(15) Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells

Section 21-49  Conditional Uses in the Recreational (Rec) District.
(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the Recreational (Rec) District:
(1) Parking Lot
(2) Sports Arena

Sectmn 2150 Recreatwnal Rec) District Lot Requirements.

"Max. Buxldmg HelLt ] | No maximum

Min. Lot Size (8q. Ft.) No minimum
Min. Lot Width No minimum
Max. Lot Coverage (as a %) No maximum
Min, Front Setback No minimum |
Min. Side Setback No minimum |
Min. Rear Sethack No minimum

Section 21-51 Central Business (CBD) District.

The purpose of the Central Business District is to encourage a centralized area of mixed
commercial and residential uses. The goal of this district is to provide convenient, pedestrian-
oriented business that meet the needs of residents in this neighborhood and surrounding
neighborhoods, as well as walkable dining and entertainment options that are attractive for
residents and visitors alike.

Section 21-52 Permitted uses in the Central Business (CBD) District.
(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the Central Business (CBD) District:

)] Amphitheater
2) Animal Hospital/Veterinary Office
3) Bakery
“ Bank/Financial Institution
(5) Bed and Breakfast Inn I
(6) Bed and Breakfast Inn 11



(7)

(8)

©)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(1)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(1)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)
(37
(38)
(39)
(40)
(41)
(42)
(43)
(44)
(45)
(46)
(47)
(48)
(49)
(50)
(51}
(32)
(33)
(54)
(33)

Bed and Breakfast Inn III
Brewery Pub

Bus/Transit Shelter

Butcher Shop

Catering Business

Child Day Care Facility, Class 1
Child Day Care Facility, Class 2
Child Day Care Facility, Class 3
Child Day Care Facility, Class 4
Clinic

Community Facility
Convenience Store

Cultural Service

Distillery

Dock

Dwelling, Accessory

Dwelling, Mixed Use

Dwelling, Multi-family
Dwelling, Single-family
Dwelling, Two-family
Educational Institution

Essential Utilities and Equipment
Event, Mass Gathering

Event, Special

Farmer’s Market

Governmental Operations
Greenhouse, Noncommercial
Group Residential Facility

Group Residential Home

Health Club

Home-based Business (Low Impact)
Home-based Business (No Impact)
Laundromat

Liquor Store

Medical Cannabis Dispensary
Medical Cannabis Organization, Health Care
Office Supply Establishment
Park

Personal Service

Pet Shop

Pharmacy

Photographic Studio

Places of Worship/Religious Institution
Professional Services

Reception Facility

Recreation, Commercial Indoor
Recreation, Commercial Outdoor
Recreation, Municipal
Restaurant




(56) Retail Store/Shop <7,000

(57 Senior Independent Housing

(58) Solar Energy Facility, Small

(59) Studio, Dancing, Music or Art

(60) Tattoo Parlor/Body Piercing Studio

(61) Tavern/Drinking Establishment

(62) Theater

(63) Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells

Section 21-53  Conditional Uses in the Central Business (CBD) District.
(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the Central Business (CBD) District:

(1) Conversion of School/Church
(2) Dog Day Care
(3) Dwelling, Conversion Apartment
(4) Emergency Shelter
(5) Garage, Public
(6) Gas Station
(7) Hotel/Motel
(8) Medical Adult Day Care Center

(9} Night Club
(10) Parking Lot
(11) Parking Structure
(12) Private Club
(13) Retail Store/Shop 7,000 to 25,000
(14) Roadside Vendor Stand
(15) School, Commercial
(16) Shopping Center
17 Sports Arena
. (18} Winery

Section 21-54 Central Business (CBD) District Lot Requirements. _

| Max. Building Height 72feet

Min. Lot Size (Sq. Ft.) ' No minimum
Min. Lot Width No minimum
- Max. Lot Coverage (as a %) For commercial and industrial buildings, the

maximum percentage of lot occupancy may be
one hundred percent; provided, that the Building
Code and the sanitary provisions of this City
Code, and the provisions of this code with
reference to parking area, are fully complied

with,
Front Sethack 15 feet maximum
Min. Side Setback No minimum

Min. Rear Setback No minimum




Single family and Multi-Family Dwellings in the CBD district shall follow the
dimensional lot requirements for the City Residential Zoning District, except for

building height.

*no parking lots permitted within front yards

Section 21-55 Commercial (B-1) District.
The purpose of the Commercial District is to provide space for larger scale commercial
businesses that serve both the City and the traveling public.

Section 21-56 Permitted uses in the Commercial (B-1) District.

(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the Commercial (B-1) District:

(1)

@

)

)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

®)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
27
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)
(37)
(33

Animal Hospital/Veterinary Office
Automobile Car Wash
Automobile Repair/Service
Bakery

Bank/Financial Institution

Bed and Breakfast Inn I

Bed and Breakfast Inn II

Bed and Breakfast Inn III

Boat and Marine Sales/Service
Brewery Pub

Broadcasting Studio (radio/television)
Building Materials Facility
Bus/Transit Facilities
Bus/Transit Shelter

Butcher Shop

Catering Business

Child Day Care Facility, Class 1
Child Day Care Facility, Class 2
Child Day Care Facility, Class 3
Child Day Care Facility, Class 4
Clinic

Community Facility

Continuing Care Facility
Convenience Store

Cultural Service

Distillery

Distribution Facility

Dock

Dog Day Care

Dry Cleaner

Dwelling, Mixed Use

Dwelling, Multi-family
Dwelling, Single-family
Dwelling, Two-family
Educational Institution
Equipment Rental/Repair
Essential Utilities and Equipment
Event, Mass Gathering




(39) Event, Special

(40) Farm/Construction Equipment and Supply Sales
41 Farmer’s Market

(42) Funeral Home/Mortuary

(43) Garden Center

44) Governmental Operations

(45) Greenhouse, Commercial

(46) Greenhouse, Noncommercial

47 Group Residential Facility

(48) Group Residential Home

(49) Health Club

(50} Home-based Business (Low Impact)
(51) Home-based Business (No Impact)
(52) Hotel/Motel

(53) Laboratory

54 Laundromat

(55 Liquor Store

(56) Medical Adult Day Care Center
(57) Medical Cannabis Dispensary

(58) Medical Cannabis Organization, Health Care
(59) Office Supply Establishment

(60) Park

(61) Personal Service

(62) Pet Shop

(63) Pharmacy

(64) Photographic Studio

(65) Place of Worship/Religious Institution
(66) Private Club

(67) Professional Services

(68) Reception Facility

(69) Recreation, Commercial Indoor
(70) Recreation, Commercial Outdoor
71) Recreation, Municipal

(72) Restaurant

(73) Retail Store/Shop <7,000

(74) Retail Store/Shop 7,000 to 25,000
(75) School, Commercial

(76) School, PreK-12

(77) Senior Independent Housing

(78) Shopping Center

(79) Solar Energy Facility, Small

(80) Studio, Dancing, Music or Art

(81) Tattoo Parlor/Body Piercing Studio
(82) Tavemn/Drinking Establishment
(83) Theater

(84) Vehicles Sales/Rental and Service
(85) Video Gaming or Lottery Establishment
(86) Winery

87) Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells




Section 21-57  Conditional Uses in the Commercial (B-1) District.
(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the Commercial (B-1) District:

(1) Conversion of School/Church
(2) Emergency Sheiter
(3) Flea Market
(4) Gas Station
(5) Gas Station, Large
(6) Hospital

(7) Kennel

(8) Manufacturing (Light)

(9) Night Club

(10) Parcel Delivery Facility
(11 Parking Lot

(12) Parking Structure

(13) Recycling Facility

(14) Retail Store/Shop >25,000
(15) Roadside Vendor Stand
(16) Sports Arena

17) Theater, Drive-in

Section 21-58 Commercial (B-1) District Lot Requirements.

Max. Building Height 130 feet

Min. Let Size (Sq. Ft.) No Minimum

Min. Lot Width No Minimum

Max. Lot Coverage (as a %) No more than 90 percent
Min. Front Sethack No Minimum

Min. Side Setback No Minimum

Min. Rear Sethack No Minimum

Section 21-59 Educational (E) District,

The purpose of the Educational District is to provide for buildings and premises used by
educational institutions. In addition to buildings and uses associated directly with instructional
activities, this district also allows non-instructional uses related to or typically associated with
educational institutions, such as those necessary to meet the lodging, health, safety, and
entertainment needs of a student population and which may also benefit the larger community.

Section 21-60 Permitted uses in the Educational (E) District.

(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the Educational (E) District:
) Amphitheater
2) Bed and Breakfast Inn II

3) Broadcasting Studio (radio/television)
4) Bus/Transit Shelter

(5) Catering Business

(6) Clinic

N Cultural Service
®) Dock




9

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(I7)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
27
(28)
(29)
(30)
(1)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)
(37
(38)
(39)
(40)
(41)
(42)

Section 21-61

Dwelling, Single-family
Dwelling, Two-family
Educational Institution |
Equipment Rental/Repair |
Essential Utilities and Equipment
Event, Mass Gathering |
Event, Special

Greenhouse, Noncommercial

Group Residential Facility

Group Residential Home

Health Club

Home-based Business (Low Impact)

Home-based Business (No Impact)

Hotel/Motel

Laboratory

Park

Parking Lot

Pharmacy

Places of Worship/Religious Institution

Reception Facility

Recreation, Commercial Indoor

Recreation, Municipal

Restaurant

School, PreK to 12

Solar Energy Facility, Smalt

Solar Energy Facility, Large

Sports Arena

Studio, Dancing, Music, or Art

Tavern/Drinking Establishment

Temporary Shelter

Theater

Wind Energy Facility, Small

Wireless Telecommunications Facility

Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells

Conditional Uses in the Educational (E) District.

(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the Educational (E) District:
(1) Conversion of School/Church
(2} Hospital
(3) Parking Structure

_Section 21-62_Educational (E) District Lot Requir

o — .

Max. Building Height
Min. Lot Size (Sq. Ft.) No minimum
Min. Lot Width No Minimum
Max. Lot Coverage (as a %) The maximum percentage of lot occupancy may
' be one hundred percent; provided, that the
Building Code and the sanitary provisions of this




City Code, and the provisions of this code with
reference to parking area, are fully complied
with.

Min. Front Sethack Average of the two adjoining properties which
have pre-existing structures*
[5 feet for vacant lots**

Min. Side Setback 5 feet

Min. Rear Setback Not less than 15 percent of the depth of the lot

*Only the setbacks on the lots that abut each side of the site and are on the same street
may be used. Setbacks across the street or along a different street may not be used.

** When one adjacent lot is vacant, the average is of the setback of the adjacent non-
vacant lot and the required setback for the vacant lot. When the subject lot is a corner
lot, the average is of the setback of the adjacent non-vacant lot and the required setback

of the subject lot.

Section 21-63 Industrial (I-1) District.

The purpose of the Industrial District is to encourage location of industrial uses in one area to
more efficiently meet the infrastructure and other needs of such uses and to minimize their

external effects on the rest of the City’s zoning districts.

Section 21-64 Permitted Uses in the Industrial (I-1) District.

(a) The following shall be uses permitted by right in the Industrial (I-1) District:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(3)
(6)
(N
(8)
)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13}
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)

Animal Hospital/Veterinary Office
Automobile Car Wash
Automobile Repair/Service
Bakery

Bank/Financial Institution

Boat and Marine Sales/Service
Brewery Pub

Broadcasting Studio (radio/television)
Building Material Facility
Bus/Transit Facilities

Bus/Transit Shelter

Butcher Shop

Distribution Facility

Convenience Store

Distillery

Dock

Dog Day Care

Dry Cleaner

Equipment Rental/Repair
Essential Utilities and Equipment
Event, Mass Gathering

Event, Special

Farm/Construction Equipment and Supply Sales
Farmer’s Market

Garden Center

Gas Station




27)
(28)
29)
(30)
3D
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)
(37)
(38)
(39)
(40)
@)
(42)
(43)
(44)
45)
(46)
@7)
(48)
(49)
(50)
(51)
(52)
(53)
(s4)
(55)
(56)
(57)
(58)
(59)
(60)
61)
(62)
63)
(64)

Section 21-65

Gas Station, Large
Governmental Operations
Greenhouse, Commercial
Greenhouse, Noncommercial
Group Residential Facility
Group Residential Home
Home-based Business (No Impact)
Industrial Park
Laboratory
Manufacturing (Light)
Medical Cannabis Dispensary
Medical Cannabis Growing Facility
Medical Cannabis Processing Facility
Parcel Delivery Facility
Parking Lot
Places of Worship/Religious Institution
Photographic Studio
Reception Facility
Recreation, Indoor
Recreation, Quidoor
Recreation, Municipal
Recycling Facility
Research and Development
Restaurant
Retail Store/Shop <7,000 square fect
Retail Store/Shop 7,000 square feet to 25,000 square feet
School, Commercial
Self-storage Facility
Solar Energy Facility, Small
Solar Energy Facility, Large
Solid Waste Disposal Area/Facility, Private
Solid Waste Disposal Area/Facility, Public
Tavern/Drinking Establishment
Warchouse
Wholesale Establishment
Winery
Wireless Telecommunications Facility
Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Small Cells

Conditional Uses in the Industrial (1-1) District.

(a) The following shall be conditional uses in the Industrial (I-1) District:
(1) Adult Business
(2) Conversion of School/Church
(3) Extractive Industry
(4) Freight Terminal
(5) Incinerator
(6) Lumberyard
(7) Manufacturing (Heavy)




(8) Parking Structure

(9) Retail Store/Shop >25,000 square feet
(10) Salvage Yard

(1D Truck Terminal

Section 21-66 Industrial District Lot Requirements.

Max. Building Height 1100 feet

Min. Lot Size (S8q. Ft.) No Minimum

Min. Lot Width No Minimum

Max. Lot Coverage (as a %) 90 percent

Min. Front Setback No Minimum

Min. Side Setback No Minimum

Min. Rear Sethack No Minimum

Section 21-71A Telecommunications Overlay (TO) District.

The purpose of the Telecommunications Overlay is to ensure that telecommunication facilities
may locate within the city in a manner that best serves local needs and the concerns of citizens.

Section 21-73 General provisions.

In addition to the uses permitted by right or as a conditional use, as specified in the underlying
districts, wireless telecommunication facilities are permitted by right within the
Telecommunications Overlay District, as shown on the Official Zoning Map, and shall be subject
to the supplemental provisions provided in Section 21-135A,

Section 21-74A Article V1. Supplemental Regulations,

Section 21-75 Purpaose.

The purpose of this article is to establish standards and policies for specific uses in all districts
that require particular considerations. These regulations will supplement general development
standards by establishing uniform criteria for each use—whether a permitted use by right or a
conditional use—and are set forth to achieve compatibility with the principal uses permitted in a
zoning district. The provisions for this article shall apply in addition to any other applicable
zoning regulations.

Section 21-76 Adult Business.

(a) Purpose. It is the purpose of this Section to regulate sexually oriented businesses in order to
promote the health, safety, moral and general welfare of the citizens of the City, and to
establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of
sexually oriented businesses within the City. The provisions of this Ordinance have neither
the purpose nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable
access to any communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is
neither the intent nor effect of this Ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually
oriented materials protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors
and exhibitors of sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the
intent nor effect of this Ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene
material.



(b) Findings and rationale. Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult uses
presented in hearings and in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings,
interpretations, and narrowing constructions incorporated in the cases of City of Littleton v.
Z.]J. Gifts D-4, I.L.C., 541 U.S. 774 (2004); City of Los Angeles v. Alameda Books, Inc.,
535 U.S. 425 (2002); City of Erie v. Pap's A.M., 529 U.S. 277 (2000); City of Renton v.
Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986); Young v. American Mini Theatres, 427 U.S. 50
(1976); Barnes v. Glen Theatre, Inc., 501 U.S. 560 (1991); California v. LaRue, 409 U.S. 109
(1972); and Fantasy Ranch, Inc. v. City of Arlington, No. 04-11337, 2006 WL 2147559 (5th
Cir. 2006); N.W, Enters. v. City of Houston, 352 F.3d 162 (5th Cir. 2003); Baby Dolls
Topless Saloons, Inc. v. City of Dallas, 295 F.3d 471 (5th Cir. 2002); BGHA, LLC v. City of
Universal City, 210 F. Supp. 2d (W.D. Tex. 2002), ajf'd 340 F.3d 295 (5th Cir. 2003); LLEH,
Inc. v. Wichita County, 289 F.3d 358 (5th Cir. 2002); Hang On, Inc. v. City of Arlington, 65
F.3d 1248 (5th Cir. 1995); Woodall v. City of El Paso, 49 F.3d 1120 (5th Cir. 1995); J&B
Entertainment, Inc. v. City of Jackson, 152 F.3d 362 (5th Cir. 1998); SDJ, Inc. v. City of
Houston, 837 F.2d 1268 (5th Cir. 1988); TK's Video, Inc. v. Denton County, 24 F.3d 705
(5th Cir. 1994); Heideman v. South Salt Lake City, 342 F.3d 1182 (10th Cir. 2003); Lady J.
Lingerie, Inc. v. City of Jacksonville, 973 F. Supp. 1428 (M.D. Fla. 1997), ajf'd 176 F.3d
1358 (11th Cir. 1999); Cir for Fair Public Policy v. Maricopa County, 336 F.3d 1152 (Sth
Cir, 2003); World Wide Video of Washington, In¢. v. City of Spokane, 368 F.3d 1186 (5th
Cir. 2004); Reliable Consultants, Inc. v. City of Kennedale, Case No. 4:05-CV-166-A (N.D.
Tex., May 16, 2005); Sensations, Inc. v. City of Grand Rapids, 2006 WL 2504388 (W.D.
Mich., Aug. 28, 2006); Gammoh v. City of La Habra, 395 F.3d 1114 (9th Cir. 2005); Ben's
Bar, Inc. v. Village of Somerset, 316 F.3d 702 (7th Cir. 2003); And based upon reports
concerning secondary effects occurring in and around sexually oriented businesses,
including, but not limited to, Austin, Texas - 1986; Indianapolis, Indiana - 1984; Garden
Cove, California - 1991; Houston, Texas - 1983; Phoenix, Arizona - 1979, 1995-98;
Chattanooga, Tennessee - 1999-2003; Minneapolis, Minnesota - 1980; Los Angeles,
California - 1977; Whittier, California - 1978; Spokane, Washington - 2001; St. Cloud,
Minnesota - 1994; Littleton, Colorado - 2004; Oklahoma City, Oklahoma - 1986; Dallas,
Texas - 1997, 2004; Greensboro, North Carolina - 2003; Kennedale, Texas - 2005;
Effingham, Illinois - 2005; Amarillo, Texas - 1977, El Paso, Texas -1986; New York, New
York Times Square - 1994; and the Report of the Attorney General's Working Group on the
Regulation of Sexually Oriented Businesses (June 6, 1989, State of Minnesota), the City
Council finds:

(1) Sexually oriented businesses, as a category of commercial uses, are associated with a
wide variety of adverse secondary effects including, but not limited to personal and
property crimes, prostitution, potential spread of disease, lewdness, public indecency,
obscenity, illicit drug use and drug trafficking, negative impacts on surrounding
properties, urban blight, litter and sexual assault and exploitation.

{2) Sexually oriented businesses should be separated from sensitive land uses to minimize
the impact of their secondary effects upon such uses, and should be separated from other
sexually oriented businesses, to minimize the secondary effects associated with such uses
and to prevent an unnecessary concentration of sexually oriented businesses in one area.

(3) Each of the foregoing negative secondary effects constitutes a harm, which the City has a
substantial government interest in preventing and/or abating. This substantial government
interest in preventing secondary effects, which is the City's rationale for this Ordinance,
exists independent of any comparative analysis between sexually oriented and non-
sexually oriented businesses. Additionally, the City's interests in regulating sexually
oriented businesses extend to preventing future secondary effects of either current or



(©)

(d)

(e}

(B

future sexnally oriented businesses that may locate in the City. The City finds that the
cases and documentation relied on in this Ordinance are reasonably believed to be
relevant to said secondary effects.
No such adult establishment shall be located less than one thousand (1,000) feet from a
school zone, place of worship, library, day care center, civic building, park, historic district,
dwelling, lot with residential districting, or other adult establishment as measured from front
door to front door along the curb line of public strects providing access.
All doors, windows, and other apertures shall be located and covered or screened with
opaque glazing to discourage and prevent visibility or viewing of the interior.
No exterior signage, building element, advertisement, display, or other promotional material
shall be pornographic in nature or convey any such idea or element to specified anatomical
areas, as defined in this code.
In the event that an activity or business which might fall under a use category other than
adult business is combined with or includes activities which constitute an adult bookstore,
adult movie theater or movie house, or adult entertainment, as defined herein, then such
activity or business shall constitute an adult business and shall be governed by those
provisions in this code applicable to adult business uses, in addition to those provisions that
govern the combined use.

Section 21-77 Automeobile Car Wash.

(a) The minimum distance between any buildings, including accessory uses, and any
Residential District shall be fifty (50) feet.

{(b) Exterior lighting shall be shielded so that it is deflected away from adjacent properties
and from passing motorists.

{c) A fence with a minimum height of six feet shall be provided along the interior side and
rear property line, when adjacent to a dwelling, to protect the dwelling from light and
noise and eliminate blowing debris, and to protect adjacent property values. The fence
shall be constructed of masonry, concrete, wood or other similar materials.

(d) All of the area to be utilized by the washing and drying operations, including all ingress
and egress areas, shall be paved with concrete, asphalt or asphaltic concrete.

(e) Where such use is located adjacent to residentially zoned property or property used for
residential purposes, hours of operation shall be limited to between 6 a.m. and 10 p.m.

() Two (2) off-street waiting spaces for each car washing device or stall are required, or two
(2) off-street waiting spaces for an assembly line type washing establishment, and two (2)
parking spaces at the end of each washing bay for drying and hand finishing vehicles.

(g) Audible electronic devices such as loudspeakers, automobile service order devices, and
similar instruments, on-site lighting, and drive-through lanes shall be designed and
located such that noise, exhaust fumes, and stray light shall not unreasonably impact
adjacent properties.

Section 21-78 Automobile Repair/Service.

(a) The only vehicles which may be stored outside in connection with the business include:
(1) Customer vehicles awaiting service may be stored outside for a period not to
exceed two (2) weeks and a work order or some other written proof must be
provided to show that the vehicle is actually awaiting service.
(2) Employees’ personal vehicles used for travel to and from work.
(3) A vehicle used in connection with the auto repair operation, such as a wrecker.
(b) Vehicles which may not be stored outside are:
(1) Inoperable vehicles which are not awaiting service,




(2) Inoperable vehicles which are being scrapped or used for replacement parts for
another vehicle being repaired.

(3) Operable vehicles not awaiting service and not used in connection with the
business.

(c) No portion of an automotive repair or service station or any part of their appurtenances or
accessory uses shall be placed within fifty (50) feet of any residential dwelling.

(d) Audible electronic devices such as loudspeakers, automobile service order devices, and
similar instruments, on-site lighting, and drive-through lanes shall be designed and
located such that noise, exhaust fumes, and stray light shall not unreasenably impact
adjacent properties.

Section 21-79 Bed and Breakfast Inn I, II, and IIL

(a) A bed and breakfast inn may or may not offer ancillary services only to guests such as
providing breakfast, private parties, and evening and lunch meals; holding private
outdoor events such as weddings, fundraising or civic events for local clubs, and special
dinners or meals; and operating gift shops.

(b) All private residences used as bed and breakfast inns shall be virtually indistinguishable
from surrounding residential units.

- (¢} Signs for residences used as a bed and breakfast inn are subject to the sign regulations for
signs accessory to dwellings.

(d) Cooking facilities within bedrooms are prohibited.

(e) A private residence used as a Bed and Breakfast Inn II shall have a minimum heated
gross floor area of two thousand and five hundred (2,500) square feet.

(f) A Bed and Breakfast Inn I shall not employ individuals other than a permanent resident
of the private residence. A Bed and Breakfast Inn IT may employ one (1) individual other
than a permanent resident of the private residence.

(g) All bed and breakfast inns shall comply with the provisions of West Virginia Code
Section 29-3-16¢, Safety Standards for Bed and Breakfast Establishments.

Section 21-80 Child Day Care Facility.

(a) All childcare providers, whether state or privately operated, shall obtain a license from
the West Virginia Secretary of State and the Department of Health and Human
Resources. Each facility shall also be inspected by the Zoning Officer and Fire Marshal
to ensure the safety of children and employees.

(b) A facility shall provide a minimum of thirty-five (35) square feet of usable space per
child. Any rooms or areas that have not been approved for the use of children shall be
inaccessible. No activity space may be created in the basement of a structure unless
expressly approved by the Fire Marshal. ‘

(c) A secured outdoor activity area must be provided by the facility allowing a minimum of
seventy-five (75) square feet of space per child. Should the minimum space not be
available, a rotating outdoor activity schedule shall be established to meet the minimum
requirements and ensure that each child be afforded outdoor playtime every day, weather
permitting,.

(d)} The outdoor activity arca noted above shall be fenced with a minimum of six (6) foot
high fence. All play equipment shall be located in the fenced areas in the rear or side
yard. All gates shall be self-latching

(e} Parks may be used to meet outdoor activity requirements if located immediately adjacent
to the facility.




(f) Child day care businesses operated from a residence shall be operated by a permanent
resident. No changes to the exterior of residences may be made for a child day care
business operated from a residence except changes necessary for safety improvements,

Section 21-81 Dog Dayv Care.
All Dog Day Care facilities must comply with the following criteria:

(a) The hours of operation shall be limited daily any time between 7 a.m. and 9 p.m.

(b) Dogs may be groomed, trained, exercised, and socialized, but not kept or boarded
overnight, bred, sold, or let for hire,

(¢) There shall be no more than thirty (30) dogs on the premiscs at one time.

(d) Provide indoor and/or outdoor recreational areas for dogs. Indoor recreational area shall
be at least one hundred (100) square feet per dog, and outdoor recreational area shall be
at least one hundred and fifty (150) square feet per dog.

(e} Provide sight-obscuring fencing for all on-site outdoor recreation areas. The fence shall
provide full containment for the dogs and be secured at all times. The fence structure
shall be deep enough and secured to the ground to prevent escape and high enough to
prevent dogs from jumping or climbing over. The fence shall comply with all fence
provisions in this ordinance.

(f) If there is a grooming facility on site, it must be physically separated from primary
enclosure areas and food storage.

(g) Feces, hair, dirt, debris, and food waste must be removed at least daily or more often if
necessary to prevent accumulation and to reduce disease hazards, insects, pests and
odors.

Section 21-82 Drive-through Facility.
The following parking standards shall apply to all drive-up windows and drive-through uses
permitted by this ordinance:

(a) The use shall not require an additional curb-cut in the pedestrian right-of-way;

(b) Public address speakers, on-site lighting, and drive-through lanes shall be designed and
located such that noise, exhaust fumes, and stray light shall not unreasonably impact
adjacent properties.

" (¢) Minimum Queue Spaces for Drive-up Windows and Drive-through:
(1) Bank Teller Lane: 3
(2) Automated Teiler Machine: 2
(3) Restaurant Drive-Through: 4
(4) Car Wash Stall, Automatic: 2
(5) Car Wash Stall Self-service: 2
(6) Gasoline Pump Island: 1
(7) All Other Retail Uses: 3

(d) Each queue space shall be a minimum of ten (10} feet wide by twenty (20) feet long in
size. Each queue lane shall be clearly defined and designed so as not to conflict or
nterfere with other pedestrian or vehicular traffic using the site.

Section 21-83 Events, Mass Gathering.
(a) A permit is required for each mass gathering event.




(b) The applicant shall be the owner or co-owner of the property. An owner or a
representative of the owner shall be present on the property at all times during the mass
gathering event.

(c) Mass events shall occur outdoors, in temporary structures, or existing permanent
structures. New permanent structures shall not be constructed for special events.

(d) Mass gathering events shall cause no alteration to land including, but not limited to,
grading, filling, or paving.

(¢) The duration of each mass event shall not exceed three (3) consecutive days, provided
activities shall only occur between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 11:59 p.m.

(f) Within any single calendar year, a parcel may host no more than four (4) mass events.

(g) A parking plan shall be submitted as part of the permit process. Adequate on-site parking
areas shall be provided to accommodate the number of vehicles expected. Off-site
parking areas are permitted if the applicant provides written authorization from the
property owner for those sites. The applicant shall post signs safely directing people to
the parking sites. There shall be no parking on any public roads.

(h) Local emergency medical services (EMS) shall be notified of all mass events. The holder
of the mass event shall provide EMS with the number of people projected to attend.

(i) All garbage shall be removed from site within five (5) days.

(j) Trained security is required on site for all mass events.

(k) All lighting and sound shall be aligned so as to minimize impact on nearby residents and
shall conform to requirements of this code and other applicable city ordinances.

(I) The site shall provide potable water supply and proper sanitation facilities.

(m)The sale of alcohol is permitted. All sales of alcohol shall be regulated by the West
Virginia Alcohol Beverage Control Administration.

(n) The owner of the property shall procure a liability insurance policy. Proof of the liability
insurance in the minimum amount of $2,000,000 per occurrence and which lists the City
of Elkins as co-insured on the policy shall be submitted with the permit application,

(0) All mass gathering events shall contact the following agencies: the City of Elkins Police
Department, a West Virginia licensed EMS provider, licensed garbage removal company,
licensed towing company, the County Health Department (approval or permit required),
West Virginia Division of Highways (approval or permit required), and County
Homeland Security.

Section 21-84 Events, Special.

(a) A permit is required for each special event.

(b} All garbage shall be removed from site within five (5) days.

(c) The permit applicant shall be the owner or co-owner of the property. An owner or a
representative of the owner shall be present on the property at all times during the special
event.

(d) Special events shall occur outdoors, in temporary structures, or existing permanent
structures. New permanent structures shall not be constructed for special events.

(e) Special events shall cause no alteration to land including, but not limited to, grading,
filling, or paving.

(f) The duration of each special event shall not exceed three (3) consecutive days, provided
activities shall occur only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 11:59 p.m.

(g) A parking plan shall be submitted as part of the permit process.

(h) The owner of the property shall procure a liability insurance policy. Proof of the liability
insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and which lists the City
of Elkins as co-insured on the policy shall be submitted with the permit application.




(i) Local emergency medical services (EMS) shall be notified of all events. The holder of
the event shall provide EMS with the number of people projected to attend.

Section 21-85 Garage Sales.

(a) No more than four (4) garage sales, yard sales, or rummage sales are permitted within !
any twelve (12) month period for each residence.

(b) For the purpose of this section, garage sale, yard sale, estate sale, and rummage sale shall
be deemed to mean the same thing.

(c) Sales must be contained within the individual’s property and may not encroach into a
public right-of-way.

(d) Each garage sale shall not be permitted to last more than seventy-two (72) hours.

(e) A garage sale shall not include the sale of new merchandise.

(f) Tents may be used during the event subject to subsection (c) above and must be removed
immediately following the conclusion of each event.

(g) All items must be removed from the exterior of the premise at the end of the sales event.

Section 21-86 Garden Center.
(a) Parking and loading facilities and signage shall be screened from adjoining residentially
zoned properties.
(b} Display, sale, or repair of motorized nursery or garden equipment shall not be permitted.

Section 21-87 Greenhouse, Noncommercial.
(a) The greenhouse shall not be located in the front yard.
(b) Greenhouse shall not create offensive odors or dust.

Section 21-88 Home-based Business (No Impact).
The business activity must satisfy the following requirements:

(a) The home-based business shall only employ individuals residing in the dwelling.

(b) A home-based business shall not change the residential character of the dwelling and
shall not detract from the residential character of the neighborhood.

(c) The business activity shall be compatible with the residential use of the property and
surrounding residential uses.

(d) A home-based business shall not display or sell retail goods or stockpile inventory of a
substantial nature.

(e) There shall be no outside appearance of a business use, including, but not limited to,
parking or lights, except signs, as permitted in Article VIII: Sign Regulations, provided
signs meet all requirements in that section.

() The business activity may not use any equipment or process which creates noise,
vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical or electronic interference, including
interference with radio or television reception, which is detectable in the neighborhood.

(g) The business activity may not generate any solid waste or sewage discharge, in volume or
type, which is not normally associated with residential use in the neighborhood.

(h) The business activity shall be conducted only within the dwelling and may not occupy
more than twenty-five (25%) percent of the gross floor area.

(i) No traffic shall be generated by such home-based business in excess of that normally
associated with residential use.

(1) The business may not involve any illegal activity.



Section 21-89 Home-based Business (Low Impact).
The business or commercial activity conducted as a home-based business must satisfy the
following criteria:

(a) Customer, client, patient, or other traffic shall be restricted to 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

(b) No more than twelve (12} visits to the home-based business shall be allowed per day,
except as necessary to operate childcare facilities in accordance with the West Virginia
Code; such vigits may be addressed in a conditional use permit. A “visit” is defined as a
stop at the business premises by one automobile transporting one or more customers,
clients, patients, packages/parcels, or other business associates. A visit does not include
the operator of the business, members of his/her family, or the business employee.

(c) The business or commercial activity shall not change the residential character of the
dwelling and shall not detract from the residential character of the neighborhood.

(d) The home-based business shall not employ individuals living outside the dwelling to
physically work at the dwelling, except Bed and Breakfast Inns may employ one (1)
nonresident employees to physically work at the Bed and Breakfast Inn.

(e) The business or commercial activity may not use any equipment or processes, which
create noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors or electrical or electronic interference,
including interference with radio or television reception, which is detectable in the
surrounding neighborhood.

(f) The business or commercial activity may not generate any solid waste or sewage
discharge, in volume or type, which is not normally associated with the use of a dwelling
in the neighborhood.

(g) The business activity may not occupy more than twenty-five (25%) percent of the gross
floor area of the residence.

(h) The business may not involve any illegal activity.

(1) Any outdoor display or storage of materials, goods, supplies or equipment shall be
prohibited, other than the signs.

(j) No traffic shall be generated by such home occupation in greater volumes than would
normally be expected in a residential neighborhood, and any need for parking generated
by the conduct of such home occupation shall be met by off-street parking.

Section 21-90 Incinerator.

(a) The incinerator is located so as to minimize incompatibility with the character of the
surrounding area and to minimize the effect on the value of the surrounding property.

(b) The incinerator shall not be located within fifteen (15} feet of any building or structure
and shall be positioned so that there is not direct exposure to buildings, wood fences, or
piled combustible materials in the event of failure of the spark arrestor. The incinerator
shall be located so that a nuisance is not created by reason of smoke, smell, or noise.

(c) Each incinerator must be set back a minimum of five hundred (500) feet from each
property line not adjacent to lands used or zoned for industrial purposes. A visual buffer
must be established and maintained between the incinerator and any existing residential,
commercial, or other non-industrial land use immediately adjacent.

(d) Each incinerator must be designed so that it meets and continues to meet all applicable
rules, regulations and requirements of the applicable state and federal regulatory
agencies. Each incinerator must be fully permitted by each such agency prior to
construction and/or continued operation.

(e) Each incinerator must be designed with adequate on-site controls and facilities to prevent
and contain fires.




Section 21-91 Medical Cannabis Organizations.

(a) The following supplemental provisions apply to all medical cannabis organizations or as
otherwise specified herein.

(b) No medical cannabis dispensary shall be located within one thousand (1000) feet of the
property line of a public, private or parochial school or a daycare center.

(c) No more than five (5) medical cannabis dispensaries are permitted within the City of
Elkins. No medical cannabis processing facilities and no medical cannabis growing
facilities are permitted within the City of Elkins.

(d) There shall be no emission of dust, fumes, vapors, noise, glare, vibration, or odors into
the environment from the premises of a medical cannabis organization.

(¢} The only medical cannabis uses permitted under this ordinance are those expressly
defined and permitted herein. Medical cannabis organizations may not be combined with
other uses.

(f) Medical cannabis organizations shall possess all applicable state licenses.

Section 21-92 Reception Facility.

(a) No activities that involve charging admission or that are solely performance activities are
permitted as part of this use.

(b) The owner or his or her designated representative shall be physically present on the
property at all times during receptions.

(c) All outdoor receptions, temporary structures, and parking areas associated with a
reception shall be located one hundred and fifty (150) feet to any property line.

(d) Lighting may be used for the duration of the reception only and may not shine or produce
glare on adjacent properties.

(e} The owner(s) shall ensure that ingress and egress during the reception to the venue does
not cause congestion on any public road.

(f) The owner(s) shall be responsible for the following: (1) sanitation (municipal waste and
recycling) facilities at the reception commensurate with the number of patrons attending
and (2) sanitary sewer facilities at the reception commensurate with the number of
patrons attending.

(g) The operation of the use shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws
and regulations.

Section 21-93 Salvage Yards.
Salvage yards shall be subject to the following regulations:
(a) The minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre.
(b) An eight (8) foot tall fence shall be placed along the entire perimeter of the property.
Fencing shall be at least ninety (90%) percent opaque,

Section 21-94 Tourist or Trailer Camp. 4
Tourist or trailer camps shall be located on at least one acre of land and shall provide usable plots
measuring no less than twelve hundred (1,200) square feet.

Section 21-95 Urban Agriculture.
(a} Definitions for this Section.
(1) “Beckeeping” means the keeping or propagation of honeybee hives for collection
of honey or other bee products.




(2) *“Community Garden” means a neighborhood-based development with the
primary purpose of providing space for members of the community to grow plants
for beautification, education, recreation, community distribution, or personal use.

(3) “Composting” means accumulating a mixture of various decaying organic
substances, such as dead leaves or manure, intended to be used for fertilizing soil.

(4) “Fow]” means any chicken, duck, goose, turkey, guinea fowl, or pigeon.

(5) “Home Agriculture” means the gardening or production, principally for use or
consumption of the property owner or resident, of plants or their products
including but not limited to fruits of all kinds including grapes, nuts, and berries;
vegetables; floral, ornamental, and other noncommercial greenhouse products;
and bees and apiary products.

(6) “Hydroponics™” means the cultivation of plants in nutrient solution rather than soil.

(7) “Livestock” means any hog, pig, goat, cow, horse, pony, emu, alpaca, or other
hoofed animal.

(b) Beekeeping. Beckeeping is permitted as an accessory use to a dwelling provided that:

(1) No more than three (3) hives, each with only one swarm, are allowed on lots of
less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet; and

(2) Hives shall not be located within twenty-five (25) feet of any lot line except when
situated eight (8) feet or more above the grade immediately adjacent to the grade
of the lot on which the hives are located or when situated less than eight (8) feet
above the adjacent existing lot grade and behind a solid fence or hedge six (6) feet
high parallel to any lot line within twenty-five (25) feet of a hive and extending at
least twenty (20) feet beyond the hive in both directions.

(3) On any lot where a hive is located, shall be posted a honeybee caution sign in or
near the apiary.

(¢) Community gardens. The responsibility of managing, maintenance, and operations of
community garden sites shall be that of the landowner or designated public or civic
entity, nonprofit organization, or other community-based organization. Processing and
storage of plants or plant products are prohibited on site. Garden tools and supplics may
be stored within an accessory structure.

(d) Composting. Composting shall take place at least twenty-five (25) feet from any principal
use, other than the principal use associated with the accessory use, except that this
requirement shall not apply to composting on rooftops.

(e) Keeping of fowl. The keeping of fowl is permitted as an accessory use to a dwelling,
provided that the number of fowl] shall not exceed six (6) and subject to the following
provisions:;

(1) A dwelling shall be located on the same lot as the fowl.

(2) Fowl shall be kept within a building, coop, or enclosure, and within a fully
enclosed and fenced rear or side yard such that fowl may not be at large within the
City. The building, coop, or enclosure in which the fowl are kept must be at least
five (5) feet from any dwelling, other than the dwelling associated with the
accessory use. The building, coop, or enclosure shall be durably constructed and
maintained in conformance with the West Virginia State Building Code.

(3) A permit is required for keeping fowl within the City. A permit may be obtained
from the City Clerk after application to the Zoning Officer and an inspection
performed by the Zoning Officer.

(f) Incidental sales. Any sale resulting from beekeeping, composting, home agriculture, or
keeping of fow! shall constitute a home-based business and is subject to all applicable
provisions of this code.



(g) Location. Beekeeping, composting, and keeping of fowl shall not take place in the front
yard of any lot. All urban agriculture uses are permitted in side and rear yards, as well as
orn rooftops.

(h) Prohibitions. The following provisions apply to all districts.

(1) Livestock shall not be kept within the City.

(2) Roosters shall not be kept within the City.

(3) Slaughtering and processing fowl are prohibited within the City, except where
such activity occurs within a butcher shop.

Section 21-96 Vehicle, Boat, and Marine Sales/Rental and Service.
Vehicle, boat, and marine repair, service, sales, and rental uses shall be subject to the following
conditions:

(a) Outdoor storage areas shall be located within the side or rear yards and screened from
adjacent properties with fencing or with a landscape buffer area, except that new and
used vehicles and boats currently being offered for sale, rent, or lease may be located in
the front yard, subject to yard, setback, and other requirements of this code.

(b) Activities involving excessive noise shall be conducted entirely within the confines of a
building sufficiently sound-insulated to effectively confine the noise.

(c) No vehicle, boat, or marine repair, service, sales, and rental uses shall be located less than
one hundred (100) feet from a residential district.

(d) Vehicle, boat, and marine sales uses shall have a minimum of six thousand (6,000) square
feet of outdoor display area.

Section 21-97 Video Lottery Establishment.

(a) The limited video lottery establishment shall not be located within one thousand (1,000)
feet of a residential zone, church or place of worship, school, park, community or
recreation facility, or other limited video lottery establishment.

(1) The one thousand (1,000) feet from a school, park, community or recreation

- facility, or residential zone shall be measured in a straight line from the nearest
point of the wall of a limited video lottery establishment to the nearest property
line of a school, park, community or recreation facility, or residential zone,

(2) The one thousand (1,000} feet from a church or place of worship shall be
measured in a straight line from the nearest point of the wall of the portion of the
building in which a limited video lottery is conducted to the nearest point of a
wall of a building in which church worship services or related activities are
conducted.

(3) The one thousand (1,000) feet from another limited video lottery establishment
shall be measured in a straight line from the nearest point of the wall of the
portion of the building in which a limited video lottery is conducted to the nearest
point of a wall in which another limited video lottery may be conducted.

(b) Organizations with a valid club license are limited to operating a maximum of ten (10)
LVL machines. Licensed clubs or taverns are limited to operating a maximum of five (5)
LVL machines.

Section 21-98 Wind Energy Facility, Small.




(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to regulate the placement, construction, and
modification of small wind energy facilities while promoting the safe, effective, and
efficient use of such facilities.

(b) Applicability. The requirements set forth in this section shall govern the siting of wind
energy facilities used to generate electricity or perform work that may be connected to the
utility grid pursuant to West Virginia’s net metering laws, serve as an independent source
of energy, or serve in a hybrid system.

(c) Siting requirements. The requirements for siting and construction of all small wind
energy facilities regulated by this section shall include the following:

(1) Small wind energy towers shall maintain a galvanized steel finish, unless FAA
standards require otherwise, or if the owner is attempting to conform the tower to
the surrounding environment and architecture, in which case it may be painted to
reduce visual obtrusiveness. A wind energy tower may be erected, maintained, or
operated on or as an attachment to a building on a lot. A photo simulation may be
required by the City.

(2) Wind energy facilities shall not be artificially lighted unless required by the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) or appropriate authority.

(3) No tower may be used to display a sign.

(4) The applicant shall provide evidence that the proposed height of the wind energy
facilities tower does not exceed the height recommended by the manufacturer or
distributor of the system. The tower height shall not exceed a maximum height of
seventy (70) fect on a parcel. When situated on or attached to a building, the total
height shall not exceed seventy (70) feet. The building itself shall otherwise
conform to the applicable height requirement under this ordinance.

(5) The applicant shall provide evidence that the provider of electric utility service to
the site has been informed of the applicant’s intent to install an interconnected,
customer-owned electricity generator, unless the applicant intends, and so states
on the application, that the system will not be connected to the electricity grid.
Notification will take place by having the electric utility provider sign the
conditional use permit application, but such signature does not construe approval
for net metering by the electric utility.

(6) Wind energy facilifies shall adhere to noise limits as established by the City of
Elkins’ ordinances. These levels, however, may be exceeded during short-term
events such as utility outages or severe windstorms.

(7) The applicant will provide information demonstrating that the system will be used
primarily to reduce on-site consumption of electricity.

(8) The minimum distance between the ground and any protruding blade utilized on a
small wind energy facility shall be fifteen (15) feet, as measured at the lowest
point of the arc of the blades. The lowest point of the arc of the blades shall be
ten feet above the height of any structure within seventy-five (75) feet of the base.
The supporting tower shall be enclosed with a six (6) foot tall fence or the base of
the tower shall not be climbable for a distance of ten (10) feet.

(9) The applicant will provide proof of adequate liability insurance for a small wind
energy facility. Whether or not the applicant is participating in the net metering
program, the applicant will be required to meet the insurance coverage
requirements as set forth in W. Va. Code R. 150-33-4 (2011).

(10) The small wind energy facility generators and alternators should be
constructed so as to prevent the emission of radio and television signals and shall




comply with the provisions of Section 47 of the Federal Code of Regulations, Part
15 and subsequent revisions governing said emissions.
(d) Federal and state requirements.

(1) Compliance with the Building Code. Building permit applications for wind
energy facilities shall be accompanied by standard drawings of the wind turbine
structure, including tower, base, and footings. An engineering analysis of the
tower showing compliance with the Building Code and certified by a licensed
professional engineer shall also be submitted.

(2) Compliance with FAA Regulations. Wind energy facilities must comply with
applicable FAA regulations,

(3) Compliance with National Electric Code. Building permit applications for wind
energy facilities shall be accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical
components in sufficient detail to aliow for a determination that the manner of
installation conforms to the National Electrical Code.

(4) Compliance with regulations governing energy net metering. Wind energy
facilities connected to the utility grid must comply with West Virginia Code
Section 24-2F-8 and West Virginia Administrative Code Title 150, Series 33.

(5) Setbacks. The wind energy facilities shall be setback a distance at least equal to
on¢ hundred and ten (110) percent of the height of the tower plus the blade length
from all adjacent property lines and a distance equal at least to one hundred fifty
(150) percent of the tower height plus blade length from any dwelling inhabited
by humans on neighboring property. No portion of the wind energy facility,
including guy wire anchors, may be extended closer than ten (10) feet to the
property line.

(6) Removal of defective or abandoned wind energy facilities. Any wind energy
facility found to be unsafe by the Zoning Officer shall be repaired by the owner to
meet federal, state, and local safety standards or removed within six (6) months.
Any wind energy facility that is not operated for a continuous period of twelve
(12) months shall be considered abandoned and the owner of the facility shall
remove the turbine within ninety (90) days of receipt of notice from the Zoning
Officer instructing the owner to remove the abandoned wind energy facility.

Section 21-100A Article VII. General Regulations,

Section 21-101 Purpose.

Provide for special situations that must be regulated in such a manner as to promote orderly
development and to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare of the community. The
following supplemental regulations have been deemed necessary to clarify and carry out the
overall intent of this ordinance.

Section 21-102 Accessory Buildings, Uses, and Structures,

(a) All accessory buildings, uses, and structures shall require a permit. Accessory buildings,
accessory uses, and accessory structures shall be permitted in all districts, provided each
is customarily incidental and subordinate to a principal use. There must be a principal
structure on the lot, or an adjacent lot under the same ownership, prior to the issuance of
a permit for an accessory building or structure. Accessory buildings, uses, and structures
shall not be permitted in front yards.




(b) No use that is to be carried on in an accessory building or structure shall be in violation of
the permitted uses in that district.

(c) All permanent accessory buildings, uses, and structures shall be setback from all lot lines
three (3) feet.

(d) Accessory structures, except agricultural buildings and those located in the Industrial
District, shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet in height.

(e) In no situation shall an accessory building or structure be larger than the principal
structure.

(f) Except as provided elsewhere in this code, no accessory building or structure shall be
constructed and used as a dwelling. Provided, however, that one (1) residential unit for a
caretaker may be permitted in conjunction with any active industrial establishment.

Section 21-103 Yard Requirements.

All yards required to be provided under this code shall be open to the sky and unobstructed by
any building or structure except for accessory buildings or structures in the rear yard, and fences,
and the following which may project into the required yards as established in this code:

(a) Steps and stoops not exceeding twenty-four (24) square feet;

(b) Open or lattice-enclosed fire escapes, fireproof outside stairways and balconies opening
upon fire towers, and the ordinary projection of chimneys and flues into the rear or side
yard not exceeding three and one-half (3.5) feet in width and placed so as not to obstruct
light or ventilation; and

(¢} Sills, eaves, belt courses, cornices, and ornamental features not exceeding two (2) feet in
width.

(d) For purposes of determining the required yard for townhouse developments, setbacks
shall only apply from the perimeter of the main building to the perimeter of the parent
parcel upon which the building is situated.

Section 21-104 Additional Principal Buildings.

(a) Residential. Individual lots or subdivided parcels ten acres or less in size shall have no
building or buildings used for living purposes in addition to the principal residence.
Undivided land parcels of ten (10) acres or greater in size shall be limited to one (1)
residential building per ten (10) acre unit of undivided land area. This provision shall not
apply to factory-built home rental communities.

(b) Nonresidential. More than one principal building may be located upon the lot or tract of
nonresidential properties, but only when such buildings conform to all setback
requirements. Additional principal buildings may include a caretaker’s residence used in
conjunction with an active industrial establishment or a caretaker’s residence used in
conjunction with a place of worship or religious institution.

Section 21-105 Orientation of Principal Structures.

All principal structures shall be required to have the front door facing the street on which the
property is addressed, unless the Zoning Officer determines that the prevailing condition of the
developed lots fronting the same street would warrant a different orientation, or another
orientation is necessary for emergency services access.

Section 21-106 Swimming Pools.

Private swimming pools are permitted accessory uses only when located in rear yards.
Swimming pools and protective barriers must adhere to setback requirements within the zoning
district where the pool is to be located.




Section 21-107 Fences, Landscaping, and Screening,
Subject to the following conditions, fences and walls may be erected, and hedges and other
plantings may be grown along the boundaries of a lot:

(a) Clear sight triangle. Fences, hedges, other plantings, or walls at street corners shall not
interfere with any clear sight triangle. The height of such objects is restricted to two and
one-half (2.5) feet within the clear sight triangle. No fence, hedge, other plantings, or
walls shall otherwise impose a threat to the public safety, including by obstructing the
view of motorists to oncoming traffic or pedestrians.

(b) Height restrictions. Fences, walls, hedges, and other plantings used for the purpose of
screening shall not exceed forty-two (42) inches in height from the front building line
extending to the front lot line, and shall not exceed six (6) feet in height extending behind
the front building line of the main structure, excluding porches in the rear yard.

(c) Fences and walls. .

(1) Fences and walls shall be durably constructed and well maintained.

(2) Fences and walls that have deteriorated shall be replaced or removed immediately.

(3) Fence and walls shall not be constructed out of fabric, junk, junk vehicles, appliances,
tanks, barrels, razor wire, barbed wire, or electric fencing.

(4) The finished side of the fence shall be oriented towards the front of the lot or the
direction of the adjacent property owner, unless the fence is not visible from
adjoining property.

(d) Landscaped buffer areas.

(1) Five (5) foot landscaped buffer areas are the preferred method of buffering. However,
where a buffer strip is considered to be impracticable or inappropriate, an opaque
fence at least six (6) feet in height, in the rear or side yard, or four (4) feet in height in
the front yard so as to restrict a clear view beyond said buffer may be substituted in
whole or in part for a natural buffer, provided it is approved by the Zoning Officer.

(2) Landscaped buffer areas shall be continually maintained by the landowner. Any plant
material that does not survive shall be replaced within six (6) months. All landscaping
shall be kept free of refuse and debris.

(3) Landscaped buffer areas may be required by the Board of Zoning Appeals as a
condition of a conditional use permit.

(4) Landscaped buffer areas shall not be required where the lot abuts an area of existing
natural vegetation that effectively screens the lot from casual observation to a height
of at least eight (8) fect.

(5) At least fifty (50%) percent of the screen planting specimens shall be evergreens,
distributed evenly along the length of the barrier.

(6) All species within the screen planting shall be indigenous or otherwise well-suited to
the City except that trees with large leaves which could clog storm drains and trees
which are briitle, disease-prone, have low, spreading branches or shallow root
systems; which drop large fruit or much sap; or which are otherwise messy shall also
be avoided.

(7) Hedges shall be kept trimmed so that their branches shall not extend into the public
road, or upon the lands of an adjoining owner, more than eighteen inches over the
dividing line.

(8) No landscaping, tree, fence, wall or similar item shall obstruct the required clear sight
triangle. :

(¢) Property adjacent to dwellings and zoned or existing single-family residential property.
Landscaped buffer arcas shall be provided between any new development adjacent to



single-family residential property (existing or zoned) or adjacent to any dwelling, which

landscaping shall be at least five (5) feet wide and at least five (5) feet high, subject to

height limitations contained within this section.

(f) Parking lot screening. The following provisions apply only to new developments and
additions or renovations to existing nonresidential or multi-family uses where the
addition or renovation equals or exceeds one hundred and fifty (150%) percent of the
gross square feet of the principal structure; provided, that compliance with this section
shall be required only to the degree that the minimum parking requirement can still be
met.

(1) One interior island shall be provided for every ten (10) spaces or more spaces. No
island is required for nine (9} or fewer spaces. Each interior island shall also be not
less than five feet in width and extend along the entire length of the space. The
location of the interior islands should be staggered to avoid a regimented appearance.
At least one (1) tree shall be provided within each interior island.

(2) Peripheral landscaping shall be required along the side of a parking lot, driveway, or
loading area that abuts adjoining property that is not a right- of-way. A landscaping
strip af least five (5) feet in width shall be located between the parking area and the
abutting property lines, except where driveways or other openings may be required.
Between property lines, at least one (1) tree for each thirty (30) linear feet shall be
planted in the landscaping strip in addition to other planting materials.

(3) The owner and their agencies shall be responsible for providing, protecting and
maintaining all landscaping in healthy and growing conditions, replacing it when
necessary, and keeping it free from refuse and debris.

(g) Frontage landscaping. Landscaping shall be provided along all property boundaries
abutting the right-of-way of any street. A landscaping strip five (5) feet in width shall be
located along the right-of-way except where driveway or other openings may be required.
One tree shall be planted for each thirty (30) linear feet of the landscaping strip in
addition to other planting materials.

(h) Ground-mounted and monument signs. All non-temporary ground-mounted or
monument signs shall be installed with a minimum surround of three (3) feet of
regularly maintained floral and shrubbery landscaping in every direction.

Landscape Buffer Reguirements

LotC

Periphaeral parking " PR I
lat 3-foot buffer

Intedor [sand par .~ =
10parkingspaces B2 .. §
©

Frontage S-Toot bulfer
alorg right-of-way \

""" Building

Lot

Section 21-108 Clear Sight Triangle.

In a clear sight triangle, the entire area shall remain clear of obstructions to sight, including but
not limited to fences, hedges, other landscaping, and signs, above a plane established two and



one-half (2.5) feet in clevation to a height of eight (8) feet from grade level at the intersection of
any street, alley, or other public right-of-way centerline.

Section 21-109 Lot Lines and Irregular Lots.

(a) Corner lots. Comner lots shall have no rear lot line.

(b} Flag Lots. When the handle of a flag lot is less than the minimum width for a lot in the
zoning district in which it is located, the handle is not to be used in delineating the
minimum required lot width. The minimum lot width shall be taken from the front
building line. However, the handle shall be used in computing the required minimum lot
size, except that in no case shall the area of the handle constitute more than fifty (50%)
percent of the entire lot. No structures, whether primary or accessory, shall be placed in
the handle.

(¢) Lot Width. In a case where there is only one side lot line, lot width shall be measured
between such side lot line and the opposite rear lot lines or street line.

(d) Irreguiar Lots. Front setbacks for irregular lots shall be measured from the front ot line
adjacent to the street right of way with the greatest frontage in linear feet.

(e) Pie-Shaped Lots. Sctbacks on pie-shaped lots shall be measured at the closest point
between the building and the angled lot line.

(f) Rear lot line (Irregular). In the case of a lot having no street frontage or a lot of an odd
shape, only the one lot line farthest from any street shall be considered a rear lot line.
Where there is only one lot line other than street lot lines, it shall be considered the rear
lot line.

Section 21-110 Height Exceptions.

Spires, towers, domes, minarets, pinnacles, penthouses over elevator shafts, ventilation shafts,
chimneys, smoke stacks, and fire sprinkler tanks may be erected to a greater height than any limit
prescribed in these regulations, provided that such structures, when above such limit in height,
shall be fireproof, and no floor or compartment thereof shall be constructed or used for human
occupancy above the top story of the building upon which such structures are placed, and
provided that penthouses, ventilation shafts, and tanks shall be set back from the exterior walls
distances equal to their respective height above the adjacent roof.

Section 21-111 Storage, General.

(a) No lot or premise shall be used as a storage area for inoperable automobiles, appliances,
or the storage or collection of any other miscellaneous items unless permitted in this code
or by state statute. No lot or premise shall be used as a garbage dump or a dead animal
rendering plant nor may manure, rubbish, or unauthorized miscellancous refuse be stored
in the open.

(b) Hazardous materials. Any storage of hazardous material that is ancillary to a permitted
use or a conditional use shall meet the following conditions:

(1) All storage shall comply with all state, federal, and local regulations.
(2) Such material shall be listed and made known to the Chief of the City of Elkins Fire
Department.

Section 21-112 Storage of Trailer, Camping, and Recreational Equipment.
(a) At no time shall trailers or camping and recreational equipment be occupied or used for
living, sleeping, or housekeeping purposes while being temporarily or permanently
parked or stored on residential property, except as provided in subsection (d).




(b) Inoperable, dismantled, or unregistered recreational vehicles are not allowed in
residential zoning districts.

(c) There shall be no parking of recreational vehicles over or onto a public sidewalk.

(d} Guests with trailers or camping and recreational equipment may temporarily park and
occupy the trailer or camping and recreational equipment on a residential lot provided
that parking is limited to one (1) week each calendar month within the city per trailer or
piece of camping or recreational equipment.

Section 21-113 Performance Standards.

No use of land or structure in any district shall involve any element, or cause any condition that
may be dangerous, injurious, or noxious to any other property or person. Furthermore, every use
of land or structure in any district must observe the following performance requirements:

(a) No activities shall be permitted that carry objectionable substances onto neighboring
properties due to erosion by wind or water.

(b) No activity shall cause electrical disturbances adversely affecting radio, television, or
other communication equipment in the surrounding area.

(c) Noise, which is determined to be objectionable because of volume or frequency, shall be
muffled or otherwise controlled, except for fire sirens and related apparatuses used solely
for public safety purposes, or noises otherwise permitted by the City of Elkins Noise
Ordinance.

{d) No gases or fumes toxic to persons or injurious to property shall be permitted to escape
beyond the building in which they occur.

(e) No glare shall be seen from any street or any residential area.

() No intense earth-shaking vibration shall be created or maintained by any industry beyond
the property on which it is located.

Section 21-114 Lighting.

(a) All lighting shall be erected and maintained so that light is confined to the property and
will not cast direct light or glare upon adjacent properties or public rights of ways.

(b) All lighting shall be low intensity and shielded so there is no illumination of adjoining
residential properties.

(¢} Feature lighting, such as up lighting of trees or other plant material, seasonal lighting,
etc., shall be so arranged to reflect away from any residential structure. Such lighting
shall not create a glare on adjacent streets or properties.

(d) Building, parking, and all other exterior lighting shall be shielded and directed in a
manner such that lighting does not reflect or cause glare onto adjacent properties or
interfere with street traffic. Bare, unshaded bulbs are prohibited.

(e) All non-essential lighting shall be turned off after business hours, leaving only the
necessary lighting for security. Non-essential lighting applies includes display, aesthetic,
parking, and sign lighting.

() Lighting is required for all off-street parking areas and off-strect loading areas and for
driveways providing ingress and egress for all non-residential and multi-family
developments.

Section 21-115 Parking.




(a) Ingress and egress.

(1) Adequate ingress and egress to the parking facility shall be provided by clearly
defined driveways.

(2) In no event shall vehicles be permitted to back directly into the public street from
the off-street parking area.

(3) An alley shall not be considered adequate as the sole access for a parcel of land.

(b) Driveways.

(1) Driveways should be located to minimize traffic conflicts with traffic entering the
street from either the same or the opposite side of the street.

(2) For residential uses, only one (1) driveway access per unit is permitted. A lot
with at least one hundred (100) feet of frontage along a street may be permitted
one (1) additional driveway access.

(3) Non-residential properties in any zoning district with frontages of six hundred
(600} feet or less on any individual street are only permitted one (1) driveway
intersection per street.

(4) Non-residential properties in any zoning district with frontages greater than six
hundred (600) feet may be permitted a maximum of two (2) driveways per street
frontage, provided that such driveways are at least three hundred (300) feet apart
and that one (1) driveway is clearly marked for egress only and one (1) driveway
is clearly marked for ingress only.

(5) Regardless of frontage, a development may be restricted to a single driveway
depending on usage and interior and exterior traffic patterns.

(6) All access driveways shall be designed to conform to West Virginia DOT
specifications with regard to roads.

(c) On any lot, no wall, fence, hedge, tree, shrub, or other ¢bstruction shall be allowed which
dangerously obscures the view of approaching traffic along the street, or at any
intersection, including driveways.

(d) In a residential district, no more than forty (40) percent of the front yard may be used for
parking, including driveways. Vehicles may not be parked or stored upon any lawn or
landscaped area. All driveways and parking areas must be paved and if the application is
to extend an existing driveway or parking area, like material must be used. Drive or
parking shall be a durable and dustless surface with defined edges. Grass, soil, sand,
gravel, or other similar materials are not durable and dustless surfaces. Recreational
vehicles or trailers shall not be parked in the front yard setback for a pertod longer than
seventy-two (72) hours.

(e) Off-street parking spaces, with proper and safe access from a street, shall be provided on
all non-residential lots, either within a structure or in the open, to serve the uses upon that
lot.

(f) Parking requirements.

(1) The following minimum number of off-strect parking spaces per use shall be
provided for the uses indicated below as shown in Table 21-115(f): Minimum
Parking Spaces Required, except for uses operating within the Central Business
District.

(2) For uses not specified in this table the number of parking spaces shall be
determined by the Zoning Officer on the basis of similar requirements, number of
persons employed and number of visitors. Appeals to the determination of parking
spaces may be made to the Board of Zoning Appeals.

(3) All square footage is in gross floor area.




(4) For any nonconforming use which is hereafter damaged or partially destroyed,
and which is lawfully reconstructed, re-established, or repaired, off-street parking
and loading facilities equivalent to those maintained at the time of such damage or
partial destruction shall be restored and continued in operation; provided,
however, in no case shall it be necessary to restore or maintain parking or loading
facilities in excess of those required by this code for equivalent new uses.

Table 21-115(f): Minimum Parking Spaces Required

Use

| Minimum Number of Parking Spaces

Residential Uses

Single family residential

2 spaces per dwelling unit

Multi-family residential

1 per bedroom

Continying Care Facility

1 space per 3 beds and 1 space for each employee

Senior Independent Housing

1 per bedroom unit

Bed and Breakfast Inn

1 off-street space per guest room and 1 space for
each nonresident employee

Educational, Institutional, Secial and Fratern

al Uses

Assembly (Places of Worship, theaters,
auditoriums, etc.)

1 space per 4 fixed seats, 1 space per 60 square
feet of the main assembly where no fixed seats are
used

Community Facility

1 space per 1,000 sq. fi. of GFA and I space per
employee

Cultural Service

1 space per 300 sq. ft. of GFA

Educational Institution

2 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. of GFA

Park

5 spaces per acre of outdoor area

School, Pre-school to 12

2 spaces per classroom, 5 per classroom in high
schools

School, Commercial

6 spaces per classroom

Business and Industrial

Child Day Care Facilities

Class 1 and 2: 1 space per employee and |
additional space for every 10 children enrolled.
One designated drop off/pick-up space shall be
permitted

Class 3 and 4: no additional parking beyond the
normal residential requirements

Clinics

5 spaces for each doctor engaged at the clinic plus
one parking space for each employee

Commercial (Retail, Office)

| space for each 200 sq. f. of GFA

Hotels, Motels, etc.

1 space per guest room and 1 space for each 3
employees. One (1) space per 3 persons to the
maximum capacity of the largest banquet or
meeting room.

Industrial

1 space per employee on largest shift plus 5
customer parking spaces

Restaurant (Sit Down)/Tavern or Drinking
Establishment /Night Club

1 space per 100 sq. ft. of GFA plus 1 space per
employee

Restaurant (Carry Out)

1 space per 2 employees

Restaurant (Fast Food)

1 space per 2.5 seats plus 1 space per 2
employees




(g) Parking Space Dimensions

(1) For angle parking, stails shall be a minimum of nine (9) feet in width and eighteen
(18) feet in length.

(2) For parallel parking, stalls shall be minimum of eight (8) feet in width and twenty

"~ {20) feet in length.

(3) For compact space parking, stalls shall be not less than seven (7) feet wide and
sixteen (16) feet long, reserved for the parking of only one compact automobile.

(4) The minimum width of aisles providing access to stalls, varying with angle of the

parking, shall be as follows in Table 21-115(g): Parking Standards.

Table 21-115(g): Parking Standards
Minimum Aisle Width | Minimum Aisle
Angle of (Double-Sided Width (Single-Sided
Parking Parking) Parking)
Parallel 12° 127
45 12°-8” 12°-8”
60 16 16’
75 20° 18’
90 24° 18’

(h) The required parking area shall be measured exclusive of interior drives or maneuvering
areas.

(i) Parking spaces for use by persons with disabilities shall meet Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990 (ADA) standards.

(j) Nonresidential parking may be allowed in front, side, and rear yards, but no closer than
twenty-five (25) feet from a side or rear lot line or street right-of-way line,

(k) All parking areas shall be designed to be accessible year-round.

() Parking spaces shall be clearly delineated by suitable markings properly designed to
avoid slip hazards, such as by adding sand to painted markings. Short-term visitor
parking spaces shall be differentiated from long-term employee spaces by suitable
markings or signage.

Section 21-116 Off-street Loading Requirements.

In connection with any building or structure which is to be erected or substantially altered and
which requires the receipt or distribution of materials or merchandise by trucks or similar
vehicles, there shall be provided off-street loading berths not less than the minimum
requirements specified in this section, except in the Central Business District;

(a) Areas provided for the loading and unloading of delivery trucks and other vehicles and
for the servicing of shops by refuse collection, fuels, and other service vehicles shall be
arranged so that they may be used without:

(1) Blocking or interfering with the use of accessways, automobile parking facilities,
or pedestrian ways, or
(2) Backing out into a street.

(b} All required loading berths shall be located on the same lot as the use to be served, and
no portion of the vehicle shall project into any traffic lane. No loading berth for vehicles
of more than two (2) ton capacity shall be located less than one hundred (100) feet from
any residential district. No permitted or required loading berth shall be located within



fifty (50) feet of any property line. No loading facilities shall be constructed between the
building setback line and a street right-of-way line or within a required yard.

(c) All off-street loading areas shall be adequately buffered with a landscaped buffer area
from adjacent streets and properties and landscaped in accordance with the provisions of
this code.

Section 21-117 Satellite Signal Receiving Stations.

(a) General requirements.

(1) Satellite signal receiving stations shall be for the personal use of residents,
occupants, and their guests only. '

(2) Satellite signal receiving stations shall contain no graphic message or advertising
other than to identify the name of the company that provided the satellite.

(3} Only one Satellite signal receiving station is permitted per lot, unless there is
documentation provided to the Zoning Officer from the installer or satellite
company that snggests that more than one satellite is necessary in order to receive
the signals for the use and enjoyment of the property owner.

(4) Satellite signal receiving stations shall comply with all other provisions of this
code not otherwise in conflict with this section pertaining to accessory structures
for the particular zoning district in which such stations are to be installed.

(5) Satellite signal receiving stations shall be designed to withstand a wind force of
up to seventy (70) miles per hour without the use of supporting guy wires.

(b) Ground-mounted stations. Within all zoning districts, the following provisions shall
apply to satellite signal receiving stations:

(1) Ground-mounted stations shall only be mounted in the rear yard behind the
principal building or structure, shall not exceed an above grade height of fifteen
(15) feet, and shall not be located closer than five (5} feet to any lot line.

(2) If a lot or parcel cannot receive a signal for a ground station mounted in the rear
yard, the Zoning Officer may permit a ground-mounted station in the side yard or
front yard, subject to the following:

i. Ground-mounted stations shall not exceed an above grade height of five
(5) feet.

ii. Ground-mounted stations shall not be located closer than five feet to a side
lot line or front lot line.

iii. Ground-mounted stations shall be shielded or screened from view from the
front lot line with natural vegetation or fencing to provide maximum
screening or shielding without interfering with the signal.

iv. Ground-mounted stations shall be mounted in a concrete base in line with
grade, utilizing only metal supports of galvanized construction.

(3) Wiring between ground-mounted stations and any other structure shall be placed
underground.

(¢) Roof-mounted and side-mounted stations. Within all zoning districts, the following shall
apply to roof-mounted signal receiving stations or signal receiving stations affixed to the
side of a primary or accessory structure (“side-mounted station™):

(1) Roof-mounted stations shall be mounted directly on the roof of a primary or
accessory structure located in the rear yard and shall not be mounted on
appurtenances such as chimneys, towers, or spires.

(2) Side-mounted stations shall be mounted directly on the side of a primary or
accessory structure located in the rear yard and shall not be mounted on
appurtenances such as chimneys, towers, or spires.




(3) Roof-mounted stations mounted on the roof of a primary or accessory structure
shall not exceed a height of greater than five (5) feet above the roof on which it is
mounted. The height shall be measured vertically from the point at which such
station is mounted on the roof.

(4) No portion of a side-mounted station mounted on the side of a primary or
accessory structure shall be lower than seven (7) feet from the ground on which
the primary or accessory structure stands and shall not exceed a height greater
than five (5) feet above the location at which the station is mounted onto the side
of the primary or accessory structure.

Section 21-118 Temporary Uses.

(a) Except as provided in subsection (b), only the following uses are permitted temporarily,
for up to four consecutive weeks in one calendar year:

(1) Seasonal sales of such items as pumpkins, Christmas trees, firework stands, etc. in
commercial districts;

(2) Carnival, circus, and street fairs in commercial or industrial districts; and

(3) Mobile amusements and lighting equipment for promotion, advertisement, and
grand openings in commercial and industrial districts.

(b) Temporary permits may be issued for up to one (1) year for nonconforming uses incident
to housing and constructing projects including such structures and uses as storage of
building materials and machinery, the processing of building materials, and a real estate
office located on the tract being offered for sale, provided such permits are conditioned
upon agreement by the owner or operator to remove the structure or structures or use
upon expiration of the permit. Such permits may be renewed for no more than one (1)
additional year.

(c) A permit 1s required to be completed, returned to the Zoning Officer, and approved
before any temporary use may commence, in addition to any other requirements of the
Code of the City of Elkins, including but not limited to obtaining a business license.

Section 21-120A Article VIIIL Sign Regulations.

Section 21-121 Findings, Purpose, and Intent; Interpretation.

(a) Signs obstruct views, distract motorists, displace alternative uses for land, and pose other
problems that legitimately call for regulation. The purpose of this Article is to regulate
the size, color, illumination, movement, materials, location, height, and condition of all
signs placed on property for exterior observation, thus ensuring the protection of property
values; preservation of the character of the various neighborhoods; creation of a
convenient, attractive, and harmonious community; protection against destruction of or
encroachment upon historic areas; and the safety and welfare of pedestrians and wheeled
traffic, while providing convenience to citizens and encouraging economic development.
This Article allows adequate communication through signage while encouraging
aesthetic quality in the design, location, and size of signs. These regulations do not
entirely eliminate all of the harms that may be created by the installation and display of
signs. Rather, they strike an appropriate balance that preserves ample channels of
communication by means of signs while still reducing and mitigating the extent of the
harms caused by signs.

(b) This Article shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the First Amendment
guarantee of free speech. If any provision of this Article is found by a court of competent




jurisdiction to be invalid, such finding shall not affect the validity of other provisions of
this Article that can be given effect without the invalid provision.
(c) Signs not expressly permitted under this code are prohibited.

Section 21-122 Permit Required.

(a) Application for permit. Except as provided in this code, a permit s required prior to the
display and erection of any sign.

(1) An application for a permit shall be filed with the Zoning Officer on forms
furnished by the City. The applicant shall provide sufficient information to
determine if the proposed sign is permitted under this code and other applicable
law. An application for a temporary sign shall state the dates intended for the
erection and removal of the sign. All applications shall demonstrate that the
materials used for the sign are appropriate for the particular sign type; the
submission of manufacturer’s specifications is sufficient to demonstrate the use of
appropriate materials. An application for an electronic message display shall
include the manufacturer’s statement that the sign has been pre-programmed, to
the extent possible, to conform to the requirements of this code. Such
manufacturer’s statement shall include, where applicable, the pre-stacked sign
settings related to text and graphic features, message change features, message
change time intervals, day and night lighting requirements, and any other settings
capable of limiting the electronic message display such that the sign conforms to
this code.

(2) The Zoning Officer shall promptly process the permit application and approve the
application, reject the application, or notify the applicant of deficiencies in the
application within twenty (20) business days after receipt. Any application that
complies with all provisions of this code, the building code, and other applicable
laws shall be approved.

(3) If the application is rejected, the Zoning Officer shall provide a list of the reasons
for the rejection in writing. An application shall be rejected for noncompliance
with the terms of this code, building code, or other applicable law.

(b) Permit fee. A nonrefundable fee shall accompany all permit applications. The permit fee
schedule shall be set by the City. If the sign is part of a new construction or renovation
project, the cost of the permit fee shall be included in the total project permit fee.

(¢} Duration and revocation of permit. If a sign is not installed within six (6) months
following the issuance of a permit or the time period stated within the permit, or within
thirty (30) days for a temporary permit, the permit shall be void. The permit for a
temporary sign shall state its duration, not to exceed thirty (30) days unless otherwise
provided in this code. The Zoning Officer may revoke a permit under any of the
following circumstances:

(1) The information in the application was materially false or misleading;

(2) The sign as installed does not conform to the permit application; or

(3) The sign violates this code, building code, or other applicable law.

(d} Appeals. Appeals from the denial or granting of a permit shall be made to the Board of
Zoning Appeals pursuant to the process set forth in this code.

Section 21-123 Permit Not Required.

The purpose of not requiring a permit for some signage is to exempt certain signs that are
frequently used, often by private citizens, and that typically have less of an impact on the public
safety and aesthetic concerns of the community. Signs permitted under this section count towards




the maximum sign area and maximum number of signs allowed per use. A permit is not required
for:

(a) Signs required by law.

(b) Flags up to sixteen (16) square feet.

(c) The changing of messages on marquees and the repair of an existing permitted sign,
except that repair of a nonconforming sign must comply with this code.

(d) Temporary signs as follows, subject to sign arca and height limitations of the district in
which the sign is located:

(1) One (1) sign, no illumination, no more than thirty-two (32) square feet in area,
located on property where a building permit is active.

(2) On any property for sale or rent, one sign with a total area of up to six (6) square
feet and a maximum height of five (5) feet.

(3) On dwellings, no more than four (4) temporary signs with a total area of no more
than twelve (12) square feet.

(4) Window signs, provided that the total area of window signs does not exceed
twenty-five (25%) percent of the total area of all windows on each building
fagade, and such signs are removed within thirty (30) days after being erected.

(5) Banners for not more than fifteen (15) days as accessory to dwellings.

(e) Two (2) minor signs per use.

(f) Pavement markings. Any sign applied directly and entirely to and flush with an asphalt,
concrete, or similar paved surface.

(g) A permanent window sign, provided that the aggregate area of all window signs on each
window or door does not exceed twenty-five (25%) percent of the total area of the
window or door.

(h) A-frame signs, provided they are placed inside of business hours, do not exceed six (6)
square feet per side, and are on-premises signs. A-frame signs shall not block pedestrian
rights-of-way.

Section 21-124 Prohibited Signs.
The purpose of prohibiting the following signage is to address the City’s substantial public safety
and welfare concerns, including aesthetic concerns and protecting property values, associated
with certain types of signage. In addition to signs prohibited elsewhere in this code or by
applicable state or federal law, the following signs are prohibited:

(a) General prohibitions.

(1) Signs that violate any state or federal law relating to outdoor advertising or in
violation of this code.

(2) Signs attached to natural vegetation.

(3) Signs simulating, or that are likely to be confused with, a traffic control sign or any
other sign displayed by a public authority.

(4) Vehicle or trailer signs, defined as any sign attached to or displayed on a vehicle, if
the vehicle or trailer is used primarily to display a commercial message, and it fails to
display current license plates, inspection sticker, or municipal decal; if the vehicle is
inoperable; if evidence of paid-to-date local taxes cannot be made available; or if the
sign alters the standard design of such vehicle or trailer.

(5) Animated signs. except where animated sign features as part of an electronic message
display are expressly permitted.

(6) Flashing signs or other signs displaying flashing, scrolling, or infermittent lights or
lights of changing degrees of intensity, except where flashing sign features as part of
an electronic message display are expressly permitted.



(7) Signs attached to utility poles.
(b) Prohibitions based on materials.

(1) Signs consisting of illuminated tubing or strings of lights outlining property lines or
open sales areas, rooflines, doors, windows, or wall edges of any building, except for
temporary decorations not to exceed three (3) months per year.

(2) Signs that emit smoke, flame, scent, mist, acrosol, liquid, or gas.

(3) Signs that emit sound.

(4) Neon signs, except in windows where permitted in a district.

(¢) Prohibitions based on location.

(1) Off-premises signs.

(2) Beacons, except where light is cast onto a building located on the same lot as the
beacon.

(3) Signs erected on public land other than those approved by the Zoning Officer in
writing, required by law without such approval, or permitted under West Virginia
law. Any sign not so authorized is subject to immediate removal by the City, with the
costs charged to the owner or person having control of such sign, with payment due
within thirty (30) days of notice of charges. Removal of the sign under this provision
does not preclude prosecution of the person responsible for the sign.

(4) Roof signs. Signs on the roof surface or extending above the roofline of a building or
its parapet wall greater than five (5) square feet in area.

(5) Any sign located in the vision triangle formed by any two (2) or more intersecting
streets or any street and alley.

(6) Window signs with an aggregate area on a window or door in excess of twenty-five
(25) percent of the total area of the window or door or located above the first floor
unless the related use is only on the floor where the window sign is displayed.

(7) Signs that obstruct free ingress and egress from a door, window, fire escape, or other
exit way.

Section 21-125 General Requirements.

(a) All signs must conform to federal and state law, including but not limited to the Building
Code and W. Va. Code St. R. § 157-6-7, Requirements for Outdoor Advertising on the
State Highway System. Where this code and federal or state law govern signage, the
strictest provisions shall apply.

(b) Signs erected by the City of Elkins for governmental purposes are not subject to this
Article.

(c) Setback and placement. Except as otherwise expressly permitted herein, all freestanding
signs and flagpoles shall be set back from any public right-of-way at least the height of
the sign or flagpole. Electronic message displays shall be placed perpendicular to
residential structures where possible and shall comply with Federal Communications
Commission regulations, including the avoidance of harmful interference with radio
frequencies.

(d) fltumination. The purpose of the following provisions regulating signage lighting is to
ensure that signs are lighted in such a manner as to maintain aesthetic consistency with
signs already existing in the City and to ensure the safety of drivers and pedestrians,
while also ensuring that signs are adequately able to convey sign messages.

(1) Definitions.
(i) “Candela” means the basic unit of measurement of light in SI (metric)
units.



(i)  “Candela per square meter (cd/m?)” means the SI (metric) unit used to
describe the tuminance of a light source or of an illuminated surface that
reflects light. Also referred to as Nits.

(iif)  “Nit” means a photometric unit of measurement referring to luminance. |
One nit is equal to one cd/m?. |

(iv)  “SI (International System of Units)” means the modern metric system of
measurement, abbreviated SI for the French term “Le Systeme |
International d’Unites.” 1

(2) Signs may be backlit, internally lighted, or indirectly lighted. All external sign |
lighting shall have lighting fixtures or luminaires that are fully shielded. 1

(3) Temporary signs shall not be lighted. :

(4) Signs that are illuminated at night may not exceed a maximum luminance level of
seven hundred and fifty (750) cd/m? or Nits, regardless of the method of
illumination, at least one-half hour before Apparent Sunset, as determined by the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), United States
Department of Commerce, for the specific geographic location and date. All
illuminated signs must comply with this maximum luminance level throughout
the night, if the sign is energized, until Apparent Sunrise, as determined by
NOAA, at which time the sign may resume luminance levels appropriate for
daylight conditions,

(5) The maximum luminance during daylight conditions, between Apparent Sunrise
and one-half hour before Apparent Sunset, shall be ten thousand (10,000) cd/m?
or Nits.

(e) Maximum height measurements. Wall signs and other signs with sign structures not
affixed to the ground are measured from the lowest attached component of the sign to the
highest attached component of the sign. The height of signs with sign structures affixed
to the ground is measured as the distance from the base of the sign at normal grade to the
top of the highest attached component of the sign, subject to limitations in this Article.
Normai grade is the lower of:

(1) Existing grade prior to construction; or

(2) The newly established grade after construction, exclusive of any filling, berming,
mounding, or excavating primarily for the purpose of mounting or elevating the
sign.

(f) Measurement of sign area. Sign area is calculated under the following principles:

(1) With signs that are regular polygons or circles, the area can be calculated by the
mathematical formula for that polygon or circle. With signs that are not regular
polygons or circles, the sign area is calculated using all that area within a
maximum of three abutting or overlapping rectangles that enclose the sign face.

(2) The permitted area of a double-faced a-frame sign shall be considered to be the
area on one side only. If one face contains a larger sign area than the other, the
larger face shall be used in calculating the sign area.

(3) For projecting signs, the sign area also includes the area of the visible sides of the
sign, calculated as a rectangle enclosing each entire side view.

(4) Supports, uprights, or structures on which any sign is supported shall not be

included in determining the sign area unless such supports, uprights, or structures

are designed in such a way as to form an integral background of the display;

except, however, when a sign is placed on a fence, wall, planter, or other similar

structure that is designed to serve a separate purpose other than to support the

sign, the entire area of such structure shall not be computed.



(5) All signs displayed, whether permanent or temporary, and regardless of the type
of sign are counted toward the maximum sign area allowed per use.

(g) Electronic message display (EMD) signs. Static electronic message display signs and
static electronic message display with transition feature signs are permitted only as
monument signs. All other EMDs are prohibited.

(h) Number of signs. All signs displayed on a lot, whether permanent or temporary, and
regardless of the type of sign are counted towards the maximum number of signs
permitted per use.

(i) Wall signs.

(1) Wall signs larger than one hundred (100) square feet shall provide as part of
permit application:
(i)  Express permission from the operator and/or owner of the building;
(i)  The name and address of the person applying the wall sign; and
(i) A clear drawing of the proposed wall sign including dimensions and
location.
(2) Wall signs larger than one hundred (100) square feet are subject to the design
review standard in subsection (j).

() Design review standards for signs. Design review standards shall apply to wall signs in
excess of one hundred (100} square feet, The Board of Zoning Appeals shall issue
permits for signs subject to design review in accordance with Section 21-12, except that
the Board of Zoning Appeals shall issue a determination within forty (40) business days.
In determining whether a sign is compatible with the theme and overall character to be
achieved in each zoning district, the Board of Zoning Appeals shall base its compatibility
determination on the following criteria:

(1) The relationship of the scale and placement of the sign to the building or premises
on which it is to be displayed.

(2) The relationship of the colors of the sign to the colors of adjacent buildings and
nearby signs.

(3) The similarity or dissimilarity of the sign’s size and shape to the size and shape of
other signs in the area.

(4) The similarity or dissimilarity of the style of lettering or number of words on the
sign to the style of lettering or number of words of nearby signs.

(5) The compatibility of the type of illumination, if any, with the type of illumination
in the area.

(6) The compatibility of the materials used in the construction of the sign with the
materials used in the construction of other signs in the area.

(k) The back of any permanent sign must be shielded from public view by a building, other
structure, high planting, or another sign of the same size, where permitted, unless such
back is painted a neutral color or is enclosed in a solid metal backing that is treated or
painted against corrosion.

Section 21-126 Nonconferming Signs.

(a) Signs lawfully existing on the effective date of this code that do not conform to the
provisions of this code, and signs that are accessory to a ponconforming use shall be
deemed nonconforming signs and may remain except as qualified below.

(1) Temporary nonconforming signs are prohibited.




(2) Nonconforming signs shall not be enlarged nor shall any feature of a
nonconforming sign, such as illumination or technology, be increased.

(3) Nonconforming signs shall not be extended, structurally reconstructed, altered in
any manner, or replaced with another nonconforming sign nor increased in
technological advancement, except as permitted by this Article.

(4) Nonconforming signs shall not be moved for any distance on the same lot or to
any other lot unless such change in location will make the sign conform in all
respects to the provisions of this Article,

(5) A nonconforming sign that is destroyed or damaged by any casualty to an extent
not exceeding thirty (30) percent of the sign’s area, as defined in Section 21-25(f),
may be restored within thirty (30) days after such destruction or damage, but shall
not be enlarged, nor may the sign’s nonconformity be increased. If such sign is so
destroyed or damaged to an extent exceeding thirty (30) percent of the sign’s area,
the sign shall not be reconstructed but may be replaced with a sign that is in full
accordance with this code.

{6) Nonconforming sign structures shall be removed if the use to which they are
accessory has not been in operation for a period of one (1) year or more, except as
provided in Section 21-127(g). Such sign structure shall be removed or made
conforming by the owner or lessee of the property. If the owner or lessee fails to
remove or make conforming the sign structure within thirty (30) days of notice by
the Zoning Officer, the Zoning Officer may cause the sign to be made conforming
or removed and the cost of such removal or modification shall be charged to the
owner, person having control, or person receiving benefit from such sign, with
payment due within thirty (30) days of notice of charges.

(7) If a nonconforming sign is altered such that the sign is conforming or is replaced
by a conforming sign, such sign shall thereafter be kept in accordance with the
provisions of this code.

(b) The burden of establishing nonconforming status of signs and the physical characteristics
and location of such signs shall be with the owner of the property. Upon notice from the
Zoning Officer, a property owner shall submit verification that sign(s) were lawfully
erected. Failure to provide such verification shall cause the sign to be deemed an illegal
sign,

(c) Nothing in this section shall prevent keeping a nonconforming sign in good repair.

Section 21-127 Maintenance and Removal.

(a) All signs shall be constructed and mounted in compliance with the West Virginia
Uniform Statewide Building Code. All signs and components thereof shall be maintained
in good repair and in a safe, neat, and clean condition.

(b) Safety hazard. The Zoning Officer may cause to have removed or repaired immediately
without written notice any sign that has become insecure, in danger of falling, or
otherwise unsafe, and, as such, presents an immediate threat to the safety of the public. If
such action is necessary to render a sign safe, the cost of such emergency removal or
repair shall be charged to the owner, person having control, or person receiving benefit
from such sign, with payment due within thirty (30) days of notice of charges.

(c) Nuisance. Any sign that constitutes a nuisance shalil be abated by the owner within thirty
(30) days of notice by the Zoning Officer. At any time, the Zoning Officer may cause the
nuisance to be abated with the costs charged to the owner, person having control, or
person receiving benefit from such sign, with payment due within thirty (30) days of
notice of charges.




(d) lllegal sign and disrepair. Any sign that is illegal or in disrepair shall be made
conforming, removed, or repaired within thirty (30) days of notice from the Zoning
Officer. Signs of disrepair include chipped paint, missing or significantly faded letters or
other aspects of the sign, cracked portions of the sign face, broken lighting, graffiti, and
unleveled portions of the sign structure or face. If an illegal sign or a sign in disrepair is
not made conforming or repaired, the Zoning Officer may cause the sign to be removed
or repaired and the cost of such removal or repair shall be charged to the owner, person
having control, or person receiving benefit from such sign, with payment due within
thirty (30) days of notice of charges.

(e) Expired permit. Any sign for which a permit has expired shall be removed within five (5)
days of the permit expiration. If the sign is not removed, the Zoning Officer may cause
the sign to be removed and the cost of such removal shall be charged to the owner, person
having control, or person receiving benefit from such sign, with payment due within
thirty (30) days of notice of charges.

(f) The owner of any commercial sign, whether conforming or nonconforming located on
commercial property where the use or business has ceased operating shall, within sixty
(60) days of the cessation of the use or business operation, remove temporary signs and
all aspects of any permanent sign with a commercial message. Property owners may
request, in writing, a waiver of such requirement, if the businesses are temporarily or
seasonally operational, is remodeling, or otherwise has the good will intention of
resuming the use within one (1) year of time of cessation.

Section 21-128 Temporary Signs.

Temporary signs pose distinct concerns with visual clutter, safety in erection and display, and

removal when the time for display has concluded. Temporary signs also pose distinct concerns
with materials quality. The following provisions and individual zoning of temporary signs per
district serve to address these concerns.

(a) Temporary signs require a permit, except as provided in this Article, and may be
permitted up to thirty (30) days each calendar year. No more than four (4) temporary
commercial signs may be erected per use in one calendar year.

(b) Temporary signs shall be securely affixed to the ground or a building, or a pole
designated only to a temporary sign. Temporary signs shall be durably constructed of
weather resistant material,

(c) Person-assisted signs shall not be located more than ten (10) feet from the entrance to a
building or within ten (10) feet of a right-of-way.

Section 21-129 Signs for Single Family Residential and City Residential Districts.
Purpose. Signage in residential districts poses a heightened risk of visual blight and unsightly
clutter, as residential neighborhoods typically contain markedly less signage than other districts
in order to maintain the residential character of the neighborhood. At the same time,
communicating from one’s residence is a distinct and impactful form of speech that should be
protected, and nonresidential uses should be afforded adequate signage incidental to the primary
use, 1.e. on-premises signs. Signs permitted in these districts are smaller, fewer in number, and
limited in sign type in order to limit visual clutter and distraction, while affording ample speech.
(a) Signs permitted as accessory to dwellings.
(1)} Permitted permanent sign use as accessory to dwellings: Geological, minor,
temporary, topiary, wall, and window signs, No more than four (4) permanent
signs are permitted by right per dwelling.



(2) Permitted temporary sign use as accessory to dwellings: Banner, minor, pennant,
wall, wicket, window. No more than four (4) temporary signs are permitted in one
calendar year per dwelling. i
(3) No more than four (4) flags as accessory to a dwelling, excluding any flags that |
are minor signs. |
(b) Signs permitted as accessory to non-dwellings. ;
(1) Permitted permanent sign use as accessory to non-dwellings: Freestanding, !
geological, minor, monument, temporary, topiary, wall, and window signs. Only
one (1) of each is permitted per use per frontage, except wall signs and window
signs. No more than four (4) permanent signs are permitted by right per use. No
more than four (4) temporary signs are permitted in one calendar year per use.
(2) Permitted temporary sign use as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, banner,
chalkboard, minor, wall, wicket, window. No more than four (4) temporary signs
are permitted in one calendar year per use.
(3) No more than four (4) flags as accessory to a non-dwelling are permitted.
(c) Off-premises signs are prohibited for both dwellings and non-dwellings.
Dimension specifications chart. All maximum sign area requitements include the sum total sign
area of all signs per use, unless otherwise specified.

Permitted as Permitted as Temporary Signs Flags

Accessory to Accessory to Non- | as Accessory to

Dwellings dwellings Dwellings and

Non-dwellings

Max. Sign 6 sq. ft. 6 sq. ft. 6 sq. ft. displayed | 24 sq. ft. ea.
Area at one time
Max. Height | 7 fi. 7 ft. 4 ft, 20 ft.
Section 21-130 Signs for Recreational District.

Signage in the Recreational District poses a heightened risk of visual blight and unsightly clutter,
as recreational areas typically contain markedly less signage particularly in areas where there is
vast open space. As a result, signs in the Recreational District should be smaller, fewer in
number, and limited in sign type in order to limit visual clutter and preserve natural open space.

Section 21-132  Signs for Central Business District,
Purpose. Signage in commercial and districts is allowed to a somewhat greater extent, while
maintaining proportion to the size and scope of uses typically present. However, even these more
intensive uses in smaller communities are limited in signage to some degree in order to maintain
small-town character and limit visual distraction by signage.

(a) Permitted sign use as accessory to dwellings shall be the same as for Section 21-129,

(b) Signs permitted as accessory to non-dwellings.

(1) Permitted permanent sign use as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, awning,
canopy, chalkboard, freestanding, geological, marquee, minor, monument, neon,
projecting, temporary, topiary, wall, and window signs. Only one (1) of each is
permitted per use per frontage, except wall signs and window signs. More than



two hundred (200) square feet of frontage is required for a use to have more than
one (1) pole sign. No more than six (6) permanent signs are permitted by right per

use.

(2) Permitted temporary signs as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, banner,
chalkboard, minor, person-assisted, wall, wicket, window. No more than six (6)
temporary signs are permitted in one calendar year per use.
(3) No more than three (3) flags as accessory to a non-dwelling are permitted.
{c) Off-premises signs are prohibited.
(d) Dimension specifications chart. All maximum sign area requirements include the sum
total sign area of all signs per use.

Freestanding, All Other Signs Temporary Signs | Flags

Monument, and

Wall Signs
Max. Sign I'sq ft.per1 ft.of |0.5sq. ft. per 1 fi. 6 sq. ft. displayed | 60 sq. ft. ea.
Area lineal frontage, not | of lineal frontage, at one time

to exceed 32 5q. ft. | not to exceed 24 sq.

ft.

Max. Height | 8 fi. 4 ft. 4 ft. 40 ft.

Section 21-133  Signs for Educational and Commercial Districts.
Purpose. Signage in commercial and districts is allowed to a somewhat greater extent, while
maintaining proportion to the size and scope of uses typically present. However, even these more
intensive uses in smaller communities are limited in signage to some degree in order to maintain
small-town character and limit visual distraction by signage.

(a) Permitted sign use as accessory to dwellings shall be the same as for Section 21-129,

(b) Signs permitted as accessory to non-dwellings.

(1) Permitted permanent sign use as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, awning,
canopy, chalkboard, changeable copy, static electronic message display, static
electronic message display with transition feature, freestanding, geological,
marquee, minor, monument, neon, projecting, temporary, topiary, wall, and
window signs. Only one (1) of each is permitted per use per frontage, except wall
signs and window signs. More than two hundred (200) square feet of frontage is
required for a use to have more than one (1) pole sign. No more than six (6)
permanent signs are permitted by right per use.

(2) Permitted temporary signs as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, banner,
chalkboard, minor, person-assisted, wall, wicket, window. No more than six (6)
temporary signs are permitted in one calendar year per use.

(3} No more than three (3) flags as accessory to a non-dwelling are permitted.

(¢) Off-premises signs are prohibited.
(d) Dimension specifications chart. All maximum sign area requirements include the sum
total sign area of all signs per use.



Freestanding, EMDs All Other Temporary Flags
Monument, and Signs Signs
Wall Signs
Max. Sign 0.5 sq. ft. per 1 ft. 321t 0.5 sq. ft. per | 6 sq. ft. 60 sq.
Area of lineal frontage, 1 ft. of lineal | displayed at ft. ea.
not to exceed 64 sq. frontage, not | one time
ft. to exceed 32
sq. ft.
Max. Height | 8 ft.; withuptoan |8 ft. 8 ft. 4 {1, 40 ft.
additional 1 ft. per
5 ft. of setback, not
to exceed a total
sign height of 16 ft.
Section 21-134 Signs for Industrial District.

Purpose. Signage in heavier commercial and industrial districts is allowed to a greater extent, in
size, number, and sign type, in order to maintain proportion to the size and scope of uses
typically present within these districts. However, even the most intensive use districts in smaller
communities are still limited in signage to some degree in order to maintain small-town character
and limit visual distraction by signage.

(a) Permitted sign use as accessory to dwellings shall be the same as for Section 21-129.

(b) Signs permitted as accessory to non-dwellings.

(1) Permitted permanent sign use as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, awning,
canopy, chalkboard, changeable copy, freestanding, geological, marquee, minor,
monument, neon, projecting, static electronic message display, static electronic
message display with transition feature, temporary, topiary, wall, and window
signs. Only one (1) of each is permitted per use per frontage, except wall signs
and window signs. No more than eight (8) permanent signs are permitted by right
per use.

(2) Permitted temporary signs as accessory to non-dwellings: A-frame, banner,
chalkboard, changeable copy, feather, inflatable, minor, pennant, wall, wicket,
window. No more than six (6) temporary signs are permitted in one calendar year
per use.

(3) No more than three (3) flags as accessory to a non-dwelling are permitted.

(c) Off-premises signs are prohibited.
(d) Dimension specifications chart. All maximum sign area requirements include the sum
total sign area of all signs per use.

Freestanding, EMDS ' All Other Signs | Temporary | Flags




Monument, and Signs
Wall Signs
Max. Sign | 1sq.ft.per L ft. | 32sq. ft. 0.5sq. ft.perl 6 sq. ft. 60 sq.
Area of lineal frontage, ft. of lineal displayed | fi. ea.
not to exceed 150 frontage, notto | at one time
sq. ft. exceed 75 sq. ft.
Max. 15 ft. 8 ft. 10 ft. 4 ft. 40 ft.
Height

Section 21-135A Article IX. Wireless Telecommunications Facilities.

Section 21-136 Purpose.

This ordinance seeks to ensure the citizens of the City of Elkins have access to wireless
telecommunication technology, to protect the residents of the City of Elkins from the
proliferation of freestanding towers, and to provide a process and standards for the
construction, maintenance, and modification of wireless telecommunication facilities
through the following:

(a) Establishing clear gnidelines, standards, and time frames for the exercise of authority
for wireless telecommunications facilities through the City of Elkins’ zoning,
planning, and design standards;

(b) Allowing competition in telecommunications service;

(c) Encouraging the provision of advanced telecommunications services to the largest
number of businesses, institutions, and residents of the City of Elkins;

(d) Encouraging the location, design, and construction of wireless telecommunication
facilities that will have minimal impact on the location, minimal visual impact on
the scenic resources, and minimize the total number of towers and tower sites
throughout the City of Elkins.

(e) Permitting reasonable access to the public rights-of-way for telecommunications
facilities on a competitively neutral basis;

(f) Ensuring that all telecommunications carriers providing facilities or services comply
with federal, state, and local regulations;

(g) Encouraging the use of existing structures as an alternative to new wireless
telecommunications facility construction, including the collocation of new and
existing wireless telecommunications facilities, thus helping to minimize adverse
visual impacts on the community; and

(h) Protecting the scenic and visual character of the community.

Section 21-138 Applicability.

Wireless telecommunications facilities may not be constructed or modified without a
zoning permit issued in accordance with the provisions of this Article. Modifications to
existing wireless telecommunication facilities, as of the effective date of this Article, are
required to comply with this Article.

This Section does not apply to the replacement of any component of a wireless
telecommunication facility where the replacement is identical to the component being
replaced or to the normal repair and maintenance of a wireless telecommunication facility
that does not involve the addition, removal, or change of any of the externally discernable




physical components of a wireless telecommunication facility from that which was
originally permitted.

Section 21-139 Substantial Change Criteria.

For the purposes of determining whether a requested modification is an eligible facilities
request for modification under this Section, a proposed facilities modification will
substantially change the physical dimensions of an eligible suppott structure, and therefore
not be eligible for the expedited modification process and corresponding eligible facilities
application process under this Article, if the requested modification meets any of the
following criteria:

(a) For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, the requested increases the
height of the tower by more than ten (10} percent or by the height of one additional
antenna array with separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed twenty
(20) feet, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it increases the
height of the structure by more than ten (10} percent or more than ten (10) feet,
whichever is greater.

(b) Changes in height shall be measured from the original support structure in cases
where deployments are or will be separated horizontally, such as on buildings’
roofiops; in other circumstances, changes in height shall be measured from the
dimensions of the tower or base station, inclusive of originally approved
appurtenances and any modifications that were approved prior to the passage of the
Spectrum Act.

(c) For towers other than towers in the public right-of-way, it involves adding an
appurtenance to the body of the tower that would protrude from the edge of the tower
more than twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the tower structure at the level
of appurtenance, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it
involves adding an appurtenance to the body of the structure that would protrude
from the edge of the structure by more than six (6) feet.

(d) For any eligible support structure, it involves installation of more than the standard
number of new equipment cabinets for the technology involved, but not to exceed
four (4) cabinets; or, for towers in the public right-of-way and base stations, it
involves installation of any new equipment cabinets on the ground if there are no
preexisting ground cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves installation
of ground cabinets that are more than ten (10) percent larger in height or overall
volume than any other ground cabinets associated with the structure.

(e) It entails any excavation or deployment outside the current site.

(1) It would defeat the concealment elements of the eligible support structure.

(g) It does not comply with conditions associated with the siting approval of the
construction or modification of the eligible support structure or base station
equipment; provided, however, that this limitation does not apply to any modification
that is noncompliant only in a manner that would not exceed the thresholds identified
in this section.

Section 21-140 General Requirements.

(a) Lighting. Lighting affixed to any wireless telecommunication facilities shall meet,
but not exceed, the minimum lighting required by the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA). For any application where lighting is required, the applicant
shall submit documentation from the FAA stating that the proposed lighting meets all




applicable FAA standards and regulations.

(b) Structural Standards. Wireless telecommunications facilities shall conform to the
most current versions of the ANSI/ASSE A10.48 “Standard Criteria for Safety
Practices with the Construction, Demolition, Modification and Maintenance of
Communication Structures”; ANSI/TIA-222 Standard, “Structural Standard for
Antenna Supporting Structures, Antennas and Small Wind Turbine Support
Structures”; and ANSI/TIA-322 Standard, “Loading, Analysis and Design Criteria
Related to the Installation, Alteration and Maintenance of Communication
Structures.” Wireless telecommunication facilities shall also meet any applicable
local building code standards.

(c) Height Restrictions. No wireless telecommunication facility shall exceed one
hundred ninety-nine (199) feet in height, unless the applicant sufficiently justifies
that the height of the tower will eliminate other similar towers or that the provision of
service cannot be accomplished without a tower height in excess of one hundred
ninety-nine (199) feet. Any applicant proposing a wireless telecommunication
facility greater than one hundred ninety-nine (199) feet in height must provide
evidence that the applicant notified the FAA of the intent to build the facility and
received a final determination of “no hazard” from the FAA. Wircless
telecommunications facilities located atop or within an alternative support structure
may extend ten (10%) percent above the height of the structure or to the maximum
height permitted in the zoning district in which the structure is located, whichever is
less.

(d) Collocation.

(1) An applicant for a new wireless telecommunication facility must demonstrate
by substantial evidence that a bona fide need exists for the construction of a
new tower and that no reasonable combination of locations, techniques, or
technologies would obviate the need. The applicant for a new facility must
further demonstrate that all reasonable efforts have been made to collocate
wireless telecommunication facilities on existing towers or alternative support
structures.

(2) Prior to the approval of an application for a wireless telecommunications
facility, the applicant shall demonstrate commitment to joint use as follows:

(1)  The applicant shall submit evidence as part of the application
demonstrating that a genuine effort has been made to solicit additional
users for the proposed new wireless telecommunications facility.
Evidence of this shall include, at a minimum, copies of notices sent by
registered mail, return receipt requested, to all other providers of
cellular and wireless telecommunications services within the same
county and within adjacent counties, or a Class II legal advertisement,
advising of the intent to construct a new tower, identifying the
location, inviting the joint use and sharing of costs, and requesting a
written response within fifteen (15) business days.
(ii)  As part of the application, the applicant shall attest that the company
will encourage the joint use of telecommunications towers within the
City of Elkins, committing that there shall be no unreasonable act or
omission that would have the effect of excluding, obstructing, or
delaying joint use of any tower where fair and just market reasonable
compensation is offered for such use.
(iii) Wireless telecommunications facilities, other than alternative support




structures, shall be designed and built to accommodate a minimum of
three (3) wireless telecommunications provider’s equipment. The
owner of the tower, if different than the applicant, must certify to the
City of Elkins that the tower is available for use by other
telecommunications service providers on a reasonable and non-
discriminatory basis.

(e} Concealment.

(1) All new or modified wireless telecommunication facilities must be concealed
in a way that minimizes the adverse visual impact of the facilities through
careful design, siting, landscaping, screening, and innovative camouflaging
and stealth techniques, unless applicant shows substantial evidence that to do
S0 is impracticable.

(2) Concealment techniques include fake trees, parapet extensions, silos, fake
chimneys, water towers, fiberglass flagpoles, and steeples.

(3) A description must be included in the application of the possibilities for
concealment that have been explored, and why the proposed option was
chosen.

(4) Visual impact analysis of the wireless telecommunication facility is required
using existing information, predictive modeling techniques, photographs, and
simulations, to accurately and impartially communicate the potential visual
impacts from proposed project.

(5) If determined to be impracticable by Zoning Officer for a tower or alternative
support structure to be entirely concealed, the applicant will describe how
they will utilize materials, colors, textures, screening and landscaping to blend
facilities into the natural setting and surrounding buildings.

(6) If an antenna is installed on an alternative support structure, the antenna and
supporting electrical and mechanical equipment must be a neutral color that is
tdentical to or closely compatible with the color of the alternative support
structure so as to make the antenna and related equipment as visually
unobtrusive as possible.

(7) Any equipment shelter or cabinet must be concealed from public view or
made compatible with the architecture of the surrounding structures or placed
underground

(f) Replacement or modification of any previously approved concealed tower or facility
must substantially conform to previous design characteristics.

(g) Setback. Each tower shall have a setback of at least one hundred and ten (110%)
percent the tower height measured from the tower base to the nearest property line.

(h) Collapse Zone. No habitable structure may be located within the proposed collapse
zone. The applicant shall demonstrate that the entire collapse zone is either under
lease or owned by the applicant and that no habitable structure will be constructed in
the collapse zone while the tower is standing.

(i) Equipment Cabinets. No equipment cabinet for a wireless telecommunications
facility shall exceed seven hundred fifty (750) square feet in area, nor twelve (12)
feet in height. All equipment cabinets shall be located with the tower and shall be
enclosed within a minimum of a six (6) foot security fence and a locked gate.

(j) Signs. No commercial messages nor any other signs beyond that which is required,
not to exceed twelve (12) square feet cumulatively, shall be placed on any tower,
equipment cabinet, or security fence.

(k) Landscaping.




(1)  Existing mature tree growth and natural landforms shall be preserved to |
the maximum extent possible. Trees existing within one hundred (100) feet of w
the wireless telecommunications facility shall not be removed except as ‘
required for tower construction, security fence construction, installation of ;
ingress or egress, and the installation of utilities to the facility. To the extent
that existing vegetation is the basis for a waiver of the landscaping }
requirement, preservation of such vegetation shall be a condition of the
permit, and if such existing vegetation is removed or destroyed, the applicant
shall meet the landscaping specified in Subsection 2 below within six (6)
months thereafter.

(2)  Wireless telecommunications facilities shall be landscaped within six (6)
months after the tower and base station are erected with a visual buffer of
plant materials that effectively screens the view of the equipment cabinet from
adjacent property. The standard visual buffer shall consist of a landscaped
strip of at least four (4) feet wide outside the perimeter of the security fencing
enclosing the facilities. The visual buffer shall include vegetation of at least
eight (8) feet tall, planted ten (10) feet apart behind a contiguous hedge of
shrubs three (3) feet deep. All plant materials shall be species native to West
Virginia. In the case where the tower and base station are sited on large
wooded lots, the applicant may request that the natural growth preserved
around the tower site be considered a sufficient visual barrier, without the
need for additional landscaping. Such a request shall accompany the
application and shall include photographs of the natural growth to be
preserved.

(1) Location of Towers or Antenna in or near Historic Sites, Historic Districts, and
Designated Scenic Resources. Applications for wireless telecommunications
facilities or antennas subject to this Section shall also demonstrate that the views
of, and vistas from, such structures, districts, and resources shall not be impaired
or diminished by the placement of the proposed tower or antennas. In no instance
shail a wireless telecommunications facility subject to the provisions of this
paragraph exceed one hundred and ninety-nine (199) feet in height.

(m) Site Demarcation. The site shall be physically and visually marked in the field, for

immediate identification, with any combination of survey irons or flags as needed
during the application process or during construction.

Section 21-141 Approval Authority and Process.

Applications for wireless telecommunications facilities shall follow the requirements of
this section and written findings shall be made by the City of Elkins as to whether the
proposed facility complies with the regulations outlined in this Section.

(a) Voluntary Pre-application Conference. All persons seeking approval under this
Article may meet with the City of Elkins prior to filing an application. It is
recommended that the meeting occur no less than thirty (30) days prior to the
anticipated filing of the application to ensure adequate consideration and adequate
time to address concerns. At this meeting, the City of Elkins shall explain to the
applicant the regulations as well as application forms and submissions that will be
required under this Article.

(b) Submission Materials. Where telecommunications facilities are a permitted use,
applications shall be submitted to the Zoning Officer, who may confer with the
Planning Commission in the application process as needed. Where



telecommunications facilities are a conditional use, applications shall be submitted to
the Board of Zoning Appeals. No application shall be deemed complete unless it is in
writing, i1s accompanied by the applicable fees, includes the required submittals, and
is attested to by the applicant, certifying the truth and accuracy of the information
provided in the application.
(1) All applications shall include the following, in addition to the applicable
subsections below:

(i)  The following contact information for the applicant:

(A)Name,

(B)Title,

(C)Mailing address,

(D)Phone number,

(E) West Virginia tax number, and

(F) Electronic mail address (optional).

(1)  If a corporation, the name and address of the registered agent of
applicant in West Virginia and the state of incorporation of applicant.

(iii)  If applicant is an entity other than a corporation, such as a partnership
or limited liability company, the names and business addresses of the
principals.

(iv)  If the applicant is not the owner or person in control of the structure or
site, the following shall be required:

(A)Attestation that the owner or person in control of the structure
or site has consented to the new facility, collocation, or for any
modification that require a substantial change or arc otherwise
not considered an eligible facilities modification.

(B)If the structure is in a public right-of-way, the applicant must
also attest to having authorization to install, maintain, and
operate a wireless telecommunication facility in, under, and
above the public right-of-way.

(v)  If the applicant proposes a modification involving collocation of
transmission equipment or the replacement of transmission equipment,
the following shall be required: Complete copies of the underlying
land use approvals for siting of the tower or base station proposed to
be modified, establishing that, at the time of submittal of the
application, such tower or base station constituted an eligible support
structure,

(2) Applications for eligible facilities requests, as defined herein and subject to a
determination under Section 21-139, Substantial Change Criteria:

(i)  Attestation that the proposed request is subject to review under Section
6409 of the Spectrum Act as an “eligible facilities modification.”

(i)  If the applicant proposes a modification that will result in an increase
in height of the eligible support structure, the following shall be
required: Record drawings, as-built plans, or the equivalent, showing
the height of the eligible support structure, (a) as originally constructed
and granted approval by the City of Elkins or other applicable local
zoning or similar regulatory authority, or (b) as of the most recent
modification that received approval, prior to the passage of Section
6409(a) of the Spectrum Act of 2012, whichever height is greater.

(ii))  If the applicant proposes an eligible facilities request for modification




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

to an eligible support structure, which structure, or proposed
modification of the same, is subject to pre-existing restrictions or
requirements imposed by the City of Elkins ordinances, the following
shall be required: A copy of the document setting forth such pre-
existing restrictions or requirements, together with a certification that
the proposed facilities modification conforms to such restrictions or
requirements.

If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support
structure, which structure, or proposed modification of the same, is
subject to pre-existing concealment restrictions or requirements, or
was constructed with concealment elements, the following shall be
required: Applicant shall set forth the facts and circumstances
demonstrating that the proposed modification would not defeat the
existing concealment elements of the eligible support structure, If the
proposed modification will alter the exterior dimensions or appearance
of the eligible support structure, applicant shall include a detailed
visual simulation depicting how the eligible support structure will
appear after the proposed modification is complete. The visual
simulation shall depict, to scale, the eligible support structure in
relation to the trees, landscaping and other structures adjacent to, or in
the immediate vicinity of, the eligible support structure.

If the applicant proposes a modification that will result in a protrusion
from the edge of a tower that exceeds an existing protrusion of any
transmission equipment attached to a tower or will protrude from the
edge of a non-tower eligible support structure, the following shall be
required: Record drawings and as-built plans, or the equivalent,
showing, at a minimum, the edge of the eligible support structure at the
location of the proposed modification.

If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure
that (a) will include any excavation, (b) would result in a protrusion
from the edge of a tower that exceeds an existing protrusion of any
transmission equipment attached to a tower, or (¢) would protrude
from the edge of a non-tower eligible support structure, the following
shall be required: A description of the boundaries of the site and a
scaled drawing based on an accurate traverse, with angular and lineal
dimensions, depicting the boundaries of the site in relation to the tower
or base station proposed to be modified and depicting the proposed
location, elevation, and dimensions of the new or replacement
transmission equipment. The City of Elkins may require a survey by a
land surveyor licensed in the state of West Virginia when, in the
judgment of the approval authority, a survey is reasonably necessary to
verify the boundaries of the siteto determine if the proposed facilities
modification would result in a substantial change in the physical
dimensions of the eligible support structure.

If the applicant proposes a modification to a tower, the following shall
be required: A stamped report by a state of West Virginia registered or
licensed professional engineer demonstrating that the tower with the
proposed modifications will comply with applicable structural,
electrical, and safety codes, including by way of example, but not




limited to, the most recent revision of EIA/TIA-222, published by the
American National Standards Institute (as amended), allowable wind
speed for the applicable zone in which the tower is located, and
describing the general structural capacity of the tower with the
proposed modifications, including:
(A)the number and type of antennas that can be accommodated;
(B)the basis for the calculation of capacity; and
(C)a written statement that the proposal complies with all federal
guidelines regarding interference and ANSI standards as
adopted by the FCC.
The City of Elkins may retain the services of an independent
technical expert to review, evaluate, and provide an opinion regarding
the applicant’s demonstration of compliance.

(vii)  If the applicant proposes a modification to a base station, the following
shall also be required: A stamped report by a state of West Virginia
registered or licensed professional engineer demonstrating that the
base station, with the proposed modifications, will comply with
applicable structural, electrical, and safety codes.

(ix)  If the applicant proposes a modification requiring an alteration to the
eligible support structure, excavation, installation of new equipment
cabinets, or any other activities impacting or altering the land,

- existing structures, fencing, or landscaping on the site, the following
shall be required: A detailed site plan and drawings, showing the true
north point, drawn to an appropriate decimal scale, indicating and
depicting:

(A)the location, elevation, and dimensions of the existing eligible
support structure;

(B)the location, elevation, and dimensions of the existing :
transmission equipment;

(C)the location, elevation, and dimensions of the transmission :
equipment, if any, proposed to be collocated or that will replace
existing transmission equipment;

(D)the location, elevation, and dimensions of any proposed new
equipment cabinets and the intended use of each;

(E) any proposed modification to the eligible support structure;

(F) the location of existing structures on the site, including fencing,
screening, trees, and other significant site features; and

(G)the location of any areas where excavation is proposed,
showing the elevations, depths, and width of the proposed
excavation and materials and dimensions of the equipment to be
placed in the area excavated.

(x} Copies of any environmental documents required by any state or
federal agency. These shall include the environmental assessment
required by 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (Part 1—Practice and Procedure), Section
1.1307, as amended, or, in the event that an environmental assessment
is not required, a statement that describes the specific factors that
obviate the requirement for an environmental assessment.

(3) Applications for new facilities, collocations, or for any modifications that
require a substantial change or are otherwise not considered an eligible




facilities modification, as defined by this Article, shall include the following

in the application submittal;

(i)  Copies of any easements necessary to access the property and proof
that the same has been recorded, or will be recorded, in the applicable
county clerk’s office.

(ii)  Certification of the wireless telecommunication facility’s collocation
capabilities or whether the proposal is a collocation on an existing
facility and whether the applicant anticipates other lessees will be able
to utilize the facility.

(iii) A copy of the FCC license for the facility, or a signed statement from
the owner or operator of the facility attesting that the facnhty will
comply with current FCC regulations.

(iv)  Evidence of compliance with applicable local, state, and federal
historic preservation laws and regulations, including a copy of a
written request for a statement of compliance sent to the necessary
local, state, and federal historic preservation authorities and said
authorities’ written responses.

(v) A map showing the location of all wireless telecommunications
facilities above ground level, except antennas located on roof tops,
within a three (3) air-mile radius of the proposed facility, unless this
information has been previously made available to the City of Elkins.

(vi) A site plan is required and shall include:

(A)Certification by a professional engineer indicating the location,
including latitude and longitude, type, and height of the
proposed facility; antenna capacity; on-site and abutting off-site
land uses; topography; setbacks; parking; fencing; landscaping;
the collapse zone; casements or other means of access; and all
applicable American National Standards Institute (ANSI)
technical and structural codes.

(B) A topographic map identifying the location of the site for the
proposed wireless telecommunications facility.

(C) A stormwater and erosion control plan for the access road to the
site, or a written statement that there will be no changes
implemented with regards to any existing roads.

(D)Proximity of the proposed site to flood hazard areas.

(E) Certification by the applicant that the proposed facility
complies with all FCC standards for radio emissions.

(F) A boundary survey completed by a land surveyor licensed by
the State of West Virginia, and which includes the access road
and vicinity map.

(G)Photo simulations of the proposed facility taken from at Icast
two perspectives, with emphasis placed on residential areas,
public rights-of-way, public parks, designated scenic resources,
and any historic site or district. The photos shall demonstrate
whether the facility will be a stealth tower. Each photo must be
labeled with the line of sight, elevation, and date taken.

(vii)  The applicant shall identify and demonstrate consideration of each
and every designated scenic resource or viewshed, as recognized by
federal, state, or local government in which the proposed wireless




(viii)

(ix)

telecommunications facility is located or visible and shall provide a
scenic assessment for the project area consisting of the following: w
(A)Elevation drawings of the proposed facility, showing height

above ground level.

(B) A landscaping plan indicating the proposed placement of the
facility on the site.

(C)Location of existing structures, trees, and other significant site
features.

(D)A description and visual simulation of possible stealth tower
design.

(E) A description of the lighting and type of lighting the facility
will implement, including, but not limited to, the color of the
lighting and whether it will be constant, flashing, or strobe.

(F) A narrative discussing the extent to which the proposed facility
would be visible from any residential areas, height of vegetation
within one hundred (100) feet of the facility at the time of
application, and the distance to the proposed facility from a
designated scenic resource’s noted viewpoints.

A propagation map, before and after, of how the proposed facility fits
in the existing telecommunications network. The applicant must
provide written evidence of a tenant for the proposed wircless
telecommunications facility and the anticipated date that the facility
will be occupied and used by such tenant. Such evidence may include a
lease or letter of intent from the tenant. This submission requirement
does not require disclosure of confidential business information. The
Zoning Officer, Planning Commission, and Board of Zoning Appeals
are hereby authorized to and may enter into a non-disclosure
agreement with the applicant provided the non-disclosure agreement ;
relates only to the applicant's propagation maps. |
Evidence demonstrating that an existing building, site, or structure !
cannot accommodate the applicant's proposed facility, the evidence for ‘
which may.consist of any one or more of the following:

(A)Evidence that no existing facilitics, located within the targeted
market coverage area, meet the applicant's engincering
requirements.

(B)Evidence that existing facilities do not have sufficient height
and cannot be increased in height at a cost not exceeding fifty
(50%) percent of the cost required to construct the existing
tower in present-day dollars, to meet the applicant's engineering
requirements.

(C)Evidence that existing facilities do not have sufficient structural
strength to support the applicant's proposed antenna and related
equipment. Specifically:

(1) Planned, necessary equipment would exceed the
structural capacity of the existing facility, considering
the existing and planned use of the existing facilities,
and the existing facilities cannot be reinforced to
accommodate the new equipment.



(2) The applicant's proposed antenna or equipment would
cause electromagnetic interference with the antenna on
the existing towers or structures, or the antenna or
equipment with the existing facility would cause
interference with the applicant's proposed antenna.

(3) Existing or approved facilities do not have space on
which planned equipment can be placed so it can
function effectively.

(DD)Evidence that the fees, costs, or contractual provisions required by
the owner of the existing facility or structure in order to share or
adapt an existing facility are unreasonable, provided the existing
facility was constructed prior to the effective date of the Article.
Costs exceeding the pro rata share of a new facility development
are presumed to be unreasonable,

(E) Evidence that the applicant has made diligent good faith efforts to
negotiate collocation on an existing facility, building, or structure,
and has been denied access.

(x) A form of surety approved by the City of Elkins to pay for the costs of
removing the facility to a depth of three (3) feet below ground level if
it is abandoned.

(xi) Proof of compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local
regulations, including the NEPA (National Environmental Policy Act)
Environmental Compliance Checklist and Section 106 of NHPA
(National Historic Preservation Act).

(xii) A statement from the applicable county’s assessor indicating the
modification in real property taxation, if any, including the applicable
tax rate to be charged, the real property subject to the tax rate, and the
person or persons responsible for the payment of the real property
taxes.

(¢) Application Fee and Costs. An application shall include a non-refundable payment
in accordance with the fee schedule adopted by the City of Elkins. The application
shall not be considered complete until this fee is paid.

(d) Notice of Complete Application.

(1) Upon receipt of an application, the applicant shall be provided with a dated
receipt of submission.

(2) Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of an application, the application
shall be reviewed to determine if the application meets the submission
requirements. Any requests for a waiver from the submission requirements
shall be reviewed prior to determining the completeness of the application,

(3) If the application is not complete, the applicant shall be notified in writing,
specifying the additional materials or information required to complete the
application.

(4) If the application is complete, the applicant shall be notified in writing of this
determination and, if the application is to be reviewed by the Planning
Commission or Board of Zoning Appeals, require the applicant to provide a
sufficient number of copies of the application for the Planning Commission or
Board of Zoning Appeals.

(e) Modification of Application Prior to Approval. In the event that after submittal of the
application, or as a result of any subsequent submittals, the applicant materially



modifies the proposed facilities described in the initial application, the application as
modified will be considered a new application subject to commencement of a new
application review period and application fee; provided that, applicant and the
approval authority may, in the alternative, enter into a mutually agreeable tolling
agreement allowing the City of Elkins to request additional submittals and additional
time that may be reasonably necessary for review of the modified application.

(f) Approval of Application. The shot clock period begins to run when the application is
filed and may be tolled only by mutual agreement or in cases where the application is
incomplete and notice is provided to the applicant that the application is insufficient.

(1) Approval of Eligible Facilities Modifications. Within sixty (60} calendar days
of the date of receipt of an eligible facilities modification application, a
determination shall be made as to whether the proposed modification is an
eligible facilities modification, and contemporaneously a permit issued or the
application denied.

(2) Approval of Applications involving (1) colocation or (2) modifications that
are not eligible facilities modifications. Within ninety (90) calendar days of
the date on which the City of Elkins receives an application for collocation, as
defined by this Article, or a modification that is not an eligible facilities
requests, as defined by this Article, a determination shall be made on the
application, and contemporaneously a permit issued or the application denied.

(3) Approval of All New Towers. Within one hundred and fifty (150) calendar
days of the date on which the City of Elkins receives an application for the
construction of a new wireless telecommunication facility, or any
modification that is not solely for a collocation, and that does not meet the
requirements for eligible facilities modification under this Article, a
determination shall be made on the application, and contemporaneously a
permit issued or the application denied.

(g) Denial of All Applications. A denial of an application shall set forth in writing the
reasons for the denial and shall be provided to the applicant contemporaneously with
the denial of the application.

(h) Tolling Timeline for Approval Due to Incompleteness.

(1) To toll the timeline due to application incompleteness, written notice shall be
provided to the applicant within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the
application, clearly and specifically delineating all missing documents or
information.

(2) The timeline for review (when tolling ends) begins running again when the
applicant makes a supplemental submission in response to the notice of
incompleteness.

(3) Following a supplemental submission, the City of Elkins shall have ten (10)
business days to notify the applicant that the supplemental submission did not
provide the information identified in the original notice delineating missing
information. The timeline is tolled in the case of second or subsequent
notices, and tolling ends when the applicant makes supplemental submissions.
Second or subsequent notices of incompleteness may not specify missing
documents or information that were not delineated in the original notice of
incompleteness.



Section 21-142 Changes to Approved Application.
Any changes to an approved application must be processed pursuant to Section 21-141 and
may be subject to the application fee, at the discretion of the City of Elkins.

Section 21-143 Abandonment.

{(a) Any wireless telecommunications facility that is not in operation for a continuous
period of twelve (12) months shall be considered an abandoned facility. If
negotiations are pending with a service provider to place equipment at the facility, a
letter of intent shall be provided to the City of Elkins prior to the expiration of the
twelve (12) months.

(b) The owner of an abandoned facility shall be notified in writing of an order to remove
the facility within no less than ninety (90) calendar days of receipt of the written
notice. Failure to remove the wireless telecommunication facility within ninety (90)
calendar days shall be grounds to remove the wireless telecommunications facility at
the owner’s expense and may use the surety to pay this expense. If two or more users
occupy a single tower or alternative support structure, this provision shall not
become effective until all users cease using the tower or alternative support structure.

(¢) The City of Elkins requires the posting of surety before commencement of
construction of an approved wireless telecommunication facility to ensure removal
after the facility is no longer being used. The owner of the facility may apply to the
City of Elkins for release of the surety only when the facility and related equipment
are removed by the owner to the satisfaction of the City of Elkins.

Section 21-144 Retention of Expert Assistance and Reimbursement by Applicant.

(a) The City of Elkins may hire any consultant or expert necessary to assist the City of
Elkins in reviewing and evaluating the application, including the construction and
modification of the site, once permitted, and any site inspections.

(b) An applicant shall deposit with the City of Elkins funds sufficient to reimburse the
City of Elkins for all reasonable costs of consultant and expert evaluation and
consultation to the City of Elkins in connection with the review of any application,
including services needed during the construction and modification of the site, once
permitted. The initial deposit shall be submitted with the application. The City of
Elkins shall maintain a separate escrow account for all such funds. The consultants
and experts shall invoice the City of Elkins for services rendered. If at any time
during the process, this escrow account has a balance of less than $8,500, the
applicant shall immediately, upon notification by the City of Elkins, replenish said
escrow account so that it has a balance of at least $5,000. Such additional escrow
funds shall be deposited with the City of Elkins before any further action or
consideration is taken on the application. If the amount held in escrow by the City of
Elkins is more than the amount of the actual invoicing at the conclusion of the
project, the remaining balance shall be promptly refunded to the applicant.
Consultants and experts shall, upon request, provide copies of all billing to the
applicant.

(c) The total amount of the funds needed as set forth in the Subsection b of this Section
may vary with the scope and complexity of the project, the completeness of the
application and other information as may be needed to complete the necessary
review, analysis, and inspection of any construction or modification.




Section 21-145 Indemnification.

(a) Any application for wireless telecommunication facilities that is proposed for the
City of Elkins property shall contain a provision with respect to indemnification.
Such provision will require the applicant, to the extent permitted by law, to at all
times indemnify and hold harmless the City of Elkins, its commissions, and its
agents, from any and all penalties, damages, or costs, arising out of any claims that
might arise from said facility, excepting however, any portion of such claims, suits,
demands, causes of action, or award of damages as may be attributable to the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the City of Elkins, or its commissions or
agents.

(b) With respect to the penaltics, damages, or charges referenced herein, reasonable
attorneys' fees, consultants' fees, and expert witness fees are included in those costs
that are recoverable by the City of Elkins. Notwithstanding the above, an
indemnification provision shall not be required in those instances where the City of
Elkins itself applies for and secures a permit for wireless telecommunication
facilities.

Section 21-146 Other Permits Required.
Compliance with this Section does not exempt compliance with all other applicable
federal, state, and local regulations, Sections, or requirements.

Section 21-147A Article X. Small CeH Wireless Telecommunications Facilities.

Section 21-148 Purpose.
Pursuant to the West Virginia Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Act, codified under West
Virginia Code Section 31H-1-1 et seq. as amended, this Ordinance establishes nondiscriminatory
policies and procedures for the deployment of small wireless facilities. This Ordinance allows for
the efficient deployment of small wireless facilities while preserving the integrity, safe usage,
and reasonable aesthetic qualities of the City of Elkins’ rights-of-way and the City of Elkins as a
whole. The City of Elkins seeks to establish uniform standards consistent with federal and state
law to address the placement of small wireless facilities and associated poles to achicve the
following:
(a) Prevent interference with the use of streets, sidewalks, alleys, parkways, and other
public ways and places;
(b) Prevent the creation of visual and physical obstructions and other conditions that are
hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic; i
(c) Prevent interference with the facilities and operations of facilities lawfully located in
rights-of-way or public property;
(d) Protect against environmental damage, including damage to trees;
(e} Preserve the character of historic districts or areas; and
(f) Facilitate rapid deployment of small cell facilities to provide the benefits of wireless
services to the City of Elkins’ residents and visitors.

Section 21-150 Requirements for Permiited Use Status; Zoning Applicability.

(a) A wireless provider may collocate small wireless facilities and install, maintain, modify, and
replace the wireless provider’s own utility poles or, with the permission of the owner, a third
party’s utility pole, in, along, across, upon, and under the right-of-way in any zone, or outside
of the right-of-way on property not zoned exclusively for single-family residential use, as
long as the following conditions are met:



(1) The wireless provider receives all necessary permits as required by this Ordinance;

(2) The wireless provider pays all necessary fees and rates as required by this Ordinance;

(3) The structures and facilities are installed and maintained so as not to obstruct or
hinder the usual travel or public safety on the right-of-way or to obstruct the legal use
of the right-of-way by the City of Elkins or other utilities;

(4) Each new or modified utility pole does not exceed the greater of ten (10) feet above
the tallest existing utility pole in place as of March 5, 2019, within five hundred (500)
feet of the new pole, or fifty (50) feet above ground level;

(5) New small wireless facilities may not extend more than ten (10) feet above an !
existing utility pole in place as of March 5, 2019; or if collocating a new utility pole, !
above the height permitted for a new utility pole as described in Subsection (a)(4) of |
this Section.

(6) The structures and facilities comply with the reasonable, written design guidelines ’
created by the City of Elkins, as enumerated in Section 4 of this Ordinance;

(7) If replacement of decorative poles is necessary to collocate a small wireless facility,
such replacement shall reasonably conform to the design aesthetics of the decorative
poles being replaced;

(8) If located in a historic district, as defined herein, the structures and facilities follow
applicable design and concealment measures to protect the nature of the historic
district;

(9) The area has not been designated solely for underground communications and
clectrical lines, provided that:

(A)The City of Elkins required all such lines to be placed underground by a date
certain that is at least three (3) months prior to submission of the permit
application;

(B) The utility poles that the City of Elkins allows to remain shall be made
available for the collocation of small wireless facilities and may be replaced
by a wireless provider to accommodate the collocation of small wireless
facilities;

(C) A wireless provider may install a new utility pole in the designated area when
unable to provide wireless service by collocating on a remaining structure;
and

(D)If the small wireless facilities are installed before the City of Elkins adopts
requirements that communications and electric lines be placed underground,
the wireless provider may:

(i) Maintain the small wireless facilities in place, subject to any applicable
pole attachment agreement with the utility pole owner; or
(ii) Replace the associated utility pole within fifty (50) feet of the prior
location, subject to the permission of the utility pole owner; and
(10) The structures and facilities are compliant with any other applicable local
ordinance or state or federal law.
(b) Any wireless facility or utility pole that does not meet the above requirements is not a
permitted use.

Section 21-151 Design Guidelines.

(a) Unless such guidelines prevent a wireless provider from serving 2 location in the City of
Elkins’ jurisdiction, the following design guidelines shall apply to all small wireless facilities
in the rights-of-way within the City of Elkins’ jurisdiction: -



(1) Small wireless facilities shall not obstruct or hinder the usual travel or public safety
on the right-of-way or obstruct the legal use of such right-of-way by utilities or
authorities.

(2) Small wireless facilities shall not obstruct the safe operation of traffic control
equipment or streetlights.

(3) Small wireless facilities shall not interfere with driver or pedestrian sight lines or
clear zones for transportation or pedestrians,

(4) Small wireless facilities shall comply with all applicable federal and state standards
regarding pedestrian access and movement,

(5) Small wireless facilities shall comply with generally applicable health and safety
codes.

(6) Small wireless facilities shall be constructed in a manner to minimize physical
damage to private property.

(7) Small wireless facilitates shall be located in alleys to the greatest extent feasible as
determined by the City of Elkins.

(8) Small wireless facilities that are pole-mounted on decorative poles shall use
concealed, camouflage, or stealth-style antennas in which all equipment is contained
within the pole to which the antenna is mounted. The pole and antenna shall be
painted to match the poles in the area or another color approved by the City of Elkins.

(9) Small wireless facilities that are building-mounted shall use concealed, camouflage,
or stealth-style antennas to blend into the structure seamlessly by using one or more
of the following methods and approved by the City of Elkins:

{A) Completely enclosed inside of a box that mimics the materials or aesthetics of
the building to which the small wireless facility is mounted;

{B) Completely concealed inside an existing portion of a building such as the
cupola or screening for mechanical equipment; or

(C) Completely concealed behind a parapet or other barrier so as to not be visible
from any point at ground level on the right-of-way; and

(10) Small wireless facilities shall not be used to display a sign.

(b) Unless such guidelines prevent a wireless provider from serving a location in the City of
Elkins’ jurisdiction, the following design guidelines shall apply to all antennas associated
with small wireless facilities within the City of Elkins’ jurisdiction:

(1) An antenna shall be no more than three (3) cubic feet in volume.

(2) When mounted at the top of a utility pole, the antenna shall be aligned with the
centerline of the utility pole and enclosed in a ¢ylindrical shroud.

(3) When mounted at the top of a utility pole, a pole-top extension antenna shall be no
taller than necessary for separation from other attachments.

(4) When mounted on or within a decorative pole, the antenna shall conform to the
design aesthetics of that pole, including the design, style, and color.

(5) When mounted on another structure, the antenna shall not impair the function of the
structure. :

(¢) Unless such guidelines prevent a wireless provider from serving a location in the City of
Elkins’ jurisdiction, the following design guidelines shall apply to all wireless equipment
associated with antennas within the City of Elkins’ jurisdiction:

(1) Where feasible, the wireless equipment shall be located inside of the utility pole on
which the antenna is mounted.

(2) Where infeasible to locate the wireless equipment inside the utility pole, the wireless
equipment shall be located in a ground-mounted cabinet and shall conform to the
design aesthetics of the pole, including the design, style, and color or a design



otherwise approved by the City of Elkins. The ground-mounted cabinet shall be
located within the same width of space parallel to the right-of-way boundaries as the
pole on which the antenna is mounted. The ground-mounted cabinet shall not exceed
thirty-six (36) inches in height.

(3) When located in alleys or non-improved rights-of-way, wireless equipment may be
mounted on a utility pole, provided the wircless equipment is not located beyond the
top of the utility pole. If a wireless provider chooses to mount the equipment on a
utility pole in an alley or non-improved right-of-way, the equipment shall be flush-
mounted and shall provide a minimum clearance of eight (8) feet above all streets,
driveways, and sidewalks.

{(d) Unless such guidelines prevent a wireless provider from serving a location in the City of
Elkins’ jurisdiction, all replacement utility poles within the City of Elkins’ jurisdiction shall
be:

(1) Installed within three (3) feet of the location of the original pole; and

(2) Of a material and dimensions that matches existing adjacent poles or consistent with
any published local standards for utility pole placements.

(e) Unless such guidelines prevent a wireless provider from serving a location in the City of
Elkins’ jurisdiction, all new utility poles within the City of Elkins’ jurisdiction shall:

(1) Be aligned with the predominate pattern of existing poles where present, or with
street trees along the same side of the right-of-way;

(2) Not be located directly in front of storefront windows, primary walkways, primary
windows, or primary ingress/egress points to buildings;

(3) Be sited outside the critical root zone of existing street trees;

(4) Not impede vehicular or pedestrian traffic;

(5) Not be located where sidewalks are narrow;

(6) Not block any emergency service providers or emergency service access, including
access to fire hydrants;

(7) Not be located upon any street or part of a street from which utility poles have been
ordered removed by the City of Elkins;

(8) Not be located on any street or side of a street where there is already an excess of
poles; and

(9) Be spaced no closer than 200 feet apart.

(f) Uniess such guidelines prevent a wireless provider from serving a location in the City of
Elkins jurisdiction, all cables and wires associated with small wireless facilities within the ‘
City of Elkins’ jurisdiction shall; ‘

(1) Be installed within the utility pole; or

(2) Be flush-mounted to the utility pole, and encased in cover or conduit, where internal
installation is not feasible.

(g) If an electric meter is required, the electric meter shall be mounted in close proximity to the
small wireless facility and have similar design characteristics.

Section 21-152 Permit Application Requirements.

(a) Every wireless provider who wishes to collocate a small wireless facility or install or replace
a utility pole in or outside of the right-of-way or modify an existing small wireless facility or
utility pole in or outside the right-of-way must obtain a permit from the City of Elkins under
this Ordinance.

(b) A wireless provider’s permit application shall include the following:

(1) The applicant’s name, address, phone number, email address, and a list of all duly
authorized agents acting on behalf of the applicant.



(2) A general description of the proposed small wireless facility and associated pole, if
applicable.

(3) Construction and engineering drawings and information demonstrating compliance
with state law and this Ordinance, including a structural analysis of the pole where

- the applicant proposes to install the small wireless facility.

(4) An attestation that the small wireless facilities will be operational for use by a
wireless provider within one (1) year afier the permit issuance date, unless the City of
Elkins and the applicant agree to extend the period or delay is caused by lack of
commercial power or communications transport facilities to the site.

(5) An attestation that the small wireless facility will comply with FCC regulations
concerning (i) radiofrequency emissions from radio transmitters and (ii) unacceptable
interference with the public safety spectrum and CII spectrum, including compliance
with the abatement and resolution procedures for interference with the public safety
spectrum and CII spectrum established by the FCC set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 22.970
through 47 C.F.R. § 22.973 and 47 C.F.R. § 90.672 through 47 C.F.R. § 90.675.

(6) Proof that the applicant maintains property insurance for its property’s replacement
cost against all risks, workers’ compensation insurance as required by law, and
commercial general liability insurance with respect to its activities on the City of
Elkins improvements or rights-of-way of not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) of coverage for damages, including bodily injury and property damage.
The commercial general liability policy shall include the City of Elkins as an
additional insured party, and the wireless provider shall provide certification and
documentation of such; except that if a wireless provider chooses to self-insure, the
wireless provider does not have to name the City of Elkins as an additional insured
party, but shall provide to the City of Elkins evidence sufficient to demonstrate its
financial ability to self-insure the same coverage and limits required herein.

(7) An attestation that the applicant will provide a bond, escrow deposit, letter of credit,
or other financial surety in an amount required by the City of Elkins to ensure
removal of abandoned or unused wireless facilities or damage to the right-of-way or
the City of Elkins property caused by the applicant or its agents, as set by the City of
Elkins, prior to beginning any instatlation,

(8) The appropriate fees, as further explained in Subsection (d) of this Section.

(9) An attestation that the applicant will notify the City of Elkins and call the West
Virginia 811 “Call Before You Dig” Hotline in order to locate all underground
utilities at least seventy-two (72) hours before making any excavation.

(c) A wireless provider that seeks to use a City of Elkins utility pole shall provide the following
additional information in its permit application:

(1) The additional wind load that the wireless facility adds to the pole.

(2) A description of how the wireless provider will provide power to the small wireless
facility.

(3) A description of how the small wireless facility would attach to the pole, including
whether it would involve drilling holes into the pole or attaching bands to the pole.

(4) Whether there will be additional wire in the pole.

(5) An attestation that the small wireless facility will meet all clearance requirements if it
is over the roadway.

(6) An attestation that the small wireless facility will not interfere with any other
equipment signals on City of Elkins utility poles.

(d) Fees. A wireless provider’s permit application shall be accompanied with the following fees:




(1)} Two hundred dollars ($200) for the collocation of each small wireless facility on an
existing utility pole for the first five (5) poles in the same application, followed by
one hundred dollars ($100) for each small wireless facility thereafter in the same
application.

(2) Two hundred and fifty dollars ($250) for the proposed installation, modification, or
replacement of a utility pole and the collocation of an associated small wireless
facility that is a permitted use.

(3) One thousand dollars ($1,000) for the proposed installation, modification, or
replacement of a utility pole and the collocation of an associated small wireless
facility that is not a permitted use.

(e) Exemptions. The City of Elkins shall not require an additional application, approval, or
permit, or require any fees or other charges from a wireless provider authorized to occupy the
right-of-way, for the following:

(1) Routine maintenance;

(2) The replacement of wireless facilities with wireless facilities that are substantially
sitnilar, the same size, or smaller; or

(3) The installation, placement, maintenance, operation, or replacement of micro wiréless
facilities that are suspended on existing cables that are strung between existing utility
poles in compliance with applicable safety codes and the pole owner’s construction
standards and engineering practices.

Section 21-153 Permit Application Processing.

(a) All permit applications filed pursuant to this Ordinance shall be reviewed for completeness
by the City of Elkins. The City of Elkins shall notify the applicant via certified mail whether
the application is complete within ten (10) days of receiving the application.

(b) If the application is incomplete, the City of Elkins shall notify the applicant, in writing; what
specific information is missing from the application. All deadlines required by this Section
are tolled from the time the City of Elkins sends the written notice of incompleteness to the
time the City of Elkins receives the missing information from the applicant.

(¢) A complete application for collocation of a small wireless facility shall be processed within
sixty (60) days of the receipt of the complete application.

(d) A complete application for the installation, modification, or replacement of a utility pole in
the right-of-way shall be processed within ninety (90) days of the receipt of the complete
application.

(e) Within sixty (60) days of receiving a complete application for use of a City of Elkins utility
pole, the City of Elkins shall provide a good faith estimate of any make-ready work
necessary to enable the pole to support the requested collocation. If the applicant accepts the
good faith estimate, the make-ready work shall be completed by the applicant within sixty
(60) days of acceptance. Requirements for make-ready work are as follows:

(1) The City of Elkins may require replacement of the City of Elkins utility pole only if it
demonstrates that the collocation would make the City of Elkins utility pole
structurally unsound;

(2) The person owning, managing, or controlling the City of Elkins utility pole may not
require more make-ready work than is required to meet applicable codes or industry
standards;

(3) Fees for make-ready work may not include costs related to preexisting or prior
damage or noncompliance; and




(4) Fees for make-ready work, including any pole replacement, may not exceed the actual
costs or the amount charged to other communications service providers for similar
work and may not include any consultant fee or expense.

(f) Processing deadlines may also be tolled by agreement of the applicant and the City of Elkins.
(g) The City of Eikins may deny the application if the application:

(1) Materially interferes with the safe operation of traffic control equipment;

(2) Materially interferes with sight lines or clear zones for transportation or pedestrians;

(3) Materially interferes with compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act or
similar federal or state standards regarding pedestrian access or movement;

{(4) Fails to comply with the reasonable and nondiscriminatory spacing requirements of

general application adopted by the City of Elkins that concern the location of ground- -

mounted equipment and utility poles, as specified in Section 4 of this Ordinance;

(5) Fails to comply with the reasonable and nondiscriminatory rules approved by the City
of Elkins in Section 11 of this Ordinance;

(6) Fails to comply with the design guidelines in Section 4 of this Ordinance; or

(7) Fails to attest that a small wireless facility will comply with relevant FCC regulations.

(h) If the City of Elkins denies the application, it shall document the basis for the denial,
including the specific provision on which the denial was based, and send the documentation
to the applicant on or before the day the City of Elkins denies the application. The applicant
may cure the deficiencies identified within thirty (30) days without paying an additional
application fee. If the applicant cures after thirty (30) days, the applicant shall pay an
additional application fee in order for the revised application to be considered. The City of
Elkins shall have thirty (30) days to approve or deny the revised application.

(i) The installation or collocation shall be completed within one (1) year after the permit
issuance date unless the City of Elkins and the applicant agree to extend the period or a delay
is caused by the lack of commercial power or communications facilities at the site.

(j) Upon approval of the application and posting of the reasonable bond, escrow deposit, letter
of credit, or other financial surety required by the City of Elkins to ensure removal of
abandoned or unused wireless facility or damage to the right-of-way or City of Elkins
property, the applicant may undertake the installation or collocation and operate and maintain
the small wireless facilities and associated utility poles.

(k) An applicant may file a consolidated application and receive a single permit for the
collocation of multiple small wireless facilities located within the City of Elkins’ jurisdiction.
The denial of one (1) or more small wireless facilities in a consolidated application may not
delay processing of any other small wireless facilities in the same batch.

(1) Permits issued under this Ordinance authorize the applicant to operate and maintain the small
wireless facilities and any associated utility poles that are covered by the permit for a period
of ten (10) years.

Section 21-154 Revocation of Permit.
The City of Elkins may revoke an applicant’s permit at any time if the conditions of the permit
required pursuant to Chapter 31H of the West Virginia Code are no longer being satisfied.

Section 21-155 Rates.

(a) If an applicant’s wireless facilities are located in a right-of-way, the applicant shall pay a rate
of twenty-five dollars ($25) per year, per small wireless facility for occupancy and use of the
right-of-way.




(b) If an applicant collocates its wireless facilities on a City of Elkins utility pole, the applicant
shall pay a rate of sixty-five dollars ($65) per year, per City of Elkins utility pole for the
occupancy and use of the City of Elkins utility pole.

Section 21-156 Public Right-of-Way Requirements.

(a) The City of Elkins may prohibit or restrict the applicant from working within a right-of-way
when a road is closed, or its access is limited to the public.

(b) The applicant shall employ due care during the installation, maintenance, or any other work
in the right-of-way, and shall comply with all safety and right-of-way protection
requirements of applicable laws, codes, guidelines, standards, and practices, and any
additional commonly accepted safety and public right-of-way protection standards, methods,
and devices to the extent consistent with applicable laws.

(c) Unless otherwise specified in the permit, the applicant shall erect a barrier around the
perimeter of any excavation and provide appropriate traffic control devices, signs, and lights
to protect, warm, and guide the public (vehicular and pedestrian) through the work zone. The
manner and use of these devices shall be described within a traffic control plan in accordance
with the Uniform Manual of Traffic Control Devices. The applicant shall maintain all
barriers and other traffic control and safety devices related to an open excavation until the
excavation is restored to a safe condition or as otherwise directed by the City of Elkins.

(d) The applicant shall not interfere with any existing facilities or structures in the right-of-way,
and shall locate its lines and equipment in such a manner as not to interfere with the usual
traffic patterns (vehicular or pedestrian) or with the rights or reasonable convenience of
owners of property that abuts any right-of-way.

(e) If the City of Elkins determines that a small wireless facility or utility pole violates the
building code or otherwise creates a danger to the public’s health, safety, and welfare, the
City of Elkins shall follow the processes and procedures laid out in the West Virginia State
Building Code.

(f) Any damage to the right-of-way directly caused by an applicant’s activities in the right-of-
way shall be repaired in order to return the right-of-way to its functional equivalence before
the damage. After the applicant receives written notice, the City of Elkins may assess a fine
of one hundred dollars ($100) per day until the repairs are completed. If the applicant fails to
make the repairs required by the City of Elkins within a reasonable time after written notice,
the City of Flkins may complete the repairs and charge the applicant for the reasonable,
documented cost of the repairs in addition to the one hundred dollar ($100) daily fine.

Section 21-157 Additional Local Rules.

(a) The City of Elkins is authorized to create reasonable rules for construction and public safety
in the rights-of-way, including wiring and cabling requirements, grounding requirements, and
abandonment and removal provisions, to the extent any additional rules are necessary.

(b) These rules shall be applied in a nondiscriminatory manner and shall be posted publicly on
the City of Elkins’ website and shall be available to the public in print at the City Clerk’s
office. If the City of Elkins determines that no additional rules are necessary, the City of
Elkins’ website shall state that no additional rules apply. The City of Elkins may change the
guidelines in a prospective manner for all permit applications moving forward but shall not
change requirements on any applicant who has already applied for a permit. Each new or
modified small wireless facility or utility pole installed in the right-of-way shall comply with
the City of Elkins current rules for construction and public safety as of the time of the permit
application.



Section 121-158 Indemnification.

Any wireless provider who owns or operates small wireless facilities or utility poles in the right-
of-way shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold the City of Elkins and its elected officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless against any and all claims; lawsuits;
judgments; costs; liens; losses; expenses; fees to include reasonable attorney fees and costs of
defense; proceedings; actions; demands; causes of action; liability and suits of any kind and
nature, including personal or bodily injury or death; or property damage or other harm for which
recovery of damages is sought, to the extent that it is caused by the negligence of the wireless
provider who owns or operates small wireless facilities or utility poles in the right-of-way, any
agent; officer; director; representative; employee; affiliate; contractor, or subcontractor of the
wireless provider; or their respective officers, agents, employees, directors, or representatives
while installing, repairing, or maintaining facilities in rights-of-way.

If any portion of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be declared invalid by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof and
Common Council determines that it would have adopted this Ordinance without the invalid
provision.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of its final adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING: day of . 2022,
PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THE day of
, 2022,

CITY OF ELKINS, WEST VIRGINIA

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Atrest;

Jessica Sutton, City Clerk



City of Elkins Zoning Ordinance Draft Use Table
P = Permitted ("By- Right"); C = Conditional (Board of Zoning Appeals)

USES
Central
Telecommunications Single Family City Business
Uses Overlay Residential Residential Recreational District Commercial Educational  Industrial
Adult Business c
Amphitheater P P P
Animal Hospital/ P P :
Veterinary Office
P P
Automobile Car Wash
Automobile =) P
Repair/Service
Bakery C P P P
Baqk/ﬁnanmal P P =)
Institution
:Bed and Breakfast Inn c P = =
Bed and Breakfast Inn C P =) =) =)
Il
Bed and Breakfast Inn P =]
I}
Boat and Marine =) =]
Sales/Service
Brewery Pub C P P P
Broadcasting Studio P P P
(radio/television)
Builld.ing Material =) p
Facility
P P
Bus/Transit Facilities
P P P P P P P
Bus/Transit Shelter
P P P
Butcher Shop
Catering Business P P P
Child Day Care =) =)
Facility, Class 1
Child Day Care P =)
Facility, Class 2
Child Day Care
Facility, Class 3 P i i
Child Day Care
Facility, Class 4 P P P P
Clinic =) P =
Community Facility C P P
Continuing Care p
Facility
Convenience Store P P P

DRAFT-May 2022




P = Permitted ("By- Right"); C = Conditional (Board of Zoning Appeals)

USES
Central
Telecommunications Single Family City Business
Uses Overlay Residential Residential Recreational District Commercial Educational  Industrial
Conversion of c c c c c c
School/Church
Cultural Service P P P
Distillery P P P
Distribution Facility P P
o P P P P P P
Dog Day Care C P P
Dry Cleaner P P
. C P P
Dwelling, Accessory
Dwelling, Conversion Cc C
Apartment
Dwelling, Mixed Use P P
Dwelling, Multi-family C P P
Dwgllmg, Single- P P =) =) =]
family
Dwelling, Two-family P P P P
: o P P P
Educational Institution
Emergency Shelter c c c
Equipment =] P P
Rental/Repair
Essential Utilities and ) =) P P = =) =)
Equipment
Event, Mass
Gathering C P
Event, Special P P
: C
Extractive Industry
Factory-Built Home P
Factory-Built Home P
Rental Community
Farm/ Construction =) =)
Equipment and
Supply Sales
Farmer’s Market i i ?
Flea Market C
. : C
Freight Terminal
Funeral =]
Home/Mortuary
Garage, Public C
Garden Center P P
DRAFT-May 2022 2




P = Permitted ("By- Right"); C = Conditional (Board of Zoning Appeals)

USES

Uses

Telecommunications
Overlay

Single Family
Residential

City
Residential Recreational

Central
Business
District

Commercial

Educational

Industrial

Gas Station

Cc

Cc

P

Gas Station, Large

Cc

2]

Governmental
Operations

Greenhouse,
Commercial

Greenhouse,
Noncommercial

Group Residential
Facility

Group Residential
Home

Health Club

Home-Based
Business (Low
Impact)

Home-Based
Business (No Impact)

Hospital

Hotel/Motel

Incinerator

Industrial Park

Kennel

Laboratory

Laundromat

Liquor Store

T T T O

Lumberyard

Manufacturing
(Heavy)

Manufacturing (Light)

Medical Adult Day
Care Center

Medical Cannabis
Dispensary

Medical Cannabis
Growing Facility

Medical Cannabis
Organization, Health
Care

Medical Cannabis
Processing Facility

Night Club

Office Supply
Establishment

Parcel Delivery
Facility

DRAFT-May 2022




P = Permitted ("By- Right"); C = Conditional (Board of Zoning Appeals)

USES
Central
Telecommunications Single Family City Business
Uses Overlay Residential Residential Recreational District Commercial Educational  Industrial
Park P P P P P P
Parking Lot C C C C P P
Parking Structure C C C C
P P
Personal Service
Pet Shop P P
Pharmacy P P P
Photographic Studio P P P
Plaggs of Worshllp / c p P P p
Religious Institution
Private Club C P
Professional Services P P
Reception Facility c P P P P
Recreation, P P P P
Commercial Indoor
Recreation
7 P P P
Commercial Outdoor
. . C C P P P P P
Recreation, Municipal
Recycling Facility ¢ P
Research and =]
Development
Restaurant P P P P
Retail Store/Shop
<7,000 square feet P P P
Retail Store/Shop
7,000 to 25,000 C P P
square feet
Retail Store/Shop C C
>25,000 square feet
Roadside Vendor C C
Stand
Salvage Yard C
School, Commercial ¢ P P
C P P
School, PreK-12
» P
Self-storage Facility
Senior Independent c p p
Housing
Shopping Center ¢ P
Solar Energy Facility, =] P P =) =) =) =)
Small
Solar Energy Facility, P P
Large
DRAFT-May 2022 4




P = Permitted ("By- Right"); C = Conditional (Board of Zoning Appeals)

USES

Uses

Telecommunications
Overlay

Single Family
Residential

City

Residential Recreational

Central
Business
District

Commercial

Educational

Industrial

Solid Waste Disposal
Area/Facility, Private

Solid Waste Disposal
Area/Facility, Public

Sports Arena

Studio, Dancing,
Music, or Art

Tattoo Parlor/Body
Piercing Studio

Tavern/Drinking
Establishment

Temporary Shelter

Theater

Theater, Drive-in

Truck Terminal

Vehicles Sales/Rental
and Service

Video Gaming or
Lottery Establishment

Warehouse

Water Treatment
Plant

Wholesale
Establishment

Wind Energy Facility,
Small

Winery

Wireless
Telecommunications
Facility, Small Cells

Wireless
Telecommunications
Facility

DRAFT-May 2022




City of Elkins
Draft Zoning Map '
May 2022

T

|
% JJH

AT,

:

SO

é&\‘

N

2N 4
Q\AI" .'
J

Ay

X

/ \

Legend

|"__\_,'_—I City of Elkins

Railroads

Roads

’ Tygart Valley River
Zoning Districts

Single Family Residential

Source Data: West Virginia GIS Technical Center, WVDOT, City of Elkins

0 0.275 0.55 1.1 Miles

Telecommunications Overlay | i i i | i i i |




CITY OF ELKINS

IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(#1550)
- July 28, 2022

Appointing Interim Operations Manager and Establishing Compensation Level

WHERFEAS, Operations Manager Joshua Sanson has resigned effective July 1, 2022; and,
WHEREAS, Elkins City Code, §32.01 provides Council the authority to appoint city officers; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Elkins Personnel Policy section 4.G: Temporary Assignment allows for an
employee to be assigned on a temporary basis to perform duties of a higher position level; and,

WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee has recommended Operations Assistant Melody Himes to serve
as the interim Operations Manager effective 4:30 p.m. on July 1, 2022 and until a permanent operations

manager can be appointed; and,

WHEREAS, Elkins City Code, §30.02 provides Council the authority to prescribe and set forth
compensation paid in the annual budget or through other ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Elkins Personnel Policy section 4.G: Temporary Assignment dictates the
process and calculation for determining a pay-rate to be applied during the temporary assignment; and,

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available within the General Fund of the current fiscal year;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT:

The Common Council of the City of Elkins hereby appoints Melody Himes as Interim Operations
Manager effective 4:30 p.m. July 1, 2022; and

FURTHER, that Melody Himes be compensated at in accordance with the City of Elkins Personnel
Policy Sec. 4.G and until her duties as Interim Operations Manager cease by action of council.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor
Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Flkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(#1551)
July 28, 2022

Adopting City Council Rule on Executive Session
and Amending City of Elkins Rules of Council

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Elkins (“Council”) adopted Rules of Elkins Common
Council (“the Rules™), on February 7, 2013 and last amended the Rules on February 3, 2022; and,

WHEREAS, the West Virginia Ethics Commission on Open Governmental Meetings issued Open Meetmgs
Advisory Opinion 2022-01 on March 3, 2022, addressing the conﬁdentlahty of executive session for
governmental bodies; and,

WHEREAS, the Elkins City Attorney, upon review of this opinion, has recommended adoption of a council
rule and amendments to the Rules of Council, as shown on the attached documents; and,

WHEREAS, Council finds that is in the best interests of the City of Elkins to adopt the City Council Rule on
Executive Session and to amend the City of Elkins Rules of Council in concurrence with the West Virginia
Ethics Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-01;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT:

The Elkins Common Council hereby adopts and implements the City Council Rule on Executive Session
and amended Rules of Council, as shown on the attached documents, effective immediately.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Atrest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




City Council Rule
On
Executive Sessions
Introduction

The Common Council of the City of Elkins (“City Council™) and its Standing and

Ad Hoc Committees ( “Committees™) conduct public meetings pursuant to the West Virginia Open
Governmental Proceedings Act, as codified at W.Va Code §6-94-1 et seq. (“OGPA”), including
by holding portions of such meetings in executive session closed to the public pursuant to ¥, Va.
Code §6-94-4. This City Council Policy (the “Policy”) establishes the rules for conducting
executive sessions of the meetings of City Council and Committees.

1.

Rule

Scope and application. This Rule applies to public meetings held by City Council and
Committees and to any and all executive sessions held within such meetings. This Rule
is adopted in accordance with OGPA and consistent with Open Meetings Advisory
Opinion 2022-01, adopted by the Open Governmental Meetings Committee of the West
Virginia Ethics Commission on March 3, 2022. This Rule will be interpreted to be
consistent with OGPA and applicable decisions of courts having jurisdiction over
related matters. To the extent there is a conflict, or apparent conflict, between the
provisions of this Rule and OGPA or binding judicial precedent, OGPA and the
decisional law shall prevail over the provisions of this Policy.

Definitions. Terms used in this Rule, unless specifically defined otherwise in the Rule,
have the meanings supplied OGPA.

Executive Session Procedures. City Council and Committees will conduct executive
sessions in accordance with the following procedures:

a. Any matter on the public meeting agenda may be considered in executive
session if permissible to do so under OGPA,

b. City Council and Committees will move into executive session only by
majority vote of its members present at any public meeting.

C. The motion to enter executive session will identify the authority under

OGPA for the executive session. This identification may be made by
describing the purpose of the executive session — e.g., to consider matters
affecting the acquisition or development of real estate — or by citing the
specific portion of OGPA authorizing the executive session.

d. The executive session for City Council will include all members of City
Council present except any member who is disqualified from participating
by law or applicable rule or regulation, and any other persons City Council
determines appropriate. The executive session for Committees will include
only the members of the respective Committee present except any member




Adopted this

who is disqualified from participating by law or applicable mle or
regulation, and any other persons the Committees deem appropriate.

No minutes nor any other record of the executive session will be made.
Each person present in the executive session shall have a duty to maintain
as confidential all matters discussed in the executive session, and no such
person may disclose, or allow to be disclosed, the information addressed in
executive session. Disclosure of the matters discussed in executive session
may be made only in the following instances: (1) when City Council or
Committees affirmatively act to permit such disclosure, and then only to the
extent permitted by the City Council’s or Committees’ action and applicable
law; and (2) when required by law.

City Council or Committees will exit executive session by majority vote of
the members present.

The presiding officer of the City Council or the Committees shall record the
motion and votes to enter and exit executive session, noting the time of each
and the majority vote.

day of , 2022,

The Common Council of The City of Elkins, West Virginia

By: Jerry A. Marco
Its: Mayor

Attest:

Jessica Sutton

City Clerk




CITY OF ELKINS

City of Elkins
Rules of Council
Proposed: July 28, 2022

Rule Titles
1. Meetings

2. Committees

3. Agenda Items and Informational Packets
4. Order of business at regular meetings

5. Reading of the minutes

6. Procedures for enacting ordinances

7. Informational presentation

8. Reports of committees

9. When a member abstains from voting
10. Executive session

11. Rescission, amendment, and suspension of rules
12. Discussion, debate, and voting

13. Parliamentary rules of order

14. Members of the public speaking before city council

1. Meetings
a) The city council shall meet in regular public session at the council chamber in the city hall

building at 7:00 p.m. on the first and third Thursdays of each month.

b) Special meetings shall be held upon the written petition of two or more members of council
or the call of the mayor.

¢) Ifthe city council shall determine that the council chamber in the city building is not or will
not, for any reason, be an appropriate place for the holding of a meeting, the council may,
upon motion, designate another place open to the public within the city for the holding of
such meeting.

d) During an emergency situation or a declared state of emergency the mayor may change the
location of the meeting and/or permit meetings to be held telephonically or via live audio or

Page1of6

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




2.

CITY OF ELKINS

visual stream, so long as they continue to meet the minimum standards of the W.V. Open
Meetings Act as interpreted by the W.V Ethics Commission,

Committees

a) The city council shall have the following standing committees:

1.

Committee on finance: recommends an annual budget to council. Supervises budget
management and makes reports to council; reviews and proposes to council
municipal dept instruments and grants; makes fiscal forecasts and reports the same to
council.

Committee on rules and ordinances: considers and proposes to council new and
amended ordinances, rules, and policies.

Committee on municipal properties: monitors and reports to council on the condition
of and proposed plans for city buildings, real estate, and rights-of-way; reviews and
proposes to council capital investment in buildings, real estate and associated
infrastructure.

Committee on personnel: reviews and proposes to council employment policies,
inciuding employee compensation and benefits and an employee handbook; reviews
applications for primary staff positions recommended by the mayor and makes hiring
recommendations to council.

Committee on public safety: monitors and reports to council on the activities of,
condition of and proposed plans for municipal public safety assets, including police,
fire, and emergency services; reviews and proposed to council capital investment in
public safety equipment and infrastructure.

b) All standing committees shall consist of no fewer than three and no more than five

c)

d)

councilors. All standing committees shall be appointed by the mayor.

In addition to the foregoing standing committees, there may be one or more ad-hoc
committees assigned a mission or missions by council or the mayor. All' members of such
committees shall be appointed by the mayor.

The mayor shall also appoint one council representative to the Elkins Parks and Recreation
Commission and one council representative to the Elkins Planning Commission.

Agenda Items and Informational Packets

To promote the orderly conduct of the business of the city council and the timely preparation of
an accurate agenda, the following rules are hereby established and applicable to the conduct of
city council and council committee meetings:

a) Council meeting agenda items may be submitted to the city clerk by the mayor, by a

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241

committee chair, by any three members of council or by any administrative officer. Agenda

Page 2 of 6

Telephone: (304} 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

items may not be removed from the agenda without the permission of the individual or body
who submitted the initial request.

b) - Commiitee meeting agenda items may be submitted to the clerk of the committee by the
mayor, any member of the committee or by any administrative officer. members of council or
by any administrative officer. Agenda items may not be removed from the agenda without the
permission of the individual or body who submitted the initial request.

¢) Items may be provided for inclusion in the council or committee informational packets by the
mayor, any member of council, or any administrative officer; such items may not be removed
without the permission of the person who submitted the item.

d) By law, agendas must be posted no later than 72 hours before a mecting. Therefore, every
effort should be made to submit agenda items to the clerk no later than 12:00 p.m. on the
fourth business day preceding a council or committee meeting (keeping in mind weekends
and interceding holidays). Because council members’ informational packets are prepared on
the last business day before a council or committee meeting, every effort should be made to
submit supporting documentation for agenda items (such as agenda items reports, invoices,
explanatory correspondence, etc.) no later than 12:00 p.m. the last business day preceding the
council or committee meeting.

e} The city clerk or city attorney will prepare and/or approve the final form of resolutions; the
city attorney will prepare and must approve the final form of ordinances. The city clerk shall
assign a number to each ordinance and resolution introduced and shall have authority to edit
and correct resolutions as to form.

Order of business at regular meetings

a) The order of business for each meeting shall be determined by the clerk. The presiding
officer, being the mayor, mayor designee, or chair, shall abide by the order of business as
presented in the duly posted meeting agenda.

b) The presiding officer may, by publicly stated reason and with unanimous consent of the body,
change the order of business irrespective of the order as set forth in subsection (a).

¢) All meeting agenda items must be considered at that meeting. Agenda items may be
withdrawn, postponed, or otherwise disposed only by a duly approved motion. If a member
requests that an agenda item be considered in executive session, as permitted by W.V. Code
§6-9A-4, said request shall be made by motion. The motion must state the grounds for
convening an executive session and an executive session may be held only upon a majority
affirmative vote of the members present. All members of the body are permitted to be
included in any executive session. Other elected officials, staff, citizens, or attendees may be
included in the executive session at the request of the member making the motion.

Page 3 of 6

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephione: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




11.

12.

CITY OF ELKINS

Reading of the minutes

Members are provided copies of the minutes in advance of the meeting at which they will be
considered for approval; because members have the opportunity to review minutes beforehand,
minutes are not typically read at the meeting. M. Upon motion, duly approved, the minutes may
be amended and adopted, including any submitted alternations or corrections.

Procedures for enacting ordinances .

All ordinances shall be acted upon by Council in accordance with the City Code and the West
Virginia Code.

Informational presentations

Council or the mayor may request or permit an informational presentation by anyone presenting
business pertinent to the city. No substantial deliberation or action shall be taken in response to a
presentation unless the item is otherwise listed in the order of business.

Reports

All reports of committees shall be delivered by the committee chair when requested by the mayor
during the regularly scheduled Council meetings. In the absence of the chair another committee
member may be called upon to repott.

Staff reports shall be delivered by the administrative officer, or their designee. When appropriate
the chief water operator, chief wastewater operator, city staff or representatives of the city’s
boards and commissions may be called upon by council or committee to report.

When a member abstains from voting

No member shall vote on any question before the city council if they are directly and immediately
interested therein other than as a citizen of the City of Elkins; however, no member may abstain
from voting without, prior to a vote being taken, having stated their reason for not voting.

'Executive session

Rules regulating the application and confidentiality of executive session durmg council and
[ be adopted separately and titled Ctty Council Rule on Executive

comrnittee m !
Session. They shall appear as an addendum to the adopted City of Elkins Rules of Council.

Rescission, amendment, and suspension of rules

No standing order or rule of the city council shall be rescinded or amended except by a majority
vote of the members elected to the city council.

Discussion, debate, and voting

a) Agenda business items must be moved before being debated or discussed. At their discretion,
the chair may propose action on an item by unanimous consent,

Page 4 of 6

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304} 635-7973




13.

14.

CITY OF

b) Items not appearing on the agenda may not be substantively discussed.

¢) The mayor or acting chair may participate in debates and discussions without relinquishing
the chairmanship.

d) Members need not rise to speak. Members must be recognized by the chair before obtaining
the floor, but the chair must recognize any member who seeks the floor while entitled to it.

¢) No one except council members and the chair may participate in or contribute to discussion
and debate unless recognized by a member or the chair in due order.

f) The standard method of voting will be by voice. The chair will first ask all those in favor of a
motion to say “aye,” and they will next ask all those opposing a motion to say “nay.” If the
result of the voice vote is not unanimous, the chair or any member shall request a roll-call
vote.

Parliamentary rules of order

For circumstances not described in these rules, refer to Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, a
copy of which shall remain on file in the office of the city clerk.

Members of the public speaking before city council
1) Per Elkins City Code Chapter 31.05, rev.:

a) Privilege of citizens and taxpayers to be heard; limitation on time to speak. Any
citizen or taxpayer of the City may be heard either in person or by counsel upon any

matter introduced or pending before the Common Council; but no speech or hearing
shall exceed five minutes, except by the unanimous consent of the Council. If a
citizen or taxpayer of the City requests to be heard either in person or by counsel
upon any matter which is not introduced or pending before the Common Council,
said citizen or taxpayer of the City may be permitted to address Council upon
unanimous consent of the Council. Said speech or hearing shall not exceed five
minutes, except again by unanimous consent of the Council.

b) Citizens or counsel to speak only once on one subject at any one meeting. No citizen
or taxpayer of the City or his counsel shall speak more than once on one stibject at
any one meeting of the Common Council, except by unanimous consent.

¢) Manner of addressing Council. Any person, before addressing the Council, shall rise
to his feet, respectfully address the presiding officer, and remain standing while
delivering his address. The person addressing Council shall state his name and
address, and if the person represents a group or is speaking on behalf of someone
other than himself.

Page 5 of 6

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973

ELKINS




15.

CITY OF ELKINS

d) Order of recognition. If two or more persons desire to address the Common Council
at the same time, the presiding officer shall recognize the person who first addressed
the chair, and the other person shall at once be seated.

¢} Acknowledgment. The mayor or the presiding officer of the meeting shall
acknowledge the person addressing the Common Council. The mayor or the
presiding officer may request that the matter being addressed in the public comment
be referred to the appropriate Council committee.

Expulsion

If a citizen, council member, official, or any other person in attendance at a council meeting
becomes unruly, the chair will, by gavel, advise such person that they are out of order and must
cease and desist whatever speech or other actions that the chair deems unruly. If the unruly
actions continue after such censure, the chair shall direct the chief of police or his representative
to remove such person or persons.

Page 6 of 6

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




CITY OF ELKINS

IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(#1552)
July 28, 2022

Approval of Changes to the City of Elkins Classification and Compensation Plan

WHEREAS, on August 2, 2018, per Resolution #1145 effective retroactively to July 1, 2018, the Elkins
Common Council adopted changes to the City of Elkins Personnel Policy Ch. 4.H: Classification and
Compensation, including the assignment of each position to a Grade; and,

WHEREAS, the Interim Operations Manager and the Personnel Committee have recommended changes
(attached as part of the record) to the Classification and Compensation Plan; and,

WHEREAS, those recommendations include reclassifying the Assistant Sanitation Supervisor position from
Grade 8 to Grade 9 to be retroactively effective as of July 1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, those recommendations include the addition of a Street Worker III position assigned to Grade 4
effective immediately; and

WHEREAS, Elkins City Code, §30.02 provides Council with the power to prescribe and set forth
compensation paid in the annual budget or through other ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, West Virginia Code, §8-5-12 provides that every municipality shall by ordinance or budget fix or
cause to be fixed the salary or compensation of every municipal officer and employee; and,

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are or will be made available within the 2023 fiscal year budget; and,

WHEREAS, Council finds that is in the best interests of the City of Elkins to adopt and implement these changes;
now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Elkins Common Council hereby adopts and implements the recommended changes to the
City of Elkins Classification and Compensation Plan.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




City of Elkins Grade Assignments Jul-22

Maintenance Worker

Sanitation Worker |
Street Worker I

Parking Attendant

Street Worker Il

Street Worker IV

Street Sweeper Operator
Mechanic

Sanitation Driver

Telecommunicator

Accounting Clerk |
Billing & Posting Clerk |
Court Clerk

Executive Secretary

Ops Administrative Assistant

FD-Probationary FF1

GIS Technician
Sanitation Asst. Supervisor

Payroll Clerk Construction Worker FD-FF1
Accounting Clerk Il
Billing & Posting Clerk Il
B Deputy Treasurer - FD-FF2
Street Asst. Supervisor
Opearations Assistant FD-FF3

PD-Probationary Patrolman

FD-Lieutenant
PD-Patrolman

Street Supervisor
Senior Mechanic
Sanitation Supervisor
Maintenance Supervisor

FD-Captain
PD-Corporal

External Affairs Specialist

PD-Sergeant

PD-1st Sergeant

Code Enforcement Officer

PD-1st Lieutenant

PD-Captain




CITY OF ELKINS

IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(#1553)
July 28, 2022

Approving “Full-Time Regular Employee” Status and
Confirming Compensation Level for J. Haden

WHEREAS, as of July 17, 2022, Jessica Haden will have completed her 90-day probationary
period as an Accounting Clerk I; and,

WHEREAS, the wage associated with this position is $12.38 per hour; and,

WHEREAS, Elkins City Code, §30.02 provides Council with the power to prescribe and set
forth compensation paid in the annual budget or through other ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, West Virginia Code, §8-5-12 provides that every municipality shall by ordinance
or budget fix or cause to be fixed the salary or compensation of every municipal officer and
employee; and,

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available within the appropriate accounts;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT:

The Common Council of the City of Elkins hereby confirms Jessica Haden as an Accounting
Clerk I and, as of July 17, 2022, accords her the status of full-time regular employee; and,

FURTHER, confirms that her compensation in that position is $12.38 per hour.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




Elkins Common Council: Agenda Item Request
Personnel Action

Name of Empioyse: Jessica Haden

Requesting Administrative Officer (circle one):

o e,
Clerk Fire Chief Operations Manager Police Chief {\ Treasurer \|

-

s

Requested Personnel Action {check one):

® New employee has completed probationary period and is recommended for full-time
regular status

[Z Promoted/transferred employee has completed probationary period and is
recommended for confirmation in new position

Other (please describe in detail):

-

Employee’s Direct Supervisor: T_v--u.“i\ & Wiga.{

Effective date of personnel action: X u\‘»-{\ \7‘1 2h22.

Employee’s title/dept. after action:

BLLD&&.ESYQE_&L/ TU\P{»’ GolSha iy §

Employee’s current Grade: b and Step: {, Wage: $_A_Z-_;_§‘i

Employee’s new Grade: E) and Step: k_m Wage: $ (2 \ 3%

N | N
Administrative Officer’s signature: _&,&gﬁ,@&jﬁ* Date: mg 2 L

**Route to Mayor**

Mayor's initials: ‘ /k

Elkins City Clerk -1 .Of 1-
Date created: 8/2/2021 8:50:00 AM Last saved: 8/2/21 8:50 AM




CITY OF ELKINS

IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV
A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

- (#1554)
July 28, 2022

Approval of Budget Revision 2023-001-01 for Fiscal Year 2023

- At a regular session of the Elkins Common Council, held July 28, 2022, the following order was ma.ide and
entered: _

SUBJECT: The revision of the Levy Estimate (Budget) of the City of Elkins. The following resolution was
offered:

RESOLVED: That subject to approval of the State Auditor as ex officio chief inspector of public offices the
Elkins Common Council does hereby direct the budget be revised PRIOR TO THE EXPENDITURE OR
OBLIGATION OF FUNDS FOR WHICH NO APPROPRIATION OR INSUFFICIENT
APPROPRIATION CURRENTLY EXISTS, as shown on State Auditor Budget Revision 1 (City Budget
Revision 1), copies of which are entered as part of this record.

'The adoption of the foregoing resolution having been moved by ; the vote thereon was as follows:
N. Bross-Fregonara C. Higgins L. Severino
R. Chenoweth M. Hinchman L. Vest
M. Cuonzo C. Lowther Mayor J, Marco (in case of tie)
1. Guye D. Parker

WHEREUPON: Mayor Marco declared satd resclution duly adopted, and it is therefore ADJUDGED and
ORDERED that said resolution be, and the same is, hereby adopted as so stated above, and the Elkins City
Clerk is authorized to fix her signature on the attached "Request for Revision to Approved Budget" to be sent
to the State Auditor for approval.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




LGSD BR (Ver. 2020)

REQUEST FOR REVISION TO APPROVED BUDGET

Subject 1o approval of the state auditor, the governing budy requests CONTRGL NUMBER
Ora Ash, Deputy Stale Auditor that the budget be revised prior 10 the axpenditure or cbligation of funds T 2023
West Virginia State Auditor's Office far which no appropriation or insufficiant appropriation currently exists. Fung: 1
200 West Main Street {§ 11-8-26a) Revinion Nirbes 1
Clarksburg, WV 26301 Pages; 10f1
Phong: 627-2415 ext. 5114 City of Elkins
Fax: 304-340-8090 GOVERNMENT ENTITY
Emall: lgs@wvaac.gov
Person Ta Conlact Regarding Request: 401 Davis Ave.
Name: Tracy Judy STREET QR PO BOX Municipality
Phone: 304-636-1414, ext 1317 Govemment Type
Fax: 304-835.7135 Elking 26241
Emall: udy@cilyofalkinswy.com crry ZIP CODE
REVENUES: {net each acct.)
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT PREVIQUSLY REVISED
NUMBER DESCRIPTION APPROVED AMOUNT {INCREASE} {DECREASE) AMOUNT
268 Unassigned Fund Balance 270,054 977,686 1,247,740
#N/A
H#NIA
ANIA
BNA
#NIA
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) Revenuas (ALL PAGES) 977,686
Explanation for Account # 378, Municipal Specific:
Explanation for Account ¥ 369, Cantributions from Other Funda:
EXPENDITURES; (net each account catego ) {WV CODE 7-1-9)
ACCOUNT AGCOUNT PREVIOUSLY REVISED
NUMBER DESCRIPTION APPROVED AMOUNT] {INCREASE) {DECREASE) AMOUNT
417 City Attarney 85,000 85,000
429 Clearing 17,078 17,078
Contributions / Transfers to  Other
444 Funds 761,608 761,608
750 Streats and Highways 1,163,930 35,000 1.128,930
751 Siraat Lights 98,000 89,000
BO5 Storm Sewer 50,000 50,000
#N/A
WA
BN/A
/A
NET INCREASE/NDECREASE) Expenditures 877,686
APPROVED BY THE STATE AUDITOR _
lay: AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE APPROVAL
|Daputy State Auditor, Local Government Services Divislon Date OF ENTITY DATE




IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(#1555)
July 28, 2022

Appointing a Treasurer and Confirming the Amount of Compensation

WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Elkins Section 3.01 (b) states that the mayor shall nominate for
service officers including the City Treasurer, to be reviewed by the Personnel Committee and with the
final approval of Council; and,

WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Elkins Section 3.07 states that council may, upon nomination
by the mayor and review by the Personnel Committee, appoint an individual to serve as City Treasurer,
and that the compensation for the City Treasurer shall be fixed by City Council; and,

WHEREAS, Elkins City Code §32.1 6(f) directs that Council, at its first regular meeting in September
each odd vear, "or as soon thereafter as practicable," elect a Treasurer for a term of two years to
commence on the first of October next succeeding his or her election; and

WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee of the Elkins Common Council has recommended Tracy Judy
be appointed to the position of Treasurer; and,

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has recommended that the compensation for T. Judy be fixed at
$56,000 annually to be retroactively effective October 1, 2021; and,

WHEREAS, §15 of the Charter of the City of Elkins provides Council with authority to set forth
compensation for municipal officers; and

WHEREAS, West Virginia Code, §8-5-12 provides that every municipality shall by ordinance or
budget fix or cause to be fixed the salary or compensation of every municipal officer or employee; and

WHEREAS, the West Virginia Constitution, §8-5-12 prohibits the salary of any public officer be
increased or decreased during his term of office; and,

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available within the Treasurer's Department account of the current
fiscal year's General Fund budget;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT:
The Common Council of the City of Elkins hereby appoints Tracy Judy as Treasurer for a term
expiring September 30, 2023; and,




FURTHER, that the amount of compensation shall be $56,000 dollars per annum and shall be
retroactive to October 1, 2021.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk




CITY OF ELKINS

IN THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

A RESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(11556)
July 28, 2022

Authorizing Conditions of Lease & Addendum and Maintenance Agreement between
Hart Office Solutions and the City of Elkins (Sanitation Department)

WHEREAS, the City of Elkins, West Virginia (“City”) has determined to obtain equipment and services for a
multifunction machine in the Sanitation Department; and,

WHEREAS, the City has received a proposed Agreement with Hart Office Solutions, LLC (copy attached) for
the provision of such equipment and services; and,

WHEREAS, it appears that contracting for this service is in the best interests of the citizens of the City of
Elkins; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Elkins Common Council approves this Agreement and authorizes execution of this
Agreement by the Mayor, or his designee, on behalf of the City of Elkins.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




Toshiba MFP Maintenance Agreement

|
July 21, 2022 |

City of Elkins Sanitation
401 Davis Avenue
Elkins, WV 26241
304-636-1414

Maintenance Details for Toshiba e-Studio 478S Black & White System:

e Service and supplies are included for up to 2,000 black & white clicks per month. Excess black & white
billed monthly at $.015 per click.

o All parts, labor, drums, toner, and developer are included.

¢ Managed IT Services Agreements are available at discounted rates for a 5-hour block or 1 year, or on a per
call basis for $110.00 per hour.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF YOUR MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

For the purpose of maintaining the equipment covered by this agreement in good operating condition within manufacturer’s specifications, Hart
Office Solutions agrees to perform maintenance service in accordance with the following terms and conditions.

Hart Office Solutions is not responsible for any damages for loss of use of the Toshiba/Lexmark digitul copier. Such excluded domages would include, but not
limited to, a customer paying a third party to print documents or If customer Is unable to print because of a Toshiba/Lexmark/brother digital copier network
connection breakdown. Other exclusions include, but are not limited ta, customer credits or reimbursements for poor quality or wasted prints and/or credits or
reimbursements for wasted paper due to poor quality prints or due to misfeeds.

1
The term of this agreement is based upon the anticipated customer usage as shown in the maintenance description listed above. Allowed clicks
are accumulated from the meter reading on the M.A. {Maintenance Agreement} start date. Should the number of allowed clicks be exceeded,
customer agrees to pay the current excess click charge for each click in excess of allowed clicks. Invoices for excess click charges will he
tendered at the time of service,and shall be payable by the customer upon receipt.

Excessive toner fill usage and scans may result in additional charges above the normal CPC rate / Maintenance charge. Supplies will also be
provided based on the manufacturer's listed usage rate.

Hart Office Solutions reserves the right to terminate this agreement.
This agreement covers all rocuting, remedial and preventative maintenance service so long as this type of coverage was purchased.
With the exception of consumable parts, all parts are included under this agreement (so long as this type of agreement was purchased).

Consumable supplies are not included under this agreement unless specified as such under the "Maintenance Description” area of this
agreement.

Electrical work external to the equipment and equipment line cord is not covered by this agreement.
The initial term of the agreement shall commence on the date this agreement is signed. This agreement shall automatically renew annually, at
Hart Office Solutions maintenance rates in effect at the time of renewal. Hart Office Solutions reserves the right to increase the maintenance

agreement and/or overage click rates on an annual basis by an amount not to exceed 10%.

This agreement doss nat cover service necessitated by malfunction of parts, attachments, or supplies of non-Toshiba/l.exmark manufacture.



Any customer changes, alterations, or attachrents may require a change in the maintenance charge set forth herein, Hart Office Solutions also
reserves the right 1o terminate this agreement in the event that it shall determine that such changes, alterations, or attachments make it
impractical for Hart Office Solutions to continue to service the equipment.

This agreement will not apply to any equipment lost or damaged through accident, abuse, misuse, theft, neglect, acts of third parties, fire, water,
casualty or any other natural force. Any loss or damage occurting from any of the foregaing is specifically excluded from this agreement.

In the event that any equipment is moved form the location set forth on the reverse side hereof, Hart Office Solutions, may terminate and/or
subject the copier to additional service charges.

This agreement is not assignable or transferable by customer without prior written censent of Hart Office Solutions.
Custorner agrees OEM parts and supplies ars not required provided the parts or supplies meet or exceed manufacturer's specification.

Invoice pursuant to this agreement will be tendered at the cuiset of each term. All charges for service and parts hereunder and all maintenance
changes shall be payable by the customer immediately upon receipt of invoice. Hart Office Solutions reserves the right to withhold service and
product if Customer fails to make any payment due under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Cancellation at the conclusion of the initial term or any renewal term may be accomplished by either party giving written notice of such
cancellation to the other party no later than thirty (30} days prior to the expiration of the term then in effect. In addition, Hart Office Solutions
may cancel this agreement, in whole or in part, at any time upon seven {7) days written notice, or without notice in the thirty (30} day pericd prior
to the renewal date, if customer at any time is in breach of any term or condition herein contained.,

This Maintenance Agreement shall be for a twelve (12) month period beginning upon installation of the new or used system or upon the signing
of this agreement, whichever comes first. This non-cancelable agreement shall automatically be renewed annually at the then prevailing rates for
a successive one-year term unless terminated by either party by providing written notice no less than 30 days prior to the upcoming annual term.

Supplies: All supplies and parts ordered, accepted, and received by the customer remain under the ownership of Hart Office Solutions until
consumed,

Limited Remedies: At no time shall Hart Office Solutions be held liable for any damages to the network, network server or warkstations. In no
event shall Hart Office Solutions be liable for special, consequential, exemplary, indirect or incidental damages beyond the cost to repair or
replace a defective part and maintenance service. While Hart Office Solutions endeavors to promptly address any emergency and maintain the
Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier which is the subject of this agreement, Hart Office Solutions shall not be liable for any damages for any alleged
failure to make repairs and/or maintain the copier including any claim that the repair or maintenance was not timely. For example, but not by the
way of limitation, Hart Office Solutions is not responsible for any damages for loss of use of the Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier. Such excluded
damages would include, but not limited to, a customer paying a third party to print decuments or if customer is unable to print because of a
Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier network connection breakdown.

Miscellaneous: This Agresment constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement between the parties
pertaining to maintenance of the Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier network connection and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous
understandings or agreements of the parties. A signed facsimile or copy of the Agreement shall be deemed as effective as an original.

Connections to computer/networks: Connections will be performed by a Hart Office Solutions technician in conjunction with customers |T support
personnel. Customer shall first provide all necessary cabling, network connections and electrical requirements for the installation. If the
equipment cannet be installed and connected because of some condition within the customer's reasonable control, then a reinstallation charge
shall apply. The engineer perferming the installation will configure up to 5 workstations. Additional workstations will be configured at an
additional charge at the prevailing rate.

Connection Waiver: if Hart Office Solutions performs the installation/connection, the customer agrees that Hart Office Solutions is responsible
only for completing the installation and setup of the equipment purchased through Hart Office Solutions. Hart Office Solutions is not responsible
for any changes, failures, downtime or consequential losses of the gustemer's network, software or computers during or after the installation.

Acceptance: Your signature will indicate your acceptance of these terms and conditions.

Customer Name {printed): City of Elkins Sanitation

Date:

Customer Signature (acceptance):

Printed Name:

Title:




B HART OFFICE SOLUTIONS

YOUR LOCAL DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS DEALER
BOD-527-536¢

LEASE AGREEMENT

1720A Crete Street, Moberly, MO 65270
Phone: 800-662-3759, Fax: 800-426-2626

401 Davis Ave, Elkins, WV 26241

LESSEE LEGAL NAME: Telephone No;
City Of Elkins (Sanitation Department) 3046361414
Billing Address; Equipment Location {if other than Billing Address):

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, WV 26241

EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION: (indicate quantity, new or used and include make, model, serial # and all attachments — see below andfor attached Schedule A)

Unit Quantity Descripticn of Equipment Leased Make and Type Model Number Serial Number
1 Toshiba E4788 E4788
BASE TERM TOTAL NUMBER OF LEASE END OF LEASE PURCHASE OPTION
Ady P 1: 0.00
IN MONTHS PAYMENTS _X  Fair market value, plus taxes (a) Advance Paymen ¥
63 10% of Equipment cost, plus taxes b} Security Deposit: $0.00
63 @ 585.00 (plus taxes) $1.00, plus taxes ®) o e
(FMV unless another option is selected. You may not exercise a purchase option if | (¢} Documentation Fee:  595.00
you are in default, If you exercise a purchase option we will convey all of our
right, title and interest in such Equipment 10 you on an AS-IS WHERE I8 without | Total duca +b+c= $95.00
warranty. )

**If more than one lease payment is required as an Advance Payment, the balance will be applied to lease payments in inverse order, starting with the last lease payment.
Your obligation to pay all amounts and perform all other obligations is non-cancellable, absolute, unconditional and not subject to abatement, set-off or defense.

In this agreement (“Lease™}, “we,” “our,” and “‘us” refers to LEAF Capital Funding, LLC as
Lessor and “you” and “your” refer o the Lessee. You agree to lease the Equipment upon the
following terms and conditions:

1. LEASE PAYMENTS AND TERM: The Lease is enforceable on you upon your
execution. The term of the Lease shall commence on the date the Equipment is delivered to you
(“Lease Commencement Date™), The first Lease Payment shall be due on the date we specify in
the month following the Lease Commencement Date as set forth in our invoice, and the
remaining Lease Payments will be due on the same day of each subsequent month (each, a
“Payment Date™) until paid in full. The Base Term shall commence on the date one month prior
to the first Payment Date. We may charge you a portion of one Lease Payment for the period
fromm the Lease Commencement Date until the first day of the Base Term (*Interim Rent™). The
Interim Rent shall be due as invoiced, We may adjust the Lease Payments up to 15% if the
actual costs are different than the estimate used to calculate the E.ease Payments, On an annual
basis, the Monthly Payment may be increased by a maximum of 15% of the amount
previously then in effect.

2. DELIVERY, ACCEPTANCE, USE AND REPAIR: You are responsible for Equipment
delivery and installation. You uncoaditionally accept the Equipment upan the caclier of (a) your
oral or written acceptance of the Equipment, or (b} [0 days after delivery of the Equipment.
You authorize us to fill in ihe Lease Commencement Date, serial numbers and other
information. You will not move the Equipment from the above location without our
written consent and are responsible for maintaining the Equipment in good repair. We are
not responsible for Equipment or vendor failures.

3, INDEMNIFICATION: You agree to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and
against any losses, damages, penalties, claims and suits, including attorneys’ fees and expenses
related to the ordering, manufacture, installation, ownership, condition, use, lease, possession,
delivery or retum of Equipment.

4. LEASE EXPIRATION, RENEWAL: Unless yon notify us at least 99 days prior to the
expiration of the Lease of your election to return or purchase the Equipment, this Lease
will remew on a monch-to-month basis at the same monthly Lease Payment until you
either exercise the purchase option or provide us with at least 90 days notice and return
the Equipment. If you return the Equipment, (i) it must be to the location we designate and
you are responsible for all refem costs and we may charge a Restocking Fee equal to one Lease
Payment, and (ii) yon must securely remove all data from any and all disk drives or magnetic
media prior to returning the Equipment (and yoa are solely responsible for selecting an
appropriate removal standard that meets your business needs and complies with applicable
laws). You will pay us for any loss in value resulting from failure to maintain the Equipment in
accordance with this Lease or for damages incusred in shipping and handling,. If you exercise a
purchase option we will convey all of our interest in such Equipment to you on an AS.[S
WHERE IS basis without representation or warranty.

5. LATE FEES AND CHARGES: If any amount is not paid within three (3) days of when
due, you agree to pay us a late charge equal 1o the lesser of 10% of the amount past due or the
maximum legal amount. Amounts which are not paid within 30 days of when due shall accrue
interest at 1.5% per month (or if less, the maximum legal rate) until paid. You agree to pay $25
for each pay by phone and $35 for each returned payment,

6. NO WARRANTY: We do not manufacture the Equipment and you have selected the
Equipment and the suppliecc. WE MAKE NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES,
INCLUDING THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PURFOSE AND
ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGFES,

7. INSURANCE, RISK OF LOSS: You bear all risk of loss or damage to the Equipment from
its order until it is retumed in the required condition or purchased by you (“Risk
Period”). During the Risk Period you will maintain property and liability insurance on the
Equipment acceptable to us, naming us loss payee and additional insured. If you do not pravide
us with proof of such insurance, we may secure insurance on the Eguipment to cover

our interests (and only our interests). If we obtain such insurance, you will pay us an
additional amount for the cost of it and an administrative fee, the cost of which may be more
than the cost to obtain your own insurance and on wiich we may make a profit.

8, OWNERSHIP AND TAXES: We own the Equipment (excluding licensed software). If
vou are deamed to awn it, you grant us a security intesest in the Equipment. You authorize ns
te file UCC financing statements to confirm our interest. You will pay, when due, all taxes,
fines and penalties relating te the purchase, use, leasing acd/or ownership of the Equipment. If
we pay any taxes, (including property tax), fees or penalties on your behalf, you will pay us
the amount we paid plus an administrative fee. You agree to pay us the docurmentation fee
specified above or if not so speeified, the greater of cither 5125 or 0.5% of the Equipment
cost. If we require an Equipment site inspection, or you request administrative services, you
agree to reimburse our costs.

9. DEFAULT: If you or any puarantor do not pay us any amount within ten (10} days of its
due date, or breuach any terms of this Lease, any guaranty or any license relating to the
Equipment, you will be in default. If you default, we may require you to do any combination
of the following: {a) immediately pay all amounts then due, plus the present value of the
remaining Lease Payments, Interim Rent and residual value of the Equipment, as determined
by s, discounted at an annual rate of 3% (b} return all of the Equipment; (c) allow us to
repossess the Equipment; or (d) use any and all remedies available to us under applicable
law, If you default, you agree to pay the cost of repossession and our attorney’s fees and
costs. In addition to all other charges and as reimbursement for expenses incurred and nof as a
penalty, we may require you to reimburse us for the phone calls, letters, and any additional
expense incurred in the collection or servicing of this Lease for you, If we take possession of
the Equipment, we may sell or otherwise dispose of it with or without notice, at a public or
private sale, and apply the net proceeds (after we have deducted all costs related to the sale or
disposition of the Equipment) to the amounts that you owe us. You agree that if notice of sale
is required by law, 10 days’ notice shall constitute reasonable notice. You remain responsible
for any amounts that are due after we have applied such net proceeds. We may apply any
security deposits to your obligations and if you do not defauli, the balance will he refinded
without interest,

10. ASSIGNMENT: You have no right to sell or assign the Equipment or Lease. We may
sell or assign our rights in the Lease and/or Equipment and the new owner will have all our
rights but will net be subject to any claim or defense you have against us.

11. ARTICLE 2A; You agree this Lease is a “finance lease” as defined in Articie 2A of the
Uniform Commercial Code. You waive all rights and remedies conferred upon a lessee by
Article 2A (508-522) of the UCC. You have received a copy of the Supply Contract ar been
informed of the identity of the Supplier and you may have rights under the Supply Contract
and may contact the Supplier for a description of those rights.

12, CREDIT INFORMATION: You authorize us or any of our affiliates to obtain credit
burcau reports, and make other credit inquiries that we deem necessary.

13. CHOICE OF LAW: THIS LEASE WILL BE GOVERNED BY PENNSYLVANIA
LAW, YOU CONSENT TO JURISDICTION IN THE STATE QR FEDERAL COURTS
IN PENNSYLVANIA AND WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY.

14, MISCELLANEQUS: This Lease is the parties” entire agreement and can be amended
only in writing signed by both parties. This Lease may be executed in counterparts ({manualfy
or by electronic means) and, when transmitted to us shall be binding upon you for all
puarposes. This Lease is not binding on us until we sign it. You agree not to raise as a defense
to the enforcement of this Lease that it was executed or transmitted to us by electronic means.
‘You will use the Equipment only for business purposes and not for personal, family or
household use. The USA PATRIOT Act requires us to obtain, verify, and record information
that identifies you thus we ask for your name, address and other information or documents that
substantiate your identity.

ACCEPTED BY LESSEE: City Of Elkins Print Name: Title:
X ‘E-Mail Address: Date: :
Lessee Authorized Signature Tux ID Number;5560001 70

PERSONAL GUARANTY: Undersigned guarantees that Lessee will make all payments and perform all other obligations under the Lease when due. Undersigned agrees that this s a guaranty
of payment and not of collectian, and that we can proceed directly against undersigned without first proceeding against Lessee or the Equipment. Undersigned also waives all suretyship defenses
and notification if the Lessee is in default and censents to any extensions or modifications granted to Lessee. Undersigned will pay us all expenses (including astorneys’ fees) we incur in
enforcing our rights against undersigned or Lessee. If more than one person signs this guaranty, each agrees that his/her liability is joint and several. Undersigned authorizes us and our affiliates
to obtain credit burean reports and make inquiries regarding undersigned’s personal eredit, You consent to jurisdiction in the State or Federal courts in Pennsyivania and expressly waive
any right to a trial by jury.

SIGNED X Print Name: E-Mail Address:
Accepted by:
LEAF Capital Funding, LLC By: Title: Date:

LEASEOI 2-7-2019 App=744909




) HART OFFICE SOLUTIONS
YOUR LOCAL ﬂﬂCDI‘JDHENI' t:ﬁl.urluu: BEALER

State and Local Government Addendum

Reference: Application No. 744909

This State and Local Government Addendum (this “Addendum”) is made part of the Agreement related to
the above referenced application number (“Agreement”) between LEAF Capital Funding, LLC (“we" “us” and
“ours") and City Of Elkins (“vou” and “your”). Capitalized terms used but not defined will have the meaning given to
them in the Agreement. If there is any conflict between the terms of this Addendum and the terms of the Agreement,
the terms of this Addendum will control and prevail. The parties herehby agree as follows:

1. Eunding Intent. You reasonably believe that funds can be obtained sufficient to make all Payments set
forth in the Agreement and any other amounts owed during the term of the Agreement. You agree that your chief
executive or administrative officer (or your administrative office that has the responsibility of preparing the budget
submitted to your governing body, as applicable) wilt provide for funding for such payments in your annual budget
request submitted to your governing body. You covenant that you will do all things lawfully within your power to
obtain, maintain and properly request and pursue funds from which the Payments may be made, including making
provisions for such payments to the extent necessary in each budget submitted for the purpose of obtaining
funding, using your best efforts to have such portion of the budget approved and exhausting all available
administrative reviews and appeals in the event such portion of the budget is not approved. if your governing bady
chooses not to appropriate funds for such payments, you agree that your governing body will evidence such
nonappropriation by omitting funds for such payments due during the applicable fiscal period from the budget that it
adopts. You and we agree that your obligation to make payments under the Agreement will be your current expense
and will not be interpreted to be a debt in viclation of applicable law or constitutional limitations or
requirements. Nothing contained in the Agreement wilt be interpreted as a pledge of your general tax revenues,
funds or maneys.

2. Nonappropriation of Funds. If (a) sufficient funds are not appropriated and budgeted by your
governing body in any fiscal period for Payments set forth in the Agreement or any other amounts owed to us and

{b) you have exhausted all funds legally available for such payments due under the Agreement (together, a “Non-
Appropriation Event”), then you will give us not less than ninety (90) days written notice (a “Termination Notice") and
the Agreement will terminate as of the last day of your fiscal period for which funds for such payments are available
(“Termination Date"). Such termination is without any expense or penalty, except for the portions of such payments
and those expenses associated with your return of the Equipment in accordance with the Agreement for which
funds have been budgeted or appropriated or are otherwise legally available. You agree that, to the extent
permitted by law, you will not terminate the Agreement if any funds are appropriated by you or to you for the
acquisition ar use of squipment or services performing functions similar to the Equipment during your fiscal period
in which such termination would occur. You shall (i) on or before the Termination Date, return the Equipment in
accordance with the return requirements set forth in the Agreement, (ii) provide in the Termination Notice a
certification of a responsible official that a Non-Appropriation Event has occurred, (iii) deliver to us, upon our
request, an opinion of your counsel (addressed to us) verifying that the Non-Appropriation Event as set forth in the
Termination Notice has occurred, and (iv) pay us all sums payable to us under the Agreement up to and including
the Termination Date. You acknowledge and agree that, in the event of the termination of the Agreement and the
return of the Equipment as provided for herein, you shall have no interest whatsoever in the Equipment or proceeds
thereof and we shall be entitied to retain for our own account the proceeds resulting from any disposition or re-
leasing of the Equipment along with any advance rentals, security depoesits or other sums previously paid by you
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

3. Authority and Authorization. You represent and agree that: (a) you are a state or a political
subdivision or agency of a state; (b} the entering into and performance of the Agreement is authorized under your

state laws and Constitution and does not violate or contradict any judgment, law, order, or regulation, or cause any
default under any agreement to which you are party; (c) you have complied with all bidding requirements and,
where necessary, have properly presented the Agreement for approval and adoption as a valid obligation on your
part; and {d) you have sufficient appropriated funds or other moneys available to pay all amounts due under the
Agreement for your current fiscal period. Upon our request, you agree to provide us with an opinion of counsel as to
clauses (a) through (d) above, an incumbency certificate, and other documents that we request, with all such
documents being in a form satisfactory to us.

Page 10of 2 513 10-21-2016 App=744909



4. Government Use. You agree that (a} you will comply with all information reporting requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not limited to the execution and delivery
to us of information statements requesied by us, and (b) the use of the Equipment is essential for your
proper, efficient and economic operation, you will be the only entity fo use the Equipment during the term
of the Agreement and you will use the Equipment only for your governmental purposes. Upon our request
you will provide us with an essential use letter in a form satisfactory to us as to clause (b) above.

5. Insurance. You agree to provide and maintain at your own expense (a) property insurance against the
loss, theft, destruction of, or damage to, the Equipment for its full replacement value, naming us as loss payee, and
(b) public liability and third party property insurance, naming us as an additional insured. You will give us certificates
or other evidence of such insurance on the Equipment at such times as we request. All insurance obtained from a
third party insurer will be in a form, amount and with companies acceptabie to us, and will provide that we will be
given 30 days' advance notice of any cancellation or material change of such insurance. If you do not provide us
with proof of such insurance, we may secure insurance on the Equipment to cover our interests (and only our
interests). If we obtain such insurance, you will pay us an additional amount for the cost of such insurance and an
administrative fee, the cost of which may be more than the cost to obtain your own insurance and on which we may
make a profit.

6. Indemnification. With respect to any claims, actions, or suits that are made against us as a result of
your actions, omissions, negligence or willful misconduct ("Claims”), to the extent permitted by law, you agree to
reimburse us for, and if we request, defend us against, any such Claims.

7. Choice of Law. Regardless of any conflicting provision in the Agreement, THE AGREEMENT WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH YOU ARE LOCATED.

8. This Addendum supplements and amends the Agreement anly to the extent and in the manner set forth,
and in all other respects, the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto, by their authorized signatories, have executed this Addendum at the
date set forth below their respective signatures.

CUSTOMER: City Of Elkins LEAF CAPITAL FUNDING, LLC
By: By:
‘Print Print
,N'ame: _ Name;
Tif:[e_: ‘. Title:
‘Date: Date:
Page 2 of 2 $13 10-21-2018 App=744909




CITY OF ELKINS

INTHE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKINS, WV

ARESOLUTION OF COMMON COUNCIL

(#1557)
July 28, 2022

Authorizing Conditions of Lease & Addendum and Maintenance Agreement between
Hart Office Solutions and the City of Elkins (Street Department)

WHEREAS, the City of Elkins, West Virginia (“City”) has determined to obtain equipment and services for a
multiflmction_machine in the Street Department; and,

WHEREAS, the City has received a proposed Agreement with Hart Office Solutions, LL.C (copy attached) for
the provision of such equipment and services; and,

WHEREAS, it appears that contracting for this service is in the best interests of the citizens of the City of
Elkins; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Elkins Common Council approves this Agreement and authorizes execution of this
Agreement by the Mayor, or his designee, on behalf of the City of Elkins.

Jerry A. Marco, Mayor

Attest:

Jessica R. Sutton, City Clerk

401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia 26241 Telephone: (304) 636-1414 - Fax: (304) 635-7973




Toshiba MFP Maintenance Agreement

CJuly 21, 2022

City of Elkins Street Department
401 Davis Avenue

Elkins, WV 26241

304-636-1414

Maintenance Details for Toshiba e-Studio 4788 Black & White System:

¢ Service and supplies are included for up to 2,000 black & white clicks per month. Excess black & white
billed monthly at $.015 per click.

¢ Al parts, labor, drums, toner, and developer are included.

¢ Managed IT Services Agreements are available at discounted rates for a 5-hour block or 1 year, or on a per
call basis for $110.00 per hour.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF YOUR MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

For the purpose of maintaining the equipment covered by this agreement in good operating condition within manufacturer's specifications, Hart
Office Solutions agrees to perform maintenance service in accordance with the following terms and conditions.

Hart Office Solutions Is not responsible for any damages for loss of use of the Toshiba/Lexmark digitel copler. Such excluded damages would include, but not
limited to, o customer paying a third party to print documents or If customer Is unable to print because of a Toshiba/Lexmark/brother digital copier network
connection breakdown. Other exclusions include, but are not limited to, customer credits or reimbursements for poor quality or wasted prints and/or credits or
reimbursements for wasted paper due to poor quality prints or due to misfeeds.

The term of this agreement is based upon the anticipated customer usage as shown in the maintenance description listed above. Allowed clicks
are accumulated from the meter reading on the M.A. (Maintenance Agreement) start date. Should the number of allowed clicks be exceeded,
customer agrees 1o pay the current excess click charge for each click in excess of allowed clicks. Invoices for excess click charges will be
tendered at the time of service,and shall be payable by the customer upon receipt.

Excessive toner fill usage and scans may result in additional charges above the normal CPC rate / Maintenance charge. Supplies will also be
provided based on the manufacturer's listed usage rate.

Hart Office Soluticns reserves the right to terminate this agreement.
This agreement covers all routine, remedial and preventative maintenance service so long as this type of coverage was purchased.
With the exception of consumable parts, all parts are included under this agreement (so long as this type of agreement was purchased).

Consumable supplies are not included under this agreement unless specified as such under the “Maintenance Description” area of this
agreement.

Electrical work external to the equipment and equipment line cord is not covered by this agreement.
The initial term of the agreement shall commence on the date this agreement is signed. This agreement shall automatically renew annually, at
Hart Office Solutions maintenance rates in effect at the time of renewal, Hart Office Solutions reserves the right to increase the maintenance

agreement and/or overage click rates on an annual basis by an amount not tg exceed 10%.

This agreement does not cover service necessitated by malfunction of parts, attachments, or supplies of non-Toshiba/Lexmark manufacture.



Any customer changes, alterations, or attachments may require a change in the maintenance charge set forth herein. Hart Office Solutions also
reserves the right to terminate this agreement in the event that it shall determine that such changes, alterations, or attachments make it
impractical for Hart Office Solutions to continue to service the equipment.

This agreement will not apply to any equipment lost or damaged through accident, abuse, misuse, theft, neglect, acts of third parties, fire, water,
casualty or any other natural force. Any lass or damage occurring from any of the foregoing is specifically excluded from this agreement,

In the event that any equipment is maved form the location set forth on the reverse side hereof, Hart Office Solutions, may terminate and/or
subject the copier to additional service charges.

This agreement is not assignable or transferable by customer without prior written consent of Hart Office Salutions.
Customer agrees OEM parts and supplies are not required provided the parts or supplies meet or exceed manufacturer’s specification.
Inveice pursuant to this agreement will be tendered at the outset of each term. All charges for service and parts hereunder and all maintenance

changes shall be payable by the customer immediately upon receipt of invoice. Hart Office Solutions reserves the right to withhold service and
product if Customer fails to make any payment due under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Cancellatian at the conclusion of the initial term or any renewal term may be accomplished by either party giving written notice of such
cancellation to the other party no |ater than thirty (30} days prior to the expiration of the term then in effect. In addition, Hart Office Solutions
may cancel this agreement, in whole or in part, at any time upon seven (7) days written notice, or without notice in the thirty (30) day period prior
to the renewal date, if customer at any time is in breach of any term or condition herein contained.

This Maintenance Agreement shall be for a twelve (12} meonth period Beginning upon installation of the new or used system or upon the signing
of this agreement, whichever comes first. This non-cancelable agreement shall automatically be renewed annuaily at the then prevailing rates for
a successive one-year term unless terminated by either party by providing written notice no less than 30 days prior to the upcoming annual term,

Supplies: All supplies and parts ordered, accepted, and received by the customer remain under the ownership of Hart Office Solutions until
consumed.

Limited Remedies: At no time shall Hart Office Solutions be held liable for any damages to the network, network server or workstations. In no
event shall Hart Office Solutions be liable for special, consequential, exemplary, indirect or incidentat damages beyond the cost to repair or
replace a defective part and maintenance service. While Hart Office Solutions endeavors to promptly address any emergency and maintain the
Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier which is the subject of this agreement, Hart Office Solutians shall nat be liable for any damages for any alleged
failure to make repairs and/or maintain the copier including any claim that the repair or maintenance was not timely. For example, but not by the
way of limitation, Hart Office Solutions is not responsible for any damages for loss of use of the Toshiba/lexmark digital copier. Such excluded
damages would includs, but not limited to, a customer paying a third party to print documents or if customer is unable to print because of a
Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier network connection breakdown.,

Miscellaneous: This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement between the parties
pertaining to maintenance of the Toshiba/Lexmark digital copier network connection and supersedes all prior and contemporanegus
understandings or agreements of the parties. A signed facsimile or copy of the Agreemaent shall be deemed as effective as an original.

Connections to computar/ngtworks: Connections will be performed by a Hart Office Solutions technician in eonjunction with customers IT support
personnel. Customer shall first provide all necessary cabling, network connections and electrical requirements for the installation. If the
equipment cannot be installed and connected because of some condition within the customer’s reasonable control, then a reinstallation charge
shall apply. The engineer performing the installation will configure up to 6 workstations. Additional workstations will be configured at an
additional charge at the prevailing rate.

Connection Waiver: If Hart Office Solutions performs the installation/connection, the customer agrees that Hart Office Solutions is responsible
only for completing the installation and setup of the equipment purchased through Hart Office Solutions. Hart Office Sclutions is not responsible
for any changes, failures, downtime or consequential losses of the customer's network, software or computers during or after the installation.

Acceptance: Your signature will indicate your acceptance of these terms and conditions.

Customer Name (printed): City of Elkins Street Department

"Date:,

Customer Signature (acceptance): |

Printed Name:

Title:




HART OFFICE SOLUTIONS

YOUR LOCAL DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS DEALER
BOO-527-53é6

LEASE AGREEMENT

1720A Crete Street, Moberly, MO 65270
Phone: 800-662-3759, Fax: 800-426-2626

LESSEE LEGAL NAME:
City Of Elkins (Street Departmeni}

Telephone No:
3046361414

Billing Address;
401 Davis Ave, Elkins, WV 26241

Equipment Location (if other than Billing Address):
401 Davis Avenue, Elkins, WV 26241

EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION: (indicatc quantity, new or used and include make, model, serial # and all attachments — see below and/or attached Schedulc A)

warranty.)

Unit Quantity Description of Equipment Leased Make and Type Medel Number Serial Nnmber
1 Toshiba E4788 E4788
BASE TERM TOTAL NUMBER. OF LEASE END OF LEASE PURCHASE OPTION .
Ad P t: 0.00
IN MONTHS PAYMENTS X Fair market value, plus taxes (a) Advance Paymen §
63 10% of Equipment cost, plus taxes b) Security Deposit: $0,00
== 63 @ $85.00 (plus taxes) $1.00, plus taxes (b) ty Dep

(FMV unless another option is selected, You may not exercise a purchase option if
you are in default. If you exercise a purchase option we will convey all of our
right, title and interest in such Equipment to you on an AS-IS WHERE IS without | Total duca +b+c = £95.00

(c) Documentation Fee; $95.00

**]f more than one lease payment is required as an Advance Payment, the balance will be applied o lease payments in inverse order, starting with the last lease payment,
Your obligation to pay all amounis and perform all other oblipations is non-cancellable, abselute, unconditional and not subject to abatement, set-off or defense.

In this agreement (“Lease™), “we,” “our,” and “us” refers to LEAF Capital Funding, LLC as
Lessor and “you” and “your” refer fo the Lessee. You agree 10 lease the Equipment upon the
following terms and condilions:

1. LEASE PAYMENTS AND TERM: The Lease is enforceable on you upen your
execution. The term of the Lease shall commence on the date the Equipment is delivered to you
(“T.ease Commencement Date™). The first Lease Payment shall be due on the date we specify in
the month following the Lease Commencement Date as set forth in our inwveice, and the
remaining Lease Payments will be due on the same day of each subsequent month (each, a
“Payment Date™) until paid in full. The Base Term shall commence on the date one month prior
to the first Payment Date. We may charge you a portion of one Lease Payment for the period
fram the Lease Commencement Date until the first day of the Base Term (“Interim Rent™). The
Interim Rent shall be due as invoiced. We may adjust the Lease Payments up to 15% if the
actual costs are different than the estimate used to calculate the Lease Payments. On an anzual
basis, the Monthly Payment may be increased by a8 maximum of 15% of the amount
previously then in effect.

2. DELIVERY, ACCEPTANCE, USE AND REPAIR: You are responsible for Equipment
delivery and installation. You unconditionally accept the Equipment upon the earlier of (a) your
oral or written acceptance of the Equipment, or (b) 10 days after delivery of the Equipment,
You authorize us to fill in the Lease Commencement Date, serial numbers and other
information. You will not move the Equipment from the above location without our
written consent and are responsible for maintaining the Equipment in good repair. We arc
not responsible for Equipment or vendor failures.

3. INDEMNIFICATION: You agree to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and
against any lossas, damapges, penalties, claims and suits, including attorneys” fees and expenses
related to the ordering, manufacture, instailation, ownership, condition, use, lease, possession,
delivery or return of Equipment.

4. LEASE EXPIRATION, RENEWAL: Unless you notify us at least 90 days prior to the
expiration of the Leage of your ¢lection to return or purchase the Equipment, this Lease
will renew on a month-to-month basis at the same monthly Lease Payment until you
either exercise the purchase option or provide us with at Jeast 9¢ days notice and return
the Equipment. I you return the Equipment, (i) it must be to the location we designate and
you are responsible for all return costs and we may charge a Restocking Fee cqual to one Lease
Payment, and (ii) you must securely remove all data from any and all disk drives or magnetic
media prior to returning the Equipment (and you are solely responsible for selecting an
appropriate removal standard that meets your business needs and complies with applicable
laws). You will pay us for any loss in value resulting from failure to maintain the Equipment in
accordance with this Lease or for damages incurred in shipping and handling, If you exercise a
purchase option we will convey all of our interest in such Equipment to you on an AS-IS
WHERE IS basis without representation or warranty.

5. LATE FEES AND CHARGES: If any amount is not paid within three (3) days of wien
due, vou agres to pay us a late charge equal to the lesser of 10% of the amount past due or the
maximutn legal amount. Amounts which are not paid within 30 days of when due shall acere
interest at 1.5% per month {or if less, the maximum legal rate) until paid. You agree to pay $25
for each pay by phene and $35 for each returned payment,

6, NO WARRANTY: We do not mamufacture the Equipment and yon have selected the
Equipment and the supplier. WE MAKE NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES,
INCLUDING THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PURPOSE AND
ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

7. INSURANCE, RISK OF LOSS: You bear all risk of loss or damage to the Equipment from
its order until it is returned in the required condition or purchased by you (*Risk
Period”). During the Risk Period you will maintain property and liability insurance on the
Equipment acceptable to us, naming us lass payes and additional insured. If you do not provide
us with proof of such insurance, we may secure insurance on the Equipment to cover

our interests (and only our interests), If we obtain such insurance, you will pay us an
additional amount for the cost of it and an administrative fee, the cost of which may be more
than the cost to obtain your own insurance and on which we may make a profit.

8. OWNERSHIP AND TAXES: We own the Equipment (excluding licensed software). If
you are deemied to own it, you grant us a security interest in the Equipment, You authorize us
to file UCC financing statements o confirm our interest. You will pay, when due, all taxes,
fines and penalties relating to the purchase, use, leasing and/or ownership of the Equipment. If
we pay any taxes, {including preperty tax), fees or penalties on your behalf, you will pay us
the amount we paid plus an administrative fee, You agree to pay us the documentation fee
specified above or if not so specified, the greater of either $125 or 0.5% of the Equipment
cost. If we require an Equipment site inspection, or you request administrative services, you
agree to reimburse our ¢osts,

9. DEFAULT: If you or any guarantor do not pay us any amaount within ten (10) days of its
due date, or breach any terms of this Leasc, any guaranty or any licenmse relating to the
Equipment, you will be in default. If you default, we may require you to do any combination
of the following: (a) immediately pay all amounts then due, plus the present value of the
remaining Lease Payments, Interim Rent and residual value of the Equipment, as determined
by us, discounted at an annual rate of 3%; (b} retumn all of the Equipment; (¢) allow us to
repossess the Equipment; or (d) use any and all remedies available to us ueder applicable
law. If you default, you agree to pay the cost of repossession and our attorney's fees and
costs. In addition to all ather charges and as reimbursement for expenses incurred and not as a
penalty, we may require you to reimbucse us for the phone calls, letters, and any additional
expense incurred in the collection or servicing of this Lease for you. If we take possession of
the Equipment, we may self or otherwise dispose of it with or without notice, at a public or
private sale, and apply the net proceeds (after we have deducted all costs related to the sale or
disposition of the Equipment) to the amounts that you owe us. You agree that if notice of sale
is required by law, 10 days’ notice shall constitute reasonable notice. You remain responsible
for any amounts that arc duc after we have applied such net proceeds. We may apply any
security deposits to your obligations and if you do not default, the balance will be refunded
without interest,

10. ASSIGNMENT: You have no right to scll or assign the Equipment or Lease. We may
sell or assign our rights in the Lease and/or Equipment and the new owner will have all our
rights but will not be subject to any claim or defense you have against us.

13, ARTICLE 2A: You agree this Lease is a “finance lease” as defined in Article 2A of the
Uniform Commercial Code. You waive all rights and remedies conferred upon a lessee by
Article 2A (508-522) of the UCC, You have received a copy of the Supply Contract or been
informed of the identity of the Supplier and you may have rights under the Supply Contract
and may contact the Supplier for 2 description of those rights.

12. CREDIT INFORMATION: You authorize us or any of our affiliates to obtain credit
burcau reports, and make other eredit inquiries that we deem necessary.

13. CHOICE OF LAW: THIS LEASE WILL BE GOVERNED BY PENNSYLVANIA
LAW, YOU CONSENT TO JURISDICTION IN THE STATE OR FEDERAL COURTS
IN PENNSYLVANIA AND WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY,

14. MISCELLANEOUS: This Lease is the parties' entire agreement and can be armended
only in writing signed by both parties. This Lease may be executed in counterparts (manually
or by electronic means) and, when transmifted to us shall be binding upon you for all
purposes, This Lease is not binding on us until we sign it. You agree pot to raise as a defense
to the enforcement of this Lease that it was executed or transmitted to us by electronic means.
You will use the Equipment enly for business purposes and not for personal, family or
household use. The USA PATRIOT Act requires us to obtain, verify, and record information
that identifies you thus we ask for your name, address and other information or documents that
snbstantiate your identity.

ACCEPTED BY LESSEE: City Of Elkins Privt Names :Tit.le.:
X E-Mail Address: Date; - .
Lessee Authorized Signature Tax ID Number:5560001 70

PERSONAL GUARANTY: Undersighed guarantees that Lessee will make all payments and perform all other obligations under the Lease when due. Undersigned agrees that this is a guaranty
of payment and not of collection, and that we can proceed directly against undersigned without first proceeding against Lessee or the Equipment, Undersigned also waives all suretyship defenses
and notification i’ the Lessee is in dofault and consents to any extensions or modifications granted o Lesses. Undersigned will pay us all expenses (including attorneys® fees} we incur in
cenforcing our rights against undersigned or Lessee. If more than one person signs this guaranty, each agrees that his/her liability is jeint and several, Undersigned authorizes us and our affiliates
to obtain credit bureau reports and make inquiries regarding undersigned’s personal credit. You consent to jurisdiction in the State or Federal courts in Pennsylvania and expressly waive
any right to a trial by jury.

SIGNED X Print Name: E-Mail Address:
Accepted by:
LEAF Capital Funding, LLC By: Title: Drate:

LEASEQ] 2-7-2019 App=744910¢




| HART OFFICE SOLUTIONS
YoOUR LacaL ﬂﬂ;;at‘l;;;rﬁ;:ﬂl.uﬂﬂu! DEALER

State and Lacal Government Addendum

Reference: Application No. 744910

This State and Local Government Addendum (this "Addendum”) is made part of the Agreement related to
the above referenced application number (“Agreement”) between LEAF Capital Funding, LLC (“we” "us” and
“ours") and City Of Elkins {“you” and “your"). Capitalized terms used but not defined will have the meaning given to
them in the Agreement. If there is any conflict between the terms of this Addendum and the terms of the Agreement,

the terms of this Addendum will control and prevail. The parties hereby agree as foilows:

1. Funding Intent. You reasonably believe that funds can be obtained sufficient to make all Payments set
forth in the Agreement and any other amounts owed during the term of the Agreement. You agree that your chief
executive or administrative officer (or your administrative office that has the responsibility of preparing the budget
submitted to your governing body, as applicable) will pravide for funding for such payments in your annual budget
request submitted to your governing body. You covenant that you will do all things lawfully within your power to
obtain, maintain and properly request and pursue funds from which the Payments may be made, including making
provisions for such payments to the extent necessary in each budget submitted for the purpose of obtaining
funding, using your hest efforts to have such portion of the budget approved and exhausting all available
administrative reviews and appeals in the event such portion of the budget is not approved. If your governing body
chooses not io appropriate funds for such payments, you agree that your governing body will evidence such
nonappropriation by omitting funds for such payments due during the applicabls fiscal period from the budget that it
adopts. You and we agree that your obligation to make payments under the Agreement will be your current expense
and will not he interpreted to be a debt in violation of applicable law or constitutional limitations or
requirements. Nothing contained in the Agreement will be interpreted as a pledge of your general tax revenues,
funds or moneys.

2. Nonappropriation of Funds. If (a} sufficient funds are not appropriated and budgeted by your
governing body in any fiscal period for Payments set forth in the Agreement or any other amounts owed to us and
(b) you have exhausted all funds legally available for such payments due under the Agreement {together, a “Non-
Appropriation Event"}, then you will give us not less than ninety (90) days written notice (a "Termination Natice”) and
the Agreement will terminate as of the last day of your fiscal period for which funds for such payments are available
("Termination Date"). Such termination is without any expense or penalty, except for the portions of such payments
and those expenses associated with your return of the Equipment in accordance with the Agreement for which
funds have been budgeted or appropriated or are otherwise legally available. You agree that, to the extent
permitted by law, you will not terminate the Agreement if any funds are appropriated by you or to you for the
acquisition or use of equipment or services performing functions similar to the Equipment during your fiscal period
in which such termination would occur. You shall (i} on or before the Termination Date, return the Equipment in
accordance with the return requirements set forth in the Agreement, (ii) provide in the Termination Notice a
certification of a responsible official that a Non-Appropriation Event has occurred, (iii) deliver fo us, upon our
request, an opinion of your counsel (addressed to us) verifying that the Non-Appropriation Event as set forth in the
Termination Notice has occurred, and (iv) pay us all sums payable to us under the Agreement up to and including
the Termination Date. You acknowledge and agree that, in the event of the termination of the Agreement and the
return of the Equipment as provided for herein, you shall have no interest whatsoever in the Equipment or proceeds
thereof and we shall be entitled to retain for our own account the proceeds resuiting from any disposition or re-
leasing of the Equipment along with any advance rentals, security deposits or other sums previously paid by you
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

3. Authority and Authorization. You represent and agree that: (a) you are a state or a political

subdivision or agency of a state; {b) the entering into and performance of the Agreement is authorized under your
state laws and Constitution and does not violate or contradict any judgment, law, order, or regulation, or cause any
default under any agreement to which you are party; (c) you have complied with all bidding requirements and,
where necessary, have properly presented the Agreement for approval and adoption as a valid obligation on your
part; and {d) you have sufficient appropriated funds or other moneys available to pay all amounts due under the
Agreement for your current fiscal period. Upon our request, you agree to provide us with an opinion of counsel as to
clauses (a) through (d) above, an incumbency certificate, and other documents that we request, with all such
documents being in a form satisfactory fo us.

Page 1 of 2 813 10-21-2016 App=744910




4. Government Use. You agree that (a} you will comply with all information reporting requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not limited to the execution and delivery
to us of information statements requested by us, and (b) the use of the Equipment is essential for your
proper, efficient and economic operation, you will be the only entity to use the Equipment during the term
of the Agreement and you will use the Equipment only for your governmental purposes. Upon our request
you will provide us with an essential use letter in a form satisfactory to us as to clause (b} above.

5. Insurance. You agree to provide and maintain at your own expense (a) property insurance against the
loss, theft, destruction of, or damage to, the Equipment for its full replacement value, naming us as loss payee, and
{b} public liability and third party property insurance, naming us as an additional insured. You will give us certificates
or aother evidence of such insurance on the Equipment at such times as we request. All insurance obtained from a
third party insurer will be in a form, amount and with companies acceptable to us, and will provide that we will be
given 30 days' advance notice of any cancellation or material change of such insurance. If you do not provide us
with proof of such insurance, we may secure insurance on the Equipment to cover our interests (and only our
interests). If we obtain such insurance, you will pay us an additional amount for the cost of such insurance and an
administrative fee, the cost of which may be more than the cost to obtain your own insurance and on which we may
make a profit.

6. Indemnification. With respect to any claims, actions, or suits that are made against us as a result of
your actions, omissions, negligence or willful misconduct ("Claims”), to the extent permitted by law, you agree to

reimburse us for, and if we request, defend us against, any such Claims.

7. Choice of Law. Regardless of any conilicting provision in the Agreement, THE AGREEMENT WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH YOU ARE LOCATED.

8. This Addendum supplements and amends the Agreement only to the extent and in the manner set forth,
and in all other respects, the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF ihe parties hersto, by their authorized signatories, have executed this Addendum at the
date set forth below their respective signatures.

CUSTOMER: City Of Elkins LEAF CAPITAL FUNDING, LLC
By: . By:

Print: Print

Name; Name:

Title: - Title:

Date:’ Date:

Page 2 of 2 $13 10-21-2016 App=744910




July 28, 2022

City of Elkins
401 Davis Avenue
Elkins, WV 26241

Dear Council,

On behalf of the City of Elkins Planning Commission I would like to submit the recommended
comprehensive plan amendment, which has been prepared by the Commission. The Planning
Commission has taken great strides to ensure that this amendment is in conformance with
Chapter 8A of the West Virginia Code, which governs land use planning in West Virginia.

After holding a properly advertised public hearing on July 18, 2022, the Planning Commission
convened and held a regular mecting where a quorum of the Commission, by way of resolution,
recommended the plan and now submits the plan to City Council for review and possible
adoption.

At the next Council meeting the Planning Commission will present the comprehensive plan
amendment to Council where we would be happy to answer any question you or members of the
Council may have. In order to present the comprehensive plan, the Planning Commission
requests that the matter be placed on the next Council’s meeting’s agenda.

Best Regards,

Nanci Bross-Fregonara, President of Elkins Planning Commission
Enclosure -




AMENDMENT TO THE POLICY PLAN (2015 EDITION)

The following amendments to the 2015 Comprehensive Plan have been developed by the Elkins
Planning Commission and recommended to City Council for adoption. The focation of changes
is identified by page number.

MODJFY: Elkins Comprehensive Plan, 2015 Edition, page 5-18, Add the following action item far
Action Step 1 at the end of the bulleted list: '

» The development of telecommunication facilities is important to improve the quality of
life, support economic development opportunities, and provide emergency
services. However, the need for telecommunication facilities must be balanced with
scenic viewsheds and residential development in the city. Careful consideration must
take place when siting new facilities; such as collocatien, concealment, and
landscaping. Most of the city is built-out with compact residential and commercial
development. Topography and existing facilities should be considered when
determining iocations for new telecommunication facilities. Placement of
telecommunication facilities in or adjacent to residential areas and downtown shouid be
avoided. If facilities are placed downtown, the facilities should be in industrial zaned
areas.

MODIFY: Elkins Comprehensive Plan, 2014 Edition, page 5-19, Replace Future Land Use
Classifications with the following:

As the city is urban in nature and does not have any lands that are classified as agriculture or
conservation, rural lands were not identified an future land use map. The city plans to continue
to grow with possible annexation areas and therefore will continue a more urban, built-out land
use pattern. The city supports the preservation of agricultural lands and in the future would
consider annexation of agricultural lands.

Future Land Use Classifications
Recreational- areas intended for parks and recreation uses. The proposed Allegheny Highlands
Trails is also shown on the map. The current route has not yet been finalized therefore the

route is only the approximate location.

Single family residential- intended to provide for low density residential uses.



Residential- intended to provide for single-family and multi-family residentiai uses.

Institutional- areas owned by Davis & Elkins College Central Business District

Central Business District- intended to provide for small-scale business uses to serve surrounding
neighborhoods. Residential uses would allow for a mix of single family and multifamily uses,
especially in the second story of commercial buildings.

Commercial- intended to provide for businesses that require larger buildings and would have
more of an impact of surrounding uses.

Industrial- intent of this classification is to accommodate industrial uses.

MODIFY: Elkins Comprehensive Plan, 2015 Edition, page 5-18 and page 5-23, Replace Future Land

Use Map with the following updated map:




i
!
|
f
|
|
|
i

re Land Use

Potential Annexation Area

Potential Annexation Area

Potential
Annexation
Area

Potential
Annexation
Area

Potential Annexation Area

r reqend ~
e Watarways

#4".0 S Route

<™ LocalRord

~+— Rairoad

Future Land Ase

- Recreatisnal.

{ Qlﬁgle Family Besidential
B Rasidentie)

ﬂ Ins tkutional

PRl Central Business District
| | Commarial
k_-‘lruu._m:i.gl

>

N

A ,.

Source Date: West Virginia 5IS ‘ G 02 04 0.8
Technical Center, WVDQT [ — - R



o ARPARindApproved oo f Dol 0 it
ARPA Funds $ 3,084,933 | '
Water distribution 389,775 8/19/2021
(City Hall) Water and Sewage Facility 450,000 8/19/2021
Water Plant 261,000 8/19/2021
Clerk Dept, Web redesign, Management Soft 31,350 10/7/2021
Addiction and Homeless Resources Task Force 5,000 10/7/2021
Water Line and Sewage Replacement Eng. estimate 154,246 10/7/2021
Community Projects ' 154,246 10/7/2021 |
Wastewater and Wheel Loader 102,000 11/18/2021
Wastewater SCADA 55,000 11/18/2021
EPRC 31,000 3/17/2022
Davis Medical Center 9,079 3/17/2022
Wastewater SCADA (additional funds) 45,000 3/17/2022
Street Dept. backhoe 110,271 4/7/2022
Water Plant SCADA 147,801 4/7/2022
Riverfront Dev. Design 5,000 4/7/2022
Wastewater Collection service truck & bed 165,000 5/25/2022
N. Randolph sewer study 15,100 6/2/2022
Street Department equipment & vehicles 543,000 6/2/2022
Fire Department equipment 60,000 6/2/2022
Wastewater Collection backhoe 135,000 6/2/2022
Wastewater dump site 80,000 6/2/2022
Total Appropriated 2,948,868
Remaining Available 136,065
Recommended to Council by ARPA Committee
WWTP PLC Upgrades 76,704.90
WTP Air Compressors 21,784.32
Remaining Available (if approved) 37,575.78

J.SUTTON | June 7, 2022




.\ CYBERTECH

A
AUTOMATION USA
A A

Proposal

Elkins Wastewater Treatment Plant
Attention: Whitney Hymes and Dewaine Corley

Date: 6 June, 2022
Project: WWTP PLC Upgrade
Proposal #: CUS-PRP-0154

Key Contact:

Eldon Cummings

Senior Control System Integrator
Cybertech Automation USA

Cell: 607.351.4727

Email: eldonc@cybertechusa.com

Control System Solutions + Industrial Software Solutions




Introduction

Cybertech Automation is pleased to provide an estimate to City of Elkins related to our capabilities to
support the wastewater treatment plant. The current PLC system has reached it's end of life and we
propose upgrading to a more current system while also integrating into SCADA.

Cybertech prides itself on its familiarity with multiple industries and technologies, having successfully
completed hundreds of projects for many leading organizations. These clients include Enbridge, Shell,
Kinder Morgan, Repsol, IMG Energy, Petrogas and Weyerhaeuser.

Since many of our projects have invoived similar requirements and common technologies, Cybertech can
seamlessly take on projects for new clients ~ drawing on a workforce of over 95 employees with a wide
spectrum of skillsets and industry experience.

Cybertech has grown through an intense focus on our core strengths — providing our clients with a stable
woarkforce focused on automation projects. '

Repeat husiness has been the foundation of Cybertech’s success. Besides its expertise across control,
electrical and instrumentation technologies, clients enjoy the company’s approachability, consistency in
project staff and commitment to forming long-term client relationships.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this proposal and provide more information at your convenience.
Related to this proposal, you may contact:

Eldon Cummings

Senior Control System Integrator
eldanc@cybertechusa.com
C:1.607.351.4727

Proposal 20f6

www.cybertechusa.com




Scope

Elkins WWTP has expressed interest in sourcing a specialized automation contractor to support the upgrade
of devices in their facility in Elkins, WV and to assist in installation, commissioning, and migration to an
Ignition SCADA. Cybertech is proposing the following deliverables based on our company expertise.

Estimate (USD Funds)

BUDGET ESTIMATE - Elkins WWTP Instrument Upgrades

.\ CYBERTECH

AUTOMATION LS A
A__A _

Phase _ . Description Cost Totat A

Designing Design Finalization and Material Requistion $362.50].
Designing PLC layout and wiring drawings 58;320.66
Programming HMI Software Development - $4,160.00
Programming PLC Software Development - $8,320.00 )
Project Management Project Manager -$1;140.00} -
Commissioning Commissioning & Integration Assuming 10 hr days for 10days | SlO,ﬁb_tiDD ]
Commissioning Travel to and from site - 42;288.00] - o
htota .. $34,990.50,
ateria e piio 0 ota
1769-L30ER CompactLogix 5370 L3 Controller . $9,102.82
1769-PB2K L3x & L3y Compactiogix Power Supplies - 41,469,565
1769-1016 16 Point 24 VDC Sinking/Sourcing Input Module $2,972.55
7785770050/9445820000 ‘Card interface and cable 82,745,601
:17639-0B16 ' 16 Point 24 VDC Sourcing Gutput Module 5488.57
- 7789769050/9445820000 ‘Card interface and cable - 434320 .
1769-1F8 -8 Channel Analog Current/Voltage Input Module $12,124.31]
7789028xxx,/9448110000 Card interface and cable $6,259.00
1769-ECL Left End Cap/Terminator " 420523
1769-ECR -Right End Cap/Terminator " $158,90)
TZ-270 Sonicwall Firewall . $1,155.00
Misc Wiring and Connectors .'.$2SQ:E')0 B SRS
MO $37,274.72
pense De ptio O 0
Expenses Per Diem [meals only) $60.00)
Expenses Per Diem (hote! and meals) $1,900.00
Expenses Mileage $519.68 .
Subtotal $4,439,68
476,704.90

Proposal

www.cybertechusa.com

30f6



Exceptions / Clarifications

Estimate valid for 30 days.

All prices shown in US Doilars and does not include all applicable taxes.

25% down for material costs. Net 30 for remaining 80% upon completion of work.

Both remote and onsite work required. Travel expenses {including travel time) billable on a time and

materials basis. Estimated travel expense far trips includes return flights and per diems.

e Post-integration support can be provided remotely by Cybertech and will be charged at the prevailing rate
to the client.

e One ansite Control System Integrators for start up and commissicning for 10 days.

e All equipment and software warranty is as per the manufacturer’s standard warranty and via equipment
supplier(s).

+ All cables and installation to be performed by others on behalf of the client,

Proposal 4of6
www.cybertechusa.com




Cybertech Automation 2022 Rate Sheet (USD})

Project Management

Project Manager/Engineer $114.00/hour

Control Systems Integration

Level A Control Systems Integrator §52.00/hour
Level B Control Systems Integratar $72.50/hour
Level C Control Systems Integrator $92.00/hour
Level D Control Systems Integrator $104.00/hour
Level E Control Systems Integrator $111.50/hour

Electrical and instrumentation Engineering

Level A Engineer/Tech $52.00/hour
Level B Engineer/Tech $72.50/hour
Level C Engineer/Tech $92.00/hour
Level D Engineer/Tech $104.00/hour
Level E Engineer/Tech $111.50/hour

Electrical/Instrumentation Drafting
Level | CAD/Drafting $52.00/hour
Level |1 CAD/Drafting 564.50/hour

Project Support Staff

Project Administration/Clerical $52.00/hour

Transportation

Vehicle Mileage {out of town) $0.56/mile
Air Travel & Vehicle Rental @ cost
Proposal Sofé

www.cybertechusa.com



Accommodation & Meals @ cost
Per Diem {when applicable) $190.00/day
Meals Only Allowance (when appticable) $60,00/day

Equipment Rental, Services and Equipment Purchased

Third Party Equipment Rentals

@ cost + 10%

Third Party Purchases

@ cost + 10%

Third Party Services

@ cost + 10%

Affiliated 3rd Party Service / Products

@ cost+ 5%

Voice/Data Communication Charges

@ cost + 10%

Notes and clarifications:

1. Client authorized on-site overiime shall be billed at 1.25 times the standard rate.

2. 10% premium on total nightshift hours will be charged. Nightshift assignments that are less than three

nights, a swing-shift day following the nightshift will be charged.
3. Travel time is charged for all travel.

Proposal
www.cybertechusa.com

6of6



PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

The public is hereby notified and made aware that the City of Elkins and the Elkins Sanitary Board
intend to make application with the West Virginia Division of Homeland Security and Emergency
Management ‘s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for back-up generators to be used at the lift stations

throughout the system.

The application will be on the agenda for consideration at the regularly scheduled meeting of the
Elkins City Council to be held on Thursday, July 7, 2022, Elkins City Hall, Council Chambers, 401 Davis
Avenue, Elkins, West Virginia at 7:00 p.m. The public is invited to attend this open meeting to learn more

regarding the grant.

For more information, please contact Whitney L. Hymes, Wastewater Superintendent/Chief
Operator at (304) 636-1122 or email whymes@cityofelkinswyv.com




COMPRESSORVVORLDS Estimate

Compressed Air, Vocuum Systems & Related Accessories Date Estimate #
5/16/22 78428
Customer Compressor World, LLC
Wes Lambert 31 Schoosett St. Unit 400
Pembroke, MA 02359, USA

Direct: 508-859-1474
Toll free: 866-778-6572 x 100

Quoted by: Matt Mazanec

matt@compressorworld.com

ltem B O Descripton .l aw JCost b Total

KRSD—15 125 Katshan 15HP Direct Drive Rotary Screw Alr 2 9,585. 18 19 170 36T
Compressor, Basemount. 208/230/460v 3-Phase
(Please specif)

66-CFM @ 125 PSI

10 Year Airend Warranty 115-125 PSIG

5 Year Major Component Warranty

Tri-Voltage 208/230/460 3-Phase TEFC Drive & Fan
Motors 50HP & Below

575 Volt No Charge

Water Resistant Electrical Enclosure

Modulation Control

e L ABME-& UL Approved o

" _ | Ship Loose Moisture Trap U R R - o _
Discount. - Courtesy Discount'Applied fo Purchase- - 7 AR -10.00% | -1,917.04 _
W25 "'--:A.rca|;125 CFM-zRefngerated A;rDryerfor my25 HPAur’gga" S ST 36IT00F 36100

_ B '_3"i'Made|ntheUSA : I DT S o _
P-177 Pre Dryer Filter, Compressor World 177 cfm partnculate 1 457.00 457.00

filter, 5 micron filtration grade o o _
CHE-177... = . }Post Dryer:Filter; Compressor World: 1770fmfne ER EE L e LR 457.00( - " 457.00
T " feoalegeing fiter, .1:micron filtration grade ©o e o i s 0T S o
StartUp |Factory Start Up Included ] 1) 000 0:00
**Sales Tax is Additional if Applicable*
Total

Page 1



COMPRESSORVVORLDS Estimate

Compressed Air, Vacuum Systems & Related Accessories Date Estimate #

5/16/22 78428

Customer Compressor World, LLC
Wes Lambert 31 Schoosett St. Unit 400
Pembroke, MA 02359, USA

Direct: 508-859-1474
Toll free: 866-778-6572 x 100

Quoted by: Matt Mazanec

matt@compressorworld.com

‘Shipping, - “ilncluded.- . | e : oo e e T h000:
lead Time [StocktotWeek | 0.00 0.00
s et ot Select this-as afransaction’s taxdo use-AvaTax: - 0o Lo ol i el e s e 0000% | 0,00

**Sales Tax is Additional if Applicable**
Total $21,784.32

Page 2





